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National Stock Exchange of India Limited BSE Limited
Exchange Plaza, 5" Floor Corporate Relationship Department
Plot No. C/1, G Block; Bandra (East) Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Mumbai 400 051 Dalal Street; Fort, Mumbai 400 001
Equity | Scrip Code | RADIOCITY Equity | Scrip Code | 540366

ISIN INE919101024 ISIN INE919101024
NCRPS | Scrip Code | RADIOCITY NCRPS | Scrip Code | 717504
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Dear Sir/Ma’am,

Subject: Notice of 25" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Music Broadcast Limited along
with the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24

We wish to inform you that pursuant to Regulation 30, Regulation 34, 53, and other applicable provisions
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations™)
please find enclosed the Annual Report of Music Broadcast Limited (“the Company") for FY 2023-24
along with the Notice of 25" Annual General Meeting ("AGM") scheduled to be held on
Wednesday, August 21, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio
Visual Means ("OAVM") in accordance with the relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

In compliance with the circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the Notice and the Annual Report for the
financial year 2023-24 is being sent electronically to all the Members whose email addresses are registered
with the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/Depository Participant(s).

The aforesaid documents are also available on the Company's website at www.radiocity.in and on the
website of RTA, KFin Technologies Limited at https://evoting.kfintech.com.

This is for your information and records.

Thanking you,

For Music Broadcast Limited
ARPITA
MEHROTR
A KAPOOR
Arpita Kapoor

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Membership No. F8842

Encl: As above

CC: National Securities Depository Limited
Central Depository Services Limited
KFin Technologies Limited
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MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

CIN: L64200MHI1999PLC137129
Regd. Office: 5" Floor, RNA Corporate Park, Off Western Express Highway, Kalanagar,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051;
Tel: +71 22 66969100, Fax: +91 22 26429113
Website: www.radiocity.in, E-mail: investor@myradiocity.com

NOTICE is hereby given that the TWENTY-FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM™) of
the Members of MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

be held on WEDNESDAY, THE 21* DAY OF AUGUST, 2024 AT 1:00 P.M. Indian Standard Time (“IST"),
through Video Conference ("VC7) / Other Audic Vizual Means ("OAVM"™) Facility, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of Board of
Directors and the Auditors thercon.

To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend to the Non-
Cumulafive Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS”)
holders of ¥ 0.01/~ per NCRPS of ¥ 10 each for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2024 declared by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rahul Gupta
(DIM: 00359182), who retires by rofation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4,

To rafify the remuneration payable to M/s Kishore Bhatia
and Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.
00294) for their services as Cost Auditors of the Company
for the financial year 2024-25.

If thought fit, to pass, the following resolufion as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') read with Rule 14 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof,
for the time being in force) and as recommended by the
Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors,
the remuneration of ¥ 80,000/- (Rupees Eighty Thousand
Only) plus Goods and Service Tax as applicable and
reimbursement of conveyance on actual basis as incurred
by them in connection with the aforesaid audit to be paid
to M/s Kishore Bhatia and Associates, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 002%94) to conduct the audit of cost
records maintained by the Company as prescribed under
the Companies {Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as
amended, for the financial year 2024-25, be and is hereby
ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/
or the Company Secretary be and are hereby severally
authonzed to settle any question, difficulty or doubt,
that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to
do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary,
expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect
to this Resolution.”

[CIN: LE4200MH1999PLCI3T728] (“the Company™) will

5 To re-appoint Ms. Anita Nayyar (DIN: 02317861) as an

Independent Mon-Executive Director of the Company.

To consider, if thought fit, to pass, the following resclution
as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Secfions
142 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable
provisions of the Act and the Companies {Appointment
and Gualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the
applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2005 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the fime
being in force), and based on the recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors, Ms. Anita Nayyar (DIN: 03317861), an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company,
who has submitted a declarafion that she meets the criteria
of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act
and Regulation 16{1)}(b) of the Listing Regulations, and
who is eligible for re-appointment, as an Independent
Director of the Company, not liable to refire by rofation,
to hold office for the second term of 5 (five) consecutive
years commencing from January 27, 2025 to January 26,
2030{both days inclusive) be and is hereby re-appointed.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/
or the Company Secretary be and are hereby severally
authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt,
that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and fo
do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary,
expedient or desirable for the purpose of giving effect
to this Resclution.”

By Order of the Board
For Music Broadcast Limited

Arpita Eapoor
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. FB842

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024

Registered Office:

St Floor, RNA Corporate Park,

Off Westarn Express Highway,

Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
CIN:L64Z200MH1999PLC137729

Email: investor@myradiodity.com
Website: wwwi.radiocity.com
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IMPORTANT NOTES:

The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sechion
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") as amended
from time to time, setting out matenal facts relafing to
certain items of Ordinary Business ie., ltem MNo. 2 and ltems
of Speaal Businesses ig, ltem Mo. 4 and ltem Mo. 5, to be
transacted af the AGMs is annexed hereto.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') has vide its
General Circular dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May
5§, 2020 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the
latest dated September 25, 2023 (collectively refarred to
as "MCA Circulars'), permitted the holding of the Annual
General Meating ("AGM') through Video Conferencing
("WC") f Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM') without the
physical presence of the Members at a comman venue. In
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and
the MCA Circulars, the 25™ AGM of the Company is being
hald through VC/ OAVM on Wednesday, August 21, 2024
at 1:00 p.m. (I5T). The proceedings of the 25® AGM shall
be deemed to be conducted at the Registerad Office of
the Company.

Pursuant to provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to
attend, vote at the AGM is entitied to appaoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself 7 herself, and the proxy
naad not be a Member of the Company. However, since
the AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the
MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the Members will not ba available for the
AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and
Route Map of AGM are not annexed herato. The relevant
details, pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the
Listing Regulations and Secretanal Standard on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India, in respect of Diractor seeking re-appointment
at this AGM is annexed. Requisite declarations have bean
received from the Directors seeking re-appointment.

The Company has availed the services of KFin Technologies
Limited, Registrars and Transfer Agents of the Company
(“KFintech"f "RTA"), for conducting the AGM through VC/
OAVM and enabling participation of shareholders at the
meefing thereto and for providing services of remote
e-voting and e-vofing during the 25™ AGM.

In compliance with the said MCA and SEBI Circulars, Motice
of the 25™ AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-24
is being sent only through electronic mode to those
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants ('DPs"). Members may
note that the Nofice and Annual Report 2023-24 will also
be available on the Company’s website www.radiocity.
in, websites of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited
and Mational 5tock Exchange of India Limited at wwanw,
bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and on
the website of Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent,
KFin Technologies Limited at hitps://evoting. kfintech.com

10.

11

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be
counted for reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of
the Act.

In case of joint holders of shares, the Member whose name
appears as the firstholder in the order of names as per the
Register of Members of the Company as on the cut-off
date will be enfitled to vote during the AGM.

The Register of Members and share fransfer books of the
Company will remain closed from Saturday, August 17,
2024 to Wednesday, August 21, 2024 (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of the AGM.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of
the Act the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which
the Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189
of the Act, and the relevant documents referred to in the
Motice will be available, electronically, for inspection by
the Members during the AGM.

All documents referred to in the MNotice will also be
available electronically for inspection without any fee by
the Members from the date of circulation of this Motice
up to the date of AGM. Members secking fo inspect such
documents can send an e-mail to investor@myradiocity.
com by mentioning their Name and Folic No. / DP 1D and
Client ID.

In accordance with Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations,
as amended from fime to fime, the Company had stopped
accepting any fresh fransfer requests for securities
heald in physical form. Members holding shares of the
Company in physical form are requested to kindly get
their shares converted into demat/electronic form to
get inherent benefits of dematenalisation. Further,
Members may please note that SEBI has mandated listed
companies fo issue sacurities in demat form only while
processing any service requests viz. issue of duplicate
securities certificate; claim from Unclaimed Suspense
Account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate;
endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities
certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios;
transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are
requested to make service requests by submitting a duly
filled and signed Form |5R-4 / I15R-5, the format of which is
available at website of the Company. It may be noted that
any service request or complaint can be processed only
after the folio is KYC compliant.

We urge members to support our commitment to
environmental protection by choosing to receive the
Company's communication through email. Members
holding shares in demat mode, who have not registered
their email addresses are requested fo register their email
addresses with their respective depository participants,
and members holding shares in physical mode are
requested to update their email addresses with the
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Company's RTA at einward.ris@kfintech.com to receive
copies of the Annual Report 2023-24 in electronic mode.

Members are requested to infimate changes, if any,
perfaining to their name, postal address, email address,
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Mumber
(PAN]), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank
defails such as, name of the bank and branch defails, bank
account number, MICR code, IF5C code, etc., o their DPs
in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and
to KFintech in case the shares are held by them in physical
form.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated
the submission of PAN by every participant in the securifies
market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository
Parficipants with whom thay are mainfaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can
submit their PAN details to the Company or KFintech.

Members seaking any information with regard to accounts
or any matter to be placed at AGM are requested to write
from their registered email address, mentioning their
name, DP ID and Client ID number /folic number and
mobile number at least ten (10) days before the meeting
on Company's email address at investor@myradiocity.com
s0 as to enable the management to keep the information
ready.

Members whao have not registered their mail address and
in consequence the Annual Report, Nofice of AGM and
e-yofing notice could not be serviced may temporarily
get their email address and mobile number provided
with KFintech, by clicking the link: https://ris.kfintech.
com/clientservices/isc/default.aspx for sending the same.
Shareholders are requested to follow the process as
guided to capture the email address and mobile number
for sending the soft copy of the notice and e-voting
instructions along with the User ID and Password. In

kfintech.com.

The Company has appointed Mr. Deepak Rane (ACS No.
24110 and CP Mo. 8717), Practicing Company Secretaries,
to act as the Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

PROCEDURE FOR LOGIN FOR E-VOTING
AND ATTENDING AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM
FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING
SECURITIESIN DEMAT MODE:

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020,
on e-Vofing facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat
mode are allowed to vote through their Demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number
and email Id in their Demat accounfs to access e-Vofing
facility.

1)

2)

3

4

5

6)

8)
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In compliance with the provisions of 5action 108
of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
as amended from fime to fime, Regulation 44 of
the Listing Regulations and in ferms of SEBI vide
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIRSP/ 2020/ 242
dated December 9, 2020 in relation to e-Voting
Facility Provided by Listed Entities, the Members
are provided with the facility to cast their vote
electronically, both through remote e-voting and
e-voting during the AGM provided by KFintech,
on all the resolutions set forth in this Motice. The
instructions for e-voting are given in subsequent
pages.

Members joining the meeting through VC/OAVM,
who have not already cast their vote by means of
remote e-voting, shall be able fo exercise their right
to vote through e-voting at the AGM. The Members
who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior fo
the AGM may also join the AGM through VC but shall
not ba entifled to cast their vote again.

Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/YCFD/CMDY
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on
"e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”,
e-Voting process has been enabled to all the
individual demat account holders, by way of single
login credential, through their demat accounts /
websites of Depositories / DPs in order to increase
the efficiency of the voting process.

Individual demat account holders would be able
to cast their vote without having to register again
with the e-Voting service provider (ESP} thereby
not only facilitating seamless authentication but also
ease and convenience of participating in e-Voting
process. Shareholders are advised to update their
mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs to access
e-Voting facility.

The remote e-Voting pericd commences from
Saturday, August 17, 2024 (9:00 a.m. I5T) fill Tuesday,
August 20, 2024 (5:00 p.m. IST).

The vofing rights of Members shall be in proportion
to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of
the Company as on the cut-off date.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-
individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the
Company and becomes a Member of the Company
after sending of the Notice and holding shares as
of the cut-off date, may obtain the login 1D and
password by sending a request at evoting@kfintech.
com. However, if he / she is already registered with
KFintech for remote e-voting then he /she can use his
{ her existing User ID and password for casting the
wole.

In case of Individual Shareholders holding securiiies
in demat mode and who acquires shares of the
Company and becomes a Member of the Company
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after sending of the Nofice and holding shares as of
the cut-off date, Wednesday, August 14, 2024 may
follow steps mentioned below under “Login method
for remote e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode.”

The details of the process and manner for remote
e-Voting and e-AGM are explained herein below:

Details on 5tep 1 are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to Depositories e-Voting system in
case of individual shareholders holding shares in
demat mode.

Step 2: Access to KFintech e-Viofing system in case
of shareholders holding shares in physical and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

Step 3 : Access fo join virfual meefings (e-AGM) of the
Company on KFin system to participate e-AGM and
vote at the AGM.

Login method for rtemote e-voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Individual shareholders holding securities | A. User already registered for IDeAS facility:
in Demat mode with Mational Securities 1. Visit htips:/eservices.nsdl.com
Depository Limited ("NSDL”)

2. Click on the "Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” under '1DeAS" sachion.

3. On the new page, enter User D and Password. Post successful
authentication, click on “Access to e-Voting”.

4. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider and you will be re-
directed fo e-Vofing service provider website for casting the vate during the
remote e-Vioting period

B. Uszer not reqgistered for IDeAS e-Services:

1. To register chck on hitps:{eservices.nsdl.com

2. Salact "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or on https:feservices.nsdl.com/

3. Proceed with completing the required fields.
4. Follow steps given in points A

C. Alternatively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL:
1. Open hitps:fwww.evoting.nsdl.com/

sachon.

2. Click on the icon "Login” which is available under "Shareholder/Member'

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (Le. your spdeen
digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password # OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

4. Post successful authentication, you will be requested to select the name of
the company and the e-Voting Service Provider name, 1.e.KFinfech.

5. Onsuccessful selection, you will be redirectad to KRintech e-Voting page for
casling your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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Type of sharcholders
Individual Shareholders holding securities | A. Existing user who has opted for Easi/Easiest

in Demat mode with Central Depository
Services (India) Limited ("CD5L")

L

Haotice )

| i—i|1—E)

| Login Method

Visit hitps:f'web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/homea/login or
whww. cdslindia.com.

Click on Mew Systern Myeasi.

3. Loginwith your registered user id and password.

5

The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP Le.
KFintech e-\Voting porfal.

Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote.

B. User not registered for Eazi/Easiest

L

3
3.

Option to register is availlable at https:/'web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/
home/legin or www.cdslindia.com.

Proceed with completing the required fields.
Follow the steps given in point A.

C. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting webszite of CD5L:

L
3
3.

4,

Visit www.cdslindia.com.
Prowvide your Diemat Account Mumber and PAN.

System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recarded in the Demat Account.

Aftar successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESi_],_ i.e KFintech where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders (holding 5ecur]1ies-i- K. You can also login using the login credentials of your Demat account through

in Demat mode) login through their
demat accounts/ website of depository
parficipants

your Depository Parficipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.

B. Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting optfion. Once you click on e-Voting
opfion, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.

C. Click on opfions available against company name or e-Voting service provider —
KFintech and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of KFintech for casting
your vote during the remote e-Vofing period without any further authentication.

Important note: Members who are unable to refrieve User |D / Password are advised to use Forgot user ID / Fergot Password
option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL:

Individual Shareholders holding securties in Demat mode with

N5DL

Individual Shareholders holding secunties in Demal mode with

CDsL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.n or call at
foll free no.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Members facing any technical issue in login can confact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk evoting@cdslindia,
com or contact at 1800 22 55 33

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:

IT) Login method for e-voting at the AGM for
shareholders other than individunal shareholders
helding securities in demat mode and shareholders
helding securities in physical mode:
(A) Members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company/ Depository Participants (s), will receive an email
from KFintech which will include details of E-Vofing Event
Mumber (EVEN), USER |D and password. They will have to .

follow the following process:

il. Enterthe login credentials i.e. User ID and password
mentionad in your e-mail. In case of physical folio,
User |D will be EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) 8181,
followed by folio number. In case of Demat account,
User ID will be your DP 1D and Client |D. However, if
you are already registered with KFintech for e-voting,
you can use your exisfing User |D and password for
casting your vofes,

After entering the correct details, click on "LOGIN".

iv. You will reach the password change menu whersin

Launch internet browser and type hitps:/fevofing,
kfintech.com in the address bar.

you are required to mandatorily change your
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password. The new password shall comprise
minimum & characters with at least cne upper case
(A-7), one lower case (a-z), ona numeric value (0-9)
and a special character (@, #, §, etc.). The system will
prompt you to change your password and update
your contact details like mobile number, email ID efc.
on first login. You may also enter a secret question
and answer of your choice to refrieve your password
in case you forget it. It is strongly recommended not
to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

You need to login again with the new credendials.

On successful login, the system will prompt you
to select the EVEN i.e. "8181- AGM" and click on
“Submit",

On the voting page, enter the number of shares
(which represents the number of votes) as on the
Cut-off Date under "FORSAGAINST” or alternatively,
you may partially enter any number in “FOR"” and
partially "AGAINST" but the tofal number in “FOR/
AGAINST” taken together shall not exceed your total
shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may
also choose the option ABSTAIN. If the Member
does not indicate either "FOR"™ or "AGAINST™ it will
bea treated as "ABSTAIN® and the shares held will not
ba counted under either head.

Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts
shall choose the vofing process separately for each
folio/demat accounts.

Voting will be done for each item of the notice
separately. In case you do not desire to cast your vote
on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained.

You may then cast your votes by selecting an
appropriate option and click on “SUBMIT".

A confirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK'
to confirm, else 'CANCEL" to modify. Once you
confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote subsequently. During the voting peneod, you
can login multiple times till you have confirmed that
you have voted on the resolufion.

Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, MRI etc.) are also required to send
scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the
Board Resolution/Authority Letter etc., authonzing
its representative to attend the AGM through VC
/ OAVM on its behalf and to cast its vote through
remote e-voting. Together with attested specimen
signature(s) of the duly authonsed representativels), fo

scanned image of the above-mentioned documenis
should be in the naming format “MBL_EVEN 8181"

In case of any quenes/grievances, you may refer the
Fregquenily Asked Questions (FAQs) for members and

e-voting User Manual available at the ‘download’
saction of https://evoting.kfintech.com or call KFin
on 1800 309 4001 (toll free).

Details on Step 3 are mentioned below:
A. Vofing at e-AGM:

Only those members/shareholders, who will be
present in the e-AGM and who have not cast their
vote through remote e-voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so are eligible to vote.

Members who have voted through remote e-voting
will still be eligible to attend the e-AGM.

Members attending the e-AGM shall be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under section
103 of the Act.

Voting at e-AGM will be available at the end of
the e-AGM and shall be kept open for 15 minutes.
Membears viewing the e-AGM, shall click on the
‘e~voting' sign placed on the lefi-hand bottom corner
of the video screen. Members will be required to use
the credenhals, to login on the e-Meefing webpage,
and click on the Thumbs-up' icon against the unit fo
vote.

B. Instructions for members for attending the e-AGM:

Vi

Members will be able to attend the e-AGM through
VC/OAVM or view the live webcast of e-AGM
provided by KFintech at https://emeatings kfintech,
com by using their remote e-voting login credentials
and by clicking on the tab "wideo conference”. The
link for e-AGM will be available in members login,
where the EVENT and the name of the Company can
be selected.

Membears are encouraged to join the meeting
through devices (Laptops, Desktops, Mobile devicas)
with Google Chrome for seamless experience.

Mambers may join the meefing using headphones
for better sound clanity.

While all efforts would be made to make the
meating smoaoth, participanfs connacting throuagh
mabile devices, tablets, laptops, etc. may at fimes
experience audio/video loss due to fluctuation in
their respective networks. Use of a stable Wi-Fi or
LAN connection can mifigate some of the technical
glitches.

Avideo guide assisfing the members attending e-AGM
either as a speaker or participant is available for quick
reference at https//femesctings.kfintech.com/, under
the "How It Works" tab placed on top of the page.

Members who need technical assistance before
or during the 2-AGM can confact KFintech at
emeefings@kfintech.com or Helpline: 1800 309
4001.
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Procedure for Registration of email and Mobile:
securities in physical mode

Physical shareholders are hereby notified that based on
SEBI Circular number: SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/
CIR/2023/37, dated March 16, 2023, all holders of physical
securities in listed companies shall register the postal address
with PIN for their corresponding folio numbers. It shall be
mandatory for the security holders to provide mobile number.
Moreover, to avail online services, the security holders can
register e-mail |D. Holder can register/fupdate the contact
defails through submitting the Form ISR 1 along with the
supporting documents.

ISR 1 Form can be obfained by following the link: hitps://ris.
kfintech.com/clientservices/isc/default.aspx

[5R Formis)and the supporting documents can be provided by
any one of the following modes.

a) Through "In Person Verification' (IPV): the authorized
person of the RTA shall verify the original documents
furnished by the investor and retain copyl(ies) with IPV
stamping with date and initials; or

b) Through hard copies which are self-attested, which can
be shared on the address below; or

KFIM Technolegies Limited

Selenium Buillding, Tower-B, Plot No 31

& 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddy,
Telangana India - 500 032

Mame
Address

€] Through electronic mode with e-sign by following the
link: https.//ris.kfintech.com/clientservices/isc/default,
aspu
Detailed FAG can be found on the link: https./imis.kfintech.
com/fag.html

Securities in demat mode: For more information on
updating the email and Mobile defails for securifies held
in electronic mode, please reach out fo the respective
DP(s), where the DEMAT a/cis being held.

After receiving the e-voting instructions, please follow all
steps above to cast your vote by electronic means.

i.  Member will be provided with a facility fo attend
the AGM through VC / OAVM platform provided by
emeetings kfinfech.com/ by using the a-vofing login
credentials provided in the email receved from the
Company/KFintech. After logging in, click on the
Video Conference tab and select the EVEN of the
Company. Click on the video symbol and accept the
meeting etiquettes to join the meeting. Please note
that the members who do not have the User 1D and
Password for e-Voting or have forgotien the User 1D
and Password may retnieve the same by following the
remote e-Voting instructions menticned above.

Haotice j}
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ii.  Facility for joining AGM though VC/ OAVM shall open
atleast 30 (thirty} minutes before the commencement
of the Meating.

iii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting
through Laptops/ Desktops with Google Chrome
(preferred browser), 5afari, Internet Explorer,
Microsoft Edge, Mozilla Firefox 22.

w. Members will be required to grant access to
the webcam to enable VC / OAVYM. Further,
Members connecting from Maobile Devices or
Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due
to fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN
Connection fo mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

v. Asthe AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM,
for the smooth conduct of proceedings of the AGM,
Members are encouraged to express thair views /
send their queries in advance mentioning their
name, demat account number / folio number, email
id. Gluesfions /queries received by the Company
fill August 20, 2024 shall only be considered and
responded during the AGM.

vi. The Members who have not cast their vote through
remote e-voting shall be eligible o cast their vote
through e-vating system available during the AGM.
E-voting during the AGM is integrated with the WC
/ OAVM platform. The Members may click on the
vaoting icon displayed on the screen to cast their
voies.

vii. A Member can opt for only single mode of voting
i.e., through remote e-vofing or voting at the AGM.
If a Member cast votes by both modes, then voting
done through remote e-voting shall prevail and vote
at the AGM shall be treated as invalid.

viil. Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall
be available for atleast 1000 members on first come
first served basis.

. Institutional Members are encouraged fo attend and
vote af the AGM through VC / OAVM.

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

(&) Speaker Registration: The Members who wish to speak
during the meeting may register themselves as speakers
for the AGM to express their views. They can wisit hitps://
emeetings.kfintech.com and login through the userid and
password provided in the mail received from KFintech.
The Speaker registration will opened from Friday, August
16, 2024 (2:00 a.m. IST) till Tuesday, August 20, 2024 (5:00
p.m. I5T). Members shall be provided a ‘queue number’
before the AGM. Further, members registered as speakers
will be required to allow camera during e-AGM and hence
are requested to use internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance dunng the AGM. The Company reserves
the nght fo restrict the speakers at the AGM to only those
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Members who have registered themselves, depending
on the availability of time for the AGM.

Post Your Queries: The Members who wish to post their
questions prior fo the meeting can do the same by visiting
https:/femeetings kfintech.com. Please login through the
user id and password provided in the mail received from
KFintech. On successful login, select 'Post Your Gluestion”
option which will opened from Friday, August 16, 2024
(2-:00 a.m. I5T) till Tuesday, August 20, 2024 (5:00 p.m. I5T).

In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect of
vofing by electronic means, Members may refer to the
Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAGs) and E-voting
user manual available at the download section of hitps.//
evoting.kfintech.com (KFintech Website) or contact
Mr. Anandan, at evoting@kfintech.com or call KFintech's
toll free No. 1-800-309-4001 for any further clarifications.

The Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on Wednesday,
August 14, 2024 (5:00 p.m. I15T), being the cut-off date, are
entitled to wote on the Resclutions set forth in this Motice. A
person whois not a Member as on the cut-off date should
treat this Mofice for information purposes only. Once the
vote ona resolution(s) is cast by the Member, the Member
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

In case a person has become a Member of the Company
after dispatch of AGM Motice but on or before the cut-
off date for E-voting, he/she may cbtain the User ID and
Password in the manner as mentioned below:

{F)

i. [If the e-mail address or mobile number of the
member is registered against Folio No./ DP ID Client
1D, the member may send 5MS: MYEPWD <space=
E-Vofing Event Mumber + Folio No. or DP ID Client
1D to 9212993399

1. Example for NSDL:

MYEPWD <5PACE= IN12345612345678
2. Example for CDSL:

MYEPWD <5PACE= 1402345612345678
3. Example for Physical:

MYEPWD <SPACE= XXX¥X12345678790

ii. If e-mail address or mobile number of the member
is registered against Folio Mo, / DP 1D Client ID, then
on the home page of https./fevoiing.kfintech.com/,
the member may click "Forgot Password” and enter
Folio Mo. or DP IV Client 1D and PAN to gencrate a
password.

ii. Members who may require any technical assistance
orsupport before or during the AGM are requested
to contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-309-
4001 or write to them at evofing@kfintech.com.

The resulis of the electronic voting shall be declared to the
Stock Exchanges within 2 working days of the conclusion
of the AGM. The results along with the Scrutinizer's Report,
shall also be placed on the websita of the Company.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(2) OF THE ACT

The following statement(s) sets out all material facts relating
to the Ordinary/ Special Businesses mentioned in the
accompanying Motice of Annual General Meeting:

Item No. 2

The Board of Directaors in its meeting held on January 23, 2024
had declared and paid its first year dividend of 0.1% of face
value of ¥ 10/~ each on MCRPS as inftenim dividend credited
to the accounts of those eligible NCRPS holders whose name
appears in the Register of Members of the Company or in the
records of the Depasitories as beneficial owners of the NCRPS
on “Record Date” i.e. Friday, February 2, 2024.

Item No_ 4

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on May 22, 2024,
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approved the appointment of M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates,
Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 00294), as the Cost
Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company, at aremuneration of ¥ 80,000 (Rupees
Eighty Thousand only) plus taxes and out-of-pocket expenses
at actuals.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to
be rafified by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly,
consent of the sharehalders is sought for passing an ordinary
resolufion as set out at ltem MNo. 4 of the Notice, for ratification
of remunerafion payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial
year ending March 31, 2025

Mane of the Directors or the Key Managerial Personnel and their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolution
as set out under Item No. 4 as an Ordinary Resolution for
approval by the Members.

Ttem No. 5

Ms. Anita Mayyar (DIN: 03317861) was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years commencing from January 27, 2020 and
her appointment was approved by the shareholders at the
217 Annual General Meeting held on September 15, 2020.
Accordingly, Ms. Nayyar is due for reirement from the first
term as an Independent Director on January 26, 2025. The
Momination and Remuneration Commitiee, aftfer considering
the evaluation of her performance and her skills, experience
and time commitment, has recommended to the Board of
Directors her re-appointment for second term of 5 (five)

consecufive years. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on
May 22, 2024, approved her re-appointment as an Independent
Woman Director of the Company for second term of 5 (five)
consecutive years with effect from January 27, 2025 to January
26, 2030 (both days inclusive), not liable fo retire by rofation,
subject to approval of the shareholders. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company are of the opinion that with the re-appointment of
Ms. Anita Mayvyar, the Company and the Board of Directors will
confinue to draw immense benefit from her Marketing and
Advertising experfise and insights on Media.

Ms. Mayyar holds a Bachelor's degree in Microbiclogy and has
a PG in Advertising and Marketing Management & Business
Management along with a Masters in Management. Ms. Nayyar
has an experience of 35+ years in the Advertising, Markefing
& Media industry having worked for top advertising agencies
like Saatchi & Saatchi, Ogilvy & Mather, Initiative Media, Media
Com, Starcom Worldwide & Havas Media Group. She has also
worked with leading publishers like The Times of India & Zeeb.

Ms. Nayvyar was voted the 2™ most influential media person
in India by The Brand Equity Survey in 2006 and has always
been in the top list of the influential media personalities ever
since. She is on the list of Impact fop 50 women in Media,
Marketing and Advertising and also the top 100 by Campaign
Asia in APAC, along with - APAC VISION LEADER of the Year
2012 & APAC CEO of the Year 2018 by Campaign Asia Women
Leading Change. She has immense respect and credibility in
the industry and has been recently conferred with Women
Disruptors 2023 Life Time Achievement Award 2023 and 20
Most Influential Women in India in Marketing & Adverfising
2023. Ms. Nayvar has also worked as COO-Media, Branding
& Commumnication at Patanjali Ayurved Limited, largest Indian
FMCG Company and as an Independent Director of Jagran
Prakashan Limited from 2014 to 2019.

In accordance with Regulation 17{1C) of the Listing
Regulations, approval of the shareholders for appointment
or re-appointment of a person on the Board of Directors is
required fo be taken at the next general meeting or within a
fime period of three months from the date of appointment or
re-appoinfment, whichever is earher. Further, in accordance
with Regulation 25(2A) of the Listing Regulations and Section
149(10} of the Act approval of the shareholders is required by
way of Speaal Resolution for appointment or re-appointment
of an Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the
Company.

The Company has received consent, statutory disclosures/
declarations and confirmations from Ms. Nayvyar with regard
to her proposed re-appointment.
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The Board of Directors is of the opinion that Ms. Nayvyar fulfilis
the conditions specified in Sections 149 150 and 152 read with
Schedule IV of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment
and Gualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Listing
Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) and/or
re-enactment (s} thereof for the time being in force) and is
independent of the management of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors propose the re-
appoinfment of Ms. Anita Mayyar as an Independent Director
of the Company as set out in the Nofice for approval of the
shareholders.

A copy of the draft letter of appointment of Ms. Anita Nayyar
setting out the terms and conditions thereof has beenuploaded
on the website of the Company at https:/fwww.radiocity.in/
images/uploads/pdf/Terms-Condifions-of-appointment-of-
ID-MBL1627315820.pdf

Addifional information in respect of Ms. Anita Mayyar, pursuant
to Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulafions and the Secretarnial
Standards on General Meefings issued by The Institute of
Company Secretanes of India, is provided hereinafter and the
same forms an integral part of this Mofice.

10

Other than Ms. Anita Mayyar and/or her relatives, none of the
Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
of their relafives are concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the Spedial Resolufion set out in the Notfice.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolufion
as set out under lfem Mo. 5 as a Special resolution for approval
by the Members.

By Order of the Board
For Music Broadcast Limited

HArpita Eapoor
Company Secrefary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. F8842

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024

Registered Office:

5™ Floor, RMA Corporate Park,

Off Western Express Highway,

Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
CIN:L64200MH1999PLC13T77 29

Website: www.radiocity.com

E-mail: cs@myradiocity.com
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THE DISCLOSURE RELATING TO DIRECTORS FUESUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF LISTING
REGULATIONS AND SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS:

Particulars Rahul Gupta Anita Nayyar

DIN 00359182 03317861

Date of Birth July 14, 1980 December 22, 1961

Age  |A3years Glyears

Date of the first Appointment on the June 10, 2015 January 27, 2020

Board | |

Relationship with other Directaors, Mone Monea

Manager and other Kay Managenal

Persm‘_inel of the Company _ B

Area of Expertise Business Management, Media and Media, Marketing, Advertising, and
Enterfainment, Marketing & Programming | Business Management
and General Administrafion

Detailed Profile of Director Pleasa refer to the brief profile of Directors | Please refer to the brief profile of Directors
in the Corporate Governance section of in the Corporate Governance section of
Annual Report Annugl Re_'p-nrl

Qualification Master's Degree in Business Adminisiration | Bachelor's degree in Microbiclogy and has

from Lancasfer University (UK) and a
Bachelor's Degrae in Science (Business and
Management Studies) from the University
of Bradford (UK)

done her Post Graduation in Advertising
and Marketfing Management & Business
Management along with a Masters in
Management

Eir@dmshipsfparmership& in other
bodies corporate in India

Mumber of shares held in the Company
including shareholding as a beneficial
owner as on March 31, 2024
Chairperson / Member of the
Committee of the Board of Directors of
the Company

1. Jagmini MicroKnit Private Limited

2. Jagran Micro Motors Private Limited

3. Jagran Infotech Limited

5. Anikarth Ventures LLP (formerly known
as DBR Ventures LLP)

Mil

Member of the Stakeholder
Relationship Committee, Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee and
Management Commitfes

1. Midday Infomedia Limited

Mil

Member of the Nominafion and
Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committes

Chairperson / Member of the
Committee of Directors of other Public
Limited Companies in which he/she is

a [;I'i_redor

The number of Meefings of the Board
aftended during the year 2023-24
Remuneration (including siting fees, if
any) last drawn (FY 2023-24)
Listed entfities from which the director
has resigned in the past three years

Please refer to the Other Directorships/
Chairpersonship / Memberships of
Directors in the Corporate Governance
Scicion of Avawok Regoet

Soutof 5

Please refer to the Other Directarships)
Chairpersonship / Memberships of
Directors in the Corporate Governance
socticn of Annual Roport

Soutof5s

?450 LaEhs as SlfhnngE-S
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Step into Radio City,

where every frequency
dances with a story

and every beat sparks

a connection! As

the ultimate radio
broadcaster, we're
leading a digital
renaissance fo transform
your listening adventure
into a sensation like
never before.



The radio industry is on the
brink of an electrifying digital
makeover, broadening its scope
by infusing digital innovations
into its very essence. It's not
just about broadcasting tunes
anymore; it's about teaming

up with music streaming

titans, riding the wave of the
podcasting trend, dropping cool
video content, and elevating
radio jockeys to the status of
social media influencers. This
shift is not merely about keeping
pace — it's about being pros in
surfing the digital revolution.

@

Thanks fo the magic

of technology, radio’s
influence has soared to an
epic high. By diving info the
wild world of muliimedia
plaiforms and crafting
confent that pulses with
energy, radio franscends
the ordinary — captivating
audiences nationwide with
a mix of old-school charm
and digital dynamism. It's
not just about broadcasting
anymore — it's about
curating an unforgettable
experience that leaves
listeners in awe in every
corner of the country.




In today's fast-paced

media world, radio offers
something unique - talented
hosts and digital experts
who keep the content lively
and interactive. Brands

that leverage this fusion of
radio and digital platforms
are achieving great

success, reaching wider
audiences and maintaining
authenticity.

a—

lt's a sirategy that
involves connecting with
consumers wherever they
are, effortlessly bouncing
between the airwaves
and digital spaces. Ina
media landscape that’s in
constant flux, reliance on
a single channel won't cut
it; that's why embracing
‘Radigitalization’ is

crucial for optimising
engagement and impact.
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audience

@ Yes! we know our

X

We get it! A killer radio
campaign is all about
vibing with our audience.
To effectively reach them,
we delve into research to
pinpoint the charactenstics
of our target consumers.
Once we have got them

down, it's all about failoring
radio programmes with

an integrated advertising
strategy that hits the spot.

And, we tell
compelling stories

The power of storytelling

in advertizing is next-level.
Stories have this incredible
knack for really hitting
home with people, leaving
a lasting impact. By tapping
into emotive storytelling
fechniques, we forge a

strong connection with our
audience. By sharing real-life
stories, we stir up a whole
range of emofions, from
nostalgia to warmith.

We also vibe with

listeners

Radioc goes beyond simple
one-way communication;
it's a live platform whera
we vibe with our audience
in real-time. [t's all about
implementing interactive
sirategies like confests,
polls, or custorn inferactive
segments, fo encourage
listener participation

and interaction. This not
only nurtures a stronger
connection with our audience
but also significantly
enhances recall and fosters
active engagement.

For over a century, radio has
been the ulfimate trendsefter
in the ever-evolving media
landscape, and its reign isn't
stopping anytime soon. With
its irresistible charm and
timeless appeal, radio is all
set to nde the digital wawve,
effortlessly blending its
magic with the digital realm.
This epic fusion spells out a
bright future, paving the way
for even greater growth in
the industry.



: Radic's Digital Renaissance @.
MEGATRENDS

The radio landscape is changing fast,
keeping audiences hooked with fresh

and exciting moves. Embracing digital
products and services like music streaming
partnerships and podcasts, the industry is
blending well with the digital revolution.
With tech by its side, radio's reach expands
overwhelmingly, amping up existing IPs to
vibe with new multimedia platforms.

— On-air and digital handles
ROlllng the cater fo a broader
audience across the
New Age country, making sure radio
stays the go-to platform
for top-notch infotainment,
intertwining the best of
both worlds to keep the

good fimes rolling in the
modern media game.
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Fostering
Hyperlocal
Connections

In today’s connected landscape, local radio stafions are
all about keeping it real with their community. From
providing fimely updates on local events to addressing
community issues head-on, these stations serve as the
go-to source for tailored information for their listeners.
Maoreower, radio stations engage with local talent,
including musicians, arfists, and influencers, to create
content that deeply connects with the community. This
collaborative approach culfivates loyalty among listeners
who feel authentically understood and represented by
their station.

@ Corporate Overview +—||l—l|I»

Bespoke Content
Catering to Diverse
Preferences

It's about shaking up the radio game with tailored
confent that speaks to everyone’s unique preferences.
Gone are the days of one-size-fits-all programming.
Stations now curate content for niche markets,
acknowledging individual tastes. By catering to specific
audience segments, stations form deeper bonds with
listeners. This segmentation enables stations to provide
personalised experiences, fostering loyalty and
confinued engagement from their audience.

pll

R]s Emerging
as Influencers

Rls, the rockstars of the radio world, took their game to
the next level dunng the pandemic-induced lockdown by
embracing social media to bond even tighter with their
audiences. This inifiative skyrocketed their follower count.
Simultaneously, brands and advertisers now hamess

the populanty and hyperocal approach of Rls on social
media fo target their desired audience. By teaming up
with brands, RJs drop some seriously impactful digital
campaigns across both radio and digital platforms, making
waves with increasing frequency.




Radic's Digital Renaissance

L TRTITEAT HITAITT

MEGATRENDS

Engaging the
Audience through
Enhanced

Interactivity

Radio stations are no longer just about broadcasting

— they're bursfing hubs where listeners and RJs bond
together across multiple channels. Social media platforms
such as X, Threads by Meta, Facebook, and Instagram
serve as essential fools for stations to connect beyond
broadcasting. Through contests, polls, and call-ins,
listeners are encouraged to participate, fostering a sense
of involvement and ownership in the programming. Plus,
stations go the extra mile with dedicated portals or mobile
apps where listeners can access content, participate in live
chats, request songs, and vote for their preferred tracks,
enhancing the interactive experience.

&,

| Nl

S

Remaining the
Preferred Option
for Advertisement

Radio sfill reigns supreme for advertisers, offering strong
ROl and spof-on messaging. With its massive listenership,
strong social media influence, and savvy digital tools, radio
builds greater trust among audiences. Ad volumes in radio
have surged, with a focussing on hyperlocal content 1o
cater to local audiences. Radio's ability to target specific
demographics and geographic regions through varnious
channels and customised content makes it an effactive
advertising powerhouse. Brands can tap into the clout of
radio industry and its digital reach to create more efficient
markefing campaigns that hit the sweat spot among
listeners and boost brand love.

Sl

Utilising Data
Analytics to
Understand Listener
Behaviour

In today's data-driven landscape, radio stations harnass
the power of analytics to get a clear understanding of
audience preferences and behawviour. Analysing data from
streams, social media, and listener surveys enables stations
to tailor programming for listener safisfaction. Insights
such as peak listening times, popular shows, and prefamed
miusic genres inform schedule adjustments, content
refinement, and performance-enhancing decisions.

(9

Expanding Reach
with Podcasts

Podcasts are taking the world by storm, and savvy radio
stations are riding high on that wave for broader oufreach.
Offering podcast versions of radio programmes enables
listeners to catch up or revisit segments whenever thay
please. Additionally, stations are producing onginal podcast
content, facilitating storyteliing, interviews, and discussions.
This not only attracts new audiences but also builds deeper,
more personal connections with loyal listeners.




We, at Radio City, are at the
forefront of radio programming
evolution, embracing technological
advancements and shifts in listener
engagement. From content curation
to interactivity, localisation,
podcasting, and data analytics,
we're on the cutting edge, weaving
a strategy that binds us with our
listeners and keep us ahead of the
game in radio entertainment.

We Are
All Set
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NEW VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

Leading with
a New Purpose

We, at Radio City, are diving headfirst into the
digital era, where every tap and swipe hrm
new adventures. We are leading the cha_rge,
using digital technology to reshape how we
consume information and interact with content
— inspiring us to evolve alongside these shif
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Collaboration

Embracing the power
of sirategic parinerships
and teamwork to drive

maamise the impact of

Adaptability Integrity

P standards of honesty,
transparency, and athical
conduct in all interactions
and business practices.

Client-Centric
Placing diients at the
forefront of everything we
do, prioritising their needs,
objectives, and succoss
above all akse.
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ABOUTUS

Radio City, a part of Music Broadcast

Limited (MBL), is a subsidiary of Jagran

Prakashan Limited. Being the first
private FM radio broadcaster in India
with over two decades of expertise

in the radio industry,

Radio City has

established a strong presence across
39 stations in 12 states and 1 Union
Territory, comprising 62% of the
country’s FM population. Radio Ci
'reach&s out ta uver EB millio

with Passion
and Content

Radio City has spearheaded the
evolution of FM radio by offering
content that is unique, path-breaking
and invokes city passion amongst
listeners with its brand philosophy

of ‘Rag Rag Mein Daude City'. With
the launch of ifs new station sound
#CityKiNayiVibe, a modern version of
Rag Rag Mein Daude City, Radio City
aims to engage with the young and
vivacious Gen Z audience who sought
coolness guohient in their experiences.
The network’s humour-based IPs
‘Babber Shar’, Joke Studio’ and tha

|P *Love Guru® with a concept of love,
relahionships and romantic endeavours
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are immensely revered by the
audience. In 2013, the radio
station infreduced 'Radio City
Freedom Awards’, a platform to
recognise independent music.
The leading FM station provides

a launch pad to budding singers
with ‘Radio City Super Singer’, the
first singing falent hunt on radio

running for the last fourfeen years.

In 2022, the crganisation launched
its pioneening infernational
property "Radio Gty Business
Titanz" to recognise Indian
businesses for thair unwavering
business excellence.

armdung the radio expenence fc:r
millions of listeners. Complemenfing
this, RC Studio stands as a cutting-edge
24x7 video channel, redefining the
essence of entertainment by combining
the power of video and audio in perfect
harmaony. RC Studio plays a pivotal

role in bndging the gap between
different audience segments and
expanding Radio City's reach toa larger
demographic, creating a mora inclusive
and vibrant approach.

Radio City has bagged over 217

awards across rencwned national and
international platforms such as New
York Festivals Radio Awards, ACEF
Global Customer Engagement Forum
& Awards, Golden Mikes - Radio &
Audio Awards, India Audio Summit and
Awards, India Radic Forum, efc. in the
recent past. In 2022, Music Broadcast
Limited won ‘India’s Best Company

of the Year 2022' Award by Berkshire
media. Radio City has been consistently
featured for the 7™ time in ‘India’s

Best Companies to Work For' study
conducted by Great Place to Work
Institute. The Company has also bean
recognised in 'India's Best Workplaces
for Women — 2019 and has ranked
amongst the Top 75 organisations on the
list. In 2020, Radio City ranked 4™ in 'Bast
Large Workplaces in Asia’, according fo
the GPTW survey.
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. We are Strengthening our

Financial Prudence

15%" 31%° 310 bps’
3228.5 crores 356.2 crores 24.6%
Revenue EBITDA EBITDA margin
100%" 11%"

36.8 crores 3327 crores

Profit after tax Cash and Cash Equivalents®

“y-o-y growth in FY24 over FY23 | #As on March 31, Fr24

We are Expanding our
Operational Scale

25%" 19% 78%

Volume growth across Volume market shares Inventory utilisation

all 39 markets

40%" 22% 83%

Client count share in Growth in digital Growth in Government
Radio Industry revenue business revenue
33% 7% 24%

Mew client count share Revenue through Revenue garnered

in Radio Industry satellite locations through International &
MNational IPs, Big-ticket
Cl, Local & Regional
initiatives, festive
campaigns

Sowrce: 15 Aircheck Market Data | RC Volume Drata | RC Data
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF FY24

Second Edition of Radio City

Business Titans

We launched the second edition of Businoss
Titans, fitled 'Dubai Encore’, with exiravagant
glamour and grandeur. This presfigious event
honoured accomplished business leaders and
celebrated the achievements of Business Titans
across 20 business catfegones from multiple
indusiries, recognising their excepiional
coniributions fo the Indian business landscape.

The event highlighted their successes with
heightened enthusiasm in the vibrant city of
Dubai, the United Arab Emirates.

90

200+

Static posts and stories

Marking

IVioments

Radio City Super Singer 15

Radio City Super Singer 15 has broadenad
iis honzon by embracing prominent digital
platforms in addition fo its on-air and
on-ground presence. It remains the sole
singing talent hunt spanning across 39 cifies,
where each cty boasts its own Super Singer.

We persistently highlight the finest talent of
each city through innovative approaches,
celebrating diverse cultures. As the most
spughi-after singing falent hunt, it has been
entertaining millions of Indians for over

a decade.
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4.65 1akns
ici -

unleashed their

B Xill

2.73 1akhs

Votes®

3-?? crores

Campaign reach

3.32 mn

Social media reach

"Voting happened only for top 5 parficpants
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City Ki Nayi
Vibe: A Grand
Unveiling

We proudly launched a modem rendition
of "Rag Rag Mein Daude City” named
#CityKiNayiVibe. This vibrant frack foatured
an immesistible beat designed to capfivalo
audiences, parficularly the dynamic and
spirited "Gen I" generation.

The grand unveiling ceremony took place
in Dubai, marking a momentous cocasion
that coincided with the estoomed Radio
City Business Titans event. The gala evening
was graced by Bollywood celebrifies Suniol
Shatty, Karishma Tanna, Kainaat Arora, and
Nimrat Kaur, adding to the event's greandeur
and exciternant.

of Triumph

Cricket Ka
Blockbuster

Wea brought back Cricket ka Blockbuster —
Zabardast 70 with Sanjay Manjrekar for the FY24
season! Affer last year's incredible success, this
year promised an even betier expenence.

Cricket enthusiasts enjoyed a thrlling journey
filled with excitement and adveniure. Sanjay
Manjrekar, the legendary cricketor fumed
commeniator, added his expertise and charm.
With 39 stations across the nation, Radio

City deliverad a mesmerising 70-day crickat
showdown, captivating fans through on-air and
digital platforms.

lcon Awards across Delhi, Mumbai, Pune,
Nagpur, and Coimbatore, colehrafing

enterprises across all indusiries for improving
workspaces and company culfure. 9

Celebrating
our Accolades

Wa have bagged ower 60 prestigious awards,
showcasing excellence in broadcasfing

and commitment fo quality enfertainment
and innovation.

60+

Awards won during FY24
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SCALE AND SCOPE

@'E@, Enhancing our
= Digital Prominence

1.55bn 108 mn 17.1 mn

Consolidated social Views on YouTube Content interactions on

media reach Facebook (likes, comments,
shares and saves)
488.1 mn 4.2 mn
Video views on Content interactions,
Facebook on Instagram (likes,
comments, shares
and saves)

# Maintaining our Position
=fm across Major Cities

‘No.1l = No.2 No. 3

Radio station in Radio station in Radio station in Delhi
Bengaluru with 25.2% Mumbai with 14.3% with 11.7% listenership
listenership share* listenership share* share*

*Source: RAM Data, TG: 12+ Period: Wesk 1, 2019 1o Week 52, 2002

L il
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Solidifying our Leadership
=== with Commitment

No.1l 39 69 mn
Private FM Radio stations across Listeners reached
broadcaster in India 12 states, comprising across India*

62% of the country’s

FM population

7\ Strengthening
50 our Core with Focus

233 1.5 bn+ 300+
Properties (programmes) Total reach on sccial Monthly episodes
un_-airnilhlln:inﬁty's media of podcasts i

100+ 2 8,151
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PRESENCE

Trailblazing
across 39
IMarkets

We, at Radio City, stand as the
ultimate go-to radio network for
brands looking to expand their
connect with audiences across a
whopping 39 markets. From major
metros, to chilled Tier-2 and Tier-

3 cities in India, we have got you
covered. Central to our mission is
the commitment to delivering those
game-changing initiatives that really
hit the right track with our listeners
and advertisers alike, leaving a
lasting impression in the market.

Jalandhar

Patiala

Chennai Madurai Ahmedabad Vadodara Lucknow Agra
Coimbatore Surat Kanpur Bareilly
Varanasi Gorakhpur
e B A S L
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Patna

Hisar

Karnal

Jamshedpur

\

Ranchi

S~

Hyderabad

e

Ajmer Kota
Bikaner Udaipur
Jaipur

b

e

Mumbai

Solapur
Sangli

Manded
Jalgacn
Pune

Mashik
MNagpur
Kolhapur

Akola
Ahmednagar
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BUSINESS MODEL

Levelling Up With
Sustainable Value
Creation

At Radio City, we are committed to creating
sustainable value every step of the way. Our
comprehensive business model focusses on
generating lasting value that benefits everyone
involved, from our listeners to our partners and
other stakeholders. Sustainability is at the core of
all our endeavors.

5

Investments in modern
assets and technologies

Our Resources
and Relationships 6

Effective sales and
marketing platforms

18

1

A strong team of RJs

2

In-depth category
knowledge and
understanding

3

A skilled and diverse
workforce

4

Strong relationships
with advertisers
and clients

PRI """""'“""ﬂ-q.'«__‘_e

T
T

7

Financial resources
and assets across our
organisation

8

Commitment to
innovation and
intellectual property
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Engineered to
empower us deliver
on our strategies and
generate value for our
stakeholders.

Growth Strategy

«  Mainfaining a
strong emotional
connechon with
listeners through the
'‘Rag Rag Mein Daude
City" philosophy.

« Fortifying our
omnichannel presence
and leveraging our
extensive networks
and relationships
to provide
maximum value to
our customars.

« Improving the balance
between yield
and inventory.

Focussing on high-
growth markets.

Enhancing
angagement
activifies across
various platforms.

Addressing key
societal needs with
impactful content.

Capitalising on
available growth
opportunities in the
radio industry.

@ Corporate Overview +—||1—l||
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Listeners

Broadcast engaging and
entertaining confent
tailored to a wide cross-
section of listeners.

Communities

Invest in enhancing the
communities where we
operata, live, and work.

Industry

Leverage our scale

to ensure industry
development considers
and benefits

all stakeholders.

L5

Regulators

?

Shareholders and
Investors

Strive for long-term
shareholder value through
disciplined capital
allocation, distinctive
executfion, and robust
financial performance.

Clients

Offer exciting and
innovative value
proposifions to
maximise the impact of
their advertisements.

Employees

Ensure an inspiring
workplace environmeni
where our people are
engaged and mohvated to
reach their full potenhal.

Parficipafe in developing
dialogue and policies that
suppaort vibrant industries.

Value We
Create for Our
Stakeholders

19
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Shaping the
Future of Radio

Dear Shareholder,

India has shown both resilience and progress despite
all risks and uncertainties in the global economic
landscape. India embarks on its 'Amrit Kaal' with
confidence, viewing challenges to growth and inclusive
development as stepping stones rather than obstacles.

The Indian Media and Entertainment
Industry grew at a moderated rate of
8.1% to T231,700 crores in CY* 2023 from
©214 400 crores in CY 2022. The sectoris
projected fo grow by 10.2% to 255,300
crores in CY 2024, The Government was
the largest confnbutor to adverhising
spends in the current year, followead by
pharma, auto, and finance sectors.

*Calendar Year

<228.5 crores

Revenue

3<56.2 crores

EBITDA

<6.8 crores

Met Profit
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Qur Performance

With the growth in the economy and
an increase in advertising spends, our
Company witnessed a revenue growth
of 15% to ¥228.5 crores from $198.9
crores. Our EBITDA stands at ¥56.2
crores, and our net profit reported

is ¥6.8 crores during the reporting
pernod, comparad to a net profit of $3.4
crares in the previous financial year.

Owverall, collections for the year
amounted fo 244 crores. This has
bolstered our Company’s cash reserves,
strengthening fo ¥327 crores as of
March 31, 2024. Regarding our industry
ranking, we maintained our volume
shares at 19% in FY 24. Furthermore,
4% of Radio platform advertisers

and 33% of new adverfisers chose to
advertise with Radio City. Additionally,
inventory ufilisation has grown to 78%
im FY24.

Radio remains at the centre of our
radio-digital strategy. It achieved
Digital revenue of over £18.7 crores
with EBITDA at #5.5 crores. This now
revenue sfream appears promising,
opening many doors for our Company
and is poised to become a significant
contributor in the future. Our fixed
cost based business model places us at
an advantageous position compared
to print or other businesses, as a
substantial part of addifional revenue
translates into operating profits once
breakeven is achieved.

Dividend

Our Company paid a first-year
dividend of 0.1% of the face value of
T10/- each on Non-Convertible Non-

Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares (NCRPS) in February 2024.

Team Accomplishments

Radio remains a dynamic medium,
uniquely capable of reaching a vast
audience and fostering personalised
hurnan connections even in the digital
ara. As the radio industry adapts to
changing media consumpfion habits by
infegrafing digital solufions, Radio City
remains dedicated to preserving the
essence of radio while providing locally
relevant content across languages

and genres.

Key Awards and Accolades

In FY23, our dedication fo engaging
audiences was recognised with an
impressive tally of 19 awards af the
12" edition of ACEF Global Customer
Engagement Awards. Among these
accolades, 10 were Gold, 5 Silver

and 4 Bronze, spanning various radio
categories. Notably, BJ Shonali and RJ
Mikhil were honored as RJ of the Year,
underscoring our talent's excellence.
Radic City made wawves on the global
stage by clinching a Bronze award

at the prestigious Mew York Festival
Radio Awards for the groundbreaking
campaian 'Blade Running Victoriously
Through Life’. Adding to this feat,

we securad four finalists certificates,
solidifying our posifion as a trailblazer
in the industry.

In FY24, our momenium only
intensified as Radio City continued to
make waves globally. We garnerad 5
Finalists certificates at the Mow York
Festival Radio Awards, reaffirming

our commitment to excellence.
Domestically, we clinched 12 Awards
at the India Audio and Summit Awards,
further solidifying our industry
leadership. The pinnacle of our
achievements came with a sweeping
tnumph at the 13" Global Customer
Engagement Awards (ACEF), whare
we secured a staggering 20 awards,
including 11 Golds. Motably, RJ Ginnie
and Loveguru were crowned Radio
Jockey of the Year, a testament to their
ocutstanding contributions.

These accolades serve as a testament
to Radio City's solid dedication to
modermisation, commifment, and
audience-centricity, reinforcing our
position as a front runner in the ever-
evolving world of radio broadcasting.

Qutlook

India’s media sector is flourishing in
tandem with the nation's robust GDP
growth. Despite global economic
uncerfainties, India has maintained
steady GDP expansion, fuelled by
factors such as domestic consumption,
infrastructure development, and
government reforms. This economic
momentum translates into increased
advertising budgets and consumer

& Corporate Overview }—ii|1—ii

India's media sector

is flourishing in tandem
with the nation's robust
GDP growth. Despite
global economic
uncertainties, India

has maintained steady
GDP expansion, fuelled
by factors such as
domestic consumption,
infrastructure
development, and
government reforms.

spending, driving growth across

vanous segmenfts of the media industry.
Television, digital media, pnnt, and
radio are all benefiting from this positive
economic environment.

India's robust economic growth, coupled
with a young and tech-savvy population,
presants significant opportunities for

the media sector. However, economic
uncertainties and inflationary pressures
pose challenges. Media companies must
adapt by focussing on cost opfimisation,
innovation, and digitalisation fo sustain
growth in this dynamic envirecnment.
Radio is expected to be a ¥2 400 crores
indusiry on the back of core radio, along
with integration of digital, credible
influencers, and content syndication.

All of these, coupled with the restart of
on-ground activities, could augur well for
the Company and the industry as a whaole,
bringing back the buzz and excitement.

Before | conclude, | would like to thank
our listeners, advertisers, shareholders,
government, bankers, and most
importantly our Radio City feam, who
have contributed to our growth story. |
am confident that Radio City will continue
to deliver on stakeholders’ expectations
and live up to the frust reposed in it.

Warm regards,

Vijay Tandon
Chairman

al
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
REVENUE EBITDA
(¥ in crores) (¥ in crores)
247.8 1276 1684 198.9 228.5 73.4 3.7 27.8 42.8 56.2
Iff. r{_ - Ilr" y rr'f II(.- {-" P ’ l{_ rlIM-

) | ]

FY20 FYl FY22 Y23 FY20 FY2l FyY22 FY23 FY24

Elevating our
Performance Curve

PROFIT AFTER TAX RETURN ON NET WORTH (RONW)
(¥ in crores) (Yo
28.2 -24.2 -5.7 3.4 6.8 4.5 -4.0 -0.9 0.7 13

(' S p P P
- -« ¥

FY20 FY2l Fya2 FY232 Fy24 FYzo FyYa2 FY22 FY23 Fy24

A a
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EBITDA MARGIN PROFIT AFTER TAX MARGIN

(%a) (%)
29.6 2.9 16.5 21.5 24.6 11.4 -19.0 -3.4 1.7 3.0
. f_,-' y £ . r { -
FY20 FY2l FY22 Fy23a FY24 FY20 FY2l FY22 FY23 Fy24

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED (ROCE)
(%)

8.4 -4.7 -0.8 1.6 3.6

(. r Illl.-'

L J

FY20 FY2l FY22 FY23 FY24

_1‘_.
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RADIO'S DIGITAL EXPANSE

Flipping the Script
with Radigitalization

In today's fast-paced world, there's a

real buzz around how people are tuning
into radio content. Thanks to tech leaps,
changing consumer behaviours, and
broadcasting innovations, the radio scene
is really shaking up! And in this colourful
mix of modern music vibes, we've got this
game-changer: 'Radigitalization’.

It’s like the ultimate mashup
of radio and digital, totally
flipping the script on the
traditional radio experience.
This fusion is taking radio to
new heights, reaching more
people, and sparking hordes
of creative ideas for thriving
in the digital age.
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Radio's Digital
Revolution Campaigns

Sa Re Ga Ma

We introduced Mahi, the latest sensation in music, with his heart-melting
new single. Qur creative journey led us fo craft a series exploring the many
faces of love, perfecily timed for Valentine's Day. Once completed, we
spared no effort, blasting the video across multiple social media channels
— Instagram, Facebook, and YouTube — timed perfectly for a Valentine's
Day debut. This targeted approach is designed to capfivate hearts and
deeply connect with our audience, spreading love far and wide.

SO LT MW Barrgpams Al omic
- ] = b i & a

Mo Politics Please

We infroduced the ‘Mo Politics Please’ video podcast this year, hosted by RJ Aadi.
The podcast featured non-political conversations with prominent political figures
such as Manoj Tiwari, Saurabh Bharadwaj, Privanka Chaturvedi, Dr. Harsh Vardhan,
and others. The goal was to highlight the human aspect of these individuals and

inspire audiences through engaging discussions that go beyond pohitical divides.

Hero MotoCorp - Maverick 440

We played a key role in the launch of Hero Corp's latest motorcycle, the
Maverick 440 CC, at Pavilion Mall in Pune. Our RJ hosted a Facebook LIVE
session on the launch day to create buzz, followed by photo shoots of the
Maverick both inside the showreom and in outdoor setiings. We further
enhanced the excitement by rolling out a series of social media posts
across various formats, including stafic images, Facebook videos, and
Instagram Reels.

3.9 mn+ 3.2 mn+

Reach Views

Go School

We took charge in putting Go School's intemational education offerings
Worried about ! in the spotlight for the Mumbai and Rest of Maharashtra (ROM) market.
Your Child ] This epic campaign featured a blend of static posts and dynamic reels on
Education ? ! our social media channels, teaming up with Go School to make it happen.
o s i iy We spread the word even further by sharing this content on the Radio

City national page. To seal the deal, we used a comprehensive strategy
including targeted ads, coupled with a blitz of email, 5M5, and WhatsApp
marketing campaign. Prospective students were then funneled to a
webinar, co-hosted by DCS and the client, culminafing in the generation of
strong leads.

a7
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RADIO'S DIGITAL EXPANSE

Life Insurance Corporation

Vydehi Hospitals

Lifestyle

ELic

JUST LIKE
MUNNA-CIRCUIT

Fra 4 rioramhio. BeTamen
L el i, Pr g s | Feredmag
P T T ANDS S YR

P

Palsbinling
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Woe sparked the hype for India's most
trending Friendship Week, celebrating
the enduring bond between LIC and
the nation. Our campaign showcased
a series of engaging videos with fwo
RJs reflecting on their own special
bond, weaving in the narrative of

LIC's longstanding camaraderie

with India. Alongside, we featured a
collection of static posts spotlighting
iconic Bollywood duos that resonate
with trends. Each post artfully
infertwined the theme of LIC's &67-year
legacy of trust and friendship with
countless Indians.

Here MotoCorp

We energised vehicle promaotion
through RJ-led influencer activities,
sparking excifement with videos on
social media that showcased products
at showrooms and within residential
locales. A compelling series of 22
videos was released on Facebook and
Instagram, highlighting vanous HERO
Moto vehicles across four regions. Plus,
we had the power of eight micro-
influencers backing us up, making sure
everyone knew about these wheals.

28

We raised awareneass about the
comprehensive multi-specialty
treatments and the expertise of
specialised doctors at Vydehi
Hospitals. Each week, we dropped

a new episode where Vydehi's
seasoned specialists discussed the
causes and treatments of various
diseases. The essence of our campaign
was on Youlube, with captivating
video and static content on Instagram
and Facebook, designed to pigue the
audience's interest and encourage
them to watch the full episodes.

Bl ¥ W ERiWA

0.6 mn+

Reach

Renault

Frerpe

We created Renault's visibility by
maximizing digital presence through
engaging social media confent and

reels, effectively showcasing their entire

range of automobiles.

0.9 mn+

Reach

We showcased Lifestyle's fastive
collection in Mumbai and Pune through
GRWM (Get Ready With Me) videos
featuring RJ 5alil, Archana, and Shonali.
Their transitions and runway walks,
coupled with creafive scripfing, made
the videos an instant hit for the festive
season. Leveraging the fraction of RJ
accounts, we posted reels, collaborated
closely with Lifestyle, and amplified
content on Radio City's national

page for broader reach through
moment marketing.

X it

5.1 mn+

Reach

4.4 mn+

Views

Kedia Real Estate LLP.

We increased brand awareness for
Kedia Properties through reels and
posts on RCSS & CKB, and amplified the

campaign on our social media handles.

1 = -
5w /25 AT M T W
50 = a1 e
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Kalyan Silks

Biclogical - E
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We showcased the vibrant festive and
wedding season collections at Kalyan

Silks in Bengaluru. Our regional Kannada

influencers highlighted the exquisite
range and prime showroom location.
The campaign featuraed a curated
selection of both internal and external
influencers, each bringing the essence
of the wedding and festive collections
to life.

Through our campaign, we created

a buzz for Kalyan 5ilk’s showroom

and saree collection in the Karnataka
market. Our innovative 'Become

an Influencer’ inthiative invited all
trendsetters to dive into the world of
influence, acting, and stardom with
Kalyan Silks. Participants enthusiastically
embraced the challenge, meeting set
fimelines and terms. Radio City crafted
three caphivating concepts aimed aft
crowning Kalyan Silk’s social media
face. Leveraging both organic growth
and micro-influencers, we gave this
campaign a serious edge. Strategically
launched on Radio City Kannada's
page, the inihative garnered maximum
regional engagement while minimising
off-target reach.

723K+

Reach

21K+

Engagement

We raised awarenass about the critical
importance of infant vaccination against
the pneumonia virus through the
advanced India-made PCV14 vaccine.
Owr campaign actively engaged 13
markets. In the inifial phase, we created
Al-generated static posts for Radio
City's national pages, significantly
enhancing our visibility. The second
phase involved collaborating with
parent influencers, who shared reels
on their accounts, achieving organic
reach among our farget audience and
increasing content shareability.

Batiwk From édcs cornar of "8a eortd are cufer but
they wall only ke wafar with The Fight vacsination!

Canara Bank

To generate buzz and promaote the
naw product of Canara Bank, we
crafted a reel that was thoughtfully
conceptualised around a specific
theme. This reel, which was scripted
by and featured the Radio City Digital
feam, was then shared on the Radio
City Instagram page, effectively
raising awaraness and showcasing
the product to a wider audience.

s
L

‘We launched an exciting promotion

for lkea's innovative multi-purpose
furniture. Featunng RJ-led walkthrough
videos complete with English subfitles,
we showcased this versatile collection
ACross varous regions. The campaign
was brought fo life by our talented in-
house team.

930K+

Reach

Cancer Day Awareness

Our dynamic Rls partnered with
medical experts every week to delve
into crucial cancer awareness topics,
disseminating invaluable insights across
social media. Through a compelling
senies of over 45 Facebook videos,

we passionately amplified this vital
message, empowering our audience
with knowledge and fostering
community engagement.

o
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RADIO'S DIGITAL EXPANSE

Directorate of Tourism, Government of Maharashtra

We showcased the beauty of Maharashira Tourism through captivating
visuals, highlighfing two spectacular destinations: Matheran and the
Kailasa Temple in Ellora. Qur series of stunning static images, promoted
across Radio City's social media pages, painted a vivid picture of these
breathtaking spots.

[— KAILASA TEMPLE, ELLORA
LT L

Anchor: Panasonic

We infused excitement among Panasonic dealers in Gorakhpur, Varanasi, Jaipur,
Pune, and the Nagpur Region through a vibrant campaign. We spotlighted
dealer stores and conducted interviews through six capfivating Facebook videos,
Instagram reels, and a post-campaign movie. These dynamic visuals took centre
stage on Radio City's social media pages, capturing the essence of each dealer
and spreading the buzz far and wide.

Zuno

We took Zuno's Road Safety Digital Campaign on a whirlwind tour across Delhi,
Mumbai, Bengaluru, Hyderabad, and Goa. Radio City spearheaded the initiative
with a groundbreaking approach, featuring iconic Indian cinema villains on
billboards fo promote road safety. The campaign encouraged people to download
the Zuno app and participate in the 15-day Zuno Driving Guotient challenge for
safer driving practices. We amplihied the campaign's impact by shanng three

reels and a film across Radio City's social media handles, generating significant
engagement. Recognised for its excellence, the campaign was submitted for the
Golden Mikes Awards and gained significant organic PR coverage.

Nissan

We celebrated the month of lowve with Nissan's all-new Magnite, promoting the
‘Magnita is Love' concept through an extensive Valentine's Day campaign. We
charged up the scene with on-ground events in various cifies, RJ live sessions, and
infroductory static posts on Radio City's social media pages. Digital videos, RJ live
sessions, and a flurry of social media posts were churmed, showcasing the amazing
features of the all-new Missan Magnite.

Additionally, we generated excitement for the launch of the Magnite Geza Special
Edition on Music Day, executing four multi-city live sessions and filming the main

IGNITE YOUR ML JOURNEY anthem video in Dethi fo commemorate the occasion.
WITH MIESAM MA CLAL ED4TION

Sl R
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KIA
We ramped up the excitement for the launch of the all-new KIA Sonet
"Wild Edifion’, dubbed "The Wild Reborn’, across Radio City's socials. The Wild. Reborn

On-ground RJ live sessions and infroductory static posts were shared
on Radio City’s social media pages. Utilising B live sessions and social
media posts featuring our awesome RJs from various locations, we
provided an up-close look at the unique features of this wild ride.

YOURBHRST " & mfﬂf Muthoot Finance

We promoted Muthoot Finance’s message through
a purpose-driven approach, leveraging the South
market's Thagam Theerpom’ IP. We released four
videos on Radio City's Facebook handle, effectively
spreading the word and boosting the campaign.

Samsung

We launched an electrifying campaign for Samsung’s latest handset,
customising posts for specific aties on Facebook. We enhanced it

with an engaging fravelogue video hosted by our popular R, taking
listeners on a captivating journey. This built a strong connection with our
audience, achieving an impressive reach of over 300K and still climbing.

LamEEL

Galaury Add A5

Additionally, we took an interactive approach to promaote the Samsung
A series. Qur B) made special appearances at Delhi University's vibrant
fests, bonding with students and raising brand awareness through
direct engagement. This iniiafive played a crudal role in infroducing
Samsung’s innovative mobile phones to the youth market.

300K

Reach

o Republic Da
\==2

We celebrated Republic Day by highlighting the timeless elegance of
the Indian saree. Our extensive campaign showcased various weaving

H'q_-r"'"_',..r ‘ styles from different Indian states. As the day approached, we ramped
up excifernent with a content roadblock and rebranded our station

Sari Se Hai Har

© . B i EN o and to align with the campaign theme. Additionally, our female RJs and
‘-B h'l:l. rl Iﬁ\"*‘-‘ . NJ‘ Il employees actively promoted the campaign on social media, amplifying
: Ki Shaan ' its reach and impact.
ANANTA SUTRA

Bhagiyve Apnl “Sarl Balfie” and get & chante
ta got beoturmd on the Amaeil Mohotsay age
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Ram Mandir inauguration Ministry of Culture

Nissan CKB 2023

We turbocharged the Government
of India's impaciful campaigns "Har
Ghar Tiranga® and 'Men Maati Mera
Desh’. Our Rls, socal media channels,
external influencers, and WhatsApp
markefing teams collaborated to drive
these initiatives forward. Leveraging
the support of 50 influencers,

we amplified the content across
vanous platforms. Additionally, we
developed an automated microsite,
promotional static posts, and R reels
to enhance the campaign's reach. A

- ﬂ'ﬂ%l'l

launched to streamline registrations,
Ensuring maximum engagement
and participation.

We promoted the auspicious Ram
Mandir inauguration event as a
significant digifal achievement,
disseminating social media deliverables
to mark this grand occasion. A fotal of
33 clients, including our banking and
nutrition partners, participated in this
monumental event.

Patanjali

HAR GHAR TIRANGA
Lehraana Hai

Reelstar

Radio City Reel Star stood outasa
pioneering platform, fapping into
Instagram’s vibrant community of reel
creators and consumers. Each week,
we amplified this engagement by
sharing reels, building anficipation, and
inspiring creators to showcase their
best content. Through social media
platforms, RJ integrafion, microsite
promaotion, and more, we elevated
these reels, fostering creativity and
connection within our audience.

Woe crafted a comprehensive strategy
to promote the Patanjali product line,
employing a blend of static posts
and informative RJ review videos to
highlight the brand’s offenngs.

Additionally, we expanded our
promotional efforts to celebrate Shree
Acharya Balakrishna Ji and Patanjali's \
values through Radio City. Our Y EEILeT
multifaceted campaign encompassed
podcasts, audiograms, a video

series, and a collection of stahics &
stones dedicated to Patanjal. These
were strategically distributed across
Radio City's social media platforms,
maximising visibility and engagement.

AR

CONTEST ALERT

32

WhatsApp automated chatbot was also

Dwring the ICC Warld Cup 2023

season, we spoflighted MNissan as

the official sponsor through various
channels. Our promotion included

R integration, live broadcasts, reels,
static posts, and stories across our social
media platforms.

Maharashtra Radiance Awards

We were thrilled to celebrate the
success stories of leaders and achievers
from Maharashira. To generate high-
octane buzz around the event, we
showcased images on Radio City's
national pages, strategically boosting
each post fo maximise its reach

and impact.
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Cricket Ka Blockbuster (CKB), 2023

Radio City’s Cricket Ka Blockbuster 2023 IP began with a bang in
October. As the activity concluded, we seamlessly integrated logos
into internal elements such as "RJ ka Recap’, 'Man of the Hour',
‘Match updates’, "Cric-o-pedia’, and "‘Climax of the match”. We
crafted over 60 creatives and produced 10 videos to enhance the
IP's impact and engagement throughout its durafion.

60+

Creatives

M'lul\.“:\-”:I
L 15

MATCH UPDATES
CONGRATULATIONS
ENGLAND

FOR THE ATIMG W

== Rajasthan Radiance Awards

We showcased and honoured the achievements
of Rajasthan's leaders at the Rajasthan Radiance
Awards, covering it through an extensive
Instagram campaign. We electrified the awards
ceremony with a mix of static and dynamic
posts, event highlights, behind-the-scenes
moments, winner announcements, and
engaging reels, celebrating the success stories
and contributions of the awardees.

CKB - IPL

Durning the IPL 2023 exiravaganza,
we spared no effort in showcasing
our onboarded clients. This involved
static posts, RJ-led reels, and stories
featuring presenting, powered, and
associate sponsors. We seamlossly
integrated branded content into

our internal elements such as 'RJ ka

Baroda lcon Awards

We hosted and celebrated the success stonies N
of leaders and achievers from Baroda at the
Baroda lcon Awards. To make sure that the
people feel the exciternent, we launched a full-
blown Facebook campaign. From announcing
the award winners to shanng their inspiring
stories, we craffed a mix of static and dynamic
posts that captured everyone's attention. To
push up the buzz in social media, we shared 16
stafic posts on Radio City's Facebook pages,
highlighting the achievements of the awardees.

=

5

MEET THEWINNER

Aakash BYJU'S

We promoted the Aakash
Byju's Hazratgan branch.
Qwr RJ-led walkthrough
video made waves and
gamered loads of love on
Facebook — it amassad
over 180K views and
continued fo grow.

180K+

Views

Recap’, '"Match ka Messiah®, ‘Match
updates’, "Cric-o-pedia’, and ‘Climax
of the match’. In fotal, we created
over 100 creatives and 90 videos,
ensuring maximum exposura and
engagement for our clients during
this high-profile event.

100+

Creatives

MOMENT HAI BHAL!
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Radio City Super Singer: S15

Hﬂciu['ﬂrsﬂngdllpmnf

hearis across India for over

a decade. With significant
reach and unparallelad
opporiunities, this platform
stood out as the sole avenue
for budding vocalists in 39
cities, enabling them fo step
into the imelight and unveil
their nafural singing prowess.

The esteemed Padma Shn
Kailash Kher once again graced
the show as a mentor, marking
his fourth year in this role. He
was instfrumental in discovering
and nurturing falent.

We ook engagement to

the next level with our

fans the opporifunity fo fune
in fo performances from each
region and cast their votos for
their prefermed confostants.
From captivating static posts
o funky reels created by our
RJs, from exciting countdown
namatives to audiograms
featuring contfestants’ talents,
and celebratory winner
announcements, we covered
it all throwgh our dynamic
promotional campaign. The
campaign also succassfully
inftegrated the main sponsor,
Honda, across national
platforms, alongside 29
regional associate sponsors,
utilising gec-targeted posis fo
maximise reach.

RIDE THE WAVE OF BECOMING A SUPER SINGER!
BEADY TO EXCITE THE WOALD:?

e S0

130+ 39
Stafic posts

1 10
Instagram filter

~273,612

Total votes

RJ videos

Audiograms

4,23,235

Digital Client
Solutions Work Analysis

Bal 651 2,546

Created Sraric

341

Created Videos

789

330

I.P. Videos

566

I.P. Static

N
ATRB =

0 © B
=

213 12 88

Linkedin Reels Zoom Live
Articles Calls Videos

Social Media Engagement -
FY24 Highlights

« Intreducing 2 new social media handles — Radio
City Malayalam and Garda

« Achieving a notable 26% growth in followers
on Radio City's Instagram account in the current
financial year

« Maintaining the top position in terms of page
likes on Facebook

« Standing out as the only station with consistent
follower growth on Twitter

Social Media Prominence

09200

Followers | 34 | 037 41K 1.49

mn | mn mn

RClogo Integration

RC logo Integration
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Radio City Business Titans Awards:

Chapter 2 Dubai Encore

For over two decades,
Radio City has been

a guiding light for
businesses across the
nation, offenng them
a stage to showcase
their innovations
through vanous

Radio City business
platforms. In a bold
move, we infroduced
“Business Titans" in 2022,
an unprecedented
mternational event
that celebrated the
triumphs of Indian
enfreprenaurs for

their excellence

and innovation. This
initiative aimed to
champion and honour
the achiovemanis

of business leaders,
recognising their
innate perseverance
and excepfional
leadership qualifies.

As part of this
nifiative, we ensured
infemational

recognition for
businesses that had
flourished across

Music Fest: Season 1 and 2

We launched our on-air Music Fest IP in style,
bringing together a string of awesome arfists that
had everyone buzzing with excitement. Cur social
media platforms fueled the fire with branded
static posts and videos, stirmning up excitement.
With 24 clients on board, we ensured each one
received their moment in the spotlight, with equal
exposure on digital platforms ahead of its on-air
debut.

For Music Fest — Season 2, we focussed on 8
artists over 8 weeks, delving info their indie and
commercial musical journeys on-air and online. On
social media, we amplified each week, featuring
the artists’ stories, top songs, and confributions

to the music industry through daily posts, videos,
and reels that had everyone grooving. With 29
sponsors on board, the IP gamered significant
support and engagement.

Free Verse Sessions

We set the stage on fire with our Free Verse
Sessions at Monkey Bar. Drawing a packed
audience, with registrations exceeding capacity
within a limited &0-minute window, we brought
the house down with our flash and magic. This
overwhelming response highlighted the strong
recall and pull that Radio City held in the market.

wvarious cifies in India.
Digitally, we created
nominee and winner
websitos, shared
nominahion and winner

posts and stories, and
publishad Linkadin

arfidles, offectivaly A CELE!
ﬂ'ﬂl’lﬂr‘lﬂ“‘lﬂlﬂlﬂm INFLL
and highlighfing over

20 dients. We ufilised
geo-fargeted posts

1o maximise reach

BUSINESS TITANS

and impact.

Top 9 Digital Categories Attracted
by Radio City Last Year

A2,

17%

237 Lakhs

Financial

E @
&L

147 Lakhs

Financial

:

445%

82 Lakhs
Govt/PUS Ads

=

246 Lakhs

Automobilies

- ,

31%

86 Lakhs

Education

/1Y
T *

59%

62 Lakhs

Retail

=]
:
+II ..

234 Lakhs

Pharma/Health Care

-,

100 Lakhs

Food/Soft Drinks

gl 2.

69 Lakhs

Basic Industries/ Misc

395
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We are on an exciting journey
marked by a series of innovative
moves that capture the vibrant
mosaic of Indian culture. From
crafting content that celebrates
our diverse and rich regional
flavours to building a deep bond
with our audience, we're curating
initiatives that truly resonate.

&
Touching
Hearts
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This vibe is further
strengthened by our
dedication fo offering
entertainment that informs,
educates, and inspires,
driving our tribe to come
back for more.

As we ride the waves of
change, we stay committed
to breaking new ground
and pushing the boundaries
of what radio can do.
Whether it's through
cutting-edge music formats,
engaging falk shows, or
community-driven projects,

@ Corporate Overview | |l——i|f

our goal is to bring joy

and enrich the lives of our
listeners. In doing so, we
are not just contributing to
the cultural fabric of India
but also raising the bar for
excellence in broadcasting.

Our legacy is not just about
reaching listeners; it's
about touching hearts and
empowering minds across
the nation.

localisation
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REGIONAL SPREAD

Spreading

Good Vibes With

Wide Reach

We are painting the social
landscape with a diverse
palette of initiatives,
shinning bright with
colours of transformation.
Our outreach is like a
playlist of varied beats,
that resonate with
everyone and spread

the vibe.

38

Our objective goes
beyond simple
information dissemination;
we're the frendsetters, the
game-changers, shaping
the state of broadcasting
evolution. And with our
vast regional reach, we're
spreading the connect far
and wide, bringing the
spirit of change to every
corner of the map.



Western
India

"| landscapes of West India,

'-.u_._..._']l,'ll:\_!

In the sun-kissed

our initiatives shunmered
with the region's golden

charm and adventurous

~ spirit, inviting everyone

to join the fun under

the clear blue skies.
We're not just riding the
wave of progress; we're
sandboarding like pros,
earning acclaims as the
architects of change.
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IMiIaharashtra

Mumbai

Tip Kara De

)

Mumbai's monsoon season brought
numerous challenges, including
waterlogging, potholes, and traffic
snarls. Amidst these difficulties,

delivery personnel faced addifional
hurdies as they navigated the city.
Despite the inclement weather, they
remained committed to ensuring timely
deliveries, playing a crucial role in the
e-commerce ecosystem.

To acknowledge their dedication, we
launched a campaign urging listeners

to show kindmass to these unsung
heroes. We encouraged gestures such
as offering a cup of chai, a generous tip,
of a simple thank you. By highlighting
the challenges faced by delivery agents
during Mumbai's notorious monsoon,
we aimed to foster empathy and
appreciation among our audience.

40

I.’_, dianes  gstthec . Cramsnmmas .

#

i

v .

The response was heartening. Many
shared stories of gratitude towards
their delivery agents and expressed
appreciation for the inifiafive.
Through the hashtag #TipKaraDe
and digital outreach, we amplified
the message, spreading acts of
kindness within the community.

The campaign succeeded in
fostering a positive change in the
mindset of Mumbaikars, known for
their rasilience and compassion.
We were proud to shed light on
the tireless efforts of Mumbai's
delivery personnel and grateful
for the opportunity to bring

about a positive impact during the
challenging monsoon season.

0.16 mn

Views

Pyaar Ki Dumm

Valentine's Day often brought about

a sense of pressure for singles to

have a partner. To counter this, we
decided to celebrate the occasion
uniquely by hosting a special date

for singles and their true lowves — their
pets — at Oh My Dog Cafe. The event
aimed to showcase the cafe’s features,
while promating Radio City inan
innovative way.

We partnered with Oh My Dog Cafe,
renowned for being a heaven for
dogs, to ensure a fun experience

for both singles and their furry
companions. The setting perfectly
alignad with the spint of Valentine's
Day — a day of celebrafion with

2.7 mn

Views on the campaign reel
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Touch Me Not

loved ones.

Promotion began with an on-air
campaign, encouraging people to
share pictures with their pets. The
overwhelming response solidified
our plans for the event. On the day,
parficipants engaged in games,
quizres, and wholesome fun with
their pets. Instagram influencers
graced the event, and the reel
generated over 2.7 million views,
sparking conversations on social
media about this unique celebration.

Multiple media outlets covered tha
avent, further amplifying its reach.
Videos shared by these outlets
gamered significant attention,
cemenfing the success of our
Valentine's Day celebration with
pet dogs.

Mumbai, the city that never sleeps,
renowned for its skyscrapers and

the largest slum in the world, was
where dreams came true. Despite its
reputation as one of India's safest cihes
for women, RJ Archana received a
distressing call from a woman who had
been molested during a shared ride in
Mumbai. Enraged by this incident, she
transformed the call into a movement
joined by 23 million Mumbaikars,
echoing the cry ‘Touch Me Not.”

Cwur goal was to provide Mumbai's
women a platform to voice safety
concems, share stories, and raise
awareness, parficularly regarding
safety during shared auto-rickshaw
rides. Through a two-week on-air
campaign, women listeners bravely
shared their harrowing experiences,
shedding light on the harsh reality and
inspiring change.

& Corporate Overview i |1—ii
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TOUCH ME
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To maximise cur reach, we leveraged
social media, engaged celebrities fo
share their stories, and encouraged
others to speak up. Additicnally, we
collaborated with auto-nickshaw union
leader Shashank Rao, who pledged
support for our cause.

A social experiment involving a flower-
decorated auto-rickshaw revealad the
depth of the issue, with around 100
women stepping forward in just an
hour. The campaign garnered significant
attention, with celebrities like Yarmi
Gautam, Pankaj Tnpathi, and others
lending their support.

41,638 150+

Views Calls

4]
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IMlaharashtra

Rest of Maharashtra

City Cine Awards Marathi

TR AT WAL

i
]

RADIO CITY
CITY CINE AWARDS “

MARATHI

&2 war A &=

An esteemed recognition of
encellence within the Marathi
film fraternity, City Cine Awards
Marathi honoured outstanding
achievements across various
categories. This groundbreaking
on-air award, driven by

digital platforms, empowered
[isteners to cast their votes for
their favorite stars and films,
significantly enhancing recall
value. The grand finale of

the /™ season, held in Pune,
witnessed the presence of over
25 celebrities from Marathi
cinema, delivering four hours of
uninterrupted enterfainment.

City Cha Bappa

Qur annual celebration of Ganeshotsaw,
a vibrant affair where studios were
relocated on-ground to keep Citykars
updated on the festivities at their
favorite pandals. Addihionally, Radio
City joined in the celebrations at various
societies, with Rls leading aartis and
organising engaging activities, ensuring
an immersive Ganeshotsav expenence
for listenars.

R 1A
WEMTTYETUT &
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Maha Dancer

A pioneering dancing reality show,
drew participants from all corners

of Maharashtra. Auditions were held
at Hero dealerships across the state,
culminating in a grand finale in Pune,
graced by popular Bollywood dancer
Phulwa Khambkar as the chief guest.
The winner was awarded the newly-
launched Hero Xoom 110 Scooter.

Golden Tick Viral

Awards

Applauding the contfributions of
content creators from Maharashira who
positively impacted society through
their exceptional skills, over 40 creators
were honoured at this event. They
received the prestigious Golden Tick
Viral Award frophy from celebnty
Pooja Sawant.

HOMMURING THOSE WHOSE
SOCIAL PRESENCE IS LIT

=

Yeh Diwali
Khushiyon Wali

We aimed to spread joy duning the
festival of Diwal by distributing gifts and
sweets to the homeless, bnghtening up
their festivities.
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Bheegi Bheegi Baatein

Bheegi Bheegi Baatein celebrated
the beauty of monsoons through
amyriad of experiences, from
playing rain songs fo reminiscing
about childhood memornes. Radio
City engaged with the people of
Pune, encouraging them to share
their fondest rain memories, which
wera broadcasted on-air and shared
on social media. Additionally,
celebrifies shared their special rain
memories, further enriching the
engagement both on-air and online.

Jagar Navratricha

Durning the nine days of the Navratn
festival, the Mahalaxmi temple in
Kolhapur emanated a unique aura.
Devotees from not only Kolhapur but
from across the country flocked to visit
the Mahalaxmi teample during Nawvratr.
To extend our support, we invited
people from all over Maharashira fo
register themselves, and we distibuted
the prasad of Shn Mahalakshmi to each
parhicipant. Our promofion spanned
across all available platforms, and we
received an overwhelming response on
our WhatsApp Chatbot.

@ Corporate Overview +—||1—l||

Seva Maulichi

As the Warl remained one of the most
significant cultural and devotional
events in Maharashtra, we, with the
genearous support of ifs listenars,
endeavoured to serve the Warkaris in
the most meaningful manner possible.
We provided breakfast and water
bottles, along with offering first aid
kits and basic medical check-ups.
Additionally, we distributed "Shidons'—
bags containing essenfial items such as
towels, caps, pairs of socks, oil botties,
and pain relief sprays—to assist them on
their arduous journay.

T L

Icon Awards

Radio City lcon Awards epitomised

our sincere endeavour to recognise
and celebrate businesses that were as
chernshed by the city as they were by
its inhabitants. We delved into each
brand’s growth narrative and journey,
understanding what distinguished
them as the most esteemed one in their
respective categaories.

The event culminated in a grand on-
ground award ceremaony at an iconic
venue, where distinguished lcons

in 2each category were honoured
with the City lcon Award trophy by
renowned celebrities.

43
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Maharashtra Radiance Awards

[ THTTTIER BT R

This award mirrored our earnest leaders in their domains.

intent to acknowledge and The event concluded with a
applaud businesses across splendid on-ground award
Maharashtra that had demonstrated ceremony at an iconic venua,
exceptional performance. We where the winners in each
delved into the growth stories category were bestowed with
and journeys of each brand, the Maharashtra Radiance Award
recognising what set them apart as trophy by popular celebrities.

Hum Mehnat ki
Khaate Hain

Cur host, B! Sumit of Pune, embarked
on a heartfelt initiative, inferviewing
eldery individuals who continued to
work to sustain themselves. Through
these inferviews, he discovered stories
of resilience—some working because
their children had asked them to leave
their homes, others driven by a sense
of self-respect despite their children
being weli-settled.

RJ Sumit extended 'Shidha’ to

each inferviewee—a contribution
Comprising sugar, roe, jaggery,
groundnuts, dals, and cil, essentials for
basic cooking at home. This initiative
gamered widespread appreciation
from followers, celebritias, and social
media influencers alike, amassing over
12 million views and 800K+ likes.

12 mn

Views in social media

800K+

Likes in social media

§ Exploring Pune

Our host, RJ Shonali of Pune, em

mythological references.

informatfion and uncover lesser-k
episode featuring one Mahadev

expenence of Shravan Somvar.

barked on a

captivating journey fo explore eight Mahadev
temples in and around Pune, offering insights into
their architecture, history, sculpturaes, rituals, and

She engaged with the Pujans to gather firsthand

nown facts. Each
femple was

released every Monday, enhancing the spirifual
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Gujarat

Sheroes Awards

The &™ edition of the WOV Awards
soared fo new heights with the debut
of the Radio City Sheroes Awards in
Vadodara — a milestone event like
never before. With over 350 incredible
women in attendance, alongside
Baroda's eminent figures including
the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, ACPs, and
DCPs, the evening was nothing short
of legendary. The evening’s crowning
moment was the partnership with the
Election Commission of India, offering
a rare glimpse into the complexitias of
election logistics.

Fifteen outstanding awardees stole
the spotlight, alongside Vadodara
City Police’s SHE Team and the city's
influential social media personalities.
Hosted in a swanky banguet hall, the
event ended with an exquisite hi-tea,
complete with a trophy, certificate,
and a 2,000 gift hamper for each
Shero, symbaolising the community's
appreciation and support.

Participation

& Corporate Overview }—ii|1—i

Beach Beech Mein

We launched the Dumas Beach Carnival

to shift focus to Dumas Beach, a chenshed
retreat for the people of Surat, grappling
with pollution issues, particularly on Sundays
when visitor numbers soared. The carnival
was a resounding success, featuring a
vibrant array of activifies, emargising

fumba sessions, and a comprehensive
beach cleanup operation that saw active
parficipation from the Surti community.

This initiative captured the attention of
Surat's media, receiving widespread
coverage across print, digital, and broadcast
platforms, highlighting the collective effort
to safequard our beloved local spotand a
vital environmental asset.

COn World Environment Day, we joined
forces with the Mayor of Surat and influential
city personalities for an inspiring display of
unity. The event’s furnout was remarkable,
with around 5,000 individuals joining

forces to make a difference, undersconng
our shared commitment to environmental
stewardship and effective decision-making.

Hnctior CiLy
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BEACH KI SURAT KARNE SAAF
AARAHA HAI CITY AAPKE PAAS
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Rajasthan

Rajasthan Radiance Awards — Season 2

Radio City pulled ouf all the
stops to host a gala event to
honour the stalwarts of Rajasthan.
We celebrated 40 illustricus
individuals who were slaying it in
their fields. The event was graced

by the esteemed Cabinet Minister,

Shri Pratap Singh Khachanyawas,
and the renowned Bollywood
personality Dr. Aditi Gowitrikar,
who handed out the awards
amidst the glittering assembly.

40

Ilustrious individuals
honoured

The event was a dazzling blend of
Bollywood glamour and Jaipur's
local flair, creating an ambiance
of joy and reverence. The air was
filled with the rhythmic beats
and soulful melodies of a folk
fusion band, adding a magical
touch fo the night where the
stars descended to applaud the
success stories of Rajasthan's very
own achiewears.

ARDs
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ESS THE STAGH

WHERE LEGENDS SHIN

Ab Toh Laga Le Lala — Season 2

46

Radio City Udaipur kicked off

its second seascon of the helmet
awareness drive with even more
passion for road safety. Morning
RJ Sun once again led the charge,
spreading the message of fraffic
awarenass on his show, stressing
the importance of following
traffic laws, especially the
necessity of weaning helmets. To
cast a spotlight on this vital issue,
we teamed up with the Udaipur
police to organise a helmeat
awareness ride.

100+

Riders participared

The initiative saw the participation of
all key authorities, demonstrating that
we were fogether in this effort. With
over 100 riders hitting the streets for
the rally, it highlighted their support
for the campaign. The initiative's reach
extended far beyond the roads, as
helmet distribution and awareness
videos went viral, amassing over 750k
views on Instagram, thereby spreading
the message of road safety to a

wider audience.

750K+

Views on Instagram
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Udaipur Icons FY24

The Udaipur lcons event was the

talk of the town, celebrating the
entreprenaurial spint of Udaipur's
alite. Held at the prestigious Royal
Retreat Resort, this business awards
ceremony was a convergence of the
city's business magnates. For the first
time ever, a Bollywood celabrity was
in the mix, setting the whole place
abuzz with excitement.

A cohort of 40 esteemed clients

from Udaipur received accolades,
with the spotlight shining on them as
Madhurnma Tuli, famed for her roles in
Bigg Boss and Bollywood, presented
the trophies. This epic event grabbed
significant media attention, making

it a major highlight in Udaipur's

social calendar.

40

Clients honoured

@ Corporate Overview +—||l—l|Is

Wonder Woman Awards — Season 2

The second season of the Wonder Migam Greater Jaipur, Smt. Saumya
Woman Awards in Jaipur began with Gurjar, and the respected Shr

a dazzling celebration of the city’s Balmukundacharya Ji, MLA of Hawa
incredible women on International Mahal, Jaipur. The awards ceremony
Women's Day. Bringing together over was a powerful testament to the

40 trailblazers, we honourad their indomitable spirif and resilience of
contribufions and achievements. The the women whao shape the fabric
event became even more special of Jaipur.

with the presence of esteemed
guests, including Mayor of Magar

LD
Radio C £y
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*  AADOKAREWOMENKI _ *
* ADBHUT KAHANIYON
KOCELEBRATE! »

AWARDS

g, 3.3% 1)

(28" MARCH 2024
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REGIONAL SPREAD

Northern
India

In the bustling cities

of North India, our
initiatives mingle to the
rhythm of the region’s
dynamic spirit. Our
endeavours mirror the
heartfelt reflections of
our deep understanding
of the cultural richness
and aspirations that
drive the people here.

With our finger

on the pulse of the
North, each initiative
sparked meaningful
conversations, infused
with local traditions
and a strong sense of
communal unity.
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Northern India

Taste Of City

RADIO KA SABSE BADA

FOOD FEST

WITH STAR CHEF
VICKY RATNANI

To feature your favorite food joint ) <Outlet NAME= on 9586060601

1] R - ]

We encouraged listener parficipation by invifing them to nominate
their preferred food joints. This fostered a sense of community
engagement as we spotlighted one brand weekly and organised
'food walks' with the RJs and local food vioggers. In total, we
covered 40 food joints across Delhi, Punjab, and Haryana.

@ Corporate Overview j || ) |

Icon Awards

The lcon Awards across the region offered a
grand tribute to the unsung heroes who tirelesshy
contributed to the enrichment and advancemeant
of their cities. This platform shone a spotlight

on community leaders from various walks of

life in Delhi, Udaipur, Karnal, Agra, Gorakhpur,
Waranasi, Kanpur, and Bareilly, acknowledging
their cornmitment and impactful work.

These awards weren't just about recognising
individual excellence; they were about inspiring
others to join in and be part of efforts that
uplified and fransformed communities for

the better.

= Blue Carpet

We rolled out the Blue Carpet event
across Delhi, Punjab, and Haryana,

> L“."“"' e K = featuring screenings of films like "Pathan’,

‘Rocky aur Rani Ki Prem Kahani’, and

:,_ BLUE EﬂHPET ; ‘Dunki’. Listeners enjoyed a fun-filled

w
i.".‘

LIGHTS! CAMERA!
SHOWTIME!

expernance in fully-packed theatres
booked by Radio City, complete with
fively interactions with our RJs and
delicious snacks fo keep the fun going.
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Delhi 2

Education Icon Awards

The Education lcon Awards ceremony
was a prestigious event, dedicated

to honouring esteemed personalifies
from the world of education. We

were delighted to have special guests
like Delhi's Minister of Health, Urban
Development, and Water, Mr. Saurabh
Bhardwaj, and celebrity guest singer
Rashmeet Kaur with us. It served as a
platform to recognise and celabrate the
contributions of leaders and influencers
in the education sector, showcasing

Radio City’s commitment fo promoting pl TH'B“TE “] THE EHTEHEEFERS
educational excellence and innovation. l]E HﬂﬂWLEU[{E

oA

TUNE % TO RADN) CITY OL1 P 10
e LEARN MORE ABOUT THE EDUCATION ICON AWARDS.

Health Icon Awards

The Health lcon Awards felicitated doctors,
health workers, and distinguished personalifies
from the healthcare sector for their exemplary
contributions. The Chief Guests at the ceremony
included the President of the Indian Medical
Association (IMA), the Chief of R&R Hospital (Army
Hospital), and celebrity guest Dr. Aditi Govitrikar,

BADIO CITY CILERNRATES AND HOMNOURS 5 = <

T DI G D M R along with Dr. Ashok Choudhary, Honourable

THEIR DELGENCE, DEDICATION Cabinet Minister of Bihar
AMHD DETERMINATION

p | THE FURYTAN HOTEL MEW
FRIENDS COLONY MEW DELHI |

TUNEINT
SLIFM TO
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Cricket Diary with R] Yuvi Automode with R] Satyam

LEGEMNDS I|
LEAGLE
CRICKET

CITY SCORES H.EFI.II AS AN I'H:I:LI.IEI'I"E
E D F.I'I.E"I'HEE FOR LEGENDS LEAGUE CRICKET

™ NOVEMBER TO 9™ DECEMBER

An exclusive digital series showcased fun-loving
inferviews with national and international players such
as Mohammad Kaif, Gurkeerat Mann, Robin Singh,
Badrinath, Aaron Finch, Shane Watson, and many
more. Viewers dove into unheard stories from the

cricket fraternity, enriched with entertaining frivia, An exclusive digital series and weekend special show
rapid-fire rounds, and behind-the-scenes chats. provided reviews of newly launched vehicles, covering their
performance, rideability, features, and hacks.

City Sheroes

City Sheroes was more than just an
initiative. [t was a celebration of the
incredible women whao inspire us

all, and an acknowledgment of the
untold stonies of women achievers and
entrepreneurs who are role models
for generafions to come. During the
event, Radio City Delhi organised

an exclusive conclave with women
panelists from differant sectors
moderated by BJ Divya, discussing their
unstoppable journey, followed by a
felicitation ceremony.
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Uttar Pradesh

Walk For Gorakhpur

An elecinfying community-driven
inifiative promating health, unity, and 5
civic pride saw over 2,000 participants,
alongside administrative authorities,
strolling through the city sireets,
celebrating ifs culture, heritage, and
landmarks. Addifionally, Radio City's B
Rashi was invited to the heart of Delhi

by the Ministry of Defence to join in

the festivities for the 75™ Republic Day
Parade. This historic event promised

a spectacle of patriotism, unity, and
grandeur as India commemorated seven
and a half decades of sovereignty.

Blue Carpet was one of Radio City's flagship
events, featuring exclusive screenings of
highly anticipated blockbuster mowies for
our listeners and partners. Recently, we
hosted screenings for "Gadar 2°, Tiger 3°,
and ‘Fighter’, providing an unforgettable
cinematic expenence from start fo finish.

Lucknow Super Giants (LSG) tie-up

We distributed over 850 fickets to eager listeners during our on-air giveaway.
Addifionally, we hosted seven live studio shifts from the mall and five from
the stadium on match days, bringing the excitement directly to our audience.
Lucky fans also had the opportunity fo meet and greet L5G players. Amidst
all the hustle and bustle, our content was the talk of the fown, with 18 recls
surpassing 1 million views, showcaszing the epic engagement of our audience.
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Chaar Footiya Dost

Chur recent initiative focussed on
celebrating the special bond between
hurmans and their beloved pets.
Listeners poured their hearts out,
sharing touching stories and adeorable
videos, spothghting their love for
their furry friends, helping us reach an
audience of up to 100K.

Renowned Bollywood actor Vidyut
Jammwal lent his support as the face of
this campaign, elevating the impact of
our programmee to a whole new level.

100K

Reach

& Corporate Overview }—ii|1—i|i

City V/S Crime

One of our regional inifiafives focussed

on raising awareness about cybercrime,
featuring insightful discussions with expert
Rakshit Tandon. We were privileged to have
numercus celebritias such as Rajeshwari »
Sachdev, Rahul Dev, Ritesh Sahore,

Arjun Harjai, and Shreya Sharma join us

to promote and support the campaign.
Their involvement generated significant
buzz among our listeners, enhancing the
impact and reach of our efforts to educate
and empower the community against
cyber threats,

CTRERCRING L) TFiN BALT RLING CITY LE

MELAYHN MLATH

e
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Celebrating integral festivals

Taj Mahotsav, Agra: The eagerly
anticipated 10-day long local festival
of Agra, Ta) Mahotsav', celebrated
art, culfure, and cuisine with special
performances by renowned national and
international artists.

Entertainment meets responsibility

« Lucknow: Radio City morning
jock courageously tackled a
sensitive topic on-air, initiafing
a crucial discussion that earned
her a commendation letter from
the President of the Unaided
Private Schools Association,

UP, following a fragic incident
invelving a young girl's suicide.

« Gormkhpur: Radio City partnered
with a residential society to
organise a blood donation camp,

highlighting our commiiment to
community health and wall-
being.

Agra: Radio City responded

to the community call by
spearheading the fransformation
of "Meki Ki Deewar’, breathing
new [ife info a place for donating
good and reusable clothes to
uplift the less fortunate.

was an annual infhative in Gorakhpur,

we served khichdi to over 1,000 lass-
privileged individuals, embodying the
spirit of community and compassion.

City ki Khichdi, Gorakhpur: 'City ki Khichdi'

whera, on the occasion of Makarsankranti,
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Radic's Digital Renaissance

Uttar Pradesh

Bada Mangal, Lucknow: 'Bada Mangal’,
a beloved tradition in Lucknow, held a
special place in the hearts of the city's
residents, blending cultural significance
with heartfelt emotions. This year too,
we confinued our fradition by offering
1.1 kgs of laddoo at a prominent
temple, along with distributing prasad
through canopies across the city.

Introduced Gen Z segments

In the past, our Gen  content strategy
took a 360-degree approach, reaching
out on-air, on-ground, and online

to amplify the love for music among
our Gen £ listeners. Programmes

like 'Breakfast Budhwaar' and 'RJ on
Road" with our dynamic RJs sparked
magic. Interactions with influencers like
Banarasiya Ghummakkad and Rahul
Ashiquiwaala resonated well with Gen Z.
On-ground events such as Blue Carpet

and Book Fair showcased our "City ki
May1 Vibe'. Segments like "CKE with
Sanjay Manyrekar' offered insightful
conversations, while initiafives like RCSS
and Music Fest — Season 1 reinforced
community engagement. Segments like
‘Hashtag Trending’, "What the Hack’, and
"Watch List’ provided fimely insights for
our audience.

City ka Sawan, Varanasi: During

the Saawan season, our ‘City ka
Sawan' initiafive invited listeners to
share their experiences related to
Sawan on-air every Monday. We
also conducted live broadcasts from
different temples each Monday,
praviding support fo devoteas with
essentials like bags.

Punjab

Flash Mob

54

We enlivened Jalandhar's

flash mob at the renowned
Eastwood Village mall,

listener base.

atmosphere with a spectacular

spreading the infectious beats of
Radio City's frash station jingle.
This vibrant community outreach
event drew a crowd of around
2,500, significantly boosting our
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In the ever-evolving
landscape of East India,
our footprint grows
stronger with each
passing year. We are
turbocharged by our
passion for the region's
intellectual pursuits
and entertainment
preferences. Our deep
connection with the
local ethos is the driving
force behind our ever-
strengthening presence
in the region.
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Jamshedpur

City Ke Sitaare CITY'S MOST

We illuminated the stage with our PRESTIGIOUS A_‘w"nns
‘City ke Sitaare’ events in Jamshadpur Ihe Moge I set 1o honor and recognise
and Patna, celebrating the stars of the personalifies of the city for thel

i + conkibulion ko saclaly
the city’s enfrepreneurial world 3 Sl

whose success stories inspire today's
youth. Esteemed Chief Guests
graced each event, presenting
awards to the achievers, recognising
their contributions and impact.

KESitaARi

1171

City Fair City Shopping Festival

‘We organised the & season of City Fair, an on-ground Dwring the festive season, we organised the City
event for clients, which featured over 20 stalls and offered Shopping Festival, offering gratifications and
on-air exposure, grafifications, and discount offers for discounts both on-air and digitally.

listeners. The event attracted a crowd of owver 10,000 at
PE&EM Mall, highlighting cur commitment fo environmental
stewardship and effective decision-making.

FLAUNT YOUR PUJD WIBE,
WITH SHAANDAR DISCOUNTS BY YOUR SIDE.
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Patna

Thank You Doctor

Highlighting Radio City's
commitment fo promote healthcare
excellence and innovation, our Thank
You Doctor' platform honoured the
dedication and accomplishments of
healthcare professionals and leaders.
We were glad to have Mr. Sanjay

Jha, Honourable Cabinet Minister of
Bihar, and 5ita Sahu, Mayor of PMC,
among us fo ramp up the spirit.

@ Corporate Overview ||+
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TUNING IN TO

Coffee Table Book Launch

We launched the ‘Educational
Alchemists: Transforming Bihar's
Districts’, an exclusive coffee table
book showcasing the coolest vibes
of 20 private schools across various
districts of Bihar. The book highlighted
their success stories, achievernents,
and impressive facilifies, and

was unveiled by the Honourable
Governor of Bihar, Shri Rajendra
Vishwanath Arlekar.

T ——

City Dandiya Raas

City Dandiva Baas, our vibrant initiative in Patna,
continued fo be the city’s largest on-ground event. We
invited listeners to celebrate the Dandiya extravaganza
by winning passes on-air and digitally, joining alongside
their favourite RJs and celebrifies like Sneha Ullal and
Bhojpur singer-actor Khesan Lal Yadav. Shri Jitendra
Kumar Roy added more grace to the event as the Chief
Guest, with approximately 3,500 participants joining the
fostivities on-ground.
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In our journey, we've
dived deep into the
vibrant setting of South
India's intellectual flair
and cultural zest. With
each passing year, our
grasp on its diverse
cultures has grown
stronger, splashing a
touch of colour to our
own journey.

This improved
understanding has

southern become our secret

- ingredient, pushing us

Indl a into the limelight of the
region. From mixing

with its rich heritage

to satisfying its refined

tastes, we're vibing high

on South India's energy.
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Southern India

Sun-Kranthi

Sun-Kranthi pioneered the use of complete solar energy fo
power its radio show, raising awareneass about the limited
resources of non-renewable energy. Owver 1,000 listeners
pledged to incorporate solar energy info their daily lives,
supported by renowned celebrities from the Kannada

film industry.

The show made history as the first-ever solar-powered
radio show and featured a giveaway of a brand new solar
water heater worth 1 lakh rupees.

@ Corporate Overview +—||1—l||

India‘s First SOLAR POWERED

RADIO SHOW

City Badminton League

The City Badminfon League, a
groundbreaking event in the

radio landscape, was hosted at

the esteemed MNexus Vijaya Mall in
Chennai. This unique league seta
new standard by unfolding within the
mall atrium, creating an immersive
experniance for the audience. Our
360-degree promotional strategy
led to an impressive turnout of 48
corporate teams parficipating in the
coveted event.

Kidzathon
ALY ol O

We organised Kidzathon, a unique

event aimed at creating a posifive
ol impact on children's lives through
v fun activiies. Owver 1,200 kids and

TS THRE their parents gathered at BK Beach
ﬁ F’m in Vizag for a weekend fun marathon
THE PINISH featuring Zumba dancing, flash mobs,
Uung

and more. The event was inaugurated
by the Honourable Mayor of Vizag,

e
o b i e b
L 1y

m‘,—” Golagani Hari Venkata Kumari. It
e ——— received tremendous support from
i R, L

presenting sponsor MVV Grand,
powered by ‘Bhima Jewels’, and
electronics partner LG, along with
other partners including GVMC, who
supported the cause in Vizag.

= W f‘d

Corporate Cricket

League

Woe introduced the Corporate Cricket
League, a stress-buster activity aimed
at breaking corporate roufines by
celebrating the love for crnicket. Held
exclusively in Hyderabad, India’s
bustling softwara hub, the league
attracted over 36 teams from various
companies compating for the coveted
trophy. Sponsored by 'Freedom

il and powerad by 'Tenali Double
Horse', the event was co-powered by
"Sattva Knowledge City’, in associafion
with "Act Fibernet’ and "Max Fashions',
and was held in August 2023,
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Bengaluru

Artificial Independence

In an era dominated by screens and
gadgets, "Arfificial Independence’
emerged as a call fo break free from
technology addiction. Launched in
honour of Independence Day, this
poignant jingle reminded us of the
sacrifices made by our national leaders
and urged listeners to reclaim their
freedom from digital distrachons.

The campaign, supported by

esteemed Sandalwood stars including
Dir. Shivarajkumar, Arjun 5arja, and
Dhruva Sarja, featured a unique 12-hour
show from 12 am to 12 pm, emphasising
the importance of reducing

tech addiction.

Chennai

Men Pongal

We introduced "Men Pongal’, a groundbreaking
Pongal event that challenged traditional roles with
innovation. Inspired by Ven Pongal, it empowered
men to showcase their cooking skills while women
participated in male-centric activities like Uriyadi
and Silambam. Supported by Nippon, VJ Siddhu,
Arathi, Sid Shreya, Mime Gopi, and othears, this
event garnered owver 3 million views, showcasing ifs
profound impact.

60
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INDEPENDENCE

Beach Cleanathon

Woae rallied the citizens

to join us in cleaning RK
Beach, Vizag's cherished
gem. Corporates, hospitals,
colleges, schools, and the
public united for this noble
cause, marking a significant
shift in how we freated

our beaches. With support
from MWV GV the Grand,

31 Hospitals, Rajugaari
Ruchulu, 5V5 Constructions,
Hotel V Pride, and other
local businesses, Radio City's
Beach Cleanathon became

a resounding success,
symbolising the community's
commitment to preserving
Vizag's natural beauty.

A campaign against total
dependence on technology
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Thaagam
Theerpom

'Thaagam Theerpom', as the name
implied, aimed to alleviate the city's
water scarcity woes. Radio City made
a tangible difference in the lives of
Coimbatore and Madurai residents
by dispatching Radio City Water
Tankers to the most affected areas
across both cities. This initiative was
our heartfelt gesture of gratitude to
the communities of Coimbatore and
Madurai, which had warmly embraced
us over the years.

& Corporate Overview )
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HUMAN RESOURCE

Sparking Success
with People Power

We, at Radio City, are all about our people — they're
the beating heart of our ongoing growth and success.
By investing in their professional development,

offering solid support, and empowering them every
step of the way, we're fuelling the engine that drives
our business forward.

Creating a deeply collaborative environment
where every individual feels inspired,
valued, and encouraged is our priority.

We add fire fo this endeavour through our
new vision, mission and values, culfivating
responsible conduct and ensuring complete
alignment of our workforce with our
strategic objectives and aspirations.
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In line with our objechive of enhancing
organisational capability by nurtuning
talent and fostering a leaming, growth-
oriented, and enjoyable environment,
Radio City's HR department has
launched several initiatives to achieve
this goal. Key initiatives this year include
Knowledge Konnect for Sales, Skill
Development Workshops, Succession
Planning, Campus Hiring, Rewards and
Recognition Programmes, Cheers to
Peers, Employee Wellness activities, and
Hobbies Masterclass.

Moreower, we automated KRA
setting and all KRAs for FY25 are now
uploaded online. The social setting is
also activated, highlighting important
organisational announcements,

Great Place To Work®

We are proud to announce that we have
been recognised as one of the top 50
best companies to work for in Great
Place To Work™ (GPTW), a testament to
the trust and pride our employees have
in the Radio City brand.

Knowledge Konnect
Programme

In FY24, around 12 training programmes
were organised under the broad
umbrella of the Knowledge Konnect.
These sessions focussed on building
capability for the digital environment.
Some of the modules conducted
included Video Editing, Digital and On-
Ground Amplification, Decoding the
Digital Brief, and Al Knowledge Training.
Additionally, high performers from

the Sales Team shared their winning
pitches with colleagues in interactive
peer-fo-peer learning sassions through
Knowledge Konnect. Notable fraining
sessions like Winning Presentation,

Excel with M5 Excel, and AWE were
conducted for employees. This year, a
total of 215 employees parficipated in
these fraining sessions.
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SEEKING THE BEST
WORKPLACE VIBE?

RADIO CITY RANKS IN
THE TOP 10 TRIBE

Proud to be Ranked 7th Amaengst the Top 10 Great Workplaces

for Creating a Great Workplace Culiure

oy B
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Campus Drive

In FY24, we hired 10 Management
Trainees (MTs) from four Management
Institutes. A total of 100 students
appeared for the Group Discussion,
Functional Test, and Interview. The
salected MTs joined in March 2023 and
were given digital-focussed projects
by the leaders. Under the guidance of
subject matter experts, they conducted
research and provided valuable
recommendations for the organisation.

Employee Wellness Initiatives

Cur commitment fo employee wellness
i= reflected in inthatives such as Daily
Health Tips, Choosing Health, and

the RC Wellness League. In the last
saason, 180 employees and their

family members participated in these
wellness activities.

One of the

Top 50

Best companies to work for in
Great Place To Work™ (GPTW)

Engagement Initiatives

Engagement iniiatives like festival
celebrations (Diwal and Christmas) and
the Hobbies Master Class have added
vibrancy fo our workplace. The Hobbies
Masterclass is a unique concept where
employees can showcase talents such as
dance, makeup tips, self-grooming fips,
healthy eating recipes, camera skills, and
more. This initiative provides a fun way
to engage young team members. The
Hobbies Masterclass offers a platform
for them to showcase their talents while
allowing others to learmn from their peers.

Rewards & Recognitions

Rewards and recognitions such as
Spotlight, Sher of the Quarter, Chaers
to Peers, and Annual Awards keep

our team mofivated and striving

for excellence. The Cheers to Peers
inifiative, a highly appreciated monthly
activity, is eagerly anticipated by
employees. In this inthative, employees
recognise their peers for their good
work and the support they have
provided in the execution of projects,
thereby fostering a collaborative culture.

L

ﬁ&w“‘\l\.\ﬂ




Radic's Digital Renaissance a

L TR TERT TR

ADMINISTRATION & IT

Soaring Beyond
With Solid Operating
Eco-System

We, at Radio City, are committed to continuous improvement;
our endeavour to excel in every facet of our operations
knows no bounds. We're not just content with meeting
standards; we strive to exceed them. From upgrading our
infrastructure with top-notch technology to ensuring strict
compliance with statutory regulations, we leave no stone
unturned. Our focus on administrative efficiency ensures
that our workflows are seamless and optimised for success.

phis
|

Collections

Cuur collections numbers are on the rise,
showing a strong 9% improvement year-
over-year. From client verfication, to
invoice delivery, cheque/PDC collection,
RO verification, and entry in MAP, we've
got our processes in full swing. We are
ramping up the daily client calling across
all locations, employing cross-station
calling to exert pressure on clients,

with progress being fracked via the
daily calling report. Plus, our admin is
supporfing government outstanding
collecfions with follow-ups and visits as
needed. We have rolled out an admin
collections incenfive policy to keep up
the motivation.

fresh vibes, these spaces serve as
hubs of creativity and productivity,
aligning with our vision for growth
and innovation.

Infrastructure Upgradation « Ahmedabad: We transiticned tc a

« Vishakhapatnam, Chennai, and
Hyderabad: We've gone all out with
a meticulous redesign of our office
spaces, infusing them with a renewed
look and feel. Through these
revitalised places, we've created
enviranments that exude positivity
and spread a sense of happiness
among our feam members. With

64

new office address, securing more
space at existing rentals under a
capex model, setting the stage fora
fresh and positive ambiance.

+  Mumbai Studios: We've revamped

on-air and backup studios, focussing
on acoustics and aesthetics with
LED lighting and enhanced

shoofing provisions.
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City Snacks Corner
Woe infreduced City Snacks Corner

at all our locations. This inihative has
been an instant hit, contributing to a
maore vibrant workplace culture and
crafting greater engagement among
employees. Moreover, it has boosted
productivity by providing employees
with convenient access fo snacks
throughout the day. In Mumbai, we
added more flavour to this initiative by
hosting a live snacks counter on the last
day of every month. The events held

in January, February, and March FY24
were fremendously successful, further
boosting the positive impact of this
initiative, while making a real difference
in employee satisfaction and morale.

Statutory Compliance

We are pleased to announce that our
Company has been certfified with a clean
audit under |SO 2001:2008 for Guality
Management in Administration. Plus, in
January FY24, fire and safety training
sessions were conducted across all RC
locations to ensure preparedness and
compliance. We're proud to report that
we're rocking a solid 100% compliance
rate with all administrative laws
highlighted in Lexplosion, symbaolising
our commitment to upholding
regulatory standards and best practices.

2

Unique Benefit Programme
(UBP)

We distributed 28 unique benefits
through national tie-ups and 40 local
benefits tallored to specific states. To
keep everyone informed, we created
a PowerPoint presentation showcasing
all national fie-ups and shared it with
regional centre WhatsApp groups.
We also synchronised this information
with the ZingHR social tab to remind
employees to use these benefits.

To reinforce awareness, we sat the UBP
SUMMary as a screensaver on avery
employee's computer. A feedback
survey showed that %1% of employees
appreciated and actively used the
benefits. Cur team is working on

the survey feedback to make the
programme even better.

91%"
Appreciation and active

rticipation received
rom employees

a*

Office and Studio Sanitisation

We conduct daily sanifisation and
deep cleaning to ensure the highest
standards of hygiene and safety

for both employees and wisitors. A
comprehensive checklist is carefully
monitared fo maintain consisfency

and effectiveness. In addition, we
distributed RC branded steal bottles fo
employees, as part of our commitment
to environmental sustainability and

employee health. Furthermore, we have

installed shoe polish/shiner machines
across all RC locations to enhance
cleanliness and professionalism.

& Corporate Overview }—ii|1—i|i

Technology
Advancements
for Broadcasting
Excellence

Owr technology team has tirelessly
pursued advancemenis fo enhance our
broadcasting and digital capabilifics.
Achieving an impressive 999949
broadcast uptime underscomnes our
unwaverng commitment to reliability
and uninfemupied service delvary.
We have upgraded fransmitier sysiems
with the latest GatesAir Hexdiva FM
transmitters in Defhi, Ahmedabad,
Jalgaon, and Vizag. Leveraging
advanced digital technology, these
trarsmitters offer scalability, remole
monitoring, and encrgy-saving fealuros,
aligning with our commitment fo
sustainable broadcasfing practices.
Additionally, we have opfimisad
opemational efficiency by installing Axia
IP Conscles in Ahmedabad, Jaipur,

and Lucknow.

We renovated our Ahmedabad
Studios, fransihoning fo a modem
environment conducive fo digital
productions and enhandng our content
creation capabilities. This endeavour,
executed with predsion and minimal
downtime, reflects our commitment
to providing cutfing-edge facilities
for our broadcasting needs. We
have also priontised audio quality by
mnstalling Omnia 9 audio processors
in Agra, Varanasi, Jalandhar, and
Virag. Renowned for their advanced
technology, these processors deliver
unparalleled sound quality and
versatility while ensuring compliance
with industry standards.

By imvesting in robust cybersecurity
solufions and prachces, we are ensuring
the integrity and security of our IT
infrastructure in an increasingly digital
landscape. Furthermore, we: have
embarked on a sirategic inifiative fo
opfimise content managemeni through
new-age Digital Asset Management
{DAM) solufions. These solufions
fadiitate the categorisation, archival, and
reirieval of confont assefs, siroamilining
our workflows and enhancing
operational effidency.

65



Radic's Digital Renaissance 9

L TRTITEAT HITAITT

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Brightening Lives
Beyond the Block

We are deeply committed to our society, and

our commitment to making a positive impact

is unshakable. From supporting schools and
orphanages to uplifting care centres for the
differently abled, and spearheading initiatives for
women and children, we've been actively involved
in various community endeavours.

Through both financial contributions
and hands-on assistance, we're actively
elevafing communities and fostering

a culture of compassion and support,
creating a broader societal impact.

Spreading Smiles

We have joined forces with Bosco
Institute Bangalore, Lions Blind
School Vadodara, and 5t. Catherine of
Siena Mumbai, fo make a difference,
sponsoring the education of three
promising students.

Cur Mumbai, Bengaluru, and
Vadodara teams have gone abowve and
beyond, generously donating packed
food items, medicines, water bottles,
clothing, stationery and books.

Additionally, we partnered with

two NGOs, creating a platform for
showcasing handcrafted products

like decorative items, stationery, small
gifts, and colourful magnets crafted
by differently abled children. The
event included a plant nursery with a
variety of colourful plants for sale. Cur
employees showed great enthusiasm,
purchasing plants for gifiing to friends
and colleagues.
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TEAM OF R]S

Impact Creators

RJ Salil - Mumbai RJ Sheetal - Kamal RJ Vikram - Lucknow RJ Midhi - Chennai

RJ Archana - Mumbai RJ Sumif - Pune RJ Dixi - Vadodara RJ Geetanjali - Ajmer

RJ Shonali - Pune RJ Jiah - Vadodara RJ Rashi - Lucknow

RJ Harshil - Ahmedabad RJ Pooja - Ahmedabad RJ Naga - Madurai

RJ Methra - Bengaluru RJ Barkha - Paina
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Leaders
Propelling
Our Way
Forward

Mr. Vijay Tandon

Mon-Executive Independent
Director-Chairman

Ms. Anita Nayyar Mr. Anuj Puri Mr. Madhukar Kamath

Mon-Executive Independent Director Mon-Executive Independent Director MNon-Executive Independent Diractor

Mr. Rahul Gupta Mr. Ravi Sardana Mr. Shailesh Gupta

MNon-Executive Director Mon-Executive Independent Director Mon-Executive Director

o L gy
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

We are delighted to present the Twenty-Fifth (25™) Annual Report of Music Broadcast Limited ("MBL" / “the Company™ / "Radio
City™) along with the Audited Financial 5tatements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024.

L.

12

COMPENY OVERVIEW:

As the pioneer of private FM radio broadcasting in India, Music Broadcast Limited, operating under the iconic brand "Radio
City”, has been at the forefront of shaping the FM radio landscape in the country. Since its incepfion, Radio City has been
dedicated to revolutionizing FM radio with its distinctive content, characterized by innovation and a deep connection with
urban culture, encapsulated by its brand ethos of “Rag Rag Mein Daude City”.

Radio City has been instrumental in intfreducing content that is not only groundbreaking but also resonates with the unique
spirit of each city it operates in. With a focus on capturing the essence of city life, Radio City has fostered a sense of local
pride and community among its lisfeners.

In line with its commitment to offering comprehensive solutions to adverfisers, Radio City has evolved into a holistic platform,
providing integrated marketfing opporfunities. From content production to event intellectual properties, social media
campaigns, commissioned podcasts, audio narratives and influencer collaborations, Radio City offers advertisers a diverse
array of avenues to engage with their farget audience effectively.

By continuously innovating and adapting to the changing media landscape, Radio City remains dedicated fo ennching the
lives of its listeners and delivering value to its adverhisers, sohdifying its position as a leading player in the Indian broadcasting
industry.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

The summarzed financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, as compared fo the
previous year's are given balow:

{? in Lakhs)
Particulars
Revenue from Operations 22853.85 19886.14
Other Income 230777 1970.33
Total Income 2516162 | 21856.47
Administration & other expenses 19538.63 1757939
Interest 389 81 391.26
Depreciation and amortization expenses 334313 | 327957
Total Expenditure 2387157 | 21250.22
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 1290.05 | 804.25
Less:  Cumrent Tax 21942 12617
Deferred Tax expense 38621 134.09
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 68442 | 343.99
Other comprehensive income '
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Re-measurements of post-employment benefit cbligations 12.82 30.76
Add: Income tax relating to these items (373} | (11.58)
Other comprehenzive income for the year, net of tax | 9.09 | 28.18
Total comprehensive income for the year | £93.51 | 37217
Add: Proft/{loss) brought forward 77297 | {1145.14)
Less: Transfer to Debenfure Redemption Reserve = =
Profit / (Loss) carried to Balance Sheet (79.46) J (772.97)

Mote: The above figures are extracted from the financial statements prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards
("Ind AS"). The Financial Statements of the Company complied with all aspects with Ind AS notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from fime
to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND STATE
OF COMPANY'S ATFAIR:

Finanaial year 2023-24 witnessed significant developments
and trends within the Indian radio industry, reflecting its
resilience and adaptability amidst changing consumer
behaviors and market dynamics. As the key player in the
country’s media landscape, the radio industry continued
its journey of evolufion, leveraging technology and
innovation to engage audiences and drive growth.

Despite the challenges posed by the global conflicts and
economic uncerfainties, India demonstrated remarkable
resilience and continue fo be fastest growing major
economy. Similarly, radio Industry has shown its ability to
bounce back, with FM radio stations across the country
experiencing a gradual recovery in advertising revenues
and listener engagement.

A notable trend during Financial Year 2023-24 was the
accelerated by adoption of digital technologies within the
radio industry. FM radio stations intensified their efforis
to embrace digital platforms, including online streaming,
mobile applications and social media channels, to expand
their reach and enhance listener experiences. This digital
integration openad up new avenues for content delivery,
audience engagement, brand promotion and advertising,
transforming the radic landscape in India.

In response to evolving listener preferences and market
dynamics, radie broadcasters focused on content
innovation, offering diverse and engaging programming
across genres. From music and entertainment to talk
shows and podcasts, radio stations curated content that
resonated with their target audiences, fostenng deeper
connactions and loyalty.

The advertising landscape for the radio industry
witnessed a resurgence during Financial Year 2023-24,
with advertisers increasingly recognizing the effectivenass
and relevance of radio advertising in reaching local and
regional audiences. The festive period, in particular,
witnessad a surge in adverfising spend, as businesses
capitalized on the posifive consumer senfiment and
increased the purchasing power.

The Financial Year 2023-24 marked a period of recovery,
growth and transformation for the Indian radio industry,
reaffirming its relevance and enduring appeal in an
increasingly digital world. With a focus on innovation,
content excellence and audience engagement, the
industry is poised fo chart a path of sustained growth and
success in the years fo come.

Turmover of the Company was T 22,853.85 lakhs for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 as compared to
# 19 886.14 lakhs, an increase of 14.92% over the previous

6.
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year. The Profit/ (Loss) after taxes is ¢ 684.42 lakhs, as
compared to ¥ 343.99 lakhs in the previous year, an
increase of 98.97% over the previous year.

For a comprehensive analysis of the Company’s financial
performance during the year under review, please refer
to the Report on Management Discussion and Analysis,
which constitutes an integral part of this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors of the Company has not
recommendead any dividend on equity shares for the year
under review.

Further, the Company has paid an Interim Dividend during
the FY 2023-24 of T 0.01 per Non-Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY:

In compliance with Regulation 43A of the Securitfies and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {"Listing Regulations”),
the Board of Diraectors of the Company has framed the
Dividend Distribution Policy. This policy delineates the
criteria for determining the disiribution of dividends to
shareholders while also addressing the need to conserve
resources for future exigencies. The policy is accessible on
the website of the Company at https:/'www.radiociy.in/

RESERVES:

During the year under review, no amount has been
transferred to the Resarves of the Company. For a
comprehensive breakdown of the changes in Other
Equity throughout the year, please refer to the Sfatement
of changes in Equity within the Company's Financial
Statements.

DEPOSITS:

The Company has adhered to Section 73 of the Actalong
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014, by not accepting any deposit from the public or
shareholders. Consequently, as of the Balance Sheet
date, there were no amounts cutstanding on account of
principal or interast on public deposits. Therefore, there
are no details to disclose as mandated under Rule 8(v) and
(w1} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

CREDIT RATING:

The Company's robust financial management and ifs
ability to meet financial obligations promptly have been
reaffirmed by the credit rating agency CRISIL. The Long-
term instrument rating stands at "CRISIL AA/Stable”, while
the Short-term instrument rating is noted as "CRISIL AT+".
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Furthermore, the Company’s Mon-Cumulative Mon-
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares have also
undergone assessment by CRISIL, with the rating being
reaffirmed as "CRISIL AA/Stabla®,

The details of Credit Rating of the Company are also
uploaded on the website of the Company at hitpszfweww,
radiocity.in/investors/credit-rating.

UNSECURED, NON-CONVERTIBLE,
NON-CUMULATIVE, REDEEMABLE
PREFTERENCE SHARES (“NCRP5”) OF
FACE VALUE OF 7 10/- EACH:

The Company allotted 8969, 597 NCRPS of face value of
T 10/- each, bearing coupon rate of 0.1% p.a. to the non-
promoter equity shareholders of the Company, as on the
Record Date i.e., Fnday, January 13, 2023, as per the ratio
stipulated in the Scheme of Arrangement e, 1 (One)
MCRPS with a face value of T 10 each, issued af a premium
of T 90 per NCRPS, for every 10 (Ten) Equity Shares held
with a face value of T 2 each. These NCRPS are redeemable
at the expiry of 36 months i.e., Januvary 19, 2026 from the
date of allotment of shares. These MCRPS were listed and
admitted to trade freely at the stock exchanges with effect
from April 20, 2023, on both BSE Limited and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Dividend Payment:

The Company declared in its Board Meeting held on
January 23, 2024 first year dividend of 0.1% of face value
of ¥ 10/~ each on NCRPS an inferim dividend credited to
the eligible NCRPS holders account whose name appears
in the Register of Members of the Company or in the

records of the Depaositories as beneficial owners of the
MCRPS as on "Record Date” i.e. Friday, February 2, 2024,

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

i. Director Retiring by Botation:

EEY

In accordance with the provisions cutlined in Sechon
152 of the Act, read along with the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, and
the Arficles of Association of the Company, Mr. Rahul
Gupta (DIN-00359182), a Non-Executive Mon-
Independent Director of the Company, is liable to
retfire by rotation at the upcoming Annual General
Meeting. Mr. Gupta, being eligible, has expressed
his willingness for re-appeointment.

The Board has recommended for his re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting as a
Mon-Executive Non-Independent Director of the
Company, liable to retirement by rotation.

ii. Appointment of Director:
The tenure of Ms. Anita Nayyar (DIN: 03317861) as a
Woman Independent Director will be completed on
January 26, 2025. The Board of Directors atits meefing
held on May 22, 2024, based on recommeandation

of NMomination and Remuneration Committee
("MRC") had considered and recommended the
re-appointment of Ms. Anita Mayyar as an
Independent Diractor for the second term of five (5)
years commencing from January 27, 2025 to January
26, 2030 subject to approval of shareholders at
25" Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, matter
with respect to her re-appoiniment is proposed for
the approval of the shareholders in the Mofice of
25" Annual General Meeting.

A brief profile and other necessary details, as
mandated under Regulation 36 of the Listing
Regulations and Secretaral Standard-2 on General
Meetings ("Secretfarial $tandard-2"}), regarding
the Directors proposed for appeointment, re-
appointment at the ensuing AGM, are attached to the
Motice convening the 25™ Annual General Meeting.

iii. Key Managerial Personnel:
In terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) and Section
203 of the Act, the following are designated as the
Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs) as on March 31,
2024:

3% Name of the KMP Designation
1 Mr. Ashat Kukian ; Chief Executive Officer
| (CEC)
2 Mr. Prashant I Chief Financial Officer
Domadia | {CFO)

3 | Ms. Arpita Kapoor ' Company Secrefary (C5)
| and Compliance Officer

Dwring the financial year under review, there were
no changes in the KMP of the Company.

11. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Inaccordance with Section 149 of the Act, Ms. Anita Mayyar,
Mr. Anuj Pur, Mr. Madhukar Kamath, Mr. Ravi 5ardana and
Mr. Vijay Tandon serve as Independent Directors of the
Company. The Company has received declarations from
all Independent Directors confirming their adherence to
the independence criteria outlined in Section 149(4) of
the Act and Regulation 16(1){b) of the Listing Regulations.

As per Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, they
have affirmed their unawarenass of any circumstances
or situations that could impair their ability to discharge
their duties independentty and objectively. The Board has
duly acknowledged and recorded these declarations and
confirmations, after thoroughly assessing their veracity.

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors
fulfill the criteria of independence as provided under
the Act, Rules made thereunder, read with the Listing
Regulations and are independent of the management and
possess requisite gualifications, experience and expertise
and hold highest standards of infegnty to discharge the
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assigned duties and responsibilities as mandated by Act
and Listing Regulations diligenthy. Disclosure regarding
the skills/expertise/competence possessed by the
Directors is given in detail in the Report on Corporate
Govermnance forming part of this Annual Report.

Further, in terms of Rule & of the Companies (Appointment
and Glualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, all
the Independent Directors of the Company are qualified
to act as independent directors and have registered their
namas in the online databank of Independent Directars
maintained by Indian Insfitute of Corporate Affairs.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:

The Momination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company has established comprehensive criteria for
evaluating the performance of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directors, including Independent Directors.
These criteria encompass various facets of the Board's
functioning, including the adequacy of the Board and
Committee compositions, the fostering of a healthy Board
culture, administration, strategic & risk management,
effective participation and corporate governance/
compliance framework. Parameters for evaluation of
Directors included construchive participation in Meatings
and engagement with colleagues on the Board.

Similarly, the Committees were evaluated on parameters
understanding their mandate and accordingly discharging
their duties and providing adequate oversight on key
areas. The Chairman of the Company was evaluated on
leadership and overall effectivensess in managing affairs
of the Company, ensuring Corporate Governance and
carrying ouft duties as entrusted by the Board.

Responses submitted by Board Members were collated,
analyzed and improvement opportunities emanating were
noted by the Board to optimize its overall effecfivenass.
The evaluation process confirms that the Board and its
Committees continue to operate effectively and the
performance of the Directors and the Chair is satisfactory.
The details of the evaluation process and the results
thereof of the evaluation were presented to the Board
of Directors.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR
DIRECTORS:

Upon appeintment of new Independent Director, the
Company issues a formal letter of appointment which
sets out in detail, inter-alia, the terms and conditions of
appointment, their duties, responsibilities and expected
time commitments, amongst others. The terms and
conditions of their appointment are disclosed on the
website of the Company.

The Board members are provided with the necessary
documents, presentation, reports and policies fo enable

14,
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them to familiarize with the Company’s procedures
and practices. Periodic presentations are made at the
meefings of Board and its Committees, on the Company’s
performance. Detailed presentations on the Company's
business and updates on relevant statutory changes and
important laws are also given in the meetings.

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations,
during the Financial Year 2023-24, the familiarisation
program for the Directors was held on February 10, 2024
on the Legal Landscape- An overview of Legislative
Changes. The details of familiarization program for
Directors are uploaded on the website of the Company
at hifpsi/fwww.radiocity.in/images/uploads/pdf/
Orj . i Hiari fonD
-2023-241707998525. pdf.

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND
EVALUATION POLICY:

In accordance with Section 134(3) of the Act read with
Section 178{4) of the Act and based on the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC),
the Board has adopted the Company the Nominatfion,
Remuneration and Evaluation Policy for Directors
and Senior Management Personnel. The Nomination,
Remuneration and Evaluation Policy is attached herefo as
Annexure | to the Director's Report and is also uploaded
on the website of the Company at https://www.radiocity.
infimages/uploads/pdf/NRCPolicyMBL2315681891299,

pdf.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

The Board of Directors met 5 (Five) times during the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder
and Regulation 17 (2) of the Listing Regulations.

Details of the composition of the Board along with the
Meetings held, attendance of the Directors and other
relevant details are provided in the Corporate Governance
Repaort, which forms part of this Annual Report.

COMMITTEES
DIRECTORS:

The Company has established various Board committees
as required by the Act and Lisfing Regulations. These
Committees include the Audit Committee, Nomination
& Remunerafion Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee,
and Risk Management Committee. They have been

OF BOARD OF

constituted in compliance with relevant provisions of laws
and regulations.

Detailed information about the compaosition, dates of
the meefings, attendance, terms of reference and other
relevant details regarding these committees is provided

75



11.

18.

20.

76

Radio City
L TRTITLAT HITRITT

Radic's Digital Renaissance

in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ section, which
forms part of this Annual Repaort.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND CORPORLATE GOVERNANCE
CERTIFICATE:

A Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under
Regulations 17 to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V
of the Lishng Regulations, as amended from time to time,
is set out separately in this Annual Report. The Company
has been in compliance with all the norms of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations,
menficned above.

A Certificate from the Secretarial Auditor of the Company,
Mr. Deepak Rane, Practicing Company Secretary (CP 8717;
ACS 24110), confirming compliance with the provisions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing
Regulations is included in the Corporate Governance
Report which forms a part of this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT
ANALYSIS:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report,
as mandated by Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Listing
Regulations, has been provided separately and forms part
of this Annual Report. Additionally, in compliance with the
Listing Regulations, the Audit Committee of the Company
has duly reviewed the said Management Discussion and

DISCUSSION AND

Analysis Report for the Financial year ended March 31,
2024,

INSURANCE:

The Company has comprehensive insurance coverage
for all its existing assets, safeguarding against potential
risks such as fire, riots, earthquakes, floods, and other
threats identified by management. As per the provisions
of the Actand in compliance with Regulation 25{10) of the
Listing Regulations, we have also procured a Directors’
and Officers’ Liability Insurance to indemnify our directors
and officers for claims brought against them to tha fullest
extent permitted under applicable law.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company has implemented a robust Code of Conduct
applicable to both to Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. This Code provides essential guidance and
support for ensuring ethical business conduct and
adherence to the legal requirements.

A declaration signed by the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company affirming compliance with the Code of
Conduct by the Directors and Senior Management
Personnel as prescribed under Part ‘D" of Schedule V
read with Regulafion 17 (5) of the Listing Regulations, for
the Financial Year 2023-24 is included in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms a part of this Annual
Report.

21.
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INVESTOR EDUCATION
PROTECTION FUND:

Dunng the year under review, the Company did not had
any obligation to transfer funds or shares to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

AND

SHARE CAPITAL:

As of March 31, 2024, the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed
and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company were as follows:

Buthorized Share Capital:

The Authorised Share Capital of your Company is
¢ 89.01,96,000 (Rupees Eighty-Nine Crores One Lakh
Minety-5ix Thousand Only) compnsing of 40,00,00,000
(Forty Crore) Equity Shares of ¥ 2 {Rupeas Two only)
each, 50,000 (Fifty Thousand) Convertible Redeamable
Preference Shares of ¥ 10 (Rupees Ten only) each and
89,69 600 (Exghiy-nine Lakhs, Sicty-Mine Thousand and Six-
hundred) Non-Comvertible Mon-Cumulafive Redeemable
Preference Shares of ¥ 10/~ (¥ Ten Only) each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:
The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the
Company as at March 31, 2024 stood at T 78,10,67 220/~
(Rupees. Seventy-Eight Crores Ten Lakhs Sixty-5even
Thousand Two Hundred and Twenty Only) divided into
Equity Capital of ¥ 6213, 71, 250/- (Rupees Sixty-Nine Crores
Thirteen Lakh Seventy-Cne Thousand Two Hundred and
Fifty Only) divided into 34,58,85,625 (Thirty-Four Crore
Fifty-5ix Lakhs Eighty-Five Thousand Six Hundrad Twenty
Five) Equity Shares of 32/~ each and Preference Share
Capital of ¥ 89625970/~ (Rupees BEight Crore Ninety-Six
Lakhs Minety-Five Thousand MNine Hundred and Seventy
Only) divided into 89,69 587 (Eighty-Nine Lakhs Shcty-
Mine Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety Seven) NCRPS
of 10/~ (Rupees Ten Only) each.

Thera is no change in the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed
and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company from previous
Financial year.

The Company has neither issued shares with differential
voting rights nor sweat equity. As on March 31, 2024,
none of the Directors of the Company hold instruments
convertible info equity shares of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture
or Associate Company (ies) for the year under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(“C5R"):

The Company is committed to conduct its business
in a socially responsible, ethical and environmental
friendly manner. It strives fo enhance the quality of life
in the communities where it operates. To further these
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objectives, the Company has constituted a C5R Committea
comprising of 3 (Three) members. Comprehensive
information about the composition of the C5E Committee
and its meefings held during the Financial year 2023-24
is provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which
forms part of this Annual Report.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the
Act read with Companies (Corporate 5ocial Responsibility
Paolicy) Amendment Rules, 2014, the Company has
formulated its CSR Policy. This Policy takes into account
the relevant Acts and Rules and Schedules VIl of the Act.
Additionally, the C5R Policy of the Company is available
on the website of the Company at hitps:/'www.radiocity,
infimages/uploads/pdi/CorporateSocalResponsibilityPo
licy-MBL202116182135091627568756.pdf

The Annual report on C5R activities, as mandated by
Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rulas, 2014 (as amended) has been included as
Annexure |l to the Director's Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the financial year under review, the Company did
not enter info any contract / arrangement / transactions
referred in Section 188(1) of the Act along with the
rules made thereunder. All Related Party Transactions
conducted by the Company during the financial year were
carried out in the normal course of business and on an
arm’s length basis. Addifionally, there were no significant
confracts, arangements or transactions, matenally at arm’s
length or otherwise. Hancea, the disclosure requirement in
Form AQC-2, as prescribed by Section 134 read with Rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, does not
apply to the Company.

All Related Party Transactions were conducted only
with the prior approval of the Audit Committee. For
transactions anficipated or of a recurring nature, prior
omnibus approval was obtained. A stafement detailing
all related party transactions is regularly presented
before both the Audit Committee and the Board on a
quarterly basis, providing comprehensive information on
these transactions. Also, the Statement of Related Party
Transactions is also filed at the stock exchanges on half
yearly basis in the prescribed format.

Furthermare, the policy on materiality and dealing with
Related Party Transactions is available on the website of the
Company at https./fwww.radiocity.in/images/uploads/
pdf/RPTPolicy-MBL January24 2022 atesil64621 1685 pdf

In accordance with Ind A5-24, the Related Party
Transactions are disclosed under Note No. 24 of the
Financial 5tatements.

Z26.
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29.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has implemented robust internal financial
confrols pertaining to its Financial Statements. These
controls were thoroughly tested during the year under
review and no significant weaknesses in the processes or
operations were identified. Furthermore, the Company
conducts Internal Audit, performed by an independent
audit firm, fo consistently monitor the adequacy and
effectiveness of its internal control system. This Internal
Audit also evaluates the Company’'s compliance status,
ensuring that all regulatory requirements are met
satisfactorily.

The Audit Committee reviews the adeguacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Controls and
monitors the implementation of audit recommendations,
if any.

INTERNAL AUDITORS:

Mis KPMG is the Internal Auditor of the Company. The
Terms of Reference and scope of work of the Internal
Auditor is approved by the Audit Committee. The
Infernal Auditor monitars and evaluates the efficiency
and adequacy of the internal contral sysfem in the
Company, s compliance with operating systems,
accounting procedures and policies of the Company. The
Internal Auditor presents significant audit findings and
recommendations, along with comesponding corrective
actions, to the Audit Committee of the Board.

LEGALFRAMEWOREAND REPORTING
STRUCTURE:

In consultation with a professional agency, the Company
has set up a compliance tool aimed at monitoring
and enhancing compliance of the applicable laws to
the Company. This fool undergoes regular updates
to accommaodate any amendments/modifications in
applicable laws from time to time. As a result of this
initiative, compliance at all levels of the Company has been
significantly strengthened. The Compliance Officer has
been designated with the responsibility fo oversee the
funchioning of this fool.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN,
INVESTMENT MADE, GUARANTEES
GIVEN AND SECURITIES PROVIDED
UNDER SECTION 126 OF THE ACT:

The details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments as
defined under Section 186 of the Act are given in the notes
to the Financial 5tatements for the year under review.

However, the Company has not given any guarantee or
provided security in connection with loan to any other
body corporate or person as prescribed under Section

186{2) of the Act.

it
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY
SUSTAINARBILITY REPORT:

In accordance with Regulation 34 (2) (f) of the Listing
Regulations, the Company has formulated the Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting for the
Financial year 2023-24. This report is appended as
Annexure lll to the Director's Report and forms a
part of this Annual Report. This report evaluates the
Company's performance and reporting against each of

the nine principles ouflined in the 'Mational Guidelines
on Responsible Business Conduct’ (NGRBCs).

AND

RISE MANAGEMENT POLICY AND
IDENTIFICATION OF EEY RISES:

In accordance with Section 134(3){n) of the Act and
Regulation 21 of Listing Regulations, the Company
has established a Risk Management Committee (RMC)
compnsed of four (4) members. Comprehensive details
regarding the Risk Management Committee can be found
in the 'Corporate Governance’ section, which forms part
of this Annual Report. The Company has formulated
a Risk Management Policy to establish an efficient and
integrated framework for managing risks.

During Financial year 2023-24, the Company has engaged
Mis KPMG to assist in conducting an Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) exercise. This initiate has fortified
the Company's risk management framework, facilitating
the idenfification, assessment and mitigation of business
risks, coupled with timely moniforing and action. Each key
function and division independently oversees risks within
their respective areas of operations including strategic,
finance, operational, regulatory & compliance, insurance,
legal and other issues like cyber security, data privacy,
personnel, reputational and other risks.

WEBLINE OF ANNUAL RETURN:

This framework aims to forter growth, enhance
transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business
objectives and strengthen the Company’s competitive
advantage by implementing effective risk management
measures.

The Annual Retum for the Financial year ended March 31,
2024, in Form MGT — 7 as mandated under Section 92 (3) of
the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 can be accessed on the
website of the Company at https./fwww.radiocify.in/
investors/annual-reports

VIGIL POLICY/ WHISTLE BLOWER
MECHANISM:

The Company upholds the ethical conduct across all its
business endevours, aligning with the highest standards
of Corporate Governance. The Company has established
awhistle- blower/ vigil mechanism for both the Directors
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and Employees. This mechanism enables reporting
of breaches of the code of conduct including code of
conduct for insider frading, unathical business practices,
illegality, fraud, corruption, leak of unpublished price
sensifive information pertaining to the company, etc. at
the workplace without any fear of retaliation. Adequate
safeguards are in place to protect individuals against
victimization.

The Audit Committee periodically reviews the operation
of the Vigil Mechanism to ensure its effectivenass.
Furthermaore, none of the Employees/Directors has been
denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
Comprehenszive details of the Whistle Blower Policy are
outlined in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance' and
the Policy is also available on the website of the Company
at https://www.radiocitvin/images/uploads/pdf/Vigil-
Machanism-Policy-MBL15537699281627568423 pdf

For the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no complaint
reported by any Employee/ Director under this
mechanism.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In accordance with the requirements of Section 134{5) of
the Act, the Directors hereby confirm that:

iy In the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed
and there were no material departures from the
same;

i) They had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit and loss of the Company
at the end of the financial year;

iii) They had taken proper and sufficient care for the
mainfenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularifies;

iv) They had prepared the annual accounts on a going
concemn basis;

v]  They had laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal
financial conirols were adequate and were operating
effectively; and

vi)] They had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and such systams were adequate and operating
effectively.
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COMPLIANCE
STANDARDS:

During the Financial year under review, the Company
diligently adhered to the relevant Secrefanal Standards,
namely 55-1 (Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the
Board of Directors) and 55-2 (Secrefanal Standard on
General Meetings) as prescribed by the Institute of
Company Secretanes of India. These standards have been

duly approved by the Central Government under Section
118(10) of the Act.

OF SECRETARIAL

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND
SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the
Act read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014 and
upon the recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board
has appointed Mr. Deepak Rane, Practicing Company
Secrefary, (Membership Mo: ACS 24110 and CP No. 8717)
to conduct the Secretanal Audit of the Company for the
Financial Year 2023-24.

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024, is annexed herewith as
Annexure IV to this Annual Report. The Secretanal Audit
Report does not confain any gualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

Furthermore, in compliance with Regulation 24A of the
Listing Regulations, the Company has obtained an Annual
Secretanal Compliance Report for the Financial Year 2023-
24 from the Secretanal Auditors. This report has also been
submitted to the Stock Exchanges.

COST AUDIT:

The Company has deligently maintained ifs accounts and
cost records in accordance with the specifications cutlined
by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the
Act. Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
the Board of Directors has re-appointed M/s Kishore
Bhatia and Associates, Cost Accountants, Mumbai (Firm
Registration No. 00294) as Cost Auditors to conduct audit
of Cost Accounts of the Company for the Financial year
2024-25. At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the
approval of the Members will be sought for the rafification
of their remuneration.

STATUTORY AUDITOR:

At the 21" Annual General Meeting held on September
15, 2020, the shareholders of the Company appointed
M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
(Registration No. 012754N/ N500014) as Statutory Auditors
of the Company for a second consecufive term of five (5)
yaars to hold office from the conclusion of the 21¥ Annual
General Meeting of the Company fill the conclusion of
26™ Annual General Meeting to ba held in the year 2025,

339.
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at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon
between the Board of Directors of the Company and the
Statutory Auditors.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(1) and Section
141 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company has received a written
consent and certificate from the auditors to the effect that
they are eligible to continue as Statutory Auditor of the

Company.

M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP has
audited the books of accounts of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 and have issued
the Auditors’ Report thereon. The Report given on the
financial statement of the Company for the Financial Year
2023-24 forms part of this Annual Report. The Notes on
financial statement referred to in the Auditor's Report
are self-explanatory and do not call for any comments.
The Auditor's Report does not confain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Reporting of Fraud by the Auditors

During the Financial year under review, neither the
Statutory Auditors or the Cost Auditors or the Secretanal
Auditor have not reported any instances of fraud
commitied against the Company by its officers or
employees, fo either the Audit Committee or the Board. As
mandated under Section 143 (12) of the Act, the Director’s
Report does not require the inclusion of details regarding
such incidents.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:
Dwring the year under review, there wera no fransactions
requinng:

. Mo securities (including sweat equity shares and
ESOP) were issued fo the employeas of the Company
under any scheme.

. Mo orders were passed by any of the regulators
or courts or fnbunals impacting the going concern
status and Company’s operations in the future.

. Mo revision was made in the previous financial
statement of the Company.

. Mo changes in the nature of the business of the
Company.

. Mo applicafion has been made under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code hence the requirement o
disclose the details of application made or any
proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2014) during the year
along with their status as at the end of the financial
year is not applicable.

i
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. The requirement to disclose the details of difference
botween amount of the valuation done at the fime
of one-fime settloment and the valuation done while
taking loan from the Banks or Financial Insfitufions
along with tha reasons thereof, is not applicable.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND
COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING
THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPEANY:

The Board reports that there have been no maternal
changes and commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company have occurred between the end of the
financial year ending March 31, 2024 and the date of this
Report. Furthermore, there has been no alteration in the
nature of the Company's business duning this period.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS, AND OUTGO:
The Company is in the business of Private FM
Radio Broadcasting. Since this does not invalve any
manufacturing activity, most of the Information required
to be provided under 5ection 134 (3)(m) of the Act read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is
not applicable. However, the information, as applicable,
is given hereunder:

Conservation of Energy:

The operafions of the Company are nof energy-intensive;
steps are being continually taken to conserve energy in
all possible ways. In the past few years, the Company
has undertaken several inifiafives not only in the areas of
energy efficiency across locations to conserve energy but
also towards optimum ufilisation of all-natural rescurces.
Some of these initiatives include:

o Replacement of conventional lighting with LED
lighting across our locations.

o Installation of star-rated energy-efficient air
conditioners.

o Installation and up-gradation of energy-efficient
electronic devices aimed at reducing energy
consumpfion are being made by the Company
and its employees to reduce the wastage of scarce
energy resources.

Technology Absorption, and

Innovation:

Adaptation,

The Company has notimported any specific technology for
its broadcasfing, although it uses advanced mechanisms
including transmitters, Cummins, etc. which are handled
by the Company’s in-house technical team. The Company
uses the latest equipment in broadcasting its programs.
The outdated technologies are constantly identified and
updated with the latest innovations.
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Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The details of earnings and ocutgo in foreign exchanges
are as under:

(% In Lakhs)
Year ended
Particulars March 31,
2024
Foreign Exchange 10.76 148.43
carnad
Foreign Exchange outgo
« Capital Expenses 432.50 307.03
«  Other Expenses 3723 34.60
Total Foreign 469.74 341.63
Exchange outgo

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND
RELATED DISCLOSURES:

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rule § (1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, a statement containing the disclosures perfaining
to remuneration and other details is annexed as
Annexure V to the Director's Report.

Additionally, the statement enumerating the names of
fop ten employees in terms of the remuneration drawn
and the particulars of employees as required pursuant
fo Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rules 5 (2) and 5
{3} of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of the
employees of the Company in the said Rules forms part
of the Annual Report. However, in terms of second
provision of Section 136(1) of the Act, the Annual Report
and Accounts are being sent to the Members and others
entitled thereto, excluding the aforesaid information. Any
member inferested in obtaining such information may
address an email to investor@myradiocity.com. None of
the employees idenfified as per above Rules is related to
any Director of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Human resource represent a critical asset and a primary
impartant driver for the Company's sustained growth and
profitability. The Company consistently places significant
emphasis on its human capital and maintains posifive and
harmonious relations across all organizational levels. The
well-disciplined workforce, many of whom have been
with the Company for over a decade, forms the bedrock
of the Company’s notable accomplishments and will
continue to do so in the future.

The management deligently conducts systematic
performance appraisals and imparts training at periedic
intervals o enhance employee skills and competencies.
The Company values talent recognifion and adheres to the
principle of rewarding performance judiciously.

The total number of permanent employees of the

Company as on March 31, 2024 is 479,
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PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT
AT WORKEPLACE:

In accordance with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal} Act 2013 ("POSH Act™) and Rules
made theresunder, the Company has taken measures
to comply with the POSH Act and has established a
zero-tolerance policy fowards sexual harassment at the
workplace. The Company has constituted an Internal
Complaint Committee to redress and resolve any
complaints arising under the POSH Act.

Regular Training/awareness programs are conducted by
the Company throughout the year fostering a culture of
respect and sensitivity in the workplace. No complaints
on sexual harassment were received during the financial
year under review.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS:

Cerfain statements contained in the Directors’ Report,
Corporate Governance Report and Management
Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s objectives,
estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward-
looking within the meaning of applicable securities
laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from
those expressed or implied. Important factors that could
make a difference to the Company's operations include
advertisements available, cost and demand and pricing of
the Company's principal markets, changes in government
regulations, fax regimes, economic development within
India and other incidental factors.

ACENOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors extend their heartfelt gratitude to the
shareholders, bankers, financial institutions, Credit Rafing
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Agency, Depositories, Stock Exchanges, Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents, Regulatory Bodies, Advisors,
Government Authorities and other business partners for
their cooperation and support throughout the financial
year.

Additionally, the Directors acknowledge and appreciate
the dedicated efforts of employees and other stakeholders
who have played a crucial role in the Company's consistent
and sahisfactory performance, especially in a challenging
environment. Their hard work and enthusiasm have been
instrumental in the Company’s growth, particularly in
ensuring uninterrupted dissemination of information and
content to isteners despite challenges faced by the radio
industry.

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Music Broadcast Limited

Vijay Tandon
Date: May 22, 2024 Chairman
Place: New Delhi DIN:00156305

Registered Office:

5" Floor, RNA Corporate Park,

Off Western Express Highway,

Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051
Tel: +91 27 66969100, Fax: +91 22 26429113
E-mail: investor@myradiocity.com
Website: www.radiccity.in

CIM: L64200MH1999PLC137729
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ANNEXUREITO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION POLICY

This Momination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy (the
“Policy™) applies to the Board of Directors (the "Board™), Key
Managerial Personnel and the Senior Management Personnel
of Music Broadcast Limited (the "Company”).

1. Definitions

. “PDirector™ meansa Director appointed to the Board
of the company;

«  “Independent Director” shall have the meaning
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 read
with relevant rules made thereunder and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Reqgulations, 2015 {"Lisfing Regulations"); as amended
from time to time.

- “KeyManagerial Personnel™ (KMP) means—

L Managing Director;

. Whole-time Director|s);

ii. Chief Executive Officer;

. Chief Financial Officer;

v. Company Secretary; and

vi. Such other Officer as may be prescribed.

- “Benior Management Personnel” (SMP)
to include such officers/ personnel, as may be
determined by Momination & Remuneration
Committee or Board who are members of its core
management feam excluding Board of Directors
comprising members of management one level
below the chief executive officer/managing director/
whole fime directoris)/manager (including Chief
Executive Officer/ Manager, in case they are not
part of the Board) and shall specifically include the
functional heads, by whatever name called and the
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer.

In reference to the Company, the senior management
personnal would refer to personnel occupying the
positions idenfified by MRC as per the organizational
framewaork of the Company.

«  “Managing Director™ shall have the meaning as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013 read with
relevant Rules made thereunder, as amended from
time to fime and any other applicable provisions for
the time being in force.

. “Whole-time director(s)"” includes a Directorin
the whole-time employment of the Company.

Words and definitions not defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as provided in the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act™) read with relevant Rules thereunder and the
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Listing Regulations or other relevant provisions; as may be
applicable, as amended from time to fime.

This Policy complies with Section 178 of the Act read
along with the applicable rules thereto and the Listing
Regulations as amended from time fo time.

Purpose

The primary objective of the Policy is to provide a framework
and sat standards for the Nomination, Remuneration and
Evaluation of the Directors, KMP and SMP. The Company
aims to achieve a balance of merit, experience and skills
amongst its Board, KMP and SMP.

The key objectives of the policy, thus, would be:

. To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with
regard to identifying persons who are qualified to
become Directors ([Execufive and Non-Executive) and
persons who may be appointed or re-appointed as
KMP. SMP and such other positions as may be decided
and to determine their remuneration and recommend
to the Board about their appointment and remaoval.

. To determine remuneration based on the Company's
size and financial position and frends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies.

. Recommend to the Board, the remuneration of the
Diractors, KMP and SMP.

. To establish framework for performance evaluation
of the Board, Directors, including Independent
Directors, Committees and the Chairman. To refain,
motfivate and promote talent and to ensure long term
sustainability of talentaed managerial persons and
create compefitive advantage.

. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

. Whether to extend or continue the term of
appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the Performance Evaluation Report.

Accountability
. The Board is ultimately responsible for the

appointment, re-appointment and removal of
Directors, KMP and SMP.

«  The Board has delegated responsibility for assessing
and recommending the candidates for the role
of Directors, KMP and laying down the criteria
for selection of the SMP to NRC which makes
recommendations to the Board.
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and Remuneration

Committee (WRC)

1. Members:

- The Momination and Remuneration Committes
shall consist of a minimum of three (3) Non-
Executive Directors, majority of them being
Independent Directors.

2. Chairperson:
- Chairperson of the Committea shall be an
Independent Diractor.

- Chairperson of the Company may be appointed
as a member of the Committee but shall not be
a Chairperson of the Committee.

- In the absence of the Chairperson, the members
of the Committee present at the meeting shall
choose one amongst them to act as Chairperson.

- Chairperson of the Committee or any other
person authorized by him shall be present
at the Annual General Meeting to answer the
shareholders’ quenes.

3.  Committee Members' Interest:

- A member of the Committesa is not entitled to
be present when his or her own remuneration
is discussed at a meefing or when his or her
performance is being evaluated.

- The Committee may invite such executives, as
it considers appropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Commitiee.

4. Meeting:
- The MRC shall meat at least once in a year.

- The quorum for a meeting of the NRC shall
be either two members or one-third of the
members of the Committee, whichever is
greater, including at least one Independent
Director in attendance.

5. Voting:

- Matters arising for determination at Committee
meefings shall be decided by a majornity of votes
of Members present and voting and any such
decision shall for all purposes be deemed a
decision of the Committee.

- In the case of equality of votes, the Chairperson
of the meating will have a casting vote.

4.  General:

- Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed
in the Annual Report.

- Term of the Committee shall be confinued unless
terminated / dissolved by the Board.
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Nomination and Remuneration
Committee - Responsibility

The Momination and Remuneration Committee is
responsible for:

. Reviewing the structure, size and compaosition
(including the skills, knowledge and expenence) of
the Board annually and making recommendations an
any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy.

. Identifying individuals suitably qualified to be
appointed as the Executive Directors, Independeant
Diraectors, KMPs and SMP for the Company.

. Recommending fo the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship.

. Formulating the criteria for determining qualification,
positive attributes and recommending fo the Board
a policy relating fo the remuneration for Executive
Diraectors, KMP and other employees.

B Assessing the independence of independent
directors, so as to ensure that the individual meets
with the requirement prescribed under the Act read
with Listing Regulations.

B Such other key issues/matters as may be referred
by the Board or as may be necessary in view of the
Listing Regulations and provision of the Act and Rules
thereunder.

. To make recommendations fo the Board concerning
any matters relating to the continuation in office of
any Director at any fime including the suspension or
termination of service of an Executive Director as an
employee of the Company subject to the provision of
the law and their service contract.

. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to
regularly review the plan,

. Lay down criteria for evaluation of the individual
Directors, Committees and Board as a whole.

. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to SMP.

Positive Attributes and gualifications of
Directors/ EMPs/ SMPs

When recommending a candidate for appointment or
re-appointment, the Committee will have regard to the
following qualifications and positive atinbutes:

B assessing the appointee against a range of criteria
which includes but not be limited to qualifications,
skalls, industry experience, background and other
qualities required to operate successfully in the
posifion;
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. the extent to which the appointes is likely to contribute
to the overall effectiveness of the Board, work
constructively with the existing directors and enhance
the efficiencies of the Company; in case of KMPs and
SMP their contribufion fowards effectiveness of the
organizafion as a whole would be considered;

. the nature of exsting posiions held by the appointea
including directorships or other relationships and the
impact they may have on the appointee’s ability to
exercise independent judgment;

. ability of the appointee to represent the company;

. ability to work individually as well as a member of the
Board and SMP;

. influential communicator with power to convince
other in a positive way;

. ability to participate actively in deliberation and
Qroup processes;

. have strategic thinking and facilitaion skills;

. act impartially keeping in mind the inferest of the
company on prionty basis;

. Personal specifications:
- Educational qualification;

- Experience of management in a diversa
organization;

- Inferpersonal, communication and

representational skills;
- Demonstrable leadership skills;

-  Commitment to high standards of ethics,
personal integrity and probity;

- Commitment to the promotfion of egqual
opportunities, community cohesion and health
and safety in the workplace.

Independence of a Director

The key role of an Independent Director is to provide
an unbiased, varied and experienced perspective to the
Board. While evaluating the candidature of a Director,
the Committee abides by the criteria for determining
Independence as stipulated under the Act, Listing
Regulafions and other applicable regulations or guidelines,
as amended from time fo fime.

The Committes takes a broad perspective with respect to
Independence and takes into consideration not only the
dealings, transactions, relationships with the concerned
Individual Director(s) but also with the relatives, and
affilated entities and organizations.

The Committee, along with the Board, regularly reviews
the skill and, charactenstics required from the Board &

Individual Directors. One of the prime objectives of this
axercise is to idenfify competency gaps in the Board and
make suifable recommendations. The objectiveis fo have a
Board of diverse background and expenence in business,
technology, governance and areas that are relevant for
the Company.

Besides considering all other qualifications w.r.t fo talent,
relevant professional experience, proven track record
of performance and achievement, ethics and integrity,
ability to bring in fresh and independent perspectivas,
the Committee objechively evaluates whether an individual
can dispassionately discharge the statutory funchions of a
Director as enshrined in the Act and Listing Regulations.

Board Diversity

The Board shall consist of such number of Directors
including at least one [Independent] Woman Directorasis
necessary to effeciively manage the Company of the size of
Music Broadcast Limited. The Board shall have an optimum
combination of the Directors.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee will lead the
process for Board appointments. All Board appointments
will be based on mentocracy in the context of the skills,
experience, independence and knowledge which the
Board as a whole requires to be effective. The candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Company believes that increased diversity in Board is
associated with better financial performance, greater
innovation and has a positive impact on the Company.

Letters of Appointment

Each Director including Executive Directors (if any),
Independent Directors and the KMPs, SMP are required
to sign the letter of appointment with the Company
containing the terms of appointment and the role assigned
in the Company.

The term/ffenure of the Directors shall be in accordance
with the applicable laws.

Remuneration of Directors, EMPs and

SMPs

The Committee will determine individual remuneration

packages for Directors and lay down criteria for deciding

upon the remuneration of KMPs and $MPs of the Company

taking into account factors it deems relevant, including but

not imited to market, business performance and pracfices

in comparable companies, having due regard to financial

and commercial health of the Company as well as prevailing

laws and governmentfother guidelines. The core factors

taken into considerafion are:

. Industry practice and benchmarks.

. Long-term value creafion.

. Reward achievement of results on the basis of prudent
practice, responsibility and risk taking abilities.

. Atfract and refain and mofivate the best professionals.

. Reward the experience and professional frack record.
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Ensure equity within the Group and competitivenass
outside it.
Ensure fransparency in its remuneration policy.

For Executive Directors (Managing Director
and Whole time Directors)

Section 197(1) of the Act, provides for the total
managerial remuneration payable by the Company
to its directors, including managing director and
whole fime director, and its manager in respect of
any financial year shall not exceed eleven percent of
the net profits of the Company for that financial year
computed in the manner laid down in Section 178 of
the Act,

The Company with the approval of the Shareholders
by way of special resolution may authorise the
payment of remuneration exceading eleven percent
of the net profits of the company, subject to the
provisions of Schedule V.

The Company may with the approval of the
shareholders by way of spedal resolution authorise
the payment of remuneration upto five percent of the
net profits of the Company o ifs anyone Managing
Director/Whole Time Director/Manager and fen
percent in case of more than one such officer.

The fees or compensation payable to Executive
Directors who are promoters or members of the
promaoter group, shall be subject to the approval
of the shareholders by special resolufion in general
meeting, if

. the annual remuneration payable to such
executive director exceeds rupees 5 crore or
2.5 per cent of the net profits of the Company,
whichewver is higher; or

ii. where there is more than one such director,
the aggregate annual remuneration fo such
directors exceeds 5 per cent of the net profits
of the Company:

Provided that the approval of the shareholders under
this provision shall be valid only fill the expiry of the
term of such director.

For Non-Executive Directors

. The Company may pay remuneration to ifs
directors, other than Managing Director and
Whole Time Director upto one percent of
the net profits of the Company, if there is a
Managing Director or Whaole Time Director or
Manager and three percent of the net profits
in any other case. Section 197(5) of the Act
provides for remuneration by way of a fee to a
director for attending meetings of the Board of
Directors and Committee meetings or for any
other purpose as may be decided by the Board.

|E|Il—0 Statutory Reperts }—i|l1

. The Independent Directors shall not be
entitled to any stock option and may receive
remuneration by way of fee for attending
meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or
for any other purpose as may be decided by the
Board and profit related commission as may be
approved by the members.

. The sitting fee to the Independent Directors
shall not be less than the sithing fee payable to
other directors.

. The approval of shareholders by special
resolution shall be obtained every year, in which
the annual remuneration payable to a single
Mon-Executive Director exceeds fifty per cent
of the total annual remuneration payable fo all
Mon-Executive Directors, giving details of the
remuneration thereof.

General

-

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be as
per the Company's policy and shall be valued as per
the Income Tax Rules.

The remuneration payable fo Directors shall be
subject to the approval of Shareholders, if required,
as per the provisions of applicable laws.

The net profits for the purpose of the above
remuneration shall be computed in the manner
referred fo in Section 198 of the Act.

The Company may opt for Directors including
Independent Diractors & Officers Liability Insurance,
in accordance with the Policy.

Where any insuranceis taken by the Company onbehalf
of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secrefary and
any other employees for indemnifying them against
any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall
not be freated as part of the remuneration payable
to any such personnel. Provided that if such person
is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such
insurance shall be freated as part of the remuneration.

For EMPs and SMP=s

-

The remuneration payable to the KMPs and the SMPs
shall be as per the criteria decided by the Commitiee
having regard to their experience, leadership abilities,
initiative taking abilities and knowledge base.

The remuneration in whatever form, payable to SMPs
will be recommended fo board by the Committee.

For other employees

"

The policy for determination of the remuneration
of amployees other than Directors, KMPs and SMPs
shall be as per the normal HR process followed by
the Company.
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Evaluation/ Assessment of Board of
Directors / Committee of the Board

The Committee shall undertake a formal and rigorous
annual evaluation of the Board, induding s Committees
and Individual Directors. The evaluation of performance of
the Board shall be independent and objective and should
take info account the overall impact of their functioning
on the Company and its Stakeholders. Besides the
performance evaluation of Individual Directors, evaluation
of the performance of the committees and the Board as a
whole is also required o be conducted. The performance
evaluation shall be undertaken on yearly basis, the schedule
of which may be laid down by the Committee.

#*  Perfermance Review of the Directors:

The MRC is required to establish mechanism for

Performance Evaluation & Assessment of the Directors

including the Independent Diractors. The evaluation/

assessment of the Directors of the Company is to

be conducted on an annual basis to cater to the

requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations. Tha

following criteria’s may assist in defermining how

effactive the performances of the Directors have

been:

. Leadership GQualities confributing to corporate
objectives & plans

. Communication of expectations & concerns
clearly with colleagues

. Obtain adequate, relevant & fimely information
from external sources

. Review & approval achievement of strategic and
operational plans, objectives, budgets

. Regular monitaring of corporate results against
projections

. |dentify, monitor & mifigate significant corporate
risks

. Assess policies, structures & procedures

. Effective meefings

. Assuring appropriate board size, compaosition,
independence, structura

. Clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of
committecs

. Review of organization's ethical conduct

The Committee shall finalize a series of assessment
quesfionnaire to enable such evaluation being
conducted. Once the assessment is completed,
the Committee shall evaluate such assessments.
The Company may engage external consultants /
agencies to provide assistance in the evaluation
process. Further, the Committee needs to review
the implementation and compliance of evaluation
process,

#*  Performance Review by Independent Directors:

In accordance with the mandate given under the
Act & Listing Regulations, Independent Directors

will hold at least one separate meeting without
the attendance of non-independent directors and
members of management.

The meeting shall:

(@ review the performance of non-independent
directors and the Board as a whaole;

(b)

review the performance of the Chairperson
of the Company, faking info account the views
of Executive Directors and MNon-Executive
Diractars;

(c) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of
flow of information between the company
management and the Board that is necessary for
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their dufies.

¥  Performance Evaluation of The Committees:
Performance Evaluation of the respective Commitiees
shall be done by the Board. The performance
evaluation shall be undertaken on annual basis,
the schedule of which may be laid down by the
Committee.

12. Succession Planning

13.

The Company recognizes the need of a formal, proactive
process which can assistin building a leadership pipelines/
talent pool to ensure continuity of leadership for all critical
posifions. Succession planning process involves assessment
of challenges and opportunities facing the company, and
an evaluation of skills and expertise that would be required
in future.

The NRC will work with the Board to develop plans and
processes for orderly succession to the Board and SMP.
The Committee shall endeavor to develop a diverse pool
of candidates who may be considered to fill the gap in
Board positions or SMP in case of any eventuality. The
Committee would ensure that the Company is prepared for
changes in 5MP. either planned or unplanned. Succession
Planning Process would cover identification of internal
candidates, development plans for internal candidates,
and idenfification of external candidates. The Committec
would also assist in formulafing an emergency succession
contingency plan for unforeseen events like death,
disability etc. The Board will periodically monitor and
review the succession planning process.

Review of the policy

This Policy shall be reviewed by the NRC to ensure that it
meet the requirements and and the committea shall make
recommendations to the Board on required amendments
as and when necessary. The policy shall be placed on the
website of the company.
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ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

1. Brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company:
The Company is dedicated to conduct its operations with a strong sense of social responsibility, ethics and environmental
consciousness. We are committed to consistently enhancing the well-being of the communities where we operate, striving
to improve their quality of life.

A brief outline of the Company's C5R policy, including overview of projects or programmes undertaken/proposed to be
undertaken and a reference web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes is provided in this Annual Report on C5R.

CSR forms an integral part of its activities undertaken by Music Broadcast Limited ("MBL" or “the Company”). The Company is
committed to conduct its business in a socially responsible, ethical and in an envirenment friendly manner and to continuously
work towards improving quality of life of the communities in its operational areas.

Our focus areas of CSR activities is education and healthcare especially for visually impaired, support to under privileged
student at Orphanage. This is reflected in the Company's core purpose of innovatively using its resources to drive positive
change in the lives of our stakeholdars and communities in the areas that it works in. The Company has framed a C5R Policy in
compliance with the provisions of the Act and the same is placed on the Company's website at www.radiocity.in

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Number of meetings

Nk Designation / Nature of e s of CSR Committee

No, NameofDirector  py, . torship S attended during the
during the year

1 | Mr Shailesh Gupta Chairperson/ Non-Executive Director 2 2

2 | Mr. Rahul Gupta | Member / Mon-Executive Direcior 2 2

3 Mr. Anuj Puri Member / Independent Director 2 ?

(For further details on the meeting of the C5R Committes, plaase refer to the Report an Corporate Governance, which forms part of the
Annual Report)

3. Provide web-links where composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CGSR Projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

https.www.radiocity.in/disclosure-under-regulation-4&-sebi-lodr-regulations

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

Mot Applicable

5. a. Average net profit of the Company a= per section 135(5) - % (16.54] lakhs
b. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) — Nil

c. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years - Nil

d. Amountrequired to be set off for the financial year, if any - Mil

e. Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-{d)] — Mil

6. a. Amountspent on C5R Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) : ¥ 1 Lakh'
b. Amountspent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
c. Amountspent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+({c)]: ? 1 Lakh*
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e. CSRamount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount | Amount Unspent {in ¥
spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year | Unspent CSR Accountas persub | Schedule VII as per second provizo to sub-section
(in ) section (6) of section 136 (B) of section 135

Amount Date of transfer | Name of the Fund | Amount Date of transfer
1 lakh* | N.A. Nﬁ. :N.i!L :NA. | NLA

f. Excess amount for set off, if any: Not applicable

{% in Lakhs)
S5l
No. Particular Amount
i} | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sechon 135(5) (16.54)
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year I
(i) | Excess amount spent for the fimancial year [{1i)-(]] I
(i) | Surplus arising out of the C5R projects or programmes or activifies of the previous financial years, Mil

if any

(v] | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{in)-{iv)] 1

‘The Company was not mandatorily reguired 1o spend any amount under CSR though voluntarily it has made The expendiure of
¥ 100,000 in the financial year 2023-24

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Emount Balance Amount transferred toany
transferred amount in - fund specified under Schedule Amount
Preceding spent in the remaining to
8l. | pinancial | te Unspent unspent rep ¥II as per second proviso to I in
No. CS5R Account | CSR account g section 135{5}: ifany 3
Year i tH 1 Financial |- succeeding
i R Year (In ¥) DRAsE OF Dateof | g5 ncial years
136 (6) (in ) {(in T) the Fund .[1:1 z] transfer L

Mot Applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

0= A~

IfYas, enterthe number of Capital assets created/acquired Mot Applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Sr. Short particulars of the property or | Pincode of Date of El.mnnnt of |Details of entity/ Authority/
No aszet(s)[including complete address | the property tion CiR amount | hbeneficlary of the reqistered
and location of the property] or asset(s) spent OWNET
L 2 3 4 B ]
C5R
Registered
Registration
Niiiber. if Name | address
applicable

Mot Applicable

9. Specify the reaszon(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
sub-zection (5) of section 135: Mot Applicable

For and on behalf of Music Broadcast Limited

Vijay Tandon Shailesh Gupta
Chairman Chairman of C5R Committee
Date: May 22, 2024 DiIM: 00154305 DiIN: 00192466
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ANNEXURE IIIl TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Business Responsibility & Sustainability Report

In recent years, there has been a significant rise in investor and stakeholder interest towards companies that priontize Environmenial,
Soaal and Governance (ESG) practices. This frend has gained substantial momentum not only globally but also within India. Investors
and stakeholders woridwide are increasingly drawn to companies that demonstrate a commitment fo sustainability and corporate
responsibility.

ESG investing has emerged as a prominent strategy, reflecting a broader shift fowards pricritizing factors beyond financial refurns.
This approach considers a company's environmental impact, social responsibility and governance practices alongside tradifional
financial metrics. In India, this trend is evident as investors seek opportunities that align with their values and confribute to long-
term sustainable growth.

Secunties and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has faken significant steps to promote responsible business conduct and sustainability
reporiing among listed companies through the implementation of the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (BRSR)
framework. This framework mandates listed companies to disclose information aligned with the nine principles outlined in the
Mational Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct.

Under the BRSE framework, listed companies are required fo provide comprehensive disclosures on various aspects of their
operations, including environmental performance, social impact, governance practices, and efforts towards sustainable
development. By adherning to these guidelines, companies are encouraged to integrate sustainability considerations into their
core business strategies and operations.

The BRSR framework serves as a crucial tool for investors and stakeholders to assess companies' ESG performance and make
informed investment decsions aligned with their values and objectives. Moreowver, it facilitates dialogue and engagement between
companies, investors, and other stakeholders, ultimately contributing to the advancement of sustainable development goals in
India.

Music Broadcast Limited (MBL) stands committed to upholding ESG principles as fundamental pillars alongside financial and
operational performance. Positioned as a significant private radio player within the Media & Enterfainment Industry, MBL recognizes
the pivotal role that digital platforms play in shaping content creation, distribution, consumpfion and engagement strategies in
today's evolving media landscape.

In acknowledging the transformative influence of digital technologies on the media sector, MBL remains steadfast in leveraging
these advancemenis while ensunng it fulfills its ESG responsibilities. This commitment underscores MBLs proactive efforts to embed
sustainability considerations into its core business practices and operations.

As MBL embraces digital innovafions fo opfimize confent delivery and enhance audience engagement, it maintains a keen awareness
of the broader implications for environmental sustainability, social impact, and corporate governance. By aligning ifs strategies with
E5G principles, MBL aims fo not only drive financial performance but also actively contribute to sodetal well-being.

By priontizing sustainability and responsible business practices, MBL secks to foster long-term value creation for its stakeholders
and make a positive contribufion fo the wider community.
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Section A: General Disclosures

Details of the listed entity

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the L&4200MH1999PLCTI3T729
Company

2. Name of the Listed Entity Music Broadcast Limited ("MBL")

3. | Year of incorporation 1999

4. Registered Office Address 5" Floor, RMA Corporate Park, Off. Western Express Highway,

| Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051
5. Corporate address 5™ Floor, RMA Corporate Park, Off. Western Express Highway,
Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

6. | E-mail investor@myradiocity.com; cs@myradiocity.com

7. Telephone 022-66969100

8. | Webs=ite wwwiradiocity.in

9. Financial year for which reporting is being April 1, 2023 - March 31, 2024

10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE”)
are listed BSE Limited ("BSE")

11.  Paid-up Equity Capital $6913,71,250

12. Name and Contact Details (telephone, email address) of the person who may be contacted in case of any
queries on the BRSR report
Name of the Person Ms. Arpita Kapoor,

Company Secretary and Comphance Officer
Telephone Number 022-66969100
. E-mail address csimyradiocity.com
13. Beporting boundary The disclosures made under this report are on standalone basis

u Name of assurance provider: Not Applicable
* Type of assurance obtained: Not Applicable

14. Details of business activities: (accounting for 30% of the turnover)

% of

Sr. Description of the
nu.; in activity . Description of business activity ttrt;f
1. : Private FM radio Broadcasfing content 290.83
| broadcasting |
15. Products/ Services sold by the entity: (sccounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover)
Sn:; : Product/Service NIC Code #: of total Turnover contributed
1. |Private FM radio broadcasting 60100 0083

16. Number of locations where plants and//or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants [ Number of offices i Total
Mational MA Studios at 28 cities and Satellite | ELh

| _ Stations at 11 cities |
International NA - | -

* For further details, refer to the Report on Corporate Governance, forming part of the Annual Report
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17. Markets served by the Entity

a. MNumber of locations:

Locations | Number
Mational (Number of States) 13
Internafional (Number of Countries) 0

b. What is the confribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?

MBL is a service-based Company, which provides radio broadcasting services to listeners across India. Owing to
the nature of business, export of services is 0.31% of the total turnover of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2024,

c. Abrief on types of customers
With 39 radio stations across India, MBL engages with a wide spectrum of customers, which include listeners, mulfiple
advertisement agencies, media partners, other broadcasting agencies, government & non-government organizations,
retail chains, etc.

Employees

18. Details as at the end of financial year:

a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

r— =] e =

(&) No.(B) % (B/EA)| No.(C) %(C/H)
EMPLOYEES

1. |Permanent (D} 479 are 79% 100 21%

2. | Otherthan Permanent (E) 190 129 68% 61 32%

3. Total employees (D +E) 569 508 78% 161 24%

WOREKERS

4. | Permanent iF |

5. Orther than Permanent (G) Mot Applicable

6.  Total workers (F + G)

b. Differently abled employees and workers:

A Mal Femal
S5 Particulars Total (&) = ‘ =

‘No.(B) %(B/E) No.(C) %(C/BE)
Differently Abled Employees

1 Permanent (O}
2. Other than Permanent (E) MIL
i, | Total differently abled employees (D + E) [

Differently Abled Workers
4. | Permanent iF)
5. Other than Permanent (G) Mot Applicable
6. Total differently abled workers (F + G) i

19. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women:

Number and percentage of
Total (A) Females
No.(B) = %(B/H)
Board of Diractars 7 1 ' 14%
Key Management Personnel (KMP)* 3 1 [ 33%
*EMP includes Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary as defined under Section 203 (1) of the Companies

Act, 2013

91



Radio City
L TRTITLAT HITRITT

Radic's Digital Renaissance 9

20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers (Disclose trends for the past 5 years)

FY 2023-24

ii‘a]ei Total
Permanent Employees ‘ 21%‘ 23% 2% | 28% | 43% | 31% 349 11% 29%
Permanent Workers

Holding, Subsidiary and A=z=zociate Companies (inclnding joint ventures)

21. Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

Does the entlty indicated at
g, Nameoftheholding el WA | %otahares column &, l:g-zﬂc:lpate in
m;h { associate companies / joint !ﬂj‘ng‘ IE wnh Ell mnﬂmt y held by listed the Buziness Responsibility
ventures (A) Vent entity initlatives of the listed entity?
: | {Yes/No)*
1 | Jagran Prakashan limited | Helding | 7405% | Mo
C3R Details

22. (i) Whether C3R is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 20013%: Yoz
(ii) Turmowver: ¥ 2285285 Lakhs
(iii) Net worth: ¥ 5314840 Lakhs

*For further details on CSR activities, refer the Board's Report, forming part of this Annual Report.

Transparency and Dizclosnres Compliances

23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines
on Rezponsible Business Conduct:

FY (2023-24)

Stakeholder  Grievance Redressal | | Mumber of |

group from Mechanism in Place |umtadesd complaints |

whomn (Yes/No) (If yes, then pending - i

complaint is provide web-link for resolution | oioar

recelved grievance redress policy)

Communities | Yes, MBL has a comprehensive Mo MIL MA Mo MIL MA
C5R policy focusing on| complaints complaints
community wellbeing| filed during filed during
and development. MBL|ihe reporing the reporting
CS5R inifiatives encompass yaar year

education, healthcare,
environmental sustainability
and soCio-economic
development, aiming fo
create a positive impact on
communities while promoting
responsible corporate
citizenship.

Policies can be accessed on
the website of the Company

a7 T
investors/policies-code-of-
conduct
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FY (2023-24)

Stakeholder Grievance Redreszal b

groupfrom  Mechanismin Place  |ummiiniv z;mpla;::

whom (Yes/No) (Hyes. then ok S ol SRS,

complaintis  provide web linkfor filed . o | Remarks
resolution

received grievance redress policy) at close of

Shareholders | Yes, MBL s  dedicated | For details on investor complaints received and resolved, refer to the ‘Investor
PRI 1o prompithy addressing complaints’ available in the corporate governance report of this Annual Report
shareholders” grievances and
gﬁ;h;::jzm commespondences,  fadlitated
by a robust grievance redressal
mechanism. Shareholders
have the opfion to register
complaints, grievamces, of
concerns  directlty  with  the
company of through its registrar
and share fransfer agent. This
ensures  efficent  handling
of shareholder issues and
reinforces MBL's commitrneant to
transparency and stakeholder
satisfaction. A dedicated
policy  hnps:i'www.radiociry,
in/investors/policies-code-
of-conduct is available fo all
the shareholders o share their

grievances / complaints.
Employee & Yes, MBL implements a POSH Mo HIL HA Mo MIL HA
Workers Policy and a Whistleblower | complaints complaints

Policy to address employee | filed during filed during

grievances.  Additionally, it | the reporting the reporting

has a dedicated BRSR policy yaar year

aligned with NGRBC guidelines |
for human rights practices
and employee welfare. These
policies  underscore  MBL's
commitment to  cofporate
governance, employee well-
being and ethical business
practices. The Business
Responsibility and Sustainability
(BRSR} policy is accessible on
the website of the Company
at  hipsdwweradiodny.in/ |
investors/policies-code-of-

Customers MBL operates with an open- Ho HIL M4 Ho NIL NA
door policy, welcoming direct| complaints complaints
communication from customers | filed during filed during
to address any concems or | the reporting the reporting
provide feedback regarding year year

service qQuality. This approach
allows customers fo engage
directly with company officials,
fadlitating prompt resolution
of Bsues and continuous
improvement of  senvice
standards. By  encouraging
direct imferaction with
customers, MBL demonstrates
its commitment 1o delivering
axcephicnal service and
onsUring customear satisfaction.
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Grievance Redrez=zal
Mechani=zm in Place
provide web-link for
grievance redress policy)

MEL has in place a dedicated
Supplier Code of Conduct
and BRSR policy accessible on
the website of the Company
at hips S www. radiocity.in/
investors/policies-code-of-
comduct) to address supplier
grievances effectively. These
policies sarve as platforms for
ensuring ethical conduct, fair

reatment, and fransparency
in MELs inferactions with
supipliers.

FY (2023-24)
b T Number of
complaints
complaints A
filed pendity | pemarks
during the resolution
at close of
v the year
Mo MIL MA Mo MIL MHA
complaints complaints
filed during filed during
the reporting the reporting
year year

Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues perfaining fo environmental and social matters
that present a nsk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or mitigate the
risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format:

Indicate | Financial implications
sr. | Distexial Whether Ratflonale Ior ,  Incaseofrisk,approach of the risk or opportunity
No. Identified Risk or ijentitying to adapt or mitigate (Indicate positive or

Opportunity Opprortumity . negative implications)

L Human  Capital Risk & | Risk: The Company's success | - Implementation  of | Risk: Any failurein the Operational
{Employee Opporunity | hinges on the ongeing! comprehensiveemployee-| Health & Safety management
engagement) fdedicaﬁon. skills and! friendly policies and|system may cause loss in man-
and wellbaing, | expertise of its employeas, | procedures, including|days and impact productivity
diversity and | posing ariskin recruiting and | fraining sessions on|of operations. Further, it has an
inclusion, | retaining falented individuals |  human rights awareness, | intangible effect on demoralizing
occupational | amidst evolving market! employee engagement| employess.
health and safety, fdemands and competition, | initiatives and adherence
training and |potentially incurring| tostatutory regulations. | Opporfunify: Strengthening
education) | substantial costs or delays. the employee relationship and

| - Establishment of a robust | abiding by human rights can result
| Opportunity: Recognizing| occupational health and |in enhanced productivity and
human resources as a pivotal,  safety management| lower afirition rate.
|asset, the organization, system aimed at mitigating
|proactively invests in! potential risks.
| providing both fangible
{and intangible benefits| - Implementarion of
{to employees, fostering a, ~mechanisms to prevent
| supportive work culture| workforce discrimination
land ensuring equitable and sexual harassment
|compensation linked to, while fostering a fair
| performance and appraisals. and inclusive working
environment for all the
| employeas.

FA Data Privacy and Risk | Rek:ifabusinessisresponsible | - Developed and enacted | REk: The erosion of trust from

Cyber Security |for privacy breaches and,  policies and procedures | customers and other stakeholders
i security  incidents, i may, aimed at promptly|resulfing from reporfed incidents
|incur repufational damage| identifying and reporting | of privacy or security breaches can
'an-d fimancial penalties in|  privacy breaches to the | resuft in finandcial penalties.
| accordance with relevant laws | impacted individuals within 3
| - . R Opportunity: Reduce cyber security
| and regulations. designated timelines. e R s A Tk

stakeholders by  implemeanting
advanced cyber security soluficns.
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Indicate Financial implications

P b Whetir | . SMURASE S mmseofm,appmchl of the risk or opportunity

No. Tdentified Risk or | ul:llj!nlg ity to adapt or mitigate {Indicate positive or

Opportunity negative implications)

3 Business Ethics, Risk & Risk: The ocourrence of | Clearly arficulated Code  Risk:  Exposure  to penalfies
Governance and | Opportunity | unethical  practices  and [of Conduct and  policies | resulting from non-compliance with
Transparency behavior cam  negafively | applicable to both internal | applicable laws and regulations

impact the brand’s image. and external stakeholders. aligned with ethical business
Opporiunity: Cuitivating OIS,

a culture of integrity and Opportunity: Embracing ethical
fransparency not only aligns practices and robust governance
with fulfilling cbligations but fosters enduring relafionships and
akko enhances  stakeholder Trust with stakeholders.
relationships.

4. |Risk Risk & | Risk: The risk of business| - Adequate Business Risk: Reputational harmm  and
Management Opportunity | decline due fo insufficient| Confinuity Strategy. finandal repercussions resulfing in

or  dysfunctional  infemnal

Customer attition.

processes, SYStams, or| - Comprehensive Enferprise |

personnel, as well as external
CCCUITanCes,

Cpportunlty: Implementing
robust  risk  management
processes  facilitates the
identification of both risks
and opporfunities  linked
fo essential aspects of the
business,

Risk Management
Struchure.

Opportunity: Implementing
riek  mitigation strategies can
drive business expansion and
consequently  improwe  financial
results.

Section B: Management and Process Disclosures

The Mational Guidelines for Responsible Business Conduct (WGRBC) as prescnibed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs advocates
nine principles referred as P1-P? as given below:

Pl
Businesses should conduct and
govern themselves with integrity in

P2

and services in a manner that is

Busingsses should provide goods

P3
Businesses should respect and
promote the well-being of all

a manner that is ethical, transparent, sustainable and safe employees, including those in their
and accountable value chains
P4 P5 P&
Businesses should respect the Businesses should respect and Businesses should respect, protect
interests of and be responsive promaote human rights and make efforts to restore the
towards all its stakeholders environment
P7 P& P
Businesses when engaging in Businesses should promote Businesses should engage with and
influencing public and regulatory inclusive growth and equitable provide value to their consumers in
policy, should do so in a manner development a responsible manner
that is responsible and transparent
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Disclosure Questions /P11 P2 P3 P4 P55 P65  PZI P8 P9
Policy and Management Processes
1. a. Whether your enfity's policy/policies cover each Yos | Yes | Yes Yes Yos | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
principle and its core elements of the NGRECs. (Yes/
No)

b. Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/Mo) _ Yes | Yes | Yes Yes Yes | Yes Yas Yes | Yes
¢. Web Link of the Policies, if available _ hitps: .-El’www.ladh}cilv.in.-‘_ in‘».resh:r_rs;r pc:lic_ies

2. Whether the entity has translated the policy into Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes
procedures. (Yes / No) _ _ | | | _ : _ |

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain Yes | Yes | Yes Yes | Yes | Yos | Yes | Yes | Yes
partners? (Yes/Mao) _ [ [

4. Name of the national and international codes/ MBL has adopted 150 9001:2015 to provide Safe & Healthy work
certifications/labels/ standards (e.g., Forest Stewardship infrastructurae.
Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trusted) standards
(e.g.. SA 8000, OHSAS, 150, BIS) adopted by your entity
and mapped fo each principle.

5. Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the enfity MIL
with defined fimelines, ifany. _ |

&. Performance of the entity against the specific NIL

commitments, goals, and targets along-with reasons in
case the same are not met.

Governance, leadership, and oversight

1.

96

Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG related
challenges, targets, and achievements

Dear Stakeholders,

At Music Broadcast Limited, we are proud to present our Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR). Our primary
goal is fo elevate our business performance while fostering sustainable and inclusive growth for all stakeholders. We have
intensified our sustainability efforts and prioritized Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) parameters, integrating
them info our day-to-day business practices. This includes adherning to guiding pelicies outlined in the National Guideline of
Responsible Business Conduct (NGRBC) guidelines set by SEBI.

Moreover, we have conducted thorough stakeholder engagement exercises to identify key ESG material issues affecting our
business. Our commitment is fo adopt best practices tailored fo these identified material issues and implement appropriate
mitigatory actions fo address any negative impacts of our operations. At Music Broadcast, we are dedicated to upholding
athical and responsible business conduct, fostering employee engagement, promoting confinuous leaming and development,
priontizing inclusivity and well-being, and confributing fo the overall development of the envircnment and communities at
large.

Details of the highest authority responsible for implementation and oversight of the Business
Responsibility policy (ies).
Mr. Shailesh Gupta, Mon-Executive Director (DIN: 00192466)

Does the entity have a specified Committee of the Board/ Director responsible for decision making
on sustainability related issnes? (Yes / No). If yes, provide details.

Yes, the Board has entrusted Mr. Shailesh Gupta, the Non-Execufive Director of the Company fo oversee the sustainability
initiatives at MBL.
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10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

| Indicate whether review was

! Frequency
|nnﬂ&rtﬂkenhf1‘ﬂ.rectur / Committee (Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/
. of the Board/ Any other Committee Any other — please specify)
'P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 PT P38 P9 Pl P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 PT P3 P8
Performance against above policies | The Company is dedicated to upholding the highest ethical standards throughout
and follow up action its business operations. This commitment is demonstrated through strict adherence
to its Code of Conduct, Whistle blower Policy, Fair Disclosure Policy for Unpublished
Price Sensifive Information, Policy on Related Party Transactions, Policy on Archival
of Material Infarmation Disclosure to Stock Exchanges and Policy against Sexual
| I_-!ar_ass_rl_'i_en’r_at the Wﬂr_kplace._ -

Subject for Review

Compliance with stafutory MEBL priorifizes compliance with statutory laws and regulations by integrating an
requiremants of relevance to the Electronic Tool, Lexplosion to monitor and track performance against policies and
principles and rectificafion of any applicable laws, overseen by respective department heads. The tool undergoes

nen-compliances regular updates to reflect any amendments or medifications in relevant laws,

bolstering compliance across all levels under the supervision of the Compliance
Officer.

Additionally, in accordance with Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the infermnal
Auditors conduct regular reviews of the Company's functions and activities. They
share their observations with the Audit Committee of the Board on a quarterly basis.

11. Has the entity carried out independent azsessment/ evaluation of the working of its policies by an
external agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the agency.

PP | P2 | P3 P4 PS5 P66 PIT P8 P9
The Company conducts internal evaluations of its policies periodically, ensunng they are updated as needed. It maintains
its dedication to maintaining the highest standards of quality, service management, robust information secunty practices
and business confinuity management. These processes and compliances undergo scrutiny by internal auditors, secretarial
auditors and statutory auditors, as required by law.

12. If answer to gquestion (1) above is “No™ i.e., not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be
stated:

Questions P1 | P2 | P3 P4 PS5 P6 PI P8 P9
The entity does not consider the principles
material fo its business (Yes/MNo) B -
The entity is not at a stage where it is in a position
to formulate and implement the policies on
specified principles {Yes/No}

The entity does not have the financial or/human
and fechnical resources available for the task (Yes/
Mao)

It is planned to be done in the next financial year
(Yes/No)

Any other reason (please specify)

Mot applicable, as the policies of the Company comply with NGRBC
guidelines.
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SECTION C: Principle Wise Performance Disclosure

Setanie 1 manner that is Ethical, Transparent and Accountable

Eszential Indicators -

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity and in a

1. Percentage coverage by fraining and awareness programmes on any of the principles during the financial year:

Total number

% . s e Topics / principles covered under the training and its
Programmes Lo
held
Board of 1 MBL organised an orientation and familiarization program for
Directors its Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnels, covering
significant key regulatory changes in the corporate laws in India
covering the amendments in Listing Regulations, Companies Act,
2013 and SEB! consultation paper. The details of familiarization
program are uploaded at the website of the Company at

hitps:#'www.radiocity.in/investors/policies.

the Audit Committes to showcase latest legal updates.
Keay Managerial 1 POS5SH, Regulatory Updates
Personnel

Employees . 3 TinFY 21]2324 12 trafﬁing programimes were organ.i.zed. under the |

other than broad umbrella of Knowledge Konnect Programme. The sessions
BOD and KMPs were focused on building capability for the digital environment.
Some of the modules that were conducted were Video Edifing,
Digital and On Ground Amplification, Decoding the Digital Brief,

the Sales Team share about their winning pitch with their colleagues
in a 1 ¥ hour interactive peer to peer leaming session through
Knowlaedge Konnect. The mandays of training have moved up from
0.5 fo 1 manday per employee. Winning Presentafion, Excel with
M5 Excel and AWE Training programme were conceptualized by
the in-house trainers and HR.

Workers - -

The Statutory Auditors of the Company also conduct a session for [

Al Knowledge Training efc. Every month, the high performers of |

#Age of persons

in respective
category covered
by the awareness

programmes
100%

100%
100%

100%

2. Details of fines / penalties fpunishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in proceedings (by the entity
or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institufions, in the financial year. (Note: the enfity
shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on entify's website):
Monetary

NGRBC | Name of the Requlatory/ ' Hasan
Principle @ Enforcement agencies/ ‘ 51‘[11:;;“ ‘ Briefofthe "= preferred?
_ Judicial institution i (Yes / No)
Peraity/ Fine | NA | NA [ oNa | N NA
Settlement | NA | NA ! NA | NA NA
Compounding Fee MA | NA | NA | MA NA
S S Non-Monetary : :
NGREC  Name of the Regulatory/ A t Brief of the Has an appeal been
Principle Enforcement agencies/ (In?) Casi preferred?
_  Judicial institution (Yes / No)
Imprisonment | MNA . NA NA | MNA MNA
Punishment MNA NA NA NA MNA

3.  Of the instances disclosed in above Question, details of the Appeal/ Revision  Case Details = Name of the regulatory/
preferred in cases where monetary or non-monetary acfion has been appealed enforcement agencies/
| Judicial institutions
Mot Applicable
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4. Does the entity have an anfi-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available, provide a web-
link to the policy:
MBL is steadfast in maintfaining business practices that align with the highest standards of corporate ethics and compliance
with all applicable statutes, rules and regulations. The Company is committed fo fostering a robust corporate governance
framewaork, which not only promotes value creation but also establishes accountability and control systems proporficnate to
the associated risks. Our Code of Conduct encompasses ethical business practices, anti-corruption and anti-bribery measures,
ensuring adherence to laws across all jurisdictions where we operate. The Policy is available on the website of Company at
hitps./fwww.radiocity.in/investors/policies-cod e-of-conduct

5. Wumber of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law enforcement agency
for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

Directors
KMPs
Employses

Wﬂrk@rs

Nil Mil

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY 2023-24

Nil il

MNumber of complaints received in relafion to issues of Conflict of
Interest of the Directors.

MNumber of complaints received in relation to issues of Conflict of
Interest of the KMPs

1.  Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action taken by regulators/
law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest.
Mot Applicable.

B. Mumber of days of accounts payables ([(Accounts payable *365) / Cost of goods / services procured) in the following format:

FY 2023-24

Number of days of accounts payables 42 | a7

2. Open-ness of business:
Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with frading houses, dealers, and related parfies along-with loans and
advances & investments, with related parties, in the following format:

Parameters Metrics FY 2023-24

Concentration of | a. Purchases from trading houses as % of fofal NA NA
Purchases purchases
| b. Number of trading houses where purchases are NA NA
made from
| €. Purchases from top 10 trading houses as % of total NA NA
purchases from trading houses
Concentrafion of | a Sales fo dealers / distributors as % of total sales NA MNA
Sales | b. Number of dealers / distnbutors to whom sales NA NA
| ey macky
| €. Sales to top 10 dealers / disinbutors as % of total NA NA
_ sales to dealers / distributors
Share of RPTsin | a. Purchases (Purchases with related parties / Total NA NA
| Purchases |
_I:igales {S.a_ies to rela_ted parﬁgs__{' Total Sales) | 0.73% 0.97%
| . Loans & advances (Loans & advances given to NA NA
_ related parfies / Total loans & advances)
d. Investments {Investments in related parfies / Total NA NA
Investments made)
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and safe

ot Businesses shonld provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable
Principle 2

Es=zential indicators

1

2a.

2b.

Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure [capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the environmental and
social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

FY 2023-24
(7 In Lakhs)

R&D e - -

Capex 41.82 - We have installed D{G sets at various
locations which are compliant with latest
CPCB IV+ standard of Central Pollution
Control Board. These DG sets have
improved pollutant control and efficient
fuel combustion. This contributes to
lower greenhouse gas emissions,
improving air quality aligning with
global efforts to combat climate change
and supporhing sustainability.

Does the enfity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing?

As MBL engages in radio broadcast service, its dependency on sourcing matenal is negligible. However, it strives to align
its procurement practices to the principles of sustainable sourcing to the extent possible. Central to this commitment is
MEL's vision to promote and foster local vendors situated near its offices, thereby mitigating its environmental footprint and
contributing positively fo society.

If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?
Mot Applicable

Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling, and disposing at the end of life, for
the produced products:

As MBL is a service-based Company, recycling or reusing of products is not applicable. However, the company has procedure
in place to dispose off e-waste.

Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the enfity's activities (Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste
collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Contfrol Boards? If not,
provide steps taken fo address the same:

Owang to the nature of business, Extended Producer Responsibility is not applicable to the company.

Bnmnes&es should respect and promote the well-being of all employees,

including those in their value chains

E=s=zential indicators

1L

100

Measures underfaken for Employee Wellbeing:

a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:
MBL conducts wellness league that focuses on promoting physical and mental wellbeing of all employees. One of the
successful engagement activity across pan India which witnessed more than 180 parficipants including family members
for 30 days. A total of 33,000 kms was covered in Season 2 as compared to 22,000 kms in S5eason 1. The entire activity
was conducted for 4 weeks, incorporated 7 teams, led by 7 Mentors. The teams were formed after a fun filled auction.

Furthermaore, the Company conducted Yoga session, Balanced Mutrition, Understanding Symptoms of Cancer and How
to address them workshops that helped individuals to enhance their physical, psychological and intellectual well-being.
Health Tips are shared with Employees to increase awarenass about healthy living.
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| % Of employees covered by
! HAccident Maternity Paternity Care
catogory oy "I incurance | bemedts | Benehts | faciliies
() Number % Number % Number % MUY o Ny 3
® @8 © c/BH @ @5 O ®n ©® E/5

Permanent employees

Male 379 | 379 [ w0 | 379 [ 00| o | o [ 37 [ 100 [ 379 [ 100

Female 00 | 100 | 100 100 | 100 | 100 | 100 | O 0 100 | 100

Total 479 479 | 100% 479 | 100% 100 | 21% | 379 | 79% 479 | 100%
Other than Permanent employees

Male | 120 120 | 200 | 129 | 100 | O 0 ‘ 129 ‘ 100 | 129 | 100

Female | 61 61 100 61 100 61 100 0 0 61 100

Total 190 190 |100% 150 | 100% @ &1 2% | 129 | &% | 190 | 100%

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:
Music Broadcast Limited tfake mulfiple initiatives for the well-being of its employees. The Company does not have any
workers.

c. Spendingon measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent and other than permanent)

in the following format:

Cost incurred on wellbeing measures as a % of fotal revenue of the | 0,610 0.78%
company = | :
*Health insurance expenditures perfaining o permanent employees and consultants of the Company are included.

2. Details of retirement benefits for FY 2023-24 and FY 2022-23:

FY 2023-24
o No.of | Deductedand
Benefits ;Imfa workers deposited
% oftotal covered aza with the
emuloveest | o of fotal anthority
it b workers | (¥/N/N.A.)
PE 1% 0 Y 68% 0 Y
Gratuity T1% 0 Y 68% 0 Y
ESI 0 0 MA 0 0 MA
Other (Please specify) 0 0 MA 0 0 MA

*Excludes neo, consulfants, free lancers whose salary does not indude Provident Fund

3.  Accessibility of workplaces:

Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees any workers, as per the requirements
of the Rights of Persons with Disakilities Act, 20167 If not, whether any steps are being taken by the enfity in this regard.

Yes, the premises/offices are accessible fo differently abled employees as per the requirement of Rights of Persons with
Disabilities Act, 2006

4. Does the enfity have an equal opporfunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2014? If so, provide a
web-link to the palicy:
MBL upholds a policy of providing equal employment opportunities, refraining from any form of discrimination based on
age, color, disability, mantal status, nationality, race, religion, sex, or sexual orientation. The company adheres to the Rights of
Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016, as proposed by the Government of India and maintains a zero-tolerance stance towards
workplace discimination.
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5. Refurn fo work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that fook parental leave:

Permanent employees | Permanent workers
Gendex  Returntoworkrate ~ Retentionrate  Returntoworkrate  Retention rate
Male 17 100
Female 0 0 ‘ Mot Applicable
Total 17 I

&, Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees and worker? If
yes, give details of the mechanism in brief:
The Company fosters an environment of open and fransparent communication, ensuring that all employees feel empowered
to address their concemns and grievances. Employees have the option fo raise their concerns directly with the Human Resource
Team or their immediate supervisors, inifiating discussions and necessary inferventions from senior management fo resolve
issues. Additionally, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle blower policy, approved by the Board, providing
a formal platform for reporting complaints and grievances. Furthermore, MBL has implemented a Prevention of Sexual
Harassment (POSH) Policy, enabling employees to approach the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) for redressal of amy
incidents of sexual harassment.

1.  Membership of employees and worker in asseciation(s) or Unions recognized by the listed entity:
MEL acknowledges and respects the right to freedom of association as prescribed by law. It's important to note that while

the company neither has a formal employee association/union nor have the employees formed any union.

8. Details of fraining given to employees and workers:

! FY 2023-24
Category Tg;“ ‘ On Health Safety A0 S
| No.B) | % (B/K) | No. (C) | % (C/A) |
~  Employees ,
Male | 4719 454 950k 243 | 51% | 496 461 930 234 47%
Femnale | 190 177 93%, 83 44% 139 123 88% 65 A7%
Total | 669 | 831 | 9% | 326 | 49% | &35 | 584 9% | 300 | 4T%
Workers
Male '
Female Mot Applicable
Total

2. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:
All employees of MBL undergo an annual perfermance appraisal process. The Company conducts pecople development
evaluation aligned with the Company’s objectives/ targets and basis the roles and responsibilities assigned to each of its
employee. Furthermore, Music Broadcast Limited has in place a well-defined succession planning process fo facilitate career
planning and development of high potential falent, mitigate risk arising from attrition and ensure business confinuity.

o FY 2023-24
tegory Total (&) No. (B) % (B/A)
Employee _
Male ' 479 ' 467 oT% 496 397 80%
Female 190 | 139 713% 139 78 1%
Total &9 | &8 91% | &35 495 78%
Workers
Male
Female Mot Applicable
Total
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10. Health and safety management system:

|E|I'—0 Statutory Reperts }—i|l1

a  Whether an occupational health and safety
management system has been implemented by
the entity? (Yes/ MNo). If yes, the coverage such
systemn?

b  What are the processes used fo identify work-

related hazards and assess risks on a roufine and
non-roufine basis by the entify?

Safety remains a top pronty for Music Broadcast Limited. The
Company operates with a steadfast commitment to safeguarding
its employees, contractors, customers and the commumities from
any risks or hazards resulfing from unsafe business practices. MBL
actively promotes a safety-first culture among its employees and
contractors, striving to achieve the goal of zero workplace injuries
and ilinesses. This includes implementing comprehensive fire
safety policies covering regulations on fire-fighting equipment,
emergency exts, fire drills and other safety measures for office
maintenance.

MBL is a service-based company and does not possess extensive
work-related risks or hazards.

¢ | Whether you have processes for workers to
report the work-related hazards and to remove
themselves from such risks. (Y/N)

Mot Applicabla

d Dn_!he employees/ worker of the enfity have.

access fo non-occupational medical and healthcare
services? (Yes/ Na)

Health Insurance provided by the Company. Additionally,
employees have the option to extend health coverage to declared

dependents.

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

12.

Safety Incident/Number
Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) (per cne

category  [RECE M0

million-person hours worked)

Total recordable work-related injuries

No. of fatalities

High consequence work-related injury or ill-
health (excluding fatalities)

Employees NIL NIL

Workers " MNotApplicable | NotApplicable
Employees NIL NIL

Workers Not Applicable |  NotApplicable
Employees NIL [ MIL

Workers Mot Applicable |  Not Applicable
Employees NIL [ NIL

Workers Not Applicable |  Not Applicable

Describe the measures taken by the enfity to ensure a safe and healthy workplace:

Music Broadcast Limited actively encourages employees to adopt a proactive stance towards maintaining good health and
well-being. The Company fosters awarenass among its workforce by advocating for work-life balance, sharing health tips
and highlighting the significance of basic home remedies. Additionally, MBL conducts different workshops and sessions
for employees and consultants by experts from medical fraternity. Mediclaim benefits are extended to employees and
consultants, including Radio Jockeys. In FY 2022, MBL introduced the Wellness League inifiative aimed at reducing stress and
enhancing the overall physical and mental well-being of its employees.

GPTW score has moved up by 2 basis points (from 87 in 2022-23 fo B9 in 2023-24), and we are in the fop 50 best companies
to work for. With more than 48% of our locations scoring 90 and abaove, this signifies the trust and pride our employees have
in the brand RC. 98% of our employees have termed the workplace to be safe in GFTW Survey.
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13. Mumber of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

Filed during | resolution

Remarks ‘

the year at the end of
year
Woerking Conditi
orking Condihons NIL . NIL )
Health & Safety 0 0

14. Assessments for the year:
% Of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory
authorities or third parties)
Health and safety practices

Mil
Working Condifions I

15, Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) and on significant risks
/ concems arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working conditions:
Mot Applicable.

Principle 4 Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its
stakeholders

E=s=zential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entfity:
MBL has established a robust process to identify and regularly engage with its key internal and external stakeholders, aiming to
comprehend their expectations and concemns effectively. The Company highly values the inputs provided by each stakeholder
group and endeavors to incorporate these insights into its business strategy. Emphasizing the importance of understanding
the dynamic perceptions and aspirations of stakeholders, MBL aligns its services fo meet their evolving needs. Additionally,
MBL actively supports vulnerable and marginalized stakeholder groups through vanous campaigns and programs, promofing
their well-being and overall development.

2.  List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each stakeholder group:

Whether Channels of comnmunication I  fi

identified as Emal, SMS, N : engagement “fPurpnsE::tﬂi:cupe
Stakeholder  Vulnerable & Pamphlets, Advertisement, Coonually/ Half ot b i g
yearly, key topics and concerns
Cronp Macynelized | SOmaniy Mecfings, Quarterly / raised during such
Group. (Yes/ Notice Board, Website),
No) Ot others — please engagement
_ specify)
Senior Mo * Direct contact Annually/ Half * Compliance
Management * RBegular meefings yearly/ Guarterly |« Ethical practices
including KMPs y and as and when 5
* Lleadership and manager . * Economic performance
required
| connect ! G -
Employees Mo v Strategy & Review meetovery | Monthly/Guarterly | * Employee engagement
6 months and Annually * Employee wellness and
* EFmployee engagement safety
initiatives .

Learning and development

* Employee on-ground and
wvirtual connect by Human
Resources

* Town Hall
* Coffee with CEO
| * Rewards & Recognifion

Communities Yes * Awareness campalgns | Asand when ® |nclusive growth
» CSRinitiatives required * |iteracy and development
* Begular meefings * Enwvironmental and social
* E-mails/ Calls protaction
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Whether

identified as
Stakeholder Vulnerable &
Group MMarginalized

Group. (Yes/

Noj)

Investors . Mo
Vendaors and No
Suppliers
Customers No

Channels of coommunication
(Email, 5VIS, Newspaper,
Pamphlets, Advertisement,
Community Meetlngs.
Notice Board, Website),
Other

» Quarterly reports and press
releases

* |nvestor meets, earnings calls
and General Meetings (GMs)

* Suppliers meat

» Website

* Phone calls and surveys

* One-on-One inferactions
» Wabsite

* Online and postal
communication

ii|i—4E)  Statutory Reports i

Frequency of
engagement Purpose and scope
(Annually/ Half of engagement including
yearly/ key toplcs and concerns
Quarterly / raised during such
others — please engagement
specify)

Annually’ Half . Compliance with regulatory
yearly/ Quarterly laws

and as arfdwhen * Governance and ethical
required practices

* Economic performance
As and when * Partnership

required * Governance and ethical
practices
As and when v Data security
required * Responsible communication

| ieialai AN Businesses should respect and promote human rights

Eszential Indicators

1. Employeesand workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the entfity, in the following

format:
FY 2023-24
- No. -
CaingRTy. Total () | “TPIOVEES' | o ®/H)
covered (B)
Employee
Permanent 479 479 100%: 430 430 10006
Other than permanent 190 120 1000 205 205 100%
Total Employees 649 569 100% 835 35 100%
Workers
Ii'erma nent
Other than permanent Mot applicable
Total Workers

2. Details of minimum wages paid fo employees and workers, in the following format:

FY 2023-24

Equal fo |  More than
Minimmm Wages | Minimom wages

%(B/ |Number % (C/
E) (©

Number
(E)

Permanent

Male 379 0
Female 100 0
Otherthan |

Permanent

Male 129 0
Female _ 6l 1]

0 3 100%
0 100 100%:
0 129 10096
0 61 1008

353 0 0 353 100%
7 0 0 17 100%
143 0 0 143 100%
62 0 0 62 1005,
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_ FY 2023-24
Total Equal to More than
Category ®) Minimnm Wages | Mintmum wages |
Number | % (B |Number | % (C/
() &) (C) A)

Permanent |

Male Mot applicable
Female

Other than

Male - Mot applicable
Female

3a. Details of remuneration/ salary/ wages in the following format:

Male Female
: S — s
remuneration/ remunerations
Nuihee salary/ wages of Hmmbes salary/ wages of
respective category respective category

Board of Directors (BoD)* MIL | Refer to the Board's MIL Refer to the Board's

| Report Report
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 2 | 16462750 1. 24 30,000
Employees other than BOD and KMP* 506 | 024118 140 916762
Workars = | = 5 | =

"MEL does not have any Executive Director on the BoD
#his includes Meo, Consuliants and Permanent Employees.

3b. Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the entity, in the following format:

(zross wages paid to females as % of total wages | 20.38% 18.11%

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee} responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused or
confributed to by the business? (Yes/No)
Yos, the Human Resources acts as the focal point to address issues perfaining fo human rights and ensures compliance with
aspects such as child labor, forced labor, sexual harassment that have significant impact on the business operations.

5. Describe the infernal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues:

Music Broadcast Limited uphaolds an open-door policy that encourages employees to reach out fo the HR department and
senior leadership in the event of any grievances related fo human rights. Additionally, the Company has insfituted a Vigil
Mechanism/Whistle blower Policy, serving as a formal platform for reporting concerns regarding human rights violations.
Furthermore, MBL has implemented policies perfaining fto the Prevention of Sexual Harassment (POSH), fostering a working
emnvironment that is free from discimination and ensures a mechanism for addressing concerns and resolving disputes. In
compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibifion, and Redressal) Act, 2013, the
Company has established an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC).

&, Mumber of complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2023-24
Pending
resolution
at the end of
year

Sexual Harassment il Mil { - Mil il -
Discrimination at workplace Nil il - Mil il -
Child Labor Mil il - Mil Mil -
Forced Labor/ Involuntary Nil Mil - Mil il -
Labor
Wages Mil il - Mil Mil -
Other human rights related Mil Mil - Mil Mil -
IS5UES
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10.

11
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Complaints filed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevenfion, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, in
the following format:

Total Complaints reported under Sexual Harassment on of Wemen at 1] 1]
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 20013 (POSH)

Complaints on POSH as a % of female employees / workers Mot Applicable Not Applicable
Complaints on POSH upheld |  Not Applicable Not Applicable

Mechanisms to prevent adverse conseqguences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases:

MBL is committed to upholding responsible and ethical business conduct. The Company's policies, including the Prevention
of Sexual Harassment Policy (POSH) and Whistleblower Paolicy, serve as guiding principles for taking stringent measures
against discriminafion and sexual harassment in the workplace. In order to address any adverse consequences associated
with raising concerns regarding misconduct, employees can report incidents to the designated personnel via the respective
email address provided.

Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts?

MBL has implemented a 5upplier Code of Conduct that ensures compliances with human rights standards, health and safety
regulations and ethical trade practices. The Company ensures that all its business partners adhere to this Suppliers Code of
Conduct.

Assessments for the year:
For FY 23-24, no stafutory assessments were undertaken, however, sample assessment by fhe infernal auditors of the Company
were conducted and zero non-compliances were reported.

% Of your plants and offices that were assessed

{By entity or statutory authorities or third parties)
Child labour -
Forced/involuntary labour -
Sexual harassmant -
Discriminafion at workplace -
Wages -
Oithers — please specify -

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from the assessments
at Question above:

As per the sample assessment conducted by MBL, zero incidents of non-compliances were reporfed for the current financial
year.

S Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the
Principle 6

environment

Eszential Indicators

1.

Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

Parameter
From renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (A) 21350 GJ 21789 GJ
Total fuel consumption (B)* 2231 GJ 2295 GJ
Energy consumption through other sources (C) Nil Nil
Total energy consumption from renewable sources (A+B+C) 23593 Gl 24084 GJ
Energy intensity per lakh rupee of turnover 1.03 1721
{Total energy consumption’ iurnover In rupees)

Energy Intensity per rupee of turnover adjusted for Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) (Total 0.2306 0.2714
enargy consumed Revenue from operations adjusted for PPPY

Energy Infensity in terms of physical output a 0

*The source of Purchasing Power Parity (PPP) factor is the PPP rate of 22.4 for India which is published by the International Monetary Fund

{IMF) as per the 2024 update.

Mate: The Company does not use any non-renewable sources of energy.

Indlcate if any Independent assessment evaluation/ assurance has been carried out by an external agency?

Ho
I yes, name of the external agency
Mot Applicable
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Does the enfity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve and
Trade (PAT) S5cheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been
achieved. In case fargets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any:

Mot Applicable

Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:
Parameter | FY2023-24 Lot
Water Withdrawn (in kilolitres)

Surface Water =0 -
Ground Water x -
3™ Party Water & -
Seawater/ desalinated water o -
Other 71,225 6,858
Total Vol of Water Withdrawn 1.225 | 6,858
Total Vol of Water Consumed (KL)* 4177 | 3,810

Water intensity per lakh rupee of tumover 032 | 019
(Water consumed/Turmover)

Water intensity (optional) - = 2
the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Mote: The volume of water withdrawn and consumed is based on estimation as per "Estimation of water requirement for drinking and
domestic use (Source: NBC 2014, BIS) - CGWA Guideline

Mote: Indicate If any Independent assessment/ evaluatlon/assurance has been carrled out by an external agency? [Y/N) If yes, name of the
external agency. No

Provide the following details related to water discharged:
Mot Applicable

Has the enfity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage and implementafion.
The liquid discharge at MBL is generally done through municipal sewers and it has not implemented any mechanism for Zero
Liquid Discharge at ifs premises.

Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the enfity, in the following format:
Mot Applicable

Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following format:

Parameter PN i zozaze oo

Total Scope 1 emissions | Metric tonnes of 167 172

{Break-up of the GHG info CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs, PECs, SFé, NF3, if | CO2 equivalent

available)

Total Scope 2 emissions Metric tonnes of 4213 429
{Break-up of the GHG into COZ2, CH4, N20, HFCs, PFCs, SF&, NF3, if| CO2 equivalent

available)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per rupee of tumower - 01a 022

Total 5cope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity (optional) - - -
- the relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Mote: Indicate if any independent assessmant/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) i yes, name of the
external agency. Mo

Does the entity have any project related fo reducing Green House Gas emission? If yes, then provide details:

Due to the nature of its business, MBL has a notably low contribution of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. However, to address
environmental concerns associated with its operations, MBL promotes awareness among its employees to minimize energy
and water consumption and encourages the reuse of matenals such as paper. Additionally, MBL has implemented energy-
efficient pracfices, including the use of LED lights and priontizes energy efficiency across all corporate offices and studios.
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10.

13.

Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter | FY2023-24 oo
Total Waste generated (in Metric Tonnes)
Plasfic waste (A) = =
E-waste (B) = m
Bio-medical waste (C) = -
Construction and demolifion wasta () = -
Baftery waste (E] 11.334 7.920
Radioactive waste (F) - -
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any (G) = m
Other Mon-hazardous waste generated (H) = -
Please specify, if any. (Break-up by composition i.e., by materials relevant to the secior)
Total (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H) 11.334 1.920
For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other
recovery operations (in metric tonnes)
Category of wasie
Ml Recycled = -
(i) Re-used = =
(iii) Other recovery operations =
Total = >
For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric
tonnes) _
Category of disposal Method
il Incineration =
(i} Landfilling - -
ni) Other disposal operahions® E -
Total - -

Mote: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external agency?

(Yes / No) If yes, name of the external agency.
Mo

[f yes, name of the external agency.
Mot Applicable

Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the sfrategy adopted by your
company to reduce usage of hazardous and foxic chemicals in your products and processes and the practices adopted to
manage such wastes.

MBL generates two types of waste: E-waste (specifically battery waste) and dry waste. The Company ensures responsible
and environmentally-fnendly disposal of E-waste through a systematic recycling process. Each station tracks the E-waste
generated, which is subsequently disposed of by licensed agencies. MBL mainfains records of Form & [waste manifest)
and other relevant documentation post-waste collechion by vendors, demonstrating its commitment fo responsible waste
management.

Furthermare, as part of its sustainability efforts, MBL explores innovative approaches to recycle and reuse waste. For instance,
one-sided printed paper is repurposed info notepads for all employees, showcasing the Company’'s dedication to minimizing
environmental impact while promoting resource efficiency.

If the entity has operations/offices infaround ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere
reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones efc.) where environmental approvals / clearances
are required, please specify details:

Mot applicable

Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the current
financial year:
Mot applicable

|s the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India, such as the Water (Prevention
and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollufion) Act, Environment protection act and rules thereunder
(Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances:

MBL complies with all applicable environmental laws and regulations and ensures that its GHG emissions and waste generation
is within permissible limits as stated by the regulatory authorifies.
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ot Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should
Principle 7 g : 7
do so in a manner that is responsible and transparent

E=s=zential Indicators

1. a  Mumber of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations:
MBL engages with mulfiple industry chambers and associations and proudly maintains active membership in two
prominent Trade and Industry Chambers/Assocations.

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the tofal members of such body) the
enfity is a member of/ affiliated to:

5 Reach of trade and Industry

HL Name of the trade and Industry chambers/ assoclations chambers/ assoclations
_ (State/National)

1 Associafion of Radio Operators for India Mational

2 Media Research Users Council Mational

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anficompetitive conduct by the enfity, based
an adverse orders from regulatory authorities:

Mot Applicable

Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

E=z=zential Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (51A) of projects undertaken by the enfity based on applicable laws, in the current
financial year:
MEL has spearheaded numerous C5R inifiatives with a primary focus on environmental and social well-being. Thesa initiatives
are implemented through collabaorations with NGOs and social entreprensaurs. While MBL did not conduct any Social Impact
Assessment for its CSR inifiatives in the reporting year, the Company remains committed fo driving positive change in the
communitias it serves.

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongeing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being undertaken by your
entity:
Mot Applicable

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community:
MEBL engages with its community members through the NGO partners for identified areas of contribution in the domain of
education, healthcare and development. Within its areas of work, the NGO partners have robust mechanism to assess the
projects on intended beneficiaries. These mechanism ranges from in-person meeting and group discussions with beneficiaries
fo provide ample opportunity to receive and redress their grievances.

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

Directly sourced from M5MEs/ small producers NIL | MIL
Sourced directly from within the district and neighbonng districts NIL NIL

5. Jobcreation in smaller towns — Disclose wages paid to persons employed (including employees or workers employedona
permanent or non-permanent / on contract basis) in the following locations, as % of total wage cost:

Location

Rural | - -
Semi-urban 3.86% 4.58%
Urban i 20.16% 19.75%
Metropolitan | 75.98% 75.67%

{Place 1o be categorized as per RBI Classification System - rural / semi-urban /£ urban / metropolitany
Maote: Classification is based on the RBI Guidelines and Census 2011
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Principle 9

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and
consumers in a responsible manner.

Essential Indicators

1.

Describe the mechanisms in place o receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback:

The Company adopts a comprehensive approach to prompily address consumer complaints and feedback concerning service
quality. Complaints received from stakeholders, including suppliers and customers, are handled by respective department
heads, pnontizing the matenality of the issue/complaint.

Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry information about:
Mot applicable.

MNumber of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

_FYZ2023-24
Recelved Pending

during the | resolutionat | Remarks

year end of year
Data privacy Mil Nil - Nil Mil -
Advertising Nil Nil - Nil Nil -
Cyber-security il Nil - Nil il -
Dielivery of essential services Mil Nil - Nil Nil -
Restrictive Trade Practices Nil Nil - Nil Mil -
Unfair Trade Practices Mil Nil N Nil Nil -
Other Nil Nil - Nil il -

Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:
Due to the nature of its business, Music Broadcast Limited does not engage in the manufacturing or sale of products. Therefore,
this requirement is not applicable to the Company.

Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/MNo) If available, provide
a web-link of the policy:

MBL has implemented an information and cyber security framework fo safeguard all information assets, ensuring
a comprehensive management process across the organizafion. The Company maintains an internal IT policy, regularly
communicated to employees as needed. Moreover, MBL ensures adequate protection of business information through the
implementation of appropnate controls and proactive measures.

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating fo advertising, and delivery of essenfial
services: cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls: penalty / action taken
by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services:

For FY 2023-24, there were no complaint received for issues relating to advertising, cyber security and data privacy of
customers and penalty by regulatory authorities on any of the sarvices provided by MBL.

Provide the following information relating fo dafa breaches:
a. Mumber of instances of data breaches - Nil

b. Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers - NA

¢. Impact, if any, of the data breaches - NA
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ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

SECRETARIEL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINAMCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members

Music Broadcast Limited

5 Floor, RNA Corporate Park
Kalanagar, Bandra (East)

Mumbai — 400051

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Music Broadeast Limited (CIN:
L&4200MHIF9PLCI3T7729) (hereinafter referred as “the
Company”) for financial year 2023-24. Secretanial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers,
minute books, forms and retums filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agenis and authonzed
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, |
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit penod covering the financial year ended on 31% March,
2024 ("Audit Period"™) complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and comphance maechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined, the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and
Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and produced before us for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2024, as per the provisions of:

(1}  The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) and the rules made
there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the
rules made there under;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and Bye-
laws framed there under;

(v} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulafions made there under fo the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings; (Mot applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period)
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(w)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Secunties and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI ACT') during the Audit Period.

{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulafions, 2015, as
amended and made effective from time to time;

(¢} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories
and Parficipants) Regulations, 2018;

(d} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; (Mot applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(e} The Securifies and Exchange Board of India (5hare
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 (Mot applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

{fl The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Actand
dealing with client; (Mot applicable as the Company
is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agent during the Audit Period)

(g} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing non-converfible Securities) Regulafions, 2021;

(h} TheSecurihies and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Penod)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-
back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period)
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M The Securities and Exchange Board of India gl The Sports Broadcasting Signals (Mandatory Sharing
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) with Prasar Bharti) Act, 2007.
Regulations, 2015.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
{w1) |, relied on the representation made by the Company and of the following:
its Officers in respect of systems and meachanism formed/

followed by the Company for the compliance of the i. Secretarial Standards relating to Board Meetings
following laws applicable specifically o the Company:- and General Meetings issued by The Institute of

Company Secretaries of India (S5ecretarial Standards)
a) The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885, and amendments thereof, and notfified by the Central

Government under Section 118 (10} of the Act which have

B} The Indian Wireless Telegraphy Act, 1933, mandatory application.

¢}  The Prasar Bhartfi (Broadcasfing Corporation of India) i.  The Listing Agreements entered info by the Company with
Act, 1990. National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) and BSE

d)  The Telecom Regulatory Authority Act, 1997, Ui (USEY.

Based on the aforesaid information provided by the Company, |
report that during the Audit Period under review, the Company
has complied with the provisions of the above menfioned Act/s,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned

fi  The Code for Commercial Broadcasting. above fo the extent applicable.

) Grant of Permission Agreement (GOPA) executed
between the Company and Ministry of Information
and Broadcasting, Government of India.

| further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and all the Directors are Mon-Executive Directors with adequate mix of
Independent Director's. There were no changes in the compaosition of the Board of Directors during the Audit Period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors about scheduled Board Meetings, agenda and detfailed notes on agenda were generally
senf at least seven days in advance; and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarificafions on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful parficipafion at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board and Committeas were
unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines efc.

| further report that during the Audit Period under review, there were following specific instances/actions events have occurred
which had a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards efc.:

1. The Company has successfully listed the Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS") issued to the non-
promoter shareholders through the Scheme of Arrangement. These NCRPS are available to frade w.e.f. April 20, 2023 at the
Stock Exchanges.

2.  TheBoard, on January 23, 2024 has approved and declared Interim Dividend of 0.1% of the Face Value of T 10 each on NCRPS
1.2 ¥ .01 per NCRP5 for the financial year 2023-24.

Deepak Rane
Practicing Company
Secretary
ACS No. 24110
CP No. 8717
Place: Mumbai UDIN: AD24110F000423278
Date: May 22, 2024 Peer Review No: - 2063/2022
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ANNEXURE V TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT

DISCLOSUREOFINFORMATIONUNDERSECTION 197(12)OF COMPANIESACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

a)

b)

<l

€)

114

The ratio of the remunerafion of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial
year 2023-24: Not applicable

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief executive afficer, chief financial officer, company secrefary
in the financial year 2023-24:

ar. Name of the Director/CEFO/ CEQS % Increase between (I) and (II}I-

No. CS/Manager HcElgmation, _ )/T1%100]
1. | Mr. Ashit Kukian Chief Execufive Officer 23%
2. | Mr. Prashant Domadia Chief Financial Officer 13%
4. | Ms. Arpita Kapoor Company Secratary 272 %

Percenfage increase / decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2023-24: 4.17%
Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company: There were 479 permanent employees as on March 31, 2024.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in the last financial
year and its comparison with percentile increase in managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remunerafion:

Average increase in remuneration of managerial personnel and employees other than these Managerial Personnel are given
balow:

All employees other than
Particulars : M. jal P, 1 | Managerial Personnel
% increase from FY 2022-23 to FY 2023-24 10.63% ! 19 %

Affirmation that remunerafion is as per remuneration policy of the company:

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“the Board™/ "the Directors”) of Music
Broadcast Limited ("MBL" “the Company") set-forth the Report
on Corporate Governance for the Financial Year 2023-24, in
compliance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), as amended from
time to ftime.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

We firmly believe that Corporate Governance is not
merely a stafic destination, buf rather an ongoing journey
aimed at continuously enhancing sustainable value
creation. It is a continuous pursuit where we collectively
strive for improvement. Upholding the highest standards
of corporate governance which is integral to the long-
term sustainability of our business.

Cur business operations are conducted in good faith, with
the interests of the Company and all its stakeholders, while
adhering to the principles of good corporate governance.

QOur Corporate Governance Framework is designed fo
pricrifize the enhancement of the long term stakeholder
value while upholding ethical standards and fulfilling
corporate social responsibilities. We understand
that efficient corporate governance requires a clear
delineation of the Board and senior management, as
well as their relationships within the corporate structure.
Sincerity, fairness, good difizenship and commitment to
compliance are fundamental principles that guide the
inferactions between the Board, Senior Managemeni and
ather stakeholders.

Therefore, MBL endeavours to adhere to the highest
levels of transparency, accountability and ethics in all
its operations, at the same time fully realizing its social
responsibilifies.

The Company firmly believes in and adheres fo good
corporate governance practices exemplified by the
appointment of Mon-Executive, Independent Director as
the Chairman of the Company.

The Company’s focus on Corporate Governance is
reflected in the following:

i. Composition, size and functioning of the Board and
its Committees, along with the disclosure practices.

in. Board's commitment to the expectations of
stakeholders of the Company and public at large.

. Emphasis on strong value systems and ethical
business operations.

iv. Sound infernal control and infernal audit system.

v. Transparency, accountability, social responsibility
and ethics in all its operations.

2.

vi. Esfablishment of a Code of Conduct for all the
members of the Board and the team of Senior
Management Personnel,

vii. Putting in place the Code of Conduct to regulate,
monitor and report frading by Designated Persons
and Immediate Relatives and Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information.

vill. Implementation of a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle
Blower Policy.

. Policy on Related Party Transactions and on dealing
with Related Party Transactions.

x. Efforts for prompt redressal of investors” grievances.

¥xi. Appropriate delegation of authority responsibility,
monitonng of performance and collective decision
making invelving senior management team in all key
decisions.

xii. Automated seamless integrated workflow to ensure
consistency and timely flow of information.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

An effective Board of Directars is a pre-requisite for
strong and effective Corporate Governance. The Board
is committed fo the goal of sustainably elevating the
Company's value creation. We firmly believe that an
active, well-informed, diverse and independent Board is
essantial to upholding the highest standards of corporate
governance. The Company has established fundamentally
strong Board comprising an optimum combination of
Mon-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. This
deliberate composition aims to uphold the independence
of the Board while ensuring clear segregation of
governance and management functions.

The Company is in compliance with provisions of Section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”) and Regulation
17 of Listing Regulations with regards fo the composition
of the Board. As on March 31, 2024, the Board comprises
of 7 (Seven) Directors, 5 (Five) of whom are Independent
Directors including 1 {One) Woman Independent
Director and 2 (Two) are Non-Executive Directors. The
Independent Directors of the Company fulfil the criteria
of independence as specified in Section 14%6) of the Act
read with the Rules and Schedule made thereunder and
also Regulations 16{1)(b) and 25 of the Listing Regulations
and are independent of the management. All the
Directors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-
2024 are Resident Directors. In line with the Nomination,
Remuneration and Evaluation Policy of the Company,
the Directors are identified based on their gualifications,
positive attributes, area of expertise, etfc.
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Tha Board of Directors consists of eminent individuals with and competencies vital for the Company’s effective
extensive professional backgrounds in Finance, Media, functioning which are currently available with the Board
Commercial, Strategy & Planning, Business Administration along with the names of directors who possess such skills/

and other related fields. They bring a wide range of expertise/competence.

experience and experfise while upholding a high level
of independence, ensuring effective governance and
strategic decision-making.

Given below are the specific areas of focus & expertise
of individual Board Members, howewver, the absence
of the area of expertise (s)/ skills/ competence against

Matrix setting out the skills/ expertise/ the member's name does not necessarily mean that
competence of the Board of Directors and the member does not possess the corresponding
names of directors who have such skills/ qualifications or skills.

expertize/ competence
In compliance with Regulation 34 of the Listing
Regulations, the Board has idenfified key skills, expertise,

Corporate
Governance
& Listing
Regulations

Finance &
Accounting

Sales,
Marketing &
Programming

Industry

Erea of expertise(s)/ skills/ Competence
Corporate Sales,

DMMediaand Radio General

Name of Director(s) ' Financeand Governance p. i and
i g Entertainment Industry Administration

BAccounting and Listing P 1

| Regulationz |
Mr. Vijay Tandeon, v i v v
Chairman & Mon-
Executive Independent
Director | | - | N | | i
Ms. Anita Nayyar, Non- v v v
Executive Independent
Director | | | _ |
Mr. Anuj Puri, Non- v v v v
Executive Independent
Director | | | | |
Mr. Madhukar Kamath, v W )
MNon-Execufive
Independent Diractor _ _ | _ _
Mr. Rahul Gupta, v v ) W
Mon-Executive Mon-
Independent Directaor
Mr. Rawi Sardana W ") W W
MNon-Executive
Independent Diractor
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Mr. Shailesh Gupta,
Mon-Executive Non-
Independent Director

Corporate
Name of Director(s) | Finance and Governance ales

Accoun and Listing
Huy ' Regulations Programming .

ii|i—4E)  Statutory Reports i

Area of expertise(s)/ skills/ Competence

Marketing and

v

MMedia and Radio General
Entertainment Industry @ Administration

v v v

3. COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND PARTICULARS THERE OF:

The composition of the Company's Board (which is in conformity with Regulation 17(1) of the Listing Regulations and other
applicable requirements) and other requisite details as on March 31, 2024 are given in the table below:

Number Category (Promoter,
of Board Executive, Shareholding
ar. Name of the Meeting=s Non-Executive, R:]Rhﬂmp in the Company
No Directox(s) aftended Inde Non- Di t in Number &
during the Executive, Nominee =) Percentage
FY 2023-24 Director etc.)
1. | Mr Vijay Tandon Soutofh Yes Chairman, Mone Nil
Mon-Execufive
_ .  Sndependen Bacloy | .
2. | Ms. Anita Nayyar Soutofs Yes Non-Execufive MNone Nil
Independent Director _
3. | Mr Anuj Pun Soutofh Yes Non-Executive Mone Nil
| . Indupendant Dincios | .
4. | Mr. Madhukar 5 outof5 Yes MNon-Executive MNene Nil
Kamath Independent Director |
5. | Mr. Rahul Gupta Soutofb Yes Mon-Executive Mon- Mone Mil
Miclerionient fkecos. |
6. | Mr. Ravi Sardana Soutof§ Yes MNon-Executive None Nil
Independent Director
7. | Mr. Shailesh Gupta Soutofs Yes MNon-Executive Mon- Mone Nil
Independent Director

MNotes:

a. Relationship with other Director(s) means "Relative’ of other Director(s) as defined u/s 2{77) of the Act.
b. The Company has not issued any convertible instruments as on the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024.

The details of Directors seeking re-appointment in the Board are menfioned in the Board's Report read along with the Notice
convening the 25™ Annual General Meeting, forming part of this Annual Report.

COMMITTEES AS AT MARCH 31, 2024:

The following are the detfails of Directors’ interast in other public companies as Director and Member / Chairperson of the

Committees as on March 31, 2024:

Number of

5r. Name of the o, o3

in other publi
B Direchoxy companies fncln:l:lng
Listed Companies
1. | Mr Vijay Tandon 1
2. | Ms. Anita Nayyar | 1

Mr. Anuj Puri

Detalls of

lizted entities

Mon-Executive
Independent Director-

| Nil
' Mon-Exacutive
Independent Director -
. Jagran Prakashan
Limited
. Mahindra Lifespace

Directorships in other

Jagran Prakashan Limited

Developers Limited .

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS/ CHAIRPERSONSHIP / MEMBERSHIPS OF BOARD AND

Number of Committee positlons held in

[ Member
Chalirpersonship (Including )
Chalrperzonship
1 1
Nil 1

Nil

117



118

Radio City
L TRTITLAT HITRITT

Radic's Digital Renaissance

Number of Number of Committee positions held in
directorships Details of other Companies
f‘r‘; Hnml”fm inotherpublic  Directorships in other Member
tor(s) companies including lizted entities Chairpersonship {(Including
Listed Companies | Chalrpersonship)
4. | Mr. Madhukar il NIL Nil Mil
Kamath [
5. | Mr. Rahul Gupta il | Nil Nil
7. | Mr. Ravi Sardana Mon-Exacutive 1 1
Independent Director -
Jagran Prakashan Limited
6. | Mr. Shailesh 3 Whole-fime Director - Mil Nil
Gupfta Jagran Prakashan Limited
Notes:

a.  This excludes directorships in private limited companies, foreign companies and companies licensed under Section 8
of the Act / Sechion 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 if any.

b.  Incompliance with Regulation 26{1) of the Listing Regulations, Membership{s) or Chairmanship(s) of only Audit Committee
and Stakeholder's Relafionship Committee in all public limited companies have been considered.

c. TheDirectorships and Committee Membership(s) or Chairmanship(s) of all Directors are in accordance with the provisions

of the Act and the Listing Regulations.

DIRECTORS' PROFILE BRIEF:

Mpr. Vijay Tandon (DIN: 00156305) aged 79 years
is a Non-Executive Independent Director and Chairman of
the Company since November 24, 2016.

Mr. Tandon is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Gualifying in 1969 Mr. Tandon was
associated with Thakur Vaidyanath Aivar & Co,, a leading
firm of Chartered Accountants in Mew Delhi and was a
partner of the firm between 1977 and 1999, As a Chartered
Accountant and Financial Management Consultant, with
over 47 years of professional experience in various
capacities, Mr. Tandon has been assocated with number
of private and public sector companies and banks in the
capacity of auditor. Mr. Tandon has extensive knowledge
of corporate laws and headed the Corporate Division of
the CA firm.

Mr. Tandon has been associated with print media industry
invarious capacities, as publisher auditor, representing the
Audit Bureau of Circulations and as Director in Associated
Joumals Limited (The National Herald Group). Also, as a
management consultant, Mr. Tandon has been associated
with a number of consulfing services in diverse sectors
of economy, industry and public ufilities funded by the
Asian Development Bank, the World Bank and the UK
Depariment of Infernational Development in India as well
as South & Central Asia.

Between 2000 - 2015, Mr. Tandon was Principal
Consubtant/Director India with ICF Consulfing Services
(earlier GHK Consulting) a UK-based development
consultant. Mr. Tandon is currently an adwisor on Urban
Governance and Management and a Non-Executive
Independent Director of Jagran Prakashan Limited.

Ms. Anita Nayyar (DIN: 03317861) aged 62 years
is a Mon-Executive Independent Director of the Company
and has been associated with the Company since January
27, 2020. Ms. Nayyar holds a Bachelor's degree in
Microbiology and has a PG in Adverfising and Marketing
Management & Business Management along with Masters
in Management. Ms. Nayyar has an experience of 35+
years in the Advertising, Marketing & Media industry
having worked for top advertising agencies like Saatchi
& Saatchi, Ogilvy & Mather, Inifiafive Media, Media Com,
Starcom Worldwide & Havas Media Group. 5he has also
worked with leading publishers like The Times of India
& feeah.

Ms. Mayyar was voted the 2 most influential media
person in India by The Brand Equity Survey in 2006 and
has always been in the top list of the influential media
personalifies ever since. She s on the list of Impact top
S0 women in Media, Marketing and Advertising and also
the top 100 by Campaign Asia in APAC, along with APAC
WVISION LEADER of the Year 2019 & APAC CEO of the Year
2018 by Campaign Asia Women Leading Change. She has
immeanse respect and credibility in the industry and has
been recently conferred with Women Disruptors 2023
Life Time Achievement Award 2023 and 20 Most Influential
Women in India in Marketing & Advertising 2023.

Ms. Mayyar was the COQO-Media, Branding &
Communication at Patanjali Ayurved Limited, largest
Indian FMCG Company till January 03, 2024 and also has
been on the list of Most Admired Markefing leader and
Maost Influenfial Brand Leader. Ms. Nayyar was also Non-
Executive Independent Director of Jagran Prakashan
Limited from 2014 to 201%.



Annual Report 2023-24

Mr. Anuj Pori (DIN: 00048386) aged 57 years is
a Mon-Execufive Independent Director of the Company
and has been associated with the Company since May 30,
2016,

He is Chairman of ANMAROCK Group and is widely
acknowledged for revolutionizing the real estate sector
with his visionary outlook and tech-driven solutions. He
has been a trusted advisor to developers, occupiers and
investors for decades. He holds a Bachelor's degree
in Commerce, is an Associate of Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, Associate of Chartered Insurance
Institute -UK, Assooate of Insurance Institute of Surveyors
& Adjusters (India) and an Associate of Insurance Institute
of India. Until February 2017, he was Chairman & Country
Head of intemational property consultants - JLL India
overseeing a team of over 000 employees in 11 cities.
He was also a key member of JLL's Asia Pacific Leadership
Group and Head of its Global Retail Leasing Board.

Mr. Puri had set up ANAROCK in 2017 which is now India’s
leading independent real estate consulfing services
Company with 16 offices in India and UAE {Dubai) and
an employee strength of 2200+. Under his leadership,
AMAROCK has added Residential Broking & Technology,
Retail(in partnership with Vindico- UAE headquartered
refail real estate specialist in tenant coordination and
design review services), Commercial, Investment
Banking, Hospitality (in partnership with HVS- a glebal
leader in hospitality consulting & transaction advisory),
Land Services, Industrial and Logistics (in partnership
with Binswanger- US-headquartered industrial advisory
& brokerage firm), Investment Management, Research,
Strateqgic Advisory & Valuations, Flexi Spaces (in partnership
with myHG & Upflex) and Society Management Services
(Anacity) and is aggressively expanding fo newer
geographies and real estate business verticals.

Mr. Puri is Chair of the Task Force on Real Estate for the
Cll Western Region for FY 2024-25 and leads the efforts
in this significant domain. He has held various key
positions in the real estate industry including MoHUA-
Urban Expert Committee, Member of the Advisory
Committee of Maharashtra Chamber of Housing Industry
& Confederation of Real Estate Developars Association
of India (MCHI-CREDAI), Member of Young Presidents
Organization (YPO), Member of Construction Week
India Mational Advisory Board, Member of Hotelier
India Magazine’s Advisory Board and Advisory Board
Maember of CREDAI MCHI Forum for Real Estate Marketing
Experience & Innovations. He has received significant
national and global recognitions for his contribution to
the real estate sector.

Mr. Puni is currently a Mon-Executive Independent Director
of Jagran Prakashan Limited.

Mr. Madhukar Kamath (DIN: 00230316) aged
&9 years is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the
Company and has been associated with the Company
since May 25, 2017.
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Mr. Kamath is an Economics graduate from the Loyola
Collage, Chennai. He studied Management at XLRI
Jamshedpur, which has also conferred on him a
Distinguished Alumnus award. Mr. Kamath has more than
four decades of expenence in Advertising and Markefing
Services and has spent over 25 years in erstwhile Mudra
now the DDB Mudra Group, in two separate stints. Under
his leadership, Mudra Group transformed itself from an
Advertising Agency info one of India’s leading Integrated
Marketing Communications Groups. Mr. Kamath also
played a key role in the Omnicom acquisition of the Mudra
Group and the infegration with the Global DDB Netwaork.
Subsequently, he facilitated the entry of Interbrand,
the leading Global Brand Consultancy into India, and
functioned as its Chairman. In between his two stints at
DDEB Mudra Group, Mr. Kamath led Bates India as its CEO
and was instrumental in the acquisifion of Clarion. He also
infroduced Zenith Media into India.

Following his retirement, he has been appointed as
the Chairman Emeritus of the DDB Mudra Group and
as a Mentor by Interbrand India. He has also turned an
entrepreneur and is now the Chairman of Multiplier, an
Insights & Solutions company, connecting Brands with
Shoppers. Mr. Kamath has served as the President of the
AAA|l [Advertising Agences Association of India), the
Chaiman of ASCI (The Advertising Standards Council of
India) and the ABC (The Audit Bureau of Circulation).

As the Chairman of the Mudra Foundation and the
Chairperson of the Governing Council of MICA, for over
a decade, Mr. Kamath helped build MICA into India’s
foremost Strategic Marketing and Communications
Management Institute. Mr. Kamath also served as the
President of MICA, for the academic year 2016-17. In 2013,
he became an Executive Board member of the NGO, Plan
Intermational in India. In 2020 he was elected to the Global
Board of Plan International and currently is the Vice-Chair.

Mr. Rahul Gupta (DIN: 00359182) aged 43 years
is a Mon-Executive Director of the Company and has been
associated with the Company since June 10, 2015.

He holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from Lancaster University (UK) and a Bachelors Degree
in Science (Business and Management Studies) from the
University of Bradford (UK).

With ailmost two decades of expenence in the media
industry, Mr. Gupta has worked in top media groups
in Ireland, UK & India. He started his career with
Independent Newspapers (Ireland) and later worked in
The Independent’s advertising depariment in London. He
has been instrumental in halping build the radio businass
for the Jagran Group, which invelved setfing up the Radio
Mantra Stations in 2006, and the acquisifion of Radio City
in 2015. Mr. Gupta also served as the Senior Vice President
of the Associafion of Radio Cperators for India (ARCI). He
headed the Music Committee, which helped rationalize
music royalties for radio in India.
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Currenily, he heads and manages the operations of Jagmini
Microknit Private Limited ("JMKPL"), one of the largest
producers and exporters of legwear in India. Leading
the expansion and growth story of JIMKPL, Mr. Gupta
sefs the company's strateqgic direction and is guiding its
exponanfial growth in Morth America & mainland Europe.
Driven by his strong entrepreneurial spint, vision, and
ability to forge best-in-industry partnerships, he has
established "Balenzia” as one of the fastest-growing D2C
brands in the apparel industfry, collaborating with iconic
brands like Disney, Marvel, Warner Brothers and Cartoon
Metwork.

Mr. Ravi Sardana (DIN: 06938773) aged 58 years
is a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company
since May 24 2022,

He is a Chartered Accountant and a Chevening Scholar.
He has over three decades of experience in investment
banking and corporate finance and has contributed to
more than two hundred successful transactions. He was the
past Execufive Vice President in ICICl Securities Limited.
Mr. Sardana is presently a Consultant with Ebner 5tolz, an
accounting and management consulting firm as part of
their India desk. Mr. Sardana has worked extensively in
the media sector advising companias on advisary and
fund-raising assignments. Also, he is a Non-Executive
Independent Director of Jagran Prakashan Limited.

My. Shailesh Gupta (DIN: 00192466) aged 55
yaars is a Non-Executive Director of the Company and has
been associated with the Company since January 28, 2019,

He holds a Bachelor's degree in commerce. Mr. Gupta
has more than 35 years of experience in the print media
industry.

Mr. Gupta holds vanious key positions in the industry
including being the President of The Indian Mewspaper
Society (INS) and Chairman of Council of Audit Bureau
of Circulations (ABC). He is currently member of the
Goveming Board/ Council of IN5, ABC and Vice-Chairman
of Media Research Users Council, Director of Rave Real
Estate Private Limited, MMI Online Limited and Midday
Infomedia Limited. In December 2017, The Indian
Mewspaper Society (IN5S) nominated Mr. Shailesh Gupta
as INS Nominee on the Board of WAN-IFRA. Mr. Gupta is
a Whaole-time Director of Jagran Prakashan Limited.

BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES:

The Board of Directors serves as the highest governing
body established by the shareholders to supervise the
Company's overall operations, management policies and
their efficacy, ensuring the long-term inferests of the
shareholdars. Internal guidelines govern the conduct
of Board and Commitfee meetings, facilitating informed
and efficient decision-making processes. The subsequent
sactions elaborate on meeting procedures:

6.1 Scheduling and Selection of Agenda Items for

Board Meetings:

al  Incompliance with the Act and Secretanal Standard-1
on Meetings of the Board of Directors {"55-17),
the Company convenes a minimum four (4) Board
Meetings annually. Additional Board meetfings are
convened by giving appropriate notice to addrass
the specific needs of the Company as and when
arise. In the case of business exigencies or urgency
of matters, resolutions are passed by circulation.

b) The Chairman of the Board and the Company
Secretary in consulfation with other concerned
team members of the senior management, finalize
the agenda papers for the Board and Committea
Meetings.

c} The Company facilitates Director’s attendance at
meatings through video-conferencing, ensuring
their active participation regardiess of geographical
constraints.

d) All divisions/departments of the Company are
encouraged fo proactively plan their funchions
especially concerning matters requinng discussion,
approval, or decision at Board/Committee meetings.
All such matters are communicated to the Company
Secrefary in advance so that the same could
be incorporated in the Agenda for the Board/
Committee meetings.

@] The Board is granted complete access to any
Company information and employees. The minimum
information placed before the Board includes:

i.  Annual operafing plans and budgets and any
updates.

ii. Capital budgets and any updates.

. Guarterly results for the Company and its allied
businesses, if any.

. Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee
and other Committees of the Board and also
Resolutions passed by arculation.

v. The information on recruitment, remuneration
of semior management personnel just below
the Board level, including appointment or
removal of Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secrefary.

vi. Show cause, demand, prosecution notfices and
penalty notices, which are matenally important.

vii. Fatal or sericus accidents, dangerous
occurrences, any matenal effluent or pollution
problems.
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wiii.

¥i.

.

iii.

NIV,

wvl.

wvil.

Wil

RN

xXx.

WL

Any material default in financial obligations
to and by the Company, or substantial non-
payment for goods sold by the Company.

Any issue, which involves possible public or
product liability claims of substantial nature,
including any judgment or order which, may
have passed strictures on the conduct of the
Company or taken an adverse view regarding
another enterprise that can have negative
implications on the Compamy.

Details of any joint venture or collaboration
agraement.

Transactions that involve substantial payment
towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual
property.

Significant labour problems and their proposed
solutions. Any significant development in
Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front like
signing of wage agreement, implementation of
Voluntary Retirement Scheme efc.

Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets, which
are maferial in nature and not in the normal
course of business.

Guarterly defails of foreign exchange exposures
and the steps taken by management to limit the
risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if
matenial.

MNon-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or
listing requirements and shareholders service
such as non-payment of dividend, delay in
share transfer, etc.

Dividend recommendation and/or declaration.

Guarterly summary of the bommowings, loans
taken/given and investments made.

Internal audit findings, Secretarial Audit Report,
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report and
Statutory Auditors Report, including Reports
on Limited Review of Financial Results.

Company's Financial 5tatements, Auditor's
Repori and Board’s Report and annexures
thereto, Report on Corporate Governance
and annexures therefo, Business Responsibility
and Sustainability Reporting and Management
Discussion and Analysis.

Formation/ reconstifution/ dissolution of Board
Committess.

. Terms of Reference of Board Committees.

Declaration of Independent Directors at the
time of appointment and thereafter annually

Wi,

WAV,

XV
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and as & when there is any change in the
circumstances which may affect their status as
an Independent Director.

Disclosure of Director's interest and their
shareholding, a dedlaration regarding eligibility
to act as Director in Form DIR-8 in comphance
with provisions of Section 164 of the Act
and declaration of comphance with Code of
Conduct in ferms of the provisions of Regulation
26(3) of the Listing Regulations.

Appointment of Cost Auditors, Internal Auditors
and Secretanal Auditor and fiding their fee, as
recommended by the Audit Committee.

Recommending the appointment of and fixing
of remuneration of the Statutory Auditors as
recommended by the Audit Committea.

. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

under Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositones and Participants) Regulations,
2018.

Gluarterly Investor Grievance Redressal
Report under Regulation 13{3) of the Listing
Regulations, Shareholding Pattern under
Regulation 31{1){b) of Listing Regulations
and Corporate Governance Report under
Regulation 27 of Listing Regulations.

oL Approval, quarterly review and recommendation

WD,

to the shareholders wherever required of
Related Party Transachons.

Recommendation of appointment,
reappointment and removal of Directors to the
shareholders.

Annual evaluation of performance of the Board,
its Committees, Individual Directors including
the Chairman of the Board.

Approval / review of corporate policies and
codes.

Details of pre-clearance taken by Designated
Persons and trading thereof in the equity shares
of the Company.

6.2 Board Material distributed in advance:

i. Motfice, Agenda and accompanying notes are
circulated to the Directors well in advance, pursuant
to the stipulated timelines. The Agenda papers
incorporate all material information to facilitate
focused discussions and effective decision making at
the meatings. Where it is not practicable fo enclose
any document fo the Agenda, the same is tabled at
the meeating with specific reference to this effect in
the Agenda papers in accordance with 55-1.
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ii. Inspecial or exceptional circumstances, addifional or
supplementary item{s) may be added to the Agenda.
Sensitive subjects may be discussed at the meeting
without written material being circulated inadvance,
in accordance with 55-1.

. During the First Board Meeting of each Financial year,
general consent is obtained for providing Notes on
agenda items in the nature of Unpublished Price
Sensifive Information at a shorter nofice.

iv. TheCompany hasimplemented a robust framework
for the meetings of the Board and its Committees to
ensure an informed and efficient decision-making
processes.

Recording Minutes of proceedings at Board
and Committee Meetings:

The Company Secretary meticulously records the minufes
of the proceedings of each Board and Committee
Meeting. Draft minutes are circulated to all the members of
the Board / Committee for their comments/ suggestions,
if any within a period of ¥ days, in accordance with Sechion
118 of the Act read with 55-1. The Company ensures
compliance with the Act, Secretanial Standards and Listing
Regulations regarding the convening and conduct of
Board, Committee and General Meetings.

Post-Meeting Follow-up mechanism:

The update and noting of actions taken on decisions or
minufes from previous meefings occur durnng subsequent
meetings for review and acknowledgment by the Board
or Committees, respectively.

Compliance:

The Company Secretary hold the responsibility of
ensuring adherence to all the applicable laws and
regulations including, the Act along with its associated
Rules and Schedules, and the Secretanal Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, each as
amended from time to time.

The Company is committed to adhere to the Act,
applicable Secretarial 5Standards and Listing Regulations
concerning the Company and conducts the meetings of
the Board of Directors, its Committees and the General
Meetings of the members of the Company accordingly.

Board Meetings held during the financial year
2023-24:

The Board met 5 (Five) times during the FY 2023-24 on
April 13, 2023; May 23, 2023; July 27, 2023; October 26,
2023 and January 23, 2024. The Company ensured that
the interval between any two Board Meetings remained
comfortably within the maximum allowed gap of 120 days.
Additionally, cerfain business matters were addressed
through resolution by circulation during the year.

To facilitate seamless parficipation, enhance accessibility
and convenience for all Directors, the Company provided

the facility of video conferencing, permitted under
Section 173(2) of the Act read together with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Meefings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014,

Furthermore, no leave of absence was granted to any
directors as all Directors were present in the meatings
during the year under review. The same was duly
recorded in both the altendance register and the minutes
of the respective mestings, ensuring fransparency and
compliance.

6.7 Familiarizsation Programme for Independent

6.8

Directors:

An orientation and familiarisation programme for
all, including Independent Directors, was held on
February 10, 2024. Detailed information regarding the
confent and structure of the programme is available
on the website of the Company at hitps:/fwww,
radiocity.in/images/uploads/pdf/Crientationand

FamiliarisationProgramme-2023-241707998525 pdf

Ouorum:

The quaorum of the Board has been adopted pursuant to
Regulation 17{2A) of the Listing Regulations and Section
103 of the Act, i.e. the quorum of a Meeting of the Board
of Directors shall be one-third of the total sfrength of the
Board or three directars, whichaver is higher, including
at least one independent director. Additionally, the
parficipation of directors through video conferencing or
by other audio-visual means is counted for the purpose
of quorum.

BOARD COMMITTEES:

The Board Committees are set up with the formal approval
from the Board to fulfill specific, well-defined roles, which
are considered to be performed by the members of the
Board in accordance with the good govermance practice.
The Board oversees the execution of these responsibilities
by the Committees and holds them accountable for their
action. The minutes of the meefings of all Committees
are placed before the Board for review. Additionally, the
Board Committees have the authority to invite special
attendees to their meetings when deemed appropnate.

As of March 31, 2024, the Board has the following
Committees in accordance with the Act and Listing
Regulations:

1.  Audit Committes;

2. Stakeholder's Relationship Committeg;

3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committes;
4, MNomination & Remuneration Committes;

5. Risk Management Commitiee.
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In addifion to thesa statutory Committees, the Board has
formed a Management Committee primarily to streamline
administrative and day to day processes, such as:

*  Approval of material agreements.

L Authorization of fransachions related fo bank account
openings.

. Granting power of attorney/authonzations.

. Representation of the Company before government/
statutory authorities, etc.

Furthermore, the Board has constituted wvarious
Committees for specific purposes as delegated by the
Board from time to time, such as the Bonus Committea for
issue and allotment of Mon-Cumulative Non-Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares under the Scheme of
Arrangement.

STATUTORY COMMITTEES:
7.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 18 of
the Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the Act
and Rules made thereunder, the Audit Committee of the
Board has been constituted to oversee and supervise
the Company's financial reporting process, with a view
to provide accurate, fimely and proper disclosures and
financial reportfing.

i.  Terms of Reference:
The role of the Audit Committee includes the
following:

1. Owerview of the Company's financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommendation for appointment, re-
appointment, terms of appointment and, if
required, the replacement or removal of the
internal auditor, cost auditor and statutory
auditors and the fixation of audit fees and
remuneration.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors
for any other services rendered by them, as
applicable.

4,  Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor's report
thereon before submission to the Board for
approval with particular reference to:

(@ Matters required in the Director's
Responsibility Statement to be included
in the Board's report in terms of clause (c)
of subsection 3 of Section 134 of the Act.

b} Changes,if any, in accounting policies and
prachices and reasons for the same.

|E|Il—0 Statutory Reperts }—i|l1

ic) Major accounting entries involving
astimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management.

(d) Significant adjustments made in the
financial statements ansing out of audit
findings.

(e} Compliance with listing and other
legal requirements relating to financial
staterments.

ifi Disclosure of any Related Party
Transactions.

gl Modified opinion{s) in the draft audit
report.

(h) Compliance with accounfing standards.
1} Contingent liabilities.

(Il  Claims against the Company and their
affect on the financial statements; the
term “financial statement” shall have the
meaning ascribed fo such term under
Section 2{40) of the Act.

Reviewing, with the management:

(@) fthe quarterly, half-yearly and annual
financial statements and such other
perodical statements before submission /
recommending fo the Board for approwval
along with the limited review reports
thereon as the case maybe;

(b) The statement of uses/application of funds
raised through an issue (public issue, rights
issue, preferantial issue, etc.); and

ic) the statement of funds ufilized for
purposes other than those stated in the
offer document/ prospectus/notfice and
the report submitied by the monitoring
agency, monitoring the ufilization of
proceeds of a public or rights issue or
preferential issue or qualified institufions
placement, and making appropriate
recommendations fo the Board fo take up
steps in the matter.

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's
independence and performance along-with
the effactiveness of the audit process.

Examination of the financial statement and the
auditors report thereon.

Approval or any subsegquent modification
of transactions of the Company with related
parfies and laying down the criteria for granting
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overall approval in line with the Company’s
Policy on Related Party Transactions in respect
of transactions which are repetitive in nature.

Scrutinizing

(a) the need for emnibus approval and
ensuring that such approval is in the
interest of the Company.

(b) inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever it is necessary.

BEvaluation of infernal financial controls and risk
management systems.

Reviewing with the management- performance
of Statutory, Cost and Internal Auditors and also
the adequacy of the infernal condrol systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of the internal audit
function, if any, including the structure of
the internal audit depariment, staffing, and
saniorty of the official heading the depariment,
reporfing structure coverage and frequency of
intarnal audit.

Discussion with Internal Auditors of any
significant findings and follow up thereon.

Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the Internal Auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control
systemns of material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board.

Discussing with statutory auditors, internal
auditors, secrefarial auditors and cost auditors
befora the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

Scrutinizing the reasons for substantial defaults
in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment
of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review the funchioning of the Whistie Blower/
Vigil Mechanism.

Formulating the scope, funchoning, penodicity,
and methodology for conducting the intemnal
audit in consultation with the Internal Auditor.

Approval of appointment of CFO {or the whole-
time finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging
that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the
candidate.

2L

22.

23

24,

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or
advances from / investment by the Company
inits subsidiaries exceeding 7 100 crores or 100
of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever
is lower including existing loans/advances/
investments existing as on the date of coming
into force of this provision.

To consider and comment on rationale, cost-
benefits and impact of schemes involving
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the
Company and its shareholders.

Reviewing compliance with the provisions of
SEBI {Prohibition of Insider Trading} Regulations,
2015, as amended from time to time and shall
verify that the systems for inftemal control for
the prohibifion of insider trading are adequate
and are operafting effectively.

Carrying out any other function as is menfioned
in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committes.

The powers of the Audit Committee shall include the
following:

To investigate any activity within its ferms of
referance.

b. Toseck informafion from any employee.

. To obfain outside legal or other professional
advice, and

d. To secure the attendance of outsiders with
relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

The Audit Committee shall also

mandatorily review the following

information:

1. Management's discussion and analysis of
financial condition and results of operafions.

2.  Management letters/letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.

3.  Internal Audit Reports relating to internal
control weaknessas.

4. The appointment, removal, and terms of
remuneration of the chief internal auditor.

L. Statement of deviations:

(a) Quarterly statement of dewviation(s)
including the report of monitoring
agency, if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) in ferms of Regulation 32(1)
of the Listing Regulations; and

{b] Annual statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the
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offer document/prospectus/notice in
terms of Regulation 32(7) of the Listing
Regulations.

The Audit Committee may call for the comments of
thie auditors about infernal control systems, the audit
scope, including audit observations and to review of
financial statements before their submission to the
Board. It may also discuss any related issues with the
infernal and statutory auditors as well as Company's
management.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee possesses the
authority to investigate into any matter in relation fo
the items specified above or referred to it by the
Board. It also has the power to obtain professional
advice from external sources and has unrestricted
access fo Company records.

The Auditors of a Company and the Key Managerial
Personneal have a right to be heard in the meetings of
the Audit Committea when it considers the auditor's
report but do not have the right fo vote.

Pursuant to Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations,
the Company has established a vigil mechanism
for Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns, including the unauthorized disclosure of
unpublished price sensitive information concerning
the Company. This mechanism is designed to
ensure adequate protection against vichimization
for individuals utilizing it and provides for the direct
access to the Chairperson of the Committes in an
appropriate or exceptional case. Details regarding
the establishment of such mechanism are disclosed
on the website of the Company at www.radiocity.in.

Furthermore, as per the provisions of the Listing
Regulations, all related party transactions and
any subsequent material modifications thereof
(if any) entered into by the Company shall require
prior approval of the Audit Committee. Only
the Independent Directors serving on the Audit
Committes are authorised to approve the related
party transactions.

All recommendations presented by the Committee
during the financial year 2023-24 were duly accepted
by the Board.

Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24:

The Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times during the
FY 2023-24 on April 13, 2023; May 23, 2023; July 27,
2023; October 26, 2023 and January 23, 2024. The

inferval befween any two Meetings was well within
the maximum allowed gap of 120 days.

Composition of the Committee and Attendance in
Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial
year 2023-24:
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The Audit Committee consists of four Directors, with
Mr. Vijay Tandon serving as the Chairman of the
Committee. The composifion of the Audit Commitfea
adheres fo the requirements stipulated in Section 177
of the Act, read with relevant Rules made thereunder,
as well as Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.
All the members of the Audit Committee possesses
financially literacy and experfise in accounting and
related financial management.

Mr. Vijay Tandon, a Non-Executive Independent
Director of the Company, holds the position of the
Chairman of Audit Committee. Details regarding
the composifion of the Committee, including the
number of meefings attended during the year under
review, are detailed in the below table:

Number
of BEndit
Ny Committee
of Audit Position Held/ Meetin
Committee Category 9=
Memt attemded
the
FY 2023-24
Mr. Vijay Chairman (Non- Soutofs
Tandon Executive and
Independent
Director)
Mr. Anuj Puri Member (Non- Soutefh
Executive and
Independent
Director)
Mr. Member (Non- Loutofh
Madhukar Executive and
Kamath Independent
Diractor)
Mr. Shailesh Member (Mon- Soutofs
Gupta Executive and
Mon-Independent
Director)

Ms. Arpita Kapoor, Company Secrefary of the
Company serves as the Secretary fo the Committea.

The Chairman of the Commiftee was present at the
previous Annual General Meeting held on August
22, 2023 conducted through Video Conferencing/
Other Audio Visual Means.

The Chief Execufive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer are regular invitees to the said meeting.
Representatives of the Statutory Auditors, Internal
Auditors and Credit Rating Agency ("CRISIL")
appointed by the Company to rate its instruments
also attend the Audit Committee Meetings and share
their findings, submit draft reports and address
queeries, if any.

The primary chjective of the Audit Committee is
to oversee and supervise the Company's financial
reporfing process, ensunng accurate, imely and
proper disclosures, as well as financial reporting.
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In accordance with Regulation 18 of the Listing
Regulations, the quorum for the Audit Committee
meefings shall comprise one-third of the members
of the committee or two members, whichever is
higher and must include atleast two Independent
Directors.

NOMINATION &
COMMITTEE:

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 19 of
the Listing Regulations and 5ection 178 of the Act, read
with the Rules made thereunder, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee ("MRC") of the Board has
been consfituted. The primary objective of NRC is to
assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by, infer-
alia, recommending the criteria for Board membership
and senior management roles, recommending the
appointments (including re-appointment), remunerations
and removals of the Board Members and Senior
Management, and specifying the manner for effective
evaluation of the Chairman, Individual Directors,
Committees and the Board as a whole.

REMUNERATION

i.  Terms of Reference:
The role of NRC includes the following:

1. Formulation of the cnteria for determining
gualifications, positive attributes, and
independence of a director and recommend to
the Board a policy, relating fo the remuneration
of the Directors, Key Managernial Personnel and
other employees.

2. For every appointment of an independent
director, the NRC shall evaluate the balance of
skills, knowledge and experience on the Board
and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a
description of the role and capabilifies required
of an independent director. The person
recommended fo the Board for appointment
as an independent director shall have the
capabilities identified in such description. For
the purpose of identifying suitable candidates,
the Committee may:

a.  use the services of an external agencies, if
required;

b. consider candidates from a wide range
of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity;

. consider the fime commitments of the
candidates; and

3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of
Independent Directors and the Board.

4. Devising a policy on Board diversity.

5. Identifying persons who are qualfied fo
become Directors and who may be appointed

in Senior Management in accordance with the
criteria laid down, and recommending to the
Board, their appointment and removal and
shall carry out an evaluation of every director's
performance.

6.  Determination of extension or confinuation of
the term of appointment of the Independent
Directors on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent
Directors.

7. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to Senior Management.

The Momination, Remuneration and Evaluation
Policy of the Company is appended as an annexure
to the Board's Report, constituting an intergral part
of the Annual Report. Additionally, it is accessible
for reference on the website of the Company at
https://www.radiocity.in/images/uploads/pdf/
NRCPolicyMBL231681891299 pdf

The Chairman of the NRC or any other Member of
the Committee, so authorised shall attend the Annual
General Meeting to address the shareholders’
queries.

All recommendations presenfed by the Committes
during the financial year 2023-24 were duly accepted
by the Board.

Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24:

Thea MRC met 3 (three] fimes during the FY 2023-24 on
April 13, 2023; May 23, 2023 and December 21, 2023.

Composition of the Committee and attendance in
NRC meetings during the financial year 2023-24:
Mr. Anuj Puri, Non-Executive and Independent
Director of the Company, helds position of the
Chairman of NRC. Defails regarding the composition
of the Committee, including the number of meetings
attended durning the year under review, are detailed
in the below table:

Number
Name of NRC
of NRC Position Helds Meetings=
Committee Category attended
Members during the
FY 2023-24
Mr. Anuj Pun Chairman
[Non-Executive
and Independeant
Director)
Mr. Vijay Member 3 outof3
Tandon (Mon-Executive
and Independent
DO VI - B S
Mr. Shailesh Member (Mon- Joutof 3
Gupta Executive and
Non-Independent
Director)
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Ms. Anita Member Joutof3
Mayyar (Non-Executive
and Independent
Director)

Ms. Arpita Kapoor, Company 5Secretary of the
Company serves as the Secretary to the Committea.

In accordance with Regulation 19{2A) of the Listing
Regulations, the quorum for the Momination and
Remuneration Committee meetings shall comprise
one-third of the members of the committee or two
members, whichever is higher and must include
afleast one Independent Diractor.

Remuneration of Directors:

Non-Executive Directors Compensation
and Disclosures:

Sitting Fees:

As determined by the Board of Directors, the
Independent Directors are currently paid sitting
fees of ¥ 80,000/~ for attending each Meeating of the
Board and ¥ 20,000/- for aHending each Meeting of
the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committea, Stakeholder’s Relationship Committea
and Risk Management Commitfee.

Below are the details of Sithing Fees paid o the
Independent Directors for the financial year 2023-24:
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into any agreement for himself or on behalf of any
other person, with any shareholder or any other third
party with regard to compensation or profit- sharing
in connection with dealings in the secunties of the
Company, without prior approval from the Board
as well as from shareholders by way of an ordinary
resolufion. No such instances were reported during
the financial year 2023-24.

Performance Evaluation criteria for the Board, its
Committees and Individual Directors including
Independent Directors and Chairman of the
Company:

Pursuant to Sections 134 and 178 of the Act along
with Regulations 17 and 19 of the Listing Regulafions,
an annual performance evaluation of the Board, its
Committees, the Chairman and Individual Directors
and Pear Evaluation was carried out in the financial
year 2023-24. Details of this evaluation process are
provided in the Board's Report, which is an integral
part of this Annual Report.

The parameters considered for ewvaluation of
Independent Directorsinclude infaralia, constructive
parficipation in meetings, intellectual independence,
and engagement with colleagues on the Board. All
Directors were subjected to peer evaluation as part
of this comprehensive assessment process.

1.3 STAKEHOLDERS
COMMITTEE:
In compliance with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations
read with Section 178 of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, the Stakeholders Relationship Committea
("SRC") has been conshituted by the Board infer-alia for
speedy disposal of grievances / complaints relating fo
stakeholders / investors.

RELATIONSHIP

Name | Sitting
mm::fa:: tatgy & mLE
Mr. Vijay Independant 480
Tandon | Director )
Mr. Anuj Puri Independeant 4.60
. Director §
Mr. Madhukar Independeant 540
Kamath | _ Director | )
Ms. Anita Independant 450
Nayyar | _ Director | -
Mr. Rai Independant 450
Sardana Diirector

Notes:

a. On request of Non-Executive Directors'
Mr. Rahul Gupta and Mr. Shailesh Gupta, the
Board decided not to pay the sitting fees for
the meetings, until otherwise decided.

b. The Company has not granted any Stock
Options to its Directors.

c. The Company does not pay any commission to
the Directors.

d. The Company does not have any Executive
Directors.

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, no
employee, including Key Managenal Personnel or
Director or Promoter of a listed entity, shall enter

Terms of Reference:
Tha role of SRC includes the following:

1)  Resolving the grievances of the security holders
of the Company including complaints related
to transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt
of annual reports, non-receipt of declared
dividends, issue of new / duplicate cerfificates,
general meetings efc.

2}  BRewview of measures taken for effective exaercise
of voting nghts by shareholders.

3  Review of adherence to the service standards
adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent.

4)  Review of the vanous measures and inifiatives
taken by the Company for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring
timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual
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reports / statutory notices by the shareholders
of the Company.

5}  Look into the various aspects of interest of the
securty holders of the Company.

The Chairman of the SRC of the Committee so
authorised, shall be present at the Annual General
Meating, to answer the shareholders’ queries.

All recommendations presented by the Committee
during the financial year 2023-24 were duly accepted
by the Board.

Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24:
The SRC met 4 (Four) imes dunng the FY 2023-24 on
May 23, 2023; July 27, 2023; October 26, 2023 and
January 23, 2024,

Composition of the Committee and attendance in
SRC Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24:
Mr. Madhukar Kamath, Mon-Executive and
Independent Director of the Company, holds position
of the Chairman of the Stakeholder's Relationship
Committea. Details regarding the composition of
the Committee, including the number of meetings
attended during the year under review, are detailed
in the below table:

Number
Name of SRC
of SRC Position Held/ [ =il
Committee Category attended
Members during the
FY 2023-24
Mr. Madhukar|  Chairman (Mon- 4 put of 4
Kamath Executive and
Independent
Director)
Mr. Shailesh Member (Mon- 4 putofd
Gupta Executive and
Mon-Independeant
Director)
Mr. Rahul Member (Non- 4 out of 4
Gupta Executive and
Mon-Independent
Director)

Compliance Officer:

Ms. Arpita Kapoor, Company Secretary is designated
as the Compliance Officer of the Company for
complying with the requirements of the Securities
Law, including the Listing Regulations. The
designated e-mail address for investor complaints is
investor@myradiocity.com.

Investor Grievance Redressal:

The SRC specifically responsible for addressing
the shareholder redressal and investor complaints,
focusing on various matters such as refund orders,
share fransfers, dematenalization/rematerialisation,
sub-division or consolidation of share certificates,

issuance of duplicate share cerfificates, non-receipt
of the annual reports, non-receipt of declared
dividends efc. In addition, the Committee provides
advices on matters which can facilitate batter investor
services and relations.

As per the cerfificate issued by the Registrarand Share
Transfer Agent of the Company, KFin Technologies
Limited ("the RTA" / "KFintech"), during the year,
one (1) complaint was received from an equity
shareholder of the Company and MNil complaints
received from NCRPS holders. The complaint has
been resolved to the satisfaction of the complainants.
Furthermore, no investor complaint was pending at
the beginning or at the end of the year.

The break-up of these complaints for Equity Shares
and NCRPS are as under:

Number of

Nature of Complaints Ymber of
Complaints for Equity mnlmpnmlﬂ.m
shares

Mon receipt of 1 0
Dividend Warrant _ _

Non-receipt of 0 1]
Secunties(Complaint

received through

Regulatory

Authorities L.e., SEBI,

MNSE & BSE)

Nan-receipt of 0 0
AnnualReport | . | —
MNon-receipt of ] 0
Securifies after
_T_rg_p_;fer.-"T ransmissiqr'! : B | -
Total [ 1 | o

One complaint received from Equity Shareholders
was resolved to the safisfaction of the sharcholders
and no complaint was pending as on March 31, 2024.

Nodal Officer:
In accordance with the |IEPF Rules, the Board of
Directors of the Company has appointed Ms. Arpita

Kapoor, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of
the Company as the Nodal Officer of the Company.

7.4 CORPFORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
COMMITTEE:
In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the
Act read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules 2014, the Company has constituted a
Corporate 5ocial Responsibility ("C5R™) Committee.
Statutory disclosures with respect fo the C5R Committee
and C5R activities form part of the Board's Report.

Terms of Reference:
The role of CSR Committee includes the following:

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a
C5R Policy indicating activities fo be underiaken
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by the Company in areas or subject, specified
in Schedule VIl of the Act and Rules made
thereunder.

2. To recommend the amount of expenditure to
be incurred on the CSR activities.

3. Tomaonitor the C5R Policy of the company from
time to fime.

4.  To institute the tfransparent moniforing
mechanism for implementation of CSR
projects or programs or activities underfaken
by the Company and perform any function as
stipulated in the Act and any applicable laws, as
may be prescribed from fime to time.

The details of the CSR activities carried out by the
Company are menfioned in the Board’s Report
forming part of the Annual Report of the Company.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the
Company (“C5R Policy”) is uploaded on the website
of the Company at https:/fwww.radiocity.in/images/
uploads/pdf/CorporateSocialResponsibilityPolicy-
MBL202116182135091627568756. pdf

All recommendations made by the Committee
during the financial year 2023-24 were duly accepted
by the Board.

Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24:
The C5R Committes met 2 (Two) times during the
FY 2023-24 on May 23, 2023 and January 23, 2024.

Composition of Committee and attendance in C5R
Committee meeting during the financial year 2023-24:
Mr. Shailesh Gupta, Non-Executive Director of the
Company, holds position of the Chairman of the C5R
Committee. Details regarding the composifion of
the Committee comprised of 3 (Three) members.
Details regarding the composition of the Commities,
including the number of meetings attended during
the year under review, are detailed in the below
table:

Name
of CER Poszition Held/ Qoo e
Committee Category
Members
Mr. Shailesh Chairman (Mon- 2outof?
Gupta Execufive and
Mon- Independent
Director)
Mr. Anuj Puri Member (Non- 2outof?
Executive &
Independent
Director)
Mr. Rahul Member {Non- 2outof2
Gupta Executive and
Maon- Independent
Director)
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7.5 RISKE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:
In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the
Listing Regulations, the Company has constituted the Risk
Management Committee ("RMC"} for monitaring and
reviewing of the risk management plan and specifically,

cyber security.

The role of the RMC, infer-alia, to approve the strafegic risk
management framework of the Company, and review the
risk mifigation strategies and results of risk identification,
pricrifization and mitigation plans for all business units /
corporate functions, as also the measures taken for cyber
security.

i.  Terms of reference:
The role of RMC includes the following:

1)  Toformulate a detailed risk management policy
which shall include:

fa) A framework for identification of
infernal and external risks specifically
faced by the listed entity, in particular
including financial, operational, secioral,
sustainability (particularly, ESG related
risks), information, cyber securty nsks or
any other risk as may be determined by
the Committea.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including
systems and processes for internal control
of identified risks.

i)  Business confinuity plan.

2]  To ensure that appropriate methodology,
processes and systems are in place to monifor
and evaluate nsks associated with the business
of the Company.

3} Discuss with senior management, the
Company's Risk Management System ("RMS")
and provide oversight as may be needed.

4} Ensureitis apprised of the most significant risks
along with the action management which is
taking and how it is ensuring effective RM5.

5}  Review and recommend changes to Risk
Management Policy and / or associated
frameworks / plans including cyber securify,
processes and practices of the Company.

&) Be aware and concur with the Company's risk
appefite including nsk levels, if any, set for
financial and operational risks.

7} Ensure that the Company is taking appropriate
measures to achieve prudent balance between
risk and reward in both ongoing and new
business activities.

129



130

Radio City
L TRTITLAT HITRITT

Radic's Digital Renaissance

8) Reviewing risk disclosure statements in any
public documents or disclosures.

9  Rewview the Company's portfolio of nsks and
consider it against the Company's risk appetite.

10) Being apprised of significant nsk exposures
of the Company and whether management is
responding appropnately to them.

11) The RMC shall have access to any internal
information necessary to fulfill its oversight role.

12) Tokeep the Board of Directors informed about
the nature and contents of its discussions,
recormmendation and action to be taken.

13) To ensure that appropriate methodology
processes and sysfems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the businass
of the Company.

14) To penodically review the risk management
policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics
and evolving complexity.

15) The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer, if
any) shall be subject to review by the Risk
Management Committea.

18) Perform such other activities related to this
Policy as requested by the Board of Directors
or as may be stipulated in any applicable
provisions as amended from time to fime or to
address issues related fo any significant subject
within its term of reference.

The Risk Management Policy of the Company s uploaded
on the website of the Company at hitps:/fwww.
radiocity.in/images/uploads/pdf/Risk-Management-
Policy-updated-August-3-2002168691525] pdf

All recommendations made by the Committee
during the financial year 2023-24 were duly accepted
by the Board.

Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24:
The RMC met 2 {fwo) fimes during the FY 2023-24 on
April 13, 2023 and October @, 2023.

Composition of Committee and attendance in RMC
meefing during the financial year 2023-24:

Mr. Vijay Tandon, Non-Executive and Independent
Director of the Company, holds position of the
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee.
Details regarding the composition of the Committee,
including the number of meetings attended during
the year under review, are detailed in the below
table:

Number
N of RIMIC
of RMC Position Held  [wiimnc.iy
Meml attended
during the
| FY 2023-24

Mr. Vijay Chairman (Non- 2 outof 2
Tandon Executive &

Independeant

Dir@du_r]_l_

Ms_ Anita Member (Non- 2outof2
MNaywyar Executive &

Independent
B __Director) B
Mr. Ravi Member (Mon- 2 outof 2
Sardana Executive &

Independent

Director)

Mr. Ashit Member {Chief 2 outof 2
Kukian Executive Officar)

7.6 MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Pursuant o the provisions of the Schedule IV of the Actand
Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, the Independent
Directors of the Board of the Company met on January 23,
2024 wathout the presence of Mon-Executive Directors or
Management Personnel, except for the parhal presence
of Company Secretary to perform the duties of Secrefary
to the Mecting.

The Independent Directors inter-alia conduct the
following businesses at their meeatings:

(a) evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and the Board of Diractors as a whole;

(b} evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the
Company, faking into account the views of the other
Mon-Executive Directors;

(€) evaluation of the quality, content and timelines
of flow of information between the Management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform its duties; and

(d) other related matters.

The terms of reference are aligned with Secion 149 of the
Act read with the Rules made thereunder and Schedule
IV thereto and Regulations 17 and 25 of the Listing
Regulations, and any other applicable provision.

NON-STATUTORY COMMITTEES:
7.7 MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The Management Commitiee was consfituted by the
Board of Directors on February 9, 2017 for operational
convenience for businesses like: to fake note and approve
material agreements, approve fransactions pertaining to
opening of bank accounts, giving power of attorney/
authorizations, etc. as may be needed by the Board
and employees to represent the Company before the
Government/statutory authorifies, etc.
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Terms of reference:

The role of Management Committee includes the
following:

1. Opening and Closing of Current Accounts held
in the name of the Company in various banks
required for conducting day to day business
activities or administrative purposes and
modification in the authornzation for operating
the account.

2. Approvals and documentation required by the
Banks for closure of charge registered in the
name of the Company.

3. To authorize any concemed person on behalf
of the Company to give such declarations,
affidavits, certificates, consents and authorifies
as may be required, by the Company from time
to fime.

4.  Granting authority for signing and exacution
of various agreements, contracts, documents,
deeds etfc. for Leave & License Agreements,
Lease Deeds and such other necessary contfracts
as may be required to be executed by then
Company, from fime fo time.

5. To do all such acis, deeds, maiters and things
and execute all such other documents, etc. as it
may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary
or desirable, for handling timely day fo day
affairs of the Company.

All recommendations made by the Committea
during the financial year 2023-24 were duly accepted
by the Board.

Meefings held during the financial year 2023-24:
The Management Committee met 5 (five) fimes
during the FY 2023-24 on Apnl 13, 2023; May 23,
2023; July 27, 2023; October 26, 2023 and January
23, 2024,

Composition of Committee and attendance in
Management Committee meeting during the
financial year 2023-24:

Mr. Shailesh Gupta, Mon-Executive Director of the
Company holds position of the Chairman of the
Management Committee. Details of the composition
of the Commitiee, including the number of meetings
attended during the year under review, are detailed
in the below table:
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Number of
Management
Hape: of i Committese
Committee T o=ition Held Meeting=s
Members attended
dnring the
| FY 2023-24
Mr. Shailesh Chairman (Mon- Soutofs
Gupta Executive & Non-
Independent
| Directar)
Mr. Rahul Gupta. Member (Non- Soutof5s
Executive & Non-
Independent
| Director)
Mr. Ashit Kukian | Member {Chief Soutofs
Exocutive Officer
Director)

7.9 BONUS COMMITTEE:

The Bonus Committee, inifially formed by the Board of
Directors during their Meeting on October 22, 2020, to
oversee the issuance of Bonus Equity Shares, underwent
reconstitution during the Board Meeting held on January
24,2023,

Subsequently, the Committee was dissolved on July 27,
2024, upon fulfilment of its infended purpose.

I.10 SENTIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

The details of Senior Management Personnel including
changes therein since the close of the previous financial
year is as under:

el March3l,
2024 2023

Names

Mr. Ashit Kukian

Mr. Prazhant Domadia
Ms. Arpita Kapoor

Ms. Sagorika Kantharia
Ms. Rachna Kanwar
s Posiriesl: N

Mr. Alok Barita

Mr. Kartik Kalla

S8

DRSS RIS

SRR

INTERNAL AUDIT SYSTEM:

The Company has a robust infernal audit system that
confinuously evaluates the corporate risks. To maintain
the objectivity, an independent firm M/s. KPMG, has been
appointed as Infernal Auditors. The Audit Committee
approves the Infernal Audit 5cope and their periodic
reviews of audit observations ensure effective oversight.
Any necessary directions stemming from these reviews
are promptly issued.
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At the core of our processes is the wide use of technology
instead of human infervention that ensures the robustness
of internal control, integrity and timely submission of
reports including Management Repaorts (MI5).

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGENMENT
PERSONNEL:

The Company has developed and implemented the Code
of Conduct for its Directors and Senior Management
Parsonnel as required in terms of Regulation 17 of the
Listing Regulations. This Code is a comprehensive Code
applicable to all Directors as well as members of Senior
Management detailing the standards of business conduct,
ethics, and governance.

A copy of the Code is available on the website of
the Company at hitps://www.radiocity.in/images/
{t/CodaafBusi c Ethi

10.

MBL14914766141627568630.pdf and is circulated fo all the
members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel
and the compliance of the same is affirmed by them
annually under Regulation 26{3) of the Listing Regulations.

Inaccordance with Schedule V(D) of the Listing Regulations,
a declaration signed by Mr. Ashit Kulian, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company confirming that the members of
Board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
comphance with the Code of Conduct of Board and Senior
Management personnel is included in this Annual Report.

CEO /CFO CERTIFICATION:

The CEQ/CFO have certified to the Board, inter alia the
accuracy of financial statements and adequacy of internal
controls for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, as
required under Regulation 33 (1) () read with Schedule
IV of Listing Regulations. The said certificate is annexed
to and forms part of this Corporate Governance Report.

Special Rezclution(s) paszed at the General Meetings
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At the 24™ Annual General Meeting held on August 22, 2023
no Special Resolution passed.

.-ﬁ-t tﬁ.e_i.i;";ﬁ;lnual.é;nera.l. h.léeiing heEd c:n..ﬁ;.ugusl 232[':'22
the shareholders passed one (1) special resolution for:
1L

Appoiniment of Mr. Ravi Sardana (DIN- 06938773) as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
for a term of five (5) years to hold office up to May 23,
2027.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
The details of Annual General Meetings held in last three (3) years are as under:
Tinancial  Day, Dat®  venue of the Meeting
022-23 Tuesday, | Through Video Conference,
August 22, | venue deemed to be the
2023 at 11:30 | registered office of the Company
a.m. situated at Music Broadcast
Limited, RNA Corporate Park,
Off. Western Express Highway,
Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai
- 400051
2021-22 Tuesday, | Through Video Conference,
August 23, | venue deemed to be the
2022 at 02:00 | registered office of the Company
p.m. situated at Music Broadcast
Limited, RMA Corporate Parlk,
Off. Western Express Highway,
Kalamagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai
- 400051
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Financial Day, Date

Year | andTi Venue of the Meeting

2020-21 Tuesday, | Through Video Conference,
September |venue deemed to be the
14, 2021 at | registered office of the Company
03100 p.m. |situated at Music Broadcast

Limited, RNA Corporate Park,

Off. Western Express Highway,
KalaMagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai

- 400051
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Special Resolution(s) passed at the General Meetings

At the 22* Annual General Meeting held on September 14,
2021 the shareholders passed three (3) special resclufions
for:

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Madhukar Kamath (DIN-
00230314) as an Independent Director of the Company
for a second term of five (5) years to hold office up to
May 24, 2027.

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Vijay Tandon (DIN: 001546305)
as Chairman and Mon-Executive Independent Director

for a second term of five (&) years to hold office up to
Movember 23, 2026.

3. Approval of scheme of loan for the eligible employeas
of the Company, subject to approval of the scheme
of arrangement by Mational Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai for issuance of bonus non-converfible non-
curmulative redeemable preference shares ("MCRPS™) to
non-promoter shareholders and subsequent listing of
MWCRPS at BSE Limited and Mational Stock Exchange India
Limited.

The shareholders passed all the resclutions with requisite majority, including special resolutions set out in the respactive

notices.

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal convened Meetings of the Equity Shareholders and Unsecured Credifors were
held during the Financial Year 2022-23 for approving the Scheme of Ammangement between the Company and its Shareholders
for issuance of Bonus Mon-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS") wherein each non promoter
shareholder was allotted 1 NCRPS for every 10 Equity Shares of face value of T 2 each held by them as on record date. The MCRPS
are of face value of ¥ 10 each issued af the premium of ¥ %0 each redeemable after 3 years from the date of allotment at a premium
of ¥ 20 1.e. per NCRPS, at a price of ¥ 120 per NCRPS details as under:

Day, Date and Time Venue of the Meeting
Meating of the Equity Through Video Conference,
Shareholders held on | venue deemed to be the
Thursday, June 23, 2022 registered office of the
at 02:00 p.m. Company situated at Music

| Broadcast Limited, RNA
Mosting of ihe | Corporate Park, Off. Western
Unsecured Creditars Express Highway, Kalanagar,

held on Thursday, June | Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051
23, 2022 at 03:30 p.m.

Resolution Resolution
T . Item p i
Special Approval of Scheme of Arrangement by Yas
Resolution | the Equity Shareholders of the Company
in the meeting convened pursuant to
Orders of the Hon'ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
Reguisite | Approval of Scheme of Arrangement by Yeas
Majority | the Unsecured Creditors of the Company
in the meeting convened pursuant to
| Orders of the Hon'ble National Company
Law Tnbunal, Mumbai Bench

12. POSTAL BALLOT:

value of ¥ 10 each on Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible

13. CORPORATE

13.1 Payment of Dividend

Dwring the financial year 2023-24, no resolution was passed
through Postal Ballot. Mo resolufion requiring postal ballot
is proposed to be placed at the ensuing Annual General
Maating for obtaining shareholders’ approval.
BENEFITS TO
INVESTORS:

to Non-Conwvertible
Non-Cumnulative Redeemable Preference

Shareholders:

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on January 23,
2024 have declared an interim dividend of 0.1% of face

Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS") i.e ¥ 001 per
NCRPS for the financial year 2023-24.

13.21ssue of Bonus Non-Convertible Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares to
non-promoter shareholders of the Company:
The Board of Directors in their Meeting held on October
22, 2020 approved the S5cheme of the Arrangement
between the Company and its shareholders for issue of
1 {one} NCRPS of the face value of ¥ 10 each issued at a
premium of ¥ 90 per NCRPS for every 10 Equity Shares held
of face value of ¥ 2 each, redeemable at the expiry of 36
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maonths from the date of allotment of shares, by ufilising
the General Reserves/ Other Reserves of the Company.

Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
by its order dated December 23, 2022, approved the
Scheme of Arrangement.

The Bonus Committes at its Meeting held on January 19,
2023 allotted 8969 597 NCRPS of face value of ¥ 10 each,
bearing coupon rate of 0.1% p. a., to the shareholders
holding shares as on record date i.e., Friday, January
13, 2023. The final listing and trading approval for the
Bonus NCRPS was received from the BSE Limited and
Mational 5tock Exchange of India Limited on April 18, 2023
respectively. The NCRPS of the Company are frading on
baoth the Stock Exchanges w.ef. April 20, 2023,

Sub-division of Equity Shares of the Company:
In order to improve the liquidity of Company’s shares
and with a view to encourage the parficipation of small
investors by making Equity Shares of the Company
affordable, the Company sub-divided equity share of the
Company of the face value of ¥ 10/~ (Rupees Ten only)
each info fully paid-up Five (5} Equity Shares of the face
value of T 2/~ (Rupees Two only) each as on the record date
fived by the Company on February 21, 2019, pursuant to
the resolution passed by Members through Postal Ballot
and e-voting, on February 05, 2019

13.4 Buyback of Equity Shares of the Company:

14,
14.1
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The Board of Directors in its meeting, held on July 24,
2018, had approved buyback proposal for the purchase
of fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of ¥ 10/~
{Rupees Ten only) each, by the Company, at a price not
exceeding T 385/~ (Rupees Three Hundred and Eighty-
Five Only) per equity share by the means of the cpen
market through stock exchange mechanism, subject to
maximum buyback amount of T 5,700 lakhs, representing
Q.87 ¥ of the aggregate of the tofal paid-up equity share
capital and free reserves of the Company. The Company
had bought back, 1745,077 Equity Shares at an average
price of ¥ 326.61/- per Equity Share.

Accordingly, the Company deployed ¥ 5,699.63
lakhs {excluding Transaction Costs), which represents
approximately 99.99% of the Maximum Buyback Size.

OTHER DISCLOSURES:

Disclosures on materially significant related
party transactions:

There were no significant or material related party
transactions that have taken place during the year that
could potenfially conflict the Company's interest af large.
Detailed related party information and transactions are
provided in Mote No. 24 of the Annual Report.

All related party transactions are reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board on a quarterly basis, adhering
to the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation
23 of the Listing Regulations. These transactions are

nagofiated at an arm's length basis and are only intended
to further the interest of the Company. All related party
transactions for FY 2023-24 placed before the audit
committee were approved only by the independent
director of the Audit Committoe.

The Company has disclosed the policy on dealing with
related party transactions pursuant to Regulation 23 of
the Listing Regulations is available on the website of the
Company at https://www.radiocity.inf/images/uploads/
pdf/RPTPolicy-MBL January? 42022] atestl 646211685 pdf

For further details regarding the Related Party Transactions
and the policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions,
the shareholders may refer to the Board's Report, forming
part of this Annual Report.

14.2 Material Subsidiaries

Pursuant to requirements of Listing Regulations, the
Company has adopted the policy determining material
subsidiaries and the said policy is available on the
website of the Company at hitps:/'www.radiocity.in/
images/uploads/pdf/Policy-for-Defermining-Material-
Subsidairies-MBL15517833761627568888 pdf Pursuant to
Regulation 1&6{1)(c) of the Listing Regulations, the Company
has no subsidiaries as on March 31, 2024.

14.5 Pecuniary Relationship and Transactions of

Non-Executive Director with MBL:

The Company pays sitfing fees fo the Independent Non-
Executive Directors as detailed 7(B) (3) above. Inaccordance
with the Listing Regulations, no employee, including key
managerial personnel or director or promoter of a listed
entity, shall enter into any agreement for himself or on
behalf of any other person, with any shareholder or any
other third party with regard to compensation or profit-
sharing in connection with dealings in the securities of the
Company, without prior approval from the Board as well
as from shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution.

Mo such instances were reported during the financial year
2023-24.

14.4Detailzs of Non-Compliance by the Company,

penalties, stricture imposed on the Company
by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any statutory
authorities or any matter related to capital
markets:

The Company has complied with all requirements of the
Regulatory Authorities. No penalfies / stnictures were
imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or
any Statutory Authority on any matter related to capital
market ovier the last three years. There were no regulatory
orders pertaining to the Company for financial year 2023-
2.

14.5 Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider

Trading:

The Company has formulated the Code of Conduct to
Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Designated
Persons and Immediate Relatives and Code of Practices
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and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information in accordance with the guidelines
specified under SEBI [Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. The
Codes have been formulated for complying with the
procedures, monitoring adherence to the rules for the
prevention of disclosure of unpublished price sensitive
information, pre-clearance of trade, monitoring of frades
and implementation of Code of Conduct under the
supervision of the Compliance Officer and the Board.

The Company's Codes, infar-alia, prohibits purchase and/
or sale of shares of the Company by an Insider, while in
possession of Unpublished Price Sensitive Informafion
("UPSI") in relation to the Company during the prohibited
period which is notified to all sufficiently in advance. The
Comphance Officer regularly intimates the designated
persons on trading window closures during the year.
A Structured Digital Database ("5DD") is maintained by
the Company for keeping track of sharing of UPS! both
internally and externally, with the intent of keeping track
of persons in the know of the UPSI before it became
public. The intent of the SDD is that the regulator or stock
exchanges, in case of any enquiry or investigafion into
insider trading, may trace the trail of sharing of UPSL
The Company has developed an SOP for tracking such
Events along with details of the nature of USPI, persons
including Name and PAN sharing or receiving such UPSIL.
The Compliance Officer has been authonsed to act as the
administrator of the SD0.

While the Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and
Report Trading by Designated Persons and Immediate
Relatives is circulated regularly to the designated persons,
the Company's Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information is
uploaded on the website of the Company at hitps://fanww.
radiocity.infimages/uploads/pdf/Code-of-Practices-for-
Fair-Disclosure-of-UPS|-MBL15537699991627568806. pdf

14.6Disclosure of commodity price risks and

commodity hedging activities: Mot Applicable

14.7 Vigil Mechanism / Whistle-blower Policy:

A Vigil Mechanism/Whistleblower Policy has been
established for Directors and Employees to confidentially
report genuine concerns or grievances, ensuring
comphiance with Section 177 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Meefings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014 and Regulations 18 and 22 of the Listing Regulations.

The Board has designated Mr. Prashant Domadia, CFQ
of the Company, as the Vigilance Officer and Mr. Vijay
Tandon, Chairman of the Audit Committee, to oversee
the vigil mechanism. This mechanism includes robust
safeguards against victimization of those who ufilize it
and guarantees direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.The Vigil Mechanism provides for
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adequate safeguards against victimization of Employeaes
and Directors who avail of the Vigil Mechanism and also
provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and in case of repeated frivolous complaints
being filed by a Director or an employee, the Chairman of
the Audit Committes may take suitable action against the
concerned Director or employee incuding reprimanding.

Mo person has been denied access to the Audit Commitice
to report their concerns/grievances.

During the year under review, no complaints were
received under the vigil mechanism.

The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is uploaded
on the website of the Company at htips:/fwww.radiocity.
in/images/uploads/pdf/Vigil-Machanism-Policy-
MBL15537699281627568423 pdf

Details of compliance with mandatory
requirements and adoption of the non-
mandatory requirements:

15.1 Compliance with mandatory requirements:

The Company has diligenfly adhered to all the mandatory
requirements outlined in the Listing Regulations,
encompassing Corporate Governance requirements as
specified under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to
(i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing
Regulations, as applicable.

15.2 Adoption of Non-mandatory requirement:

The status of compliance of the non-mandatory
requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule | of the
Listing Regulations are as follows:

a) The Board: The Company does not defray any
expenses of the Mon-Executive Chairman’s Office.

b) Sharehelder Rights: As the Company's quarterly,
half-yearly and annual results are furnished to the
Stock Exchanges, published in the newspapers and
made available on the website of the Company at
www.radiccity.in and are easily accessible to the
Members of the Company.

¢}  Audit Gualifications: The Independent Auditors have
given an unmodified opinion on the Company's
Financial Statements for financial year ended
March 31, 2024. The Company continues fo adopt
best practices to ensure the regime of unmodified
Financial Statements

d) Separate posts of Chairman and the Managing
Director or the Chief Executive Officer: The Company
has separate posts of Chairman (Mon-Execufive
Independent Director) and Chief Executive Officer.

e] Reporting of Internal Auditer: The Audit Committee
approves the Intermal Audit Plan and the Infernal
Auditors present their Report to the Audit Committes
for their consideration.
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CERTIFICATE TFROM PRACTICING
COMPEANY SECRETARY:

A certificate has been obtained from Mr. Deepak Rane,
Practicing Company Secretfary, pursuant to Schedule V
of the Listing Regulations, confirming that none of the
directors on the Board have been debammed or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs
ar any such Statutory Authority and is annexed hereto
a5 Annexure A forming part of Report on Corporate
Governance.

ADHERENCE TO THE ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS:

The Company has followed the relevant Accounting
Standards (IND-AS) nofified by the Companies (Indian
Accounting 5tandards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounfing Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016
read with Section 133 of the Act while preparing Financial
Statements.

DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO THE
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT WOREPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,
2013:

To ensure a safe and healthy work environment devoid of
harassment, including sexual harassment, the Company
has implemented a Prevention and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment at Workplace Policy. This policy extends to
all employees of the Company, aiming fo prevent and
address any such complaints effectively.

During the year under review, the Company has not
received any complaints for sexual harassment, defails are
as balow:

i.  Mumber of complaints filed during the financial year:
Nil

ii. MNumber of complaints disposed of during the
financial year: Mil

iii. MNumber of complaints pending as on end of the
financial year: Mil

Details of fees paid to the Statutory
Auditor:

Details of total fees for all services paid by MBL, on a
consolidated basis, to the Statutory Auditor and all enfities
in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory
auditor is a part, is tabled hereunder:

s |

No, FeesPaidto (% in Lakhs)
1 Statutory Audifor — Price &0
Waterhouse Chartered Accountanis
LLP

2 Entities in Network Firm -

21.2 Presentations to

20. Loans and advances in the nature of loans

to firms/companies in which Directors
are interested: Mone, during the year.

21. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
21.1 Quarterly results & details of Newspapers in

which they are normally published:

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has
diligently published its quarterly, half-yearly and yearly
financial results in all editions of Business Standard
(English) and Mumbai Lakshadeep (Marathi, the regional
language) newspapers. These publications were executed
in accordance with the prescribed format outlined in the
Listing Regulations and within the specified fimelines.
Furthermore, these financial results are readily accessible
on the Company's website.

Additionally, the Company promptly communicates all
price sensitive information or such other matters deemed
material and relevant to the sharcholders to the Stock
Exchanges. Subsequently, such information is displayed
on the Company’s website, www.radiocity.in, ensuring
transparency and accessibility for shareholders and
stakeholders alike.

institutional investors/
analysts:

The Company conducts detailed presentations for
institutional investars and financial analysts on both the
Unaudited Quarterly and Audited Annual Financial Results.
Following the declaration of these results, investor calls are
held. Presentafions and transcripts are promptly submitted
to the stock exchanges in compliance with regulatory
requirements. Additionally, they are made available on

transparency and accessibility for all stakeholders.

2l.3 Newspaper(s) wherein results are normally

published:

Business Standard (English) and Mumbai Lakshadeep
(Marathi, the regional language).

21.4 Website of the Company:

The Company's website (www.radiocity.in) contains a
separate dedicated section ‘Investor Relations’ where
shareholders’ information is available. The Company’s
Anmnual Report is also available in a downloadable, user-
friendly format.

21.5 Whether website also displays official news

releases:

The Company has maintained a functional website
www.radiocity.in, which serves as a comprehensive
source of information about the Company. This website
contains essential details such as the Company’s business
profile, financial information, shareholding pattern,
compliance with corporate governance standards, and
confact information of designated officials responsible
for assisting and addressing investor grievances, among
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other necessary details as mandated by Regulation 46 of
the Listing Regulations and the Act.

Furthermore, the Company ensures that the contents of
its website are regularly updated fo provide accurate and
current information to stakeholders.

21.6 Annual Report:

The Annual Report confaining, inter afia, Audited Financial
Statements, Board's Report, Auditors’ Report, and other
significant information are circulated to members and
others entitled thereto. This dissemination ensures that
stakeholders have access to key information regarding the
company’s financial performance, governance practices
and strategic direction.

21.7T Communigue/ Reminder to Investors:

The Company also takes into consideration the
shareholders’ queries, complaints and suggestions
which are responded fimely and in a consistent manner.
Shareholders can contact Company directly as well as
Registrar & Transfer Agents, KFIN Technologies Limited
(earlier known as "KFIM Technologies Private Limited”) for
their services. The Company sends relevant reminders and
communigque to the investors, as applicable in accordance
with the provisions of the applicable law from time fo fime.

Application Processing
System (NEAPS) & BSE Corporate Compliance
& Listing Centre (“Listing Centre’):

The WEAPS and Listing Centre are a web-based
application for corporates fo underfake electronic filing
of all periodical compliance filings like shareholding
pattern, corporate governance report, media releases,
among others. Various compliances as required under
law are filed through these portals. The said filings are
also made available on the website of the Company at
whww.radiocity.in

21.9 Securities and Exchange Board of India

Complaints Redress System (SCORES):

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized
web-based complaints redress system called SEBI
Complaints Redress System (SCORES) which includes:
Centralirzed database of all complaints, online upload of
Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concemed companies
and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the
complaint and its current status.

Further, in accordance with SEBI Circular dated July 31,
2023, the Company has registered itself on the Online
Dispute Resolution Partal (ODR). The QDR Portal harnesses
online conciliation and online arbitration for resolution of
disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market and can be
accessed through https/fwww.smartodr.in

2110 Designated Exclusive email-id:

The Company has designated the following email-ids
axclusively for investar servicing i.e.:

22,
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For all the quenes related fo the Annual Report - investor@
myradiocity.com

For any other quenes - einward.nsi@karvy.com

GENERAL
INFORMATION:
The Company is registered in the State of Maharashira,
India, under the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The
Corporate Identification Number (CIN) allotted fo the
Company by the MCA is L64200MHI99PLC137729,

SHEAREHOLDERS'

22.1 25™ Annual General Meeting

Day & Date: Wednesday, August 21,2024
Time: 1.00 pm

Venue: Since the Annual General Meeting 15 being
held through VC / OVAM, the Registered Office of the
Company will be the deemed venue as set out in the
notice for the Annual General Meeting.

22 2Financial Year:

The financial year covers the period from 17 Apnl fo 317
March.

22 3Financial Calendar for 2024-25 (tentative)

The tentative dates of Meeting of the Board of Directars
for consideration of financial results for the financial year
2024-25 are as follows:

First Quarter ended | On or before

June 30, 2024 | August 14, 2024
Second Quarter and Half Year | On or before
ended September 30, 2024 | November 14, 2024
Third Guarter and Nine Months | On or before
ended December 31, 2024 February 14, 2025

Fourth QGuarter and for the year | On or befora
ended March 21, 2025 | May 30, 2025

23. Dividend:

In order to conserve the resources of the Company, the
Directors do not recommend any dividend far ifs Equity
shares for the Financial Year 2023-24.

Additionally, as per the 5cheme of Ammangement, an
Interim Dividend of 0.1% of the face value was paid to
the NCRPS holders. This interim dividend, declared on
January 23, 2024, amounted to T 0.01 per NCRPS, with
the Record Date for the Interim Dividend set as February
2, 2024, The distribution of this dividend aligns with the
Company's Dividend Distribution Policy.

Under the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income became
taxable for shareholders effective April 1, 2020.
Consequently, the Company is obligated to deduct fax
at source (TDS) on dividend payments to Members at the
prescribed rates as per the Income-tax Act, 1961.
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24. Book Closure:
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the

company will remain closed from Saturday, August 17,
2024 to Wednesday, August 21, 2024 (both days inclusive).

25. Listing on Stock Exchanges:

Equity Shares:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed and fraded
from March 17, 2017 on BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited. Listing fees has been paid to
the Stock Exchanges for the period upto March 31, 2024.
The I5IN (or demat number) of the Equity Shares of the
Company on both Natfional Secunties Depository Limited
("N5DL"} and the Central Depository Services (India)
Limited ("CDSL") is INE919101024.

The Company's Stock Exchange Codes and address:

Name of Stock Exchange(s) Scrip Code
BSE Limited 540366
Phircze Jeajeebhoy Towers; Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400001 .

National Stock Exchange of India = RADIOCITY
Limited

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra
Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai -
400051

26. Payment of Depository Fees:

NCRP::

The Company also has issued Mon-Converfible Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (“NCRPS”) of
face value of ¥ 10 each issued at the premium of ¥ 90 per
share, in dematenalized form. These NCRPS were listed at
MSE and BSE from April 20, 2023. Listing fees have been
paid to the 5tock Exchanges for the year ended March
31, 2024. The ISIN for NCRPS of the Company on both
Mational Securities Depository Limited ("N5DL") and the
Central Depaository Services (India) Limited ("CD5L™) is
INE919104010.

The Company's Stock Exchange Codes and address:

Name of Stock Exchange(s) Scrip Code
BSE Limited MBLNCRPS
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers; Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400001 _ _
National Stock Exchange of India | RADIOCITY
Limited

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block &, Bandra
Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai —
400051

The Company has paid annual custodial fees o National Securities Depository Limited {'W5DL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited ("CD5L") for the Financial Year 2023-24 on the basis of the number of beneficiary accounts maintained by the
respective depositories as on March 31, 2024 for Equity and NCRPS.

2I. Market Price Data of Equity Shares - B5E and N5E - High/Low and Volumes:
The price of the Company’s Equity Share-High, Low during each month in the financial year 2023-24 on the Stock Exchanges

is given below in tabular form:

NSE | BSE
MONTE High(?) | Low(?) Volume(No)  High () Low (?) Velume (No.)
April - 23 11.90 | 1105 23,21,343 | 11.97 1108 | 2612276
May-23 1135 | 1105 | 3011655 | ETECE) 1107 | 4130964
Nifia22a 1130 | 11.00 31,26,233 | 11.33 1105 | 5925591
July-23 13.20 | 1180 | 6196466 | 13.16 | 1176 | 3,6638,151
August-23 13.70 | 1180 | 4599,000 | 13.78 1176 | 19543472
September-23 1610 | 1325 |  2,60,17.856 | 1626 1320 | 54675499
Octobior-13 16.05 | 1370 | 43719886 | 16.08 1370 | 6,61.34731
November-23 1540 | 1375 | 16833895 | 1543 | 1377 | 2,912,548
December-23 1845 | 1505 | 7,535,309 | 1847 | 1504 | 11,08,52,120
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28.

29.

NSE | BSE
MONTH
High(?) | Low (?) | Volume (No.) | High (3) Low (?) Volume (No.)
January-24 21.25 17.00 91232924 21.24 17.03 _ 20,88 20,474
February-24 24,55 19.75 7,46,81,680 | 24.56 19.80 | 21,32,30972
March-24 21.20 1595 2,75,06,233 | 2119 1598 5,90,90,880

Source: N5SE and B5SE Websites
MNotes:

a. Closing share prices are considered.
b. The high and low prices of company Equity shares listed with BSE & NSE are compiled on the monthly basis of the data
available at BSE & NSE Website respectively from April 2023 to March 2024.

Market Price Data of NCRP3 - BSE and N3E - High/Low and Volumes:

The price of the Company's NCRPS-High, Low during each month in the financial year 2023-24 on the Stock Exchanges is
given below in tabular form:

T . msE . BE

High(?) Low () | Volume(No) High () Low (f) Volume (No.)
April - 23* 91.20 86.45 568,014 | 90.00 86.46 58,95,380
May-23 1 9110 | 8895 |  10,52,749 | 9185 | 87.26 | 4562442
June -23 ' 89.65 | 88.70 6,09,021 | 89.81 | 8733 |  60,65984
July-23 ' 89.00 | 88.45 7,50,521 | 89.93 | 80.62 |  22,67,505
August-23 90.00 | 89.00 6,08,056 | 90.20 80.01 | 1,84,468
September-23 | 94.50 | 90.00 4,10,709 | 93.10 | 89.13 | 1597865
October-23 93.10 92.00 1,00,745 | 96.00 88.00 | 3,43,604
November-23 | 94.20 | 9225 |  1,29,027 | 96.95 | 90.15 |  30,15450
December-23 | 94.80 | 93.00 | 1,07,532 | 98.90 | 93.00 |  20,18,238
January-24 | 97.20 | 94.75 88,239 | 95.50 | 94.06 | 4727121
February-24 | 97.95 | 95.60 68,804 | 10150 | 9501 | 6,01,697
March-24 100.00 97.00 1,19375 | 109.80 96.51 17,82,583

*MCRPS of the Company got listed at N5SE & BSE on April 18, 2023 and frading started on NSE & BSE from April 20, 2023

Source: N5E and B5E Websites

Maotes:

a. Closing share prices are considered.

b. The high and low prices of company MCRPS listed with BSE & N5E are compiled on the monthly basis of the data available at BSE & NSE
Website respectively from April 2023 to March 2024.

Equity share price performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as B3E 5ensex
and N5E Nifty:

The performance of the Company's shares in comparison to BSE Sensax is given in the Chart below:

MBL Share Price Movement
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The performance of the Company's shares in comparison to NSE Nifty is given in the Chart below:

MBL Share Price Movement
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Source: NSE and BSE Websites.
Note: Closing share prices are considered

20.

31.

140

Registrar and Transfer Agents:

KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly known as KFin
Techneologies Private Limited) is the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent of the Company for Equity Shares and
MCRPS. For any assistance regarding Share Transfers,
Transmissions, change of address, duplicate/ missing
Share Certificate and other relevant matters, please write
to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company,
at the address given below:

KFIN Technologies Limited

(earlier: Karvy Technologies Private Limited)
Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana India - 500 032
Tel no 040-67162227; Fax: 040-23001153

E-mail id - einward.ris@karvy.com

Toll Free No.- 1800 309 4001

Website: www kfintech.com

Contact Person:
Mr. Anandan K

Share Transfer System

All matters perfaining to Share Transfer are being handled
by KFin Technologies Limited for Equity Shares and
MCRP5. The processing activities of dematernialisation /
rematerialisation requests are normally confirmed within
15 days from the date of their receipt provided the
documents are in order in all respects.
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Mr. Shailesh Gupta, Non-Execufive Diractor and Ms. Arpita
Kapoor, Company Secrefary of the Company are severally
authorised to approve transfer of shares. The Company
obtains from M/s Deepak Rane & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary, yearly certificate of compliance as
required under Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations
and duly files the same with stock exchanges.

Members holding equity shares in physical mode are
required to submit their Permanent Account Number
("PAN") and bank account defails to the Company / RTA,
if nof registered with the Company as mandated by SEBI.
Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses
so far are requested to register their e-mail address for
receiving all communication including Annual Report,
Motices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

SEBI has mandated that securities of listed companies can
be transferred only in dematerialised form from Aprnl 01,
2012 In view of the above and to avail various benefits of
dematenalisation, members are advised to dematenalize
shares held by them in physical form. The Company has
entered info agreements with both Mational Securities
Depository Limited ("NSDL") and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited ("CD5L") whereby shareholders
have an option to dematerialize their shares with either of
the depositories.
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32. 5hareholding Pattern:
32.1Distribution of Equity Shareholding by size, as on March 31, 2024:

Category (Shares) Shareholders Equity (Face valne of ¥ 2/- each)
From Number % of Total Nt

1 1 5000 | 50103 23.31 18435181 533
z 5001 10000 1895 353 7443809 215
3 10001 20000 915 170 7163671 207
4 20001 30000 232 043 2931939 0.86
5 30001 40000 144 0.27 2676326 077
b 40001 50000 e’ 0.18 2213728 064
7 50001 100000 157 0.29 L689584 165
& 100001 Abowveo 156 0.29 299131387 86.53

Total | | 53498 100.00 245685625 100.00

32.2Distribution of NCRPS Shareholding by =size, as on March 31, 2024:

Shareholders
Number | %ofTotal
1 1 5000 | 21496 R5.89 240145 1049
Z 5001 10000 331 1.48 260054 290
3 10001 20000 212 0.94 325925 363
4 20001 30000 101 0.45 252554 282
5 30001 ADDOO 41 0.18 145873 157
[+ 40001 50000 55 0.25 256859 286
7 50001 100000 76 034 E56294 6.20
& 100001 Above 105 0.47 6227893 69.43
Total | | 22417 100.00 8969597 100.00
33. Categories of Shareholding:
33.1 Categories of Egquity Shareholding as on March 31, 2024:
N, Category e e = R
1 | Promoters Bodies Corporate 255989649 74.05
2 Bodies Corporates 20753580 &.00
3 Foreign Portfolio Investors 812 0.00
4 | Foreign Portfolio - Comp QE0296 0.28
5 | Resident Individuals 62475712 18.07
& HUF 3899230 113
7 Mon-Resident Indians 883579 026
8 | Non-Resident Indian Non Repatriable 4638568 018
¢ | NBFC 42199 0.01
10 | Trust 52000 0.02
Total 345685625 | 100.00
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Categories of Equity Shareholding as on March 31, 2024
Promuaoters Bodies Corporate - 74.05%
Resident Individuals - 18.07%
" Bodies Corporates - 6.00%
Others - 1.88%
J3.2 Categories of NCRPS Shareholding as on March 31, 2024:
No Category s valic A € 10 sackk | % of olding
1 |Bodies Corporates 1371805 15.29
2 | Mutual Funds 18921446 21.09
3 Foraign Portfolio Investars a1 0.00
4 | Foreign Portfolio - Corp 24042 0.27
5 | Resident Individuals 5195807 5793
6 [(HUF 257798 287
7 Clearing Members 2550 0.03
& |MNon-Resident Indians 176304 187
2 | Non-Resident Indian Non Repatriable 49064 0.55
Total 8949597 100.00
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Mutual Funds -21.0996
Resident Individuals -57.93%
Bodies Corporate - 15.29%

Bl Others- 569
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34. Dematerialisation of Shares
34.1 Equity Shares:
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As per the directions of SEBI, the Company’s shares are compulscrily traded in dematerialized form and are available on both
the depositones in India viz. National Securities Depositery Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

As on March 31, 2024, 34 56,85 388 Equity Shares constituting nearly 1008 of the total share capital of the Company were

held in dematenalized form.

Sr. | Number of

No - Description Eauitv 5t ¥ of Equity
1 | National Securities Depository Limited 295600528 85.51
2 | Central Depository Services (India) Limited 50084860 1449
Total Dematerialised 345485388 100.00
3 | Physical 237 | 0.00
| Grand Total 345585625 100.00

NSDL - 85.515%

CDSL - 14490

34.2NCRPS5:

The Company's shares are compulsorily fraded in dematerialized form and are available on both the depositories in India viz.
Mational Secunties Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

As on March 31, 2024, 89,69 597 MCRPS constituting 100% of the total share capital of the Company were held in dematenalized

form.
slai])mﬂpﬂnn Number of NCRPS % of NCRPS
1 | National Securities Depository Limited E267872 58.73
2 | Ceniral Depository Services (India) Limited 3701725 4127
Total Dematerialised BRG959T 100.00
3 | Physical a Q.00
| Grand Total BR6959T 100.00

NSDL - 58.730%
CDSL - 41.27%
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List of Credit Ratings

Details of Credit Rating assigned by CRISIL are given
below and are uploaded on the Company's website at
https:/fwww.radiocity.in/investors/credit-rating.

Total Bank Loan
Facilities Rated

Long Term Rating
Short Term Ratfing

# 120 Crore Preference
Shares

%135 Crore

CRISILAA/Stable (Reaffirmed)
CRISILAL+ (Reaffirmed)
CRISILAA/Stable (Re-affirmed)

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

Pursuant to Regulation 76 of the Sacurities and Exchange
Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018 all issuer companies shall submit an audit report of
capital integrity, reconciling the total Equity Shares and
MCRPS held in both the Depositories, viz. N5DL and CD5L
and in physical form, if any with the tofal issued, subscribed
and paid-up capital of the Company.

Name of the City
where Studio iz
located

1. |Baroda

Sr.

No Addre=s= of the Studio Office

_ _ 3?[]015 -E-ulami
2. | Ahmedabad

3. |Surat i, WOk, o
4. | Mumbai

400051, Maharashtra
5. | Pune

31.

33.

The said reports, duly signed by a Practicing Company
Secretary is submitted to the Stock Exchanges where
the Equity Shares and NCRPS of the Company are listed,
within 30 days from the end of each guarter and these
Reports are also placed before the Board of Directors of
the Company.

Commeodity price risk or foreign
exchange risk and hedging activities:

The Company manages to minimize the effects of adverse
exchange rate fluctuations on the financial positions of the
Company by closely monitoring the Foreign Exchange
Exposure and taking the adequate measures when
necded.

Location of Studios:

Cut of our total presence in 39 cities, we have studios at
the below mentionad 28 cities; 11 cities namely Sangli,
Manded, Jalgaon, Sholapur, Akola, Kota, Bikaner, Hissar,
Ajmer, Jamshedpur and Patiala are our netwarking
stafions.

200/202, 2 Floor, PG Square, Mear Rajvi Tower, Old Padra Main Road Vadodara, Gujarat -

Unit No: 315 to 321 e flo-ﬂr Aar'_.ran Wﬂﬂ:space 3 Gpp Manawv Mandir Gurukul Metro Rﬂad -
Memnagar, Ahmedabad - 380052, Gujarat
Office NO.712-716, D Block, 7™ Floor, [TC Tower_l'\-'lajum Gate, Ring Road Suraf - 395 Ul"_.IE _5’.3u1ara1

g | Floar, RNA Corporate Park, Off Western Express nghwajr, Kalanagar, Bandra | (E), Mumbai

D-Wing, 6™ Floor, Vega Centre, Shankar Sheth Road, Swargate, Pune - 411 037 , Maharashtra

4. | Ahmednagar

First Floor, Office No. 13, 14 & 15, "Business Centre” building, Professor Colony Chowlk, Savedi,
Ahmednagar 414003, Maharashtra

7. | Mashik 1# Floor, Indira Heights, Old Gangapur Maka, Near Pramod Mahajan Garden, Gangapur Road,
Mashik -422005, Maharashira

8. | MNagpur 4™ Floor, 404, Mangalam Marvel, 232, Dharampeth, Nawab Area, Gokulpeth, West High Court
Road, Nagpur—Mﬂ 010, Maharashtra

9. | Kolhapur Mucleus nghfs A4 Flo-ur Unit No. 4[]1 Tarabai Park, Mear Circuit House, Kolhapur — 416003, .
Maharashtra

10. | Bangalore 46, 2" Floor, Phoenix Pinnacle, Ulsoor Road, Landmark: Above PC Chandra Jewelers, Bangalore-
560042, Karanataka

11. | Chennai 3" Hoor, Citi Tower, 117, Thyagaraya Road, T Nagar, Chennai- 600 017

12. | Hyderabad 203, M.J Towers, 8/2/698, Road no.12, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034 , Telangana

13. | Coimbatore 211/ 8, 3™ Floaor, ESR Avenue, East TV Samy Road, RS Puram, Coimbatore MIDUE Tamil Madu

14, | Madurai 61/48, 3 Floor, F'aﬂu Arcade, Bypass Road, Ram Nagar, Madurai - 625010 Tamll Madu

15. | Vizag qm Flnor Unit no. 504 & 505 SJgnaturE aners Asilmetta Main Road Close to Bus Termmus

_ - ‘luflshakapatnam 53[][!]3 Andhra Pradesh

16. | New Delhi 203, 37 Floor, Okhla Indl Esia]‘e Phase III New Delhi- 110 020.

17. | Kamal | 5C0-249, Sactor-IZ P1,2" FHoor, Urban Estate, Opp Mlnl Sr.xretarla_j_ Iﬁ_ama] ]32[]01 Har'_urana _

18. | Jalandhar 36-2-3(':3 4o F|o-o-r Shakti I'u'ial] Opp. Gyrrnkhana Club, Lajpa1 Magar, Jalandhar - 14-1!]01 Pur‘uab

19. | Bareilly R.5.Towers, 165,Civil Lines, Station Road, Bareilly -243001, Uttar Pradesh

20. | Agra E-12/8, Seventh Floor, Shn Vrindavan, Sanjay Palace Agra-282002, Uttar Pradesh

21. | Ranchi Rukmini Towers,6" Floor, Harmu Road, Ranchi -834001, Jharkhand

22. | Patna 3" floor, C-6 Jagran Prakashan building, Patliputra industrial area, Patliputra , Patna - 800013 ,
Bihar

23. | Varanasi Plot No.321, Purana G.1.Road, Nadesar, Varanasi -221002, Uttar Pradesh
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39.

40.

41.
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No }Hhﬂmit[lﬂ]nis . Address of the Studio Office
located ;

24, | Lucknow 17 Floor, Shalimar Square, 126/31, B.M.Road, Lalbagh, Hazratganj, Lucknow - 226 001, Uttar
|  Pradesh

25. | Kanpur . Jagran Building, 2, Sarvodaya Magar, Kanpur - 208005, Uttar Pradesh

26. | Gorakhpur Ground Floor, Balram Tower, Rustampur, Gorakhpur-273016, Uttar Pradesh

27. | Jaipur | Geetanjali Tower, 301/307, 3™ Floor, Ajimer Road, Jaipur-302006, Rajasthan

28. | Udaipur 5 Floor, Raj Tower, 222/21 5aheli Marg, Udaipur-313004, Rajasthan

Outstanding Global Depository Receipts
or American Depository Receipts or
warrants or any convertible instruments,
conversion date and likely impact on
Equity:

The Company does not have any outstanding Global
Depository Receipts/ Amerncan Depository Receipts/
Warrants or any convertible instruments as on March 31,
2024,

Non-compliance of any requirement of
Corporate Governance Report of sub-
paras(2) to (10) of Schedule V ofthe Listing
Regulations, with reasons thereof, shall
be disclosed:

The Company has complied with the requiremenis of the
Corporate Govemance report of sub paras (2) to (10) of
the Schedule V of the Lishng Regulations to the exfent
applicable.

Green Initiative for
Communications:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") had taken a
“Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by allowing
paperless compliances by the companies through
electronic mode. The Act and the Listing Regulations have
also allowed the Company to serve nofice/documents/
Annual Report to its shareholders through electronic
mode.

Paperless

The Company whole-heartedly appreciates this initiative
taken by MCA, being an ardent supporter of pro-

environment causes. Mot only will such a move benefit
the environment but it will also enhance sharcholder
experience by enabling the Company to deliver
communications promptly and securely and avoid losses/
delays in postal transit. It is a step in the right direction
being efficient both, economically and ergonomically.

As a part of this, the Company is sending notices/
documents such as Annual Reports and nofices by e-mail to
the members who have registered their e-mail addresses.
To support this credifable move of the Government, the
members who have not registered their e-mail address,
so far, are requested to do so at the earliest, in respect
of Demat holding through their respective Depository
Participant (DP) and in respect of physical holding through
the RTA.

We wish to inform our members that in addition to
receiving the documents through your registered e-mail,
you can also access the same through the website of
the Company at www.radiocity.in. While every nofice/
document will be sent through e-mail address registerad
with the Company, in case you desire to receive any nofice/
document in physical form, please infimate the same by an
e-mail to investor@myradio city.com and the same shall be
sent to your address registerad with the Company/DP. We
solicit your patronage and support in joining hands with
the Company to implement the Green Initiative.

42. Non-Convertible Debentures:

The Company does not have any Mon-Convertible
Debentures outstanding as on the date of this report.

43. Disclosures with respect of NCRPS transferred to Demat Suspense Account:

Number Number
Particulars of of NCRPS ::m
Records @ shareholders
Agagregate number of NCRPS holders and the outstanding MCRPS in the 0 0 0
Suspense Escrow Account lying at the beginning of the year
Mumber of MCRPS holders who approached the Company for transfer of NCRPS 0 L] ]
and MCRPS transferred from Sus_pense Escrow Account during_’rh@_ year ! _
Mumber of MCRPS holders to whorm MCRPS were transfermed from Suspense 0 L] ]
Escrow Account during the year
Aggregate number of NCRPS holders and the outstanding MCRPS in the 9 g 245
Suspense Escrow Account lying at the end of the year

The voting rights applicable on NCRPS lying in Suspense Escrow Demat Account shall remain frozen fill the nightful owner

claims the NCRPS.

145



44,

45

465.

47.

43.

Radio City
L TRTITLAT HITRITT

Radic's Digital Renaissance

Information pursuant to Regulation 39 (4)
of Listing Regulations are as under:

Pursuant to requirements of Regulation 39 {4} of the Listing
Regulations, the Company has adhered the procedural
requirements specfied in Schedule Vi while dealing with
securifies issued to the public, physical or otherwise, as
applicable, and there are NIL shares that are unclaimed /
hying in the escrow account as on March 31, 2024,

Investor Services:

The Company under the overall supervizion of Ms. Arpita
Kapoor, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer is
committed to providing efficient and timely services to
its shareholders. The Company has appointed M/s. KFIN
Techneologies Limited as its Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents for rendering the entire range of services to
the shareholders (Equity and NCRPS) of the Company
in regard to share fransfer, refund, rematenalisation,
dematenalzation, change of address, change of mandate,
dividend etc.

Disclosure of certain types of agreements
binding listed entities:

Information disclosed under clause 5A of paragraph A of
Part A of S5chedule Il of these regulations is not applicable
during the year under review.

Nemination:

Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly
in physical form can nominate a person in whose name
the shares shall be fransferable in the case of death of all
the registered shareholder/s pursuant fo the provisions
of Section 72 of the Act. The prescribed form for
such nomination can be obtfained from the Company.
Momination facility in respect of shares held in electronic
form is also available with depaository participant (DP) as
per the bye-laws and business rules applicable to NSDL
and CDSL.

Address for correspondence:

Investors and shareholders may correspond with the
Company at the following address:
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Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Ms. Arpita Kapoor

Music Broadcast Limited,

5" Hoor, RMA Corporate Park,

Off. Western Express Highway, Kalanagar,

Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400051

Tel: +91 22 66965100 Fax: +91 22 26429113

E-mail: investor@myradiocity.com

Website: www.radiocity.in

Investors’ concerned Depository
Participant(s) and / or KFin Technologies
Limited:

KFIN Technologies Limited

(earlier: KFIN Technologies Private Limited)

Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Sernlingampally,
Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana India - 500 032
Phone: 040-67161563; Fax: 040-23001153

Toll free: 1800 309 4001

[From 9:00 a.m.(I5T) to 600 p.m. (I5T]]

E-mail id - einward ris@karvy.com

Website: www. kfintech.com

Disclosure of Compliance with Corporate
Governance requirements:

The Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance requirements specified in Regulations 17 to
27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation
44 of the Listing Regulations

The requisite Certificate from the Secretanal Auditors of
the Company, M/s Deepak Rane, Practicing Company
Secretary, confirming compliance with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the
Listing Regulations is annexed hereto and forms part of
the Annual Report. The Company has also obtained an
Annual Secretanal Compliance Report from the Secretanal
Auditors of the Company in compliance with Regulation
24A of the Listing Regulations and other all applicable SEBI
Regulafions and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder,
and the same is uploaded on the website of the Company
and is also submitted to the stock exchanges.

Certificate on Compliance with Code of Conduct

I, Ashit Kukian, Chief Executive Officer, do hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and
Senior Management Personnel, an affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for the financial year 2023-24
as laid down by the Company.

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024
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Certification under Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

We, Ashit Kukian, Chief Executive Officer and Prashant Domadia, Chief Financial Officer of Music Broadcast Limited (the Company™),
on the basis of the review of the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, and
to best of our knowledge and belief, hereby certify that:

1. These statements do not contain any matenally untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

2. Thesestatements together present a frue and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws, and regulations;

3. There are, fo the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions enterad into by the Company during the year are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

4.  We accept responsibility for establishing and mainfaining intemal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company perfaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

5 Woe further certify that: -

(a) fthere have been no significant changes in infernal control over financial reporting during the year under review except
that control over certain areas has been further strengthened.

(b} there have been no significant changes in the accounting policies; and

() there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any,
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's infternal control system over financial

reporfing.
For Music Broadcast Limited
Data: May 22, 2024 Mr. Ashit Kukian Mr. Prashant Domadia
Place: Mumbai Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Certificate on Compliance with the Conditions of
Corporate Governance as per Sebi (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

To
The Members,
Music Broadcast Limited

| have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Music Broadcast Limited for the year ended March
31, 2024, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) fo (i) and () of sub-regulation (Z) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E
of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulafions”).

The compliance of condifions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to
review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, | cerfify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the provisions of the Listing Regulations for the financial
yvear ended March 31, 2024.

| further state that my examination of such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024 Deepak Rane
Practicing Company Secrefary
ACS No 24110
C.PNo:8717
UDIN: AD24110F000423443
Peer Review No: - 2063/2022
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Annexure A

Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Clause (10}i) of Para C of Schedule V of the Securifies Exchange Board of India (Lisfing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended]

To,
The Members,

MUSIC BROADCAST LIMITED

5" Floor, RNA Corporate Park,

Off Western Express Highway, Kalanagar,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, refurns and disclosures received from the Directors of MUSIC BROADCAST
LIMITED having CIN L92140MH1999PLC1205156 and having registered office at 5® Floor, RMA Corporate Park, Off Western Express
Highway, Kalanagar, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the
Company for the purpose of issuing this Cerfificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C 5ub clause
104i) of the Securifies Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors ldentification Number (DIN)
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, |
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on March 31,
2024, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

- Date of
No, | Name of the Director(s) DIN Appointment in
Company#

1 Mr. Vijay Tandon 00156305 | 24-11-2016

2 Mr. Rahul Gupta 00359182 ! 10-06-2015

3 Mr. Anuj Pun 000483856 . 30-05-2016

4 | Mr. Madhukar Kamath 00230316 | 25-05-2017

5 Mr. Shailesh Gupta 00192466 I 28-01-2019

& Ms. Anifa Mayyar 03317861 | 27-01-2020

7 Mr. Ravi Sardana 06938773 | 24-05-2022

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Podtal

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. My responsibility is o express an opinion on these based on my venfication. This certificate is nerther an assurance
as fo the future wviability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024 Deepak Rane
Practicing Company Secretary
AC.5 No 24110
C.P No: 8717

UDIN: AD24110F000423542
Poer Review No: 2063/2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview:

The global economic environment worldwide is marked by
significant uncerfainty. From rising interest rates to geopaolifical
conflicts, the stability of supply chains confinues to be at nsk.

Despite this, India has shown excephional resilience with a
growth rate of 7.6% in FY24, according to the Second Advance
Estimate. This is evidenced by several high-frequency
indicators, including strong Goods and Services Tax {G5T)
collections, E-way bill fransactions, robust bank credit growth,
and a positive Purchasing Managers' Index (PMI). Although
merchandise exports have encountered difficulties, service
exports have mainfained stability, with recent figures indicating
promising growth.

The global economy is expected fo maintain a steady growth
rate in CY24 and CY25, with the IMF estimating a global growth
rate of 3.2% during these years. Among major economies, the
US economy is projected to grow at 2.7% in CY24, the UK at 0.5%
and China at 4.6%. Moreover, India is projected to become the
waorld's third largest economy by FY28, surpassing Germany
and Japan.

Inflation in India for FY25 is forecasted to frend around 4.30%,
indicating potential room for the RBI fo consider interest rate
cufs, supported by easing CPl inflation. India’s Consumer Price
Index (CPI) inflation eased to 4.85% comparad to February 2024,
inching closer to the RBI's comfort level of 4%, with vanations
observed in urban and rural inflation rates.

Maoreover, G5T collections continue to show growth, with
April 2024 collections crossing T 2 lakh crore, for the first fime
representing 12.4% year-on-year growth. For FY24 the total
collection grew by 11.7% to reach T 20.18 lakh crore.

The digitalization landscape in India for FY25 is expected
to witness significant advancements and growth, with a
focus on leveraging emerging technologies, harmonizing
data standards, maximizing the value of data, and fostering
innovation and collaboration across the entire energy system.
The 5State of India’s Digital Economy Report 2024 highlights
India’s rapid digitalization driven by a large base, high growth,
facilitated by Digital Public Infrasfructures (DPIs), and strong
gender and geographical convergence.

India is ranked third at the aggregate level and 12™ at the user
level among G20 countries, showcasing the country’s progress
in digital transformation. Overall, India's digifalization journey
in FY25 is expected to focus on expanding technological
expertise, maximizing the value of data, setting industry digital
directions, and exploring innovation opportunities through
collaboration and partnerships.

As consumer behavior continues to shift towards digital
platforms, the media industry is undergoing a transformative
journey, where adapfability and innovation are paramount. A
fundamental restructuring with the fusion of traditional and
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digital media is evolving. Radio is strategically placed and
will create a new radigitalized face for itself in this changed
environment.

Influencer Marketing has become a significant factor in India's
digital envircnment, providing marketers with a dynamic and
efficient method to engage with consumers authantically.
Through strategic collaborations with influencers, brands are
enhancing their marketing initiatives, cultivating brand loyalty,
and ultimately, attaining measurable business outcomes in the
continucusly evolving realm of digital marketing.

Traditionally, the growth rate in the media and enterfainment
sectors has outperformed that of India’s GDP growth rate. What
makes this interesting is that consumer spending in this sector
is discretionary. According to EY, the Media and Enterfainment
sector in India remains a beacon of growth, outperforming
GDP rates with a projected CAGR of 10% by CY26. With the
per capita outlook for the Indian economy looking to increase
several notches in coming years, the consequent overall
consumer spend outlook in the sector remains positive. In
addition, favorable FDI policy in telecom and digital channels
would impact investment frends positively across all segments.

India's rural landscape is undergoing a fransformative shift,
with projections indicating a significant rise in rural per capita
consumption by 2030, cutpacing urban areas. In FY25, the rural
sector is expected to witness robust growth due to increased
government focus and spending on rural development. The
government's multi-pronged approach includes empowering
rural women, improving basic amenities, and enhancing
program implementation. These efforts aim to drive rural
growth, improve the quality of life, and bridge the urban-rural
gap, offering ample opportunifies for economic expansion and
social development.

The Amrit Kaal in the economy for FY25 focuses on fiscal
consolidation, emphasizing policy confinuity, economic
development through social welfare, and infrastructure
investment. The projected fiscal deficit for FY25 is 5.1%,
aligning with the government's policy trajectory and reflecting
a prudent budget with a positive outlook.

Source: EY Report, IMF

Media and Entertainment Industry

The Indian M&E sector confinued its growth trajectory;
expanding by ¥ 17 300 crore (8.1% y-o-y) fo reach £ 232,000
crore (U5S 279 billion)

While the sector was 21% above its pre-pandemic levels,
television, print and radio still lagged behind their 2019 levels.

The share of tradifional media (television, print, filmed
entertainment, live events, COH, music, radio) stood at 57% of
ME&E sector revenues in 2023, down from 76% in 2019
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Television advertfising revenues decreased by 6.5% from
¢ 31,800 crore in 2022 to T 29,700 crore in 2023. Advertising
volumes declined by 2.6% and ad rates fell by 4% on an average
im 2023. Subscription revenue reversed its falling frend in 2023
to grow by 2%. ARPUs increased by approximately 4% fo reach
¢ 274 per month (gross of taxes).

Print experienced a 4% growth reaching ¥ 26,000 crore from
¥ 25,100 crore. Print growth was dnven by 4% growth in
advertising and 3% growth in circulation. Overall ad insertion
volumes increased by 2% over 2022, Adverfising in English
publications recovered to 74% of pre COVID-19 levels, while
adwvertising in Hindi and regional language publications
recovered to around 93%. The share of advertising to the total
income of print segment stood at 67%.

Digital media growth halved to 15% reaching ¥ 65,400 crore in
2023 from T 57,100 crore in 2022. The advertising spends grew
by 15% to ¢ 57,600 crore and subscription which grew by 8%
to ¥ 7,800 crore.

Radio Industry

The radio segment is currently in a phase of recovery following
the slowdown induced by the pandemic. While revenue is on
the nise, it has yet to reach pre-2019 levels. Hyper-localisation
has emerged as a crucial driver of growth in the radio industry.
However, the ubiquitous presence of smartphones has not
translated into universal access to radio, posing both challenges
and opportunities for the sector’s expansion in India.

As we examine at the current state of the radio industry, we
observe a patfern woven with innovation and persistence.
Radio stations have embraced digital platforms, utilisation
social media and streaming services to broaden their audience
reach and engagement. This digifal fransformation has not
only expanded the industry’s reach, but has also created new
opportunities for monetisation and content expernmentation.
Recent data indicates that the radic industry in Indha was valued
at around ¥ 2,300 crores at the end of CY23, with experts
anticpating a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 7-9%,
potentially reaching ¥ 2,700 crores by CY26.

With the advent of 5G technology and the emergence of
smart devices, radio stands distinct in reinvenfing itself yet
again, offering personalised experiences and immersive
storytelling. Partnerships with advertisers and brands present
attractive opportunifies for revenue generation, underlining
the industry’s potential for sustained growth.

Radio remains a potent communication platform, leveraging
ifs unique ability fo connect with a vast audience and foster
human interactions, even amidst the digital era. With evalving
media consumpfion habits among Indian audiences, the radio
industry is presented with a timely opportunity fo embrace
digital tfransformation while refaining radio as its core function.
Thewidespread adoption of digital technologies has propelled
the broadcasting industry forward, enabling radio stations to
reach broader audiences and diversify content across mulfiple
platforms. Advanced technologies like artificial infelligence
are enhancing efficiency by idenfifying frending content and
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music preferences, expanding audience reach, and facilitating
inferactive engagement with listeners.

The influence of artificial intelligence {Al) on the radio industry
is poised to be fransformative, with Al technologies enhancing
content delivery, analysing listener preferences, and opfimising
advertising strategies, thereby enriching the overall listener
experience in novel ways. According to a study by PwC, 73%
of radio broadcasters are planning to invest in Al over the next
three years, signalling a promising trajectory for the industry's
future.

In addifion to these advancements, the nse of podcasts and
other on-demand audio confent represents a significant trend
inthe current radio sector. Podcasts have emerged asa powerful
medium for storytelling and information dissemination, offering
listeners a diverse range of content on various topics. Radio
stations are increasingly embracing podcasts as part of their
programming, catering to the evolving preferences of their
audience and expanding their content offerings.

Outlook

Looking ahead, innovafion will play a central role not only in
the resurgence of radio in India but also in the global radio
landscape. While music curation remains fundamental, radio is
diversifying into markefing solufions and extended platforms
such as podcasts, audio shorts, AR/VR video, and OTT. The
audio OTT industry has experienced significant growth, with
eight million active subscribers. The global audio OTT market,
valued at U5%21.4 billion in CY22, is projected to grow at a
robust CAGR of 29.3% from CY23 to CY30, reaching U53124.1
billion by CY30.

Through collaboration, creativity, and a dedication to excellence,
the radio industry has the potential to pionear novel paths,
enrch lives, and amplify voices in the ever-changing landscape
of Indian media and enferfainment. With the projected growth
and fechnological advancements, the radio industry is poised
to remain a dynamic and integral part of India’s cultural and
economic landscape in the years to come.

Internal control systems and their adegquacy
Adequate internal control has been put in place in all areas
of operations. The role and responsibility of all managenal
positions are established, monitored and controlled regularly.
All transactions are authonsed, fimely recorded and reported
truly and fairly. To ensure adherence to the laid-down systems,
apart from formal Internal Audit System commensurate with the
size and nature of the business. Internal audit is conducted by
one of the big four accounting firms who periodically submit
their report to the audit committee non- compliances if any.
They also venfy compliances with various applicable provisions
of law.

The Company is fully committed to confinually work in
strengthening the systems and processes so as to achieve the
highest degree of fransparency, efficiency and accuracy in
repaorting, monitoring and decision making and has done so
during the year as well as part of an on- going exercise
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Financial performance
Profit and Loss:

(% in lakhs- rounded off)

Year ended B ta 1
March 2024 ercentage . i

Income

Revenue from operations

Other Income

(Other gains and Losses

Total Income |
Expenditure

Licence fees

Employea benefit expense

Depreciafion and amortisation expense

Met impairment losses on financial assets

Other expenses

Finance cost

Total Expenses ‘
Profit/(loss) before tax

Income tax

- Current tax

- Defamed tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income(net of tax)

Total comprehensive income for the yvear

22,853.85 90.8 19,886.14 910
2,056.47 8.2 1,736.60 79
25130 10 233.73 11
25,161.62 | 1000 | 21,856.47 100.0
2,019.22 8.5 1,943.30 9.1
6,942.41 29.1 6,058.47 28.6
334313 14.0 3,279.57 15.4
32519 14 317.16 15
10,251.81 429 9,260.46 43.6
989.81 41 391.26 18
23.87L57 | 1000 | 21,250.22 100.0
1.290.05 | | 806.25
219.42 12617
386.21 | 136.09
68442 | | 343.99
9.09 | | 28.18
£92.51 | ! 372.17

Bevenue:

Total Income: Qur total income increased by 15.1% from
T 21,856.47 lakhs in FY23 to £ 25,161.62 lakhs in FY24, primarily
due to increase in revenue from operations by ¢ 2 267.71 lakhs.

Revenue from operations: Revenues from operations
represanting Advertisement Revenue increased by 14.9% from
¥ 19,886.14 lakhs in FY23 to ¥ 22 853.85 lakhs in FY24.

Other income: The other income has increased from ¥ 1,736.60
lakhs in FY23 to ¥ 2,056.47 lakhs in FY24 primanly represents
interest accrued on corporate deposits and bonds.

Other Gains: This represents net fair value gain on financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
and loss account, net gain on sale of investiments and other
miscellaneous income. Other gains have increased primarily

due to increase in net gain on sale of investment by T 2.37 lakhs
from ¥ 133.00 lakhs in FY23 to ¥ 142.37 lakhs in FY24.

Expenditure:

Total Expenditure: Our fotal expenses increased by 12.3% from
¥ 21,250.22 lakhs in FY23 to ¥ 23,871.57 lakhs in FY24 which is in
line with increase in revenue growth.

License Fees: Amounts paid towards license fees increased by
3.9% from ¥ 1,943.30 lakhs in FY23 to ¥ 2,019.22 lakhs in FY24
mainly due to higher revenue.

Employee benefits expense: Employee benefit expenses
increased by 14.6% from T 6,058.47 lakhs in FY 2023 to T 6,942.41
lakhs in FY24 on account of increment and increase in head
count.

Depreciation and amortisation expense: Deapreciation and
amortisafion expense increased by 1.9% from & 3,279.57 lakhs
inFY23 to £ 3,343.13 lakhs in FY24.
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Met impairment losses on financial assetfs: Increase in net
impairment loss s by 2.5% from £ 317.16 lakhs in FY23 to
¥ 32519 lakhs in FY24.

Other expenses: Increase in other expenses is by 10.7% from
& 2 260.46 lakhs in FYZ23 to ¥ 10,251.81 lakhs in FY 24 majorly on
account of increase in programming, marketing and advertising
and travel expenditure due to higher scale of business than
previous year.

Finance costs: Increase in finance cost by 15308 from ¥ 391.26
lakhs in FY23 to ¥ 989.81 lakhs in FY24; mainly on account of
increase in provision of Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS) premium of ¥ 594.21
from ¥ 193.52 lakhs in FY23 to ¥ 787.73 lakhs in FY24.

Tax expenses: Tax increase of ¥ 343.37 lakhs in the current year
due to tax impact of above MCRPS premium from ¥ 262.26 lakhs
in FY23 to £ 605.63 lakhs in FY24,

MNet profit for the year increased from ¥ 34399 lakhs in FY23 to
profit of ¥ 684.42 lakhs in FY24 due to above.

Adjusting for the ifems that will not be reclassified fo profitand
loss account, total comprehensive profit for the year was FY24
T 693.51 lakhs as against T 372.17 lakhs in FY23.

(i} Balance Sheet:

(¥ in lakhs)

Total Equity 53.168.40 5247490
Total Non-current Liabilities | 10,525.74 9,510.82
Total Current Liabilities 436741 3.633.20
Total Equity and &68,061.55 £5,618.92
Liabilities:

Total Non-current Assets 5004416 50,780.63
Total Current Assets 18,017.39 14 83829
Total Assets: &68,061.55 £5,618.92
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Total equity comprises of Paid-up equity share capital,
reserves and surplus and other reserves. The increase in
Reserves and surplus is due to the Profit for the year.

Mon-current liabilities represent lease liabilitias,
employee benefit obligations expected fo be settled
after one year and NMon-Convertible Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares (MCRPS) hiabilities shown
in Borrowing. Current year movement includes (i) NCRPS
of T T87.54 lakhs (i) increase of ¥ 109.61 lakhs in lease
liabilifies {iii) increase in leave obligation by 7 54.62 lakhs
and (iv) increase of ¥ 63.15 lakhs in gratuity liability.

Current liabilities consist of lease liabilities, trade
payables, other current financial liabilities and other
current liabilities. The increase in current liabilifies is due to
{1} increase in frade payables by ¥ 470.21 lakhs (i) increase
in other financal habilities ¥ 358.21 lakhs and (in) decrease
in lease liabilities by ¥ 87.71 lakhs. (iv) decrease in other
current iabilities by ¢ 27.78 lakhs.

Mon-Current Assets comprise tangible and intangible
assats, right of use asset, long-term investments, financial
assets, deferred tax assets, non- current fax assets and
other non- current assets expected to be realizable after
one year.

Tangible assets have increased on account of addition
during the year which was partly offset by depreciation
during the year. Intangible assets have reduced due to
amortisation cost for the current fiscal. Increase in long
term investment is due to purchase of long ferm bonds
during the year. Decrease in deferred tax assets is mainly
on ufilization of accumulated losses during the year.

Current Assets consists of short-term investments, frade
receivables, cash and cash eguivalents, other bank
balances, other financial and current assets expected to
be realisable within next twelve months.

Current investments have increased due increase in short

term investments and parked proceeds in long term
bonds. Trade receivables have increased due to increase

in business during the year.

Further to the above, the financial ratios are as follows:

Sr.

No Particulars

1 | Debtors turnover 3.28 2.81
2 | Inventory turnover MNA MNA
3 Interest coverage ratio 27.44 21.28
4 | Current ratio 413 4.08
5 | Debt equity ratio® 0.20 0.19
& | Operating profit margin 24.60% 21.51%
7 | Mef profit margin 2.99%, 1.73%
8 | Return on net worth 1.29% 0.66%

# The total outstanding debt of the Company is ¥ 10,642 .38 [akhs
(including lease liabilities).

Current rafio has decreased primarily due to sale of current
investments and parked proceeds invested im long ferm
bonds.

Interest coverage ratio has improved due fo better
profitability during the current year.

|E|Il—0 Statutory Reperts }—i|l1

Operating profit margin, net profit margin and refurn on
net worth have improved due fo increase in turnowver and
profit during the year.

Human Resources

In line with our commitment to fostering a leaming-
arienfed and supportive environment for cur employees,
Radio City — HR has spearheaded several inifiafives aimed
at enhancing organisational capabilities and nurturing
talent. These inihatives are designed to facilitate learning,
growth and enjoyment within our workplace. Among the
key initiatives undertaken this year are:

Knowledge Konnect for 5ales: This program focuses on
equipping our sales team with the necessary knowledge
and skills for success in the digifal environment. Through
various sessions such as Video Editing, Digital and On-
Ground Amplification, and Al Knowledge Training,
employees have enhanced their capabilities to thrive in
the digital landscape.

Skill development workshops: A series of skill development
workshops have been organised to empower employees
with essential competencies. Programs like Winning
Presantation, Excel with M5 Excel, and AWE Training have
equipped our workforce with valuable skills to excel in
their roles.

Succession Planning: We have implemented robust
succession planning strategies to ensure a pipeline of
talented individuals ready to assume key roles within the
organisation.

Campus Hiring: As part of our talent acquisition efforts,
we conducted campus drives and hired 10 Management
Traineeas from reputable institutes. These MTs underwent
rigorous training and contributed to projects under the
guidance of senior leadership.

Rewards and Recognition: Our rewards and recognition
programs, including Spotlight, Sher of the Quarter, and
Cheers to Peers, celebrate the achievements and efforts
of our employees, motivating them to strive for excellence

Employee Wellness: We prioritise the well-being of our
employees through inifiatives such as Daily Health Tips,
Choosing Health, and the RC Wellness League, which
encourage a healthy and balanced lifestyle.

Hobbies Masterclass: Hobby classes offer employees a
chance to pursue their inferasts outside of wark, leading
to increased job satisfaction and overall well-being,
reduces stress, leads to Team building.

As a result, of these inifiatives, our organisation’s Great
Place to Work (GPTW) score has increased by 2 basis
points reaching 89 in 2023-24. This achievement reflects
the trust and pride our employees have in the Radio
Cify brand. Additionally, cur commitment fo continuous
learning and development is evident from the increase in
training days per employee and the successful integration
of new hires from campus recruitment

As of March 31, 2024, Radio City employs 479 permanent
employees, each contributing to our shared success
and growth journey. We remain dedicated to nurturing
talent, fostering a culture of learning and innovation, and
creating a workplace where every individual can thrive
and realise their full potential.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Music Broadcast Limited

ReportontheAuditoftheFinancial Statements

Opinion

1

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Music Broadcast Limited ("the Company™), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policy
and other explanatory informafion.

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given fo us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
and fotal comprehensive income (comprising of profit and
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

: 4

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Audifing {5As) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilifies under those Standards are further
described in the “"Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independant of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are

Key andit matter
i) Assessment of carrying amount of deferred tax Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of

balances
[Refer to the notes 12 and 20 fo the financial statemenis]

Pursuant to the enactment of the Finance Act, 2019 and
the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019, announcing

key changes fo corporate tax rates in the Income-tax|

Act, 1961, the management carmed out an assessment to
consider the implications of the amendments providing
an option fo pay fax at a concessicnal rate, subject fo
compliance with condifions prescribed therein, specfically
surrender of specfied deductions!/ incentives. Based on
the management’s assessment, projections of future taxable
profits and the impact on carrying amount of deferred fax
balances, including Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit, the
Company has estimated to adopt the lower rate of fax in a
future year after utilising the available MAT credit balance.
The deferred tax balances have, accordingly, been measured
as at March 31, 2024.

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4, We draw your attention to Mote 35 of the financial
statements, which describes a petition under Sections
241, 242 and 244 of the Companies Act, 2013 filed by
cerfain promaoter and promoter group members against
the other promoters and promoter group members of
Jagran Prakashan Limited (the Holding Company), which
is pending with the Mational Company Law Tribunal
("MCLT"). As stated in the said note, the management at
present does not expect any impact of this matter on the
Company. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Key aundit matters

5. Keyaudit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addrassed in the context of our audit of the financial
staternents as a whole and in forming our opinion theraon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

|lln-wm|1 audit addressed the key audit matter

i{arr'gring value of deferred tax balances included the following:
| ? =
+ Understanding and evaluation of the process and controls
designed and implemented by the management in relation
to ‘Income Taxes' and testing their operating effectiveness.

|+ Bwvaluating the Company's accounting policy in respect of
recognising deferred fax assets/ labiifies, including MAT
credit.

«  Bvaluating the management's assessment of availing benefits
and exemptions under the Income-tax laws.

«  Assossing appropnateness of the fax rate applied to future
taxable profits in light of current tax laws and substantively
enacted tax rates.

«  With the involvement of our experts, evaluating the
management’s assessment on the availability of future
taxable profits to support measurement of deferred tax
balances as at the year-and.
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Eey audit matter How our aundit addressed the key andit matter

We considered this as a key audit matter because of the| -
significance of the amount involved, significant judgments |
involved in estimation of future taxable profits, the period over
which MAT credit would be ufilised and the expected year of
adoption of the concessional fax rafe.

Assessing the reasonableness of the assumptions underlying
the management's forecasts of future profits by comparing
with the histonical results and the approved business plans
in light of the relevant economic and industry indicators.

- « Performing sensitivity analyses on the projected faxable
profits by varying key assumptions, within reasonable range.

- «  Assessing the adequacy of disclosures [notes 12 and 20] in
the financial statements for deferred tax, MAT credit and the
basis of management estimates.

| Bazed on the above procedures performed, the management’s
{ assessment of carrying amount of deferred tax balances was
conrsldered fo be reascnable
ii) Essessrnento&ecuverabllltyuftraderececwables Our pracedu res in relation to the management’s assessment
[Refer to the notes 5{b) and 22 to the financial statements] | of recoverability of trade receivables included the following:

The Company recognises provision against frade receivables .
based on expected credit loss {(ECL) model as per Ind AS 109
'Financial Instruments”.

Obtaining an understanding of the process and testing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
relevant internal controls for evaluating the recoverability
of frade receivables including collection process and the
methodology for determining the allowances for impaired
trade receivables.

The ECL is computed by the Company based on historical
credit loss expenence, specific reviews of customer accounts
as well as experience with such customers, current economic
and business conditions. »  Evaluating reasonableness of the method and assumptions
and judgements used by the management with respect to
recoverability of frade receivables, including assessment
of the profile of frade receivables, financial condition of

the counterparty, prebability of default, loss given default,

The recoverability of trade recevables and the valuation
of the allowances for ECL against trade receivables has
been considered a key audit matter due to the judgement
involved in determining the provision which requires

evaluation of vanous factors such as the financial condition of
the counterparty, probability of default, loss given default,

expected future cash flows and other related faciurs,E .
and also considering the significant balance of the frade

receivables as at the year-end.

expected future cash flows and the economic environment
applicable to these debtors.

Evaluating the simplified approach applied by the Company
to identify lifetime ECL. In doing so, obfained the schedule
of receivables aging, inquired into aged balances and
assessed management’s explanation for collectability. Also
tested the management’s computation of the provision for

ECL.

Comparing receipts subsequent to the financial year-end
relating to frade receivable balances as at March 31, 2024 with
bank statements and relevant underlying documentation for
selected samples.

Evaluating the presentation and disclosure of the trade
receivable balances and the related allowances in the
financial statements.

| Bazed on the above procedures performed, the management’s
' assessment of recoverability of frade recevables was considered
| to be reasonable.
iii) Assessmentofimpairment of Property, plantand  Our precedures in relation to the managements assessment
equipment, Right-of-use assets and Intangible | of impairment of non-financial assets included the following:

assets (including under development)
[Refer to the accompanying note 29 of the flnan{lal
statements]

The Company carries its Property, Plant and Equipment,

Right-of-use assets and Intangible assets (including under |
development) (hereinafter referred to as “non-financial |

assets”) at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortisation
and impairment losses.

Understanding and evaluation of the process and controls
designed and implemented by the management fo assess
the potential impairment of non-financial assets and testing
the operating effectiveness of the controls.

Evaluating the appropriateness of the Company's accounting
policy in respect of impairment assessment of non-financial
assats.
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Key andit matter

The market capitalisation of the Company fluctuat

during the year and was lower than the carrying amount
of net assets for a part of the year. This reduction in market
capitalisation fniggered the requirement for the Company
to assess the carrying amount of non-financial assets for;

potential impairmeant.

The management has used the discounted cash flow model
to assess the value in use of the non-financial assefs, which
requires judgement in respect of certain key inputs like
determining an approprnate discount rate, future cash flows,

efc. Based on the management’s assessment and forecast |
of business conditions, the recoverable amount of the|

non-financial assets is higher than their carrying amount,
and accordingly the management has concluded that no
provision for impairment needs to be recorded.

We considered this as a key audit matter because of the
significant judgement and management esfimates involved
around impairment assessment.

How our aundit addressed the key audit matter

|
| =

Assessing appropriateness of determination of cash
generating unit (CGU) in line with the requirements of Ind
AS 36 'Impairment of Assets’ considenng the nature of the
Company's operafions.

With the involvement of auditor’s experts, evaluating the
appropriateness of key assumptions underlying the cash
flow projections including growth and discount rates used
within the discounted cash flow model with speafic focus
on forecast revenue compared to readily available market
information and underlying macroeconomic factors.

Performing sensitivity analysis on the projections by varying
key assumphions, within a reasonable range.
Comparing the carrying amount of the net assets with

the estimated discounted cash flows determined by the
management.

Assessing the adequacy of disclosures made in the financial
statements.

| Based on the above procedures performed, the results of
imanagement's assessment of impairment of non-financial
Easseis were considered to be consistent with the outcome of
| our procedures.

Other Information

6.

Tha Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information
is matenally inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

Woe have nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilitiesof managementand thosecharged
with governance for the financial statements

L

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
fo the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
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responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate infernal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
staternents that give a frue and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related fo going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board
of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’sresponsibilitiesfortheanditofthefinancial
statements

9

Our objectives are fo obfain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial staternents as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantea that an audit conducted in accordance
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10.

11

with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic dedisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepficism throughout the audit. We also:

. [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those nsks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are approprate in the crcumstances. Under Saction
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
exprassing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate infernal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating
effectivenass of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accountfing policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting esfimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to confinue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a matenal uncerfainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obfained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concermn.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

12

13.
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any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public
interast benefits of such communication.

Reporton otherlegaland regulatory requirements

14.

15

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section {11) of Section 143 of the Act,
we give in the "Annexure B, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

fa) We have soughtand obtained all the informafion and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In ouropinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except
for the matters stated in paragraph 15(hivi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (" the Rules™).

(c) The Balance 5Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Repaort are in agreement
with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

if)  With respect to the maintenance of accounts and
other matters connected therewith, reference is
made to our remarks in paragraph 15(b) above on
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reporting under Section 143(3}b) and paragraph
15(h){vi) below on reporfing under Rule 11(g) of the
Rules.

With respect to the adequacy of the infernal financial
confrols with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operafing effectiveness of such
confrols, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
A

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Rules, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according fo the explanations given
o us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 25 to the
financial statements;

ii. The Company was not required to recognise
a provision as at March 31, 2024 under the
applicable law or accounting standards, as it
does not have any matenal foreseeable losses
on long-term contract. The Company did not
have any derivative contracts as at March 31,
2024,

ji. There were no amounts which were required
to be fransferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the
year ended March 31, 2024.

iv. (@ The management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note 32{i) to the
financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either
from bommowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other personis)
or entity(ies), including foreign entifies
(“Intermedianes”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or enfities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, sacurity or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b] The management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note 32{i) to
the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from
any persons) or entitylies), including

vi.

foreign entifies ("Funding Parties"™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
ar invest in other persons or entities
identified im any manner whatsoaver
by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantea, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

() Based on such audit procedures that we
considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us fo believe
that the representations under sub-
clause (a) and (b) confain any material
missfaternent.

The dividend declared and paid during the
year by the Company is in compliance with
Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination, which included
test chacks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit frail
(edit log) facility and that has operated for
part of the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software, except that the
audit trail is not mainfained at the application
level for modification, if any, for certain users
with specific access and for direct database
changes. During the course of performing our
procedures, except for the aforesaid instances
of audit trail not maintained at application and
database level, where the guestion of our
commenting on whether the audit trail has
been tamperad with does not arise, we did not
notice any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

16. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountanis LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amit Peswani
Pariner
Membership Number: 501213

UDIN: 24501 213BKFRKCS227
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 15ig) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date fo the members of Music Broadcast Limited on
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

ReportontheInternal Financial Controls with
referencetoFinancialStatementsunderclause
(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

L

We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements of Music Broadcast
Limited ("the Company”™) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

2.

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial contrals
based on the internal contral over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of infernal control stated in the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Ower Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Mote”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilifies include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevenfion and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Aunditor’s Responsibility

&

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference fo
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nofe and the
Standards on Auditing deemed fo be prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of infernal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial conirols with
reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such confrols operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to abtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements

included obtaining an understanding of intermnal financial
controls with reference fo financial statements, assessing
the nisk that a matenal weakness exists, and tesfing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal confrol based on the assessed nsk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obfained
is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
systemn with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to financial statements

6.

A company’s infernal financial contrals with reference
to financial statements is a process designed fo provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
fimancial confrols with reference to financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounfing principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
ar fimely detection of unauthornised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assefs that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financial
Controlswithreferencetofinancialstatements

L

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
confrals with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
ovemde of controls, material misstatements due to emmor
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in condifions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may
detericrate.

159



Radio City
Ce TRUTTTTRT SITH]] 74

Radiio's Digital Renaissance ®

Opinion

8.

160

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial contrals system with referance to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reparfing criteria established by the Company considering the
essentfial components of internal control stated in the Guidance Naote issued by ICAL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firrn Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amit Peswani
Partner
Membership Number: 501213

UDIN: 2450121 3IBKFRKCS5227
Place: Mumbai
Data: May 22, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Music Broadcast Limited on the

financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and
furnished by the Company, and the books of account and
records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to
the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

. (@ (A) The Company is maintaining proper records
showing full parficulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

(B} The Company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars of Infangible Assetfs.

{b) TheProperty, Plant and Equipment are physically
verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed fo cover all the
items over a penod of three years which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard o
the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion
of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been
physically venfied by the Management during
the year and no material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification.

(¢} The title deeds of all the immovable properties
(other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed
in Mote 3{a) to the financial statements, are held
in the name of the Company.

{d) The Company has chosen cost model for its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and infangible assets.
Consequently, as stated in Mote 32 (vi) to
the financial statements, the question of our
commenting on whether the revaluation is
based on the valuation by a Registerad Valuer,
or specifying the amount of change, if the
change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the
net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Lise
assets) or intangible assets does not anise.

{e) Based on the information and explanations
furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the
Company for holding benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) {formerly the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988)) and Rules made theraunder, and
therefore the question of our commenting
on whether the Company has appropriately
disclosed the details in the financial statements
does not arisa.

Wi,

(a) The Company is in the business of rendenng services
and, consequently, does not hold any inventory.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{i){a) of the
Order is not apphcable to the Company.

(b) Dwring the year, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crores, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security
of current assets. The Company has not filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks and
accordingly, the question of our commenting on
whether these returns or statements are inagreement
with the unaudited books of account of the Compamy
does not anse. Also, refer Mote 32(viil) fo the financial
statements.

(a) The Company has made investments in eight
companies and six other parties. The Company has
not granfed secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided
security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting
under clause 3{ui)a), ()(c), (i)id), (if{e) and (i)
{f} of the Order to that extent is not applicable to
the Company. (Also, refer Note X to the financial
staterments).

{b) Inrespectofthe aforesaid investments, the termsand
conditions under which such investments were made
are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

In our apinion, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of the investments made. The Company has
not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or
sacurity to the parties covered under Sections 185 and
186. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3{iv) of the
Order to that exfent is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts
which are deemed to be deposits referred in Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

Pursuant fo the rules made by the Central Government of
India, the Company is required fo mainfain cost records
as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of
its services. We have broadly reviewed the same and are
of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have
not, however, made a detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complate.

(@ In our opinion, the Company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed stafutory dues in respect
of professional tax, though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including provident
fund, employees” state insurance, income tax, duty
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of customs, cess, goods and services fax and other matenal statutory dues, as applicable, with the approprate authorities.
Also, refer note 25(b) to the financial statements regarding management’s assessment on certain matters relating to

provident fund.

Thera are no statutory dues of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, duty of customs, professional tax, cess and
goods and services tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory
dues referred fo in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as

follows:

Name of the statute I gt | Rmmhm}m
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income tax ' 5.02
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income fax 53.93
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income tax | 79.99
Total 13a.94

mmrr::ﬁhmm Forum where the dispute is pending
ALY, 2009-10 Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax
AXY 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
AX. 2013-14 Bombay High Court

vii. There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the
books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.
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(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

()

(f)

a)

As the Company did not have any loans or other
borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3{ix){a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared Wiiful Defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

The Company has not obtained any ferm loans.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{i(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements
of the Company, the Company has not raised funds
on short-term basis. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3{mjd) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{ix)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{x){f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3{x)ia) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not made any preferential

(a}

(b)

()

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, the reportfing under clause 3{x)
{b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the
books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing
praciices in India, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on
the Company, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

During the course of our examination of the
books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing
pracfices in India, a report under Section 143(12) of
the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescnbed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not
required fo be filed with the Central Government.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the
books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing
pracfices in India, and as represented to us by the
management, no whistle-blower complaints have
been received during the year by the Company.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{xi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under
clause 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into fransactions with related
parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177
and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required under Indian Accounhing Standard 24 "Related
Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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(@ In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its
busimess.

(by The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period

under audit have been considered by us.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with
the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

fa The Company is not required to be registerad under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, the reporfing under clause 3(xvi)a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking
financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xviib) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company
(CIC} as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3xvi}c) of the Crder is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) Basedontheinformation and explanations provided
by the management of the Company, the Group
{as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have
any ClCs, which are part of the Group. We have
not, however, separately evaluated whether the
information provided by the management is accurate
and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xvilid) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

xvil. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the

wviil.

financial year or in the immediately preceding financial
year.
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors

dunng the year and accordingly the reporting under
clause 3{xviii} of the Order is not applicable.

Wi

WX
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(On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attenfion, which causes us fo
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its iabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the fufure viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have
any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of
the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3ix) of the
Order is not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not
applicable in respect of audit of 5tandalone Financial
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the
said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountanis LLP
Firm Registrafion Number: 012754MN/N500016

Amit Peswani
Partner
Membership Mumber: 501213

UDIN: 24501 213BKFRKCE227
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024

163



Radio City
L TRTITLAT HITRITT

BALANCE SHEET

Radic's Digital Renaissance

{All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B=at
e o [ et o
BSSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipmant 3(a) 737112 682096
Right-of-use assets 3o} 123671 124817
Imtangible assets 4 (a) 1223338 1522045
Intangible assets under development 4 b} B647 23.54
Financial assets
L Investments SEm 22392101 20,396.68
ii. Orher financial assets 5 {e) 326643 428841
Deferred tax assofs (net) 12 143440 182435
Other non-current assets & 25844 200,05
Current tax assets (net) 7 (a) 64&5.20 &£58.82
Total non-current assets | 50,044.15 50,780.53
Current azsets
Financial assets
i. [Investments 5 {2 ) 233135 157162
ii. Trade receivablas 5{b) 735014 &6,587.42
fi. Cash and cash equivalents 5ic) Q40104 64278
iv. Bank balances other than (i) abowe 5 i) 253147 4233
v. Orher financial assets 51{e) 245944 3,776.19
Other current assats ] 240491 221095
Total current assets | 18.017.39 14,838.29
Total assets. | &8,061.55 £5,618.92
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital o (a)i) 691371 691371
Other equity
Resarves and surplus 0 b} 3882033 3812542
Other reserves ich 743437 743437
Total equity 53,168.40 52,474.90
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 101(3) 2.159.71 837217
ii. Lease liabilities 104 101314 002 52
Emplovee benefit obligations 11 352.89 235.12
Total non-current Habilitles 10,525.74 9,510.82
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Lease liabilities 10 45953 557.24
il. Trade payables
{a) toral cutstanding dues of micro enternprises and small enterprises 10(b) 0049 5418
(b} total ourstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smiall 10 {b) 211254 1 668.64
enterprises
iii. Other finandial liabilities 10(d) 632.73 274.52
Employee benefit obligations 11 14043 12815
Crther current liabilities 13 01269 Q40 .47
Total current llabilitles 4,367.41 3,633.20
Total llabilities 14,893.15 13,144.02
Total equity and liablitties &8.061.55 65,618.92
The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Mumber: 012754N/N500014
Chartered Accountants
Amit Peswani Vijay Tandon Ravi Sardana
Partner Chairman Director
Membership Number: 501213 DMM: D0154305 DIM: 06938773
Place: Mumbai Place: New Delhi
Diate: May 22, 2024 Diate: May 22, 2024
Ashit Knkian Prashant Domadia  Arpita Eapoor
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

o oes [ eatchon s
Income
Revenue from operations 14 22,853.85 19 8B86.14
Other income (net) 15(a) 2,056.47 1,736.60
Other gains/{losses) - net 15 {b) 251.30 233.73
Total income 25,181.62 | 21,856.47
Expenses
License faes 2,019.22 1,943.30
Employee benefits expense 14 6,942.41 6,058.47
Depreciation and amortisation expense 17 334313 3,279.57
Met impairment losses on financial assets 22 325.19 317.16
Other expenses 18 10,251.81 & 26044
Finance costs 19 98981 391.26
Total expenses | 2387157 | 21,250.22
Profit before tax 1,290.05 606,25
Income tax expense
- Current tax 20 a) 219.42 12617
- Deferred tax 20 (a) 386.21 136.09
Total tax expense | £05.63 | 262.26
Profit for the year | 684.42 | 343.99
Other comprehensive income
[temns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 11 12.82 39.76
Income fax relating fo this item {3.73) {11.58)
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of fax .09 2818
Total comprehensive Income for the year &931.51 araa7
Earnings per equity share attributable to owners of Music
Broadcast Limited:
Mominal value of shares (T per shara) 2.00 2.00
Basic earnings 7 per share 27 0.20 0.10
Diluted earmings ¥ per share 0.20 0.10
The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred fo in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Mumber: 012754M/N500016
Chartered Accountants
Amit Peswani Vijay Tandon Ravi Sardana
Partner Chairman Director
Membership Number: 501213 DIN 00156305 DIN: 06938773
Place: Mumbai Place: New Delhi
Date: May 22, 2024 Data: May 22, 2024
Aszhit Kukian Prashant Domadia Arpita Kapoor

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Placa: Mumbai
Data: May 22, 2024
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Particulars

166

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Deprecation and amorhisation expensa
Finance costs

Interest income

Interest on income tax refund

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Unwinding of discount on securty deposits

Met gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Met gain on sale of investments

Met impairment losses on financial assefs

Lease liabilities no longer required writien back

OperatingProfitBeforeChangeinOperatingAssets
and Liabilities

Change in operating assets and liabilities :
- (Decrease)/Increase in frade payables

- ([Decreasel/Increase in other current habilifies

- (Decrease)/Increase in other financial liabilities

- (Decrease)/Increase in employes benefit obligations
- (Increasa)/Decrease in other financial assets

- (Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assats

- (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets

- (Increase)/Decrease in frade receivables
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes (paid) / refund (including inferest on income tax
refund)

Met cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payments for purchase of inftangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceads from sale of investments

Payments for purchase of investments

Investment in bank deposits

Interest received

Met cash outflow from investing activities

17
19
15 (a)
15 (3)
15 (b}

15 (a)
15 (b}
15 (b)
22
15 (b)

7(a)

(All amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
Ll March 31, 2024

334313
0R0.81
{1,985.88)
(10.47)
(31.47)

(60.12)
(27.81)
{142.37)
32519
(19.41)

47021
(27.78)
(43.77)
139.05
(16.88)

37.47
(193.96)
(1,087.91)

(903.35)
(68.91)
29.00
3,147.82
(5,725.43)
(7.07)
1,899.51

1.290.05

2,380.60 |
3,670.65

(723.55)
2,947.10 |
(215.33)

| 273177 |

| (L628.43) |

3,279.57
391.26
(1,664.56)
(1531}
(52.07)

(56.73)
(20.44)
(133.00)
317.16
(15.07)

8815
(1.85)
71319
63.40
1.08
3631
(425.38)
656.95

(946.60)
(43.93)
2175
5,639.34
(5,551.27)
(3,174.37)
1,661.04

£806.25

2,030.81

i 1,631.06

491.85

3,12891
(65.17)

3,063.74

(2.394.04)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(All amountds in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
Particulars ’ MNotes March 31, 2024

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Principal element of lease payments (603.98) (593.12)

Dividend paid to Preference Shareholders (0.20) -

Interest and other finance costs paid {201.18) (197.74)

Met cash outflow from financing activities (B0&.08) {790.88)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 297.28 (121.18)
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 642.78 76394
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 940.06 642.78
Mon-cash investing activities

- Acquisition of right-of-use assets 720.05 17587

Mon-cash financing activities

- lssue of non-converfible non-cumulative redeemable 10(a) - 8,178.76
preference shares

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the

statermnent of cash flows
Bank balances 5ic)
- in current accounts 24006 5OL.568
Cheques in hand Ll N 47.05
Cash on hand 5@ = 0.05
240.05 &642.78
Notes :

1. Figuresin brackets indicate cash outflow.

2. Theabowve Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND
AS) T - "Statement of Cash Flows" and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

3. The Company has issued non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares to the non-promoter shareholders
of the Company by way of bonus out of its reserves pursuant to a Scheme of Amrangement approved under Section 230 of the
Companies Act, 2013 of Nil (March 31, 2023 T 8,178.76), which represents non-cash financing achivities (refer note 10 (a)).

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Mumber: 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants

Amit Peswani Vijay Tandon Ravi Sardana
Partner Chairman Director
Membership Number: 501213 DIN 00155305 DIN: 06938773
Place: Mumbai Place: New Delhi

Date: May 22, 2024 Date: May 22, 2024

Ashit Eukian Prashant Domadia Arpita Kapoor
Chief Execufive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 : Background and basis of preparation

Background

"Music Broadcast Limited ("the Company") was incorporated
on November 4, 1999 and i= domiciled in India. The Company
is engaged in the business of operating Private FM radio
stations through the brand ‘Radio City’. The Company started its
operations in India in July 2001 in Bengaluru and operates radio
stations in 39 cities across India. During the year ended March
31, 2017, the Company raised money from public by issue of
equity shares, which were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
("BSE'") and the Mational Stock Exchange ("NSE") on March 17,
2017. During the previous year, the Company issued Mon-
converhble non-cumulative redeemable preference shares
(MCRPS) by way of bonus to the non-promoter shareholders
of the company, which were listed on the BSE and the N5SE
on Aprl 20, 2023. The financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authonsed for issue on May 22, 2024

Basis of preparation

(iy Compliance withInd A3
The financial statements comply in all material aspects
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nofified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015],
other relevant provisions of the Act.

(iiy Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following:

certain financial assets and liabilities which have been
measurad af fair value;

defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

(iiiy New and amended standards adopted by the
Company
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide nofification
dated March 31, 2023, notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which
amended certain accounfing standards, and are effective
Apnl 01, 2023:

Disclosure of accounting policies - amendments to Ind
AS1

Definition of accounting estimates - amendments to Ind
A58

170

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities ansing from a
single fransaction - amendments fo Ind AS 12

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules
are primarily in the nature of clarfications.

These amendments did not have any matenal impact
on the amounts recognised in prior penods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future
penods. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as
a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the
Company’s accounting policy already complies with the
now mandatory freatment.

Note 2: Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the use
of accounfing estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs fo exercise
judgement in applying the Company's accounting policies.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of iters which
are more likely to be matenally adjusted due to esfimates and
assumptions furning out to be differant than those originally
assessed. Defailed information about each of these estimatas
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statements. In addition, this note also
explains where there have been actual adjusiments this year as
a result of changes to previous estimates.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

Estimation of defined and other long-term employea benefit
obligations — Note 11

Impairment of trade receivables — Mote 22

Estimated usaful ives and impairment of tangible and intangible
assets — Mofes 3, 4 and 29

Contingent liabilities — Note 25 - Management judgement
is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources,
if any, in respect of confingencies/claims/litigations against
the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of
pending matters with accuracy.

Estimation of deferred tax — Notes 12 and 20

Estimates and judgements are confinually evaluated. They are
based on histarical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3 (a) : Property, plant and egquipment

Accounting Policy

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciahion. Histonical cost includes expenditure that is
direcily atmbutable fo the acquisiion of the items.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual value

Leasehold improvements included in furniture and fixtures,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis ower the lease term, or
useful life, whichewver is shorter.

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a pro-
rata basis using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets prescribed in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, which are as follows:

Nature of aszet Usefullifefinyears)
Buildings &0 *

Towers, anfenna and transmitters 13

Furniture and fixtures 5-10

Studio equipment 3-15

Vehicles B

Office equipment 3-15

Computers 3-6

* further adjusted for life already expired at the time of
acquisition

The useful lives represents actual usage of the assets. The
residual values are not more than 5% of the onginal cost of
the asset.

See note 33(f} for other accounting policies related to property,
plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in 7 lakhs, unless ofherwise stated)

Note 3 (b) : Right-of-use assets
Accounting Policy

Leazes

Tha Company leases vanous offices and rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of two to ten years, but may have
extension opfions as described in (iv) below.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements inwhich
it is the lessea, except for shorf-term leases ([defined as leases with a lease ferm of 12 months or less). For short-term leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operafing expense on a straight-lime basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

v Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable, and
v Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that opticn.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the lability.
The lease payments are discounted using the inferest rate implicit in the leasa. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay fo borrow the funds necessary fo obtain an asset of similar value to the nght-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, securty and conditions.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a
similar payment profile fo the lease, then the Company uses that rate as a starting point o determine the incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as fo produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the assat's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
usaful life.

See note 33{g) for other accounting policies related to leases.

Category of right-of-use assets
Particulars Dbty
Asat

Opening balance 1,24817 | 1,708.62

Additions during the year 72005 17587

Disposals/ reversals during the year (38.75) {46.95)

Depreciation during the year (592.76) (589.37)

Closing balance 133471 | 1,248.17
Note:

(il The aggregate depreciation expense on right-of-use assets is included under depreciation and amorfisation expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2024 is T 755.58 lakhs (March 31, 2023 T 741.38 lakhs).

(iii) Rental contracts are typically made for fixed term of two to ten years, but may have exfension opfions as described in (iv)
balow.

{w) Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Company. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in ferms of managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor.

{v) In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise an extension option, or not exercising a termination option. Extension options (or periods after fermination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated)
For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

L If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or
not ferminate).
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(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

»  |f any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is fypically reasonably
cerfain fo extend {or not terminate).

»  Dtherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption
required to replace the leased asset,

Most extension options in office bullding leases have been included in the lease liability, because the Company can not replace
the assets without significant cost or business disruption.

The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which
affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessea.

Note 4 (a) : Intangible assets

Accounting Policy

Intangible assefs, other than one-time entry fees and migration fees, are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful life of five years.

One-time enfry fees capitalised is being amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of fifteen years, being the peniod of icense,
from the date of operationalisation of the respective stations.

The migration fee capitalised is being amortised with effect from April 1, 2015 on a straight-line basis over a period of fifteen vears,
being the period of license.

See note 33(h) for other accounting policies related to intangible assets.

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

%m ComputerSoftware Total
Year ended ended March 31, 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 30,66%.34 350.17 31,019.51
Additions - &68.91 68.91
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 30,669.34 | 419.08 31,088.42
Accumulated amortisation |
Opening accumulated amortisation 15,450.06 32980 15,789 856
Amortisation charge for the year 204988 1530 2,065.18
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated amortisation 17,509.94 | 345.10 17,855.04
Met carrying amount 13,159.40 | 7398 13,233.38
Year ended March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 30,669.34 32078 30,999.12
Additions - 20.39 2039
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 0,649.34 | 350.17 31.019.51
HAccumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation 1341017 32391 13,734.08
Amortisation charge for the year 204989 589 2,055.78
Disposals = - -
Closing accumulated amortisation 15,460.06 | 129.80 15,789.85
Net carrying amount 15,209.28 | 2037 15,229.55
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Note 4 (a) : Intangible assets (Contd.)

Details of one time entry / migration fees ;

A= at March 31, 2024

Car amount Average

PG of legtllgﬁ eniry/ remalning nsefgul
migration fees life (years)

Stations acquired under a composite 632.26 & 737.63 7
scheme of amangement
Mew stations acquired under Phase 3,686.69 1.7 4157.79 a.7
i
Ewisting stations renewsed under 8,840.45 & 10,313.856 7
Phase I
Total | 13,159.40 | | 15,209.28 |

Note 4 (b) : Intangible assets under development
(il Ageing of intangible assets under development

A= at March 31, 2024

Amounts in intangible assets ander development for

i Le== than one year l1-Zyears 2-3years DNMorethan 3 years

{a) Projects in progress 62.93 ‘ 23.54 ‘ 2 | = 8547
(b) Projects temporarily suspended = = = = m
Total 62.93 | 23.54 | - | -| 8647

A= at March 31, 2023

Particulars

{a) Projects in progress 23.54| - - - 23.54
(b) Projects temporarily suspended B - H E2 =
Total 23.54 - - - 2354

(i) Therewere no infangible assets under development whose completion was overdue or had exceeded its cost compared to
its ariginal plan in the current year or previous year.

Note 5: Investment and other financial assets

Accounting Policy
(il  Classification of financial assets at amortised cost

The company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:
. the asset is held within a business model whose objactive is to collect confractual cash flows, and
. the contractual terms give rise fo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.
Financial assets classified at amortised cost comprise trade receivables and investment in bonds.
(i) Classification of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
The company classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL)

*  |nvestment in mutual funds and alfernative investment fund that do not qualify for measurement at amortised cost
or FVOCI

See note 33(i) for other accounting policies related fo infangible assets.
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5 (a) Investments
(i) Non-current Investments

Investments

Quoted

Investments in bonds [refer note S{E)iNA)] (at amortised cost)
Unquoted

Investments in alfernative investment fund [refer note S(a)i)B)]
Total

Total non-current investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of guoted investments®

Aggregate amount of unguoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

A= at
March 31, 2024

2189203

499.98
12.392.01
22,392.01
21,892.03
22,592.01

499.98

20,069.67

327.01
20,396.58
20,396.568
20,069.67
20,059.94

327.01

* Imvestments in bonds represent debt instruments which are carried at amortised cost and impairment is recognised basis the
expected credit losses Nil (March 31, 2023 Nil). The reduced market value as at the previous year balance sheet date does not

impact the carrying amount of such investments as they are being held to maturity.

(ii)Current Investments

Investments in mutnal funds

Quoted

Investments in mutual funds [refer note S(@E)i)AN

Total (mutual funds)

Total current investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of guoted investments

Aggregate amount of unguoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

K= at
March 31, 2024

2,331.35
233135
233135
2,331.35
2,331.35

1,571.62
157162
1.571.62
1,571.62
1,571.62

S(a)(i}(A) Details of Investments in bonds

100 {March 31, 2023:100) units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 8.70% Bank of Baroda
Perpetual Bond (Series X) (I5IN code INED2BADB174)

200 (March 31, 2023: 200) units of ¢ 10,00,000 each held in 8.50% State Bank of India
Perpetual Bond (Series II} (ISIN code INEOS2A08223)

100 (March 31, 2023: 100) units of § 10,000,000 each held in 8.15% Bank of Baroda
Perpetual Bond (Series XV) {I5IN code INED2BADE240)

100 (March 31, 2023: 100) units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 7.73% Stfate Bank of India
Perpetual Bond (Series 1) (I5IN code INEQOG2AD8272)

10 (March 31, 2023: 10) units of  1,00,00,000 cach held in 7.7 2% State Bank of India
Perpetual Bond (Series 1) (I5IN code INEDGZ ADE280)

12 (March 31, 2023: 12) units of  1,00,00,000 each held in 7.72% State Bank of India
Perpetual Bond (Series Il} {ISIN code INEOS2A08298)

50 (March 31, 2023: 50) units of T 10,00,000 each held in 9.75% U.P. Power
Corporation Limited (Series ) {I15IN code INES40P0T244)

50 (March 31, 2023: 50) units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 9.75% U.P. Power
Corporation Limited (Series [} (I5IN code INES40P07251)

176

K= at
March 31, 2024

1,008.86

2,024.57

1,002.81

101063

1,004.46

1,205.50

515.75

515.99

1,017.28

2,047.87

1,004.17

1,01533

1,005.80

1,207.30

514.30

515.26
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A= at
March 31, 2024

S(a)(i)(A) Details of Investments in bonds (Contd.)

100 (March 31, 2023: 100} units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 8.00% Bank of Baroda 1,003.67 1,004.77
Perpetual Bond (Series XV) {I5IN code INED2BADBZ240)

100 (March 31, 2023: 100) units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 8.99% Bank of Baroda 101317 1,025.60
Parpetual Bond (3eries XI) (15IN code INEOZBADB182)

330 (March 31, 2023: 330} units of T 10,00,000 each held in 7.70% LIC Housing 341718 342927
Finance Limited (5eries 2} (I5IN code INE115A08377)

200 (March 31, 2023: 200} units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 6.88% HDFC Limited 198745 198641
(Series 2004} (ISIN code INEQOLADTTBE)

100 (March 31, 2023: 100} units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 6.65% Food Corporation 281.36 e72.40
of India (Series [¥) (I5IN code INEBG1GOE0TE)

50 (March 31, 2023: 50) units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 8.95% IDFC Bank Limited 51541 52239
(Series OBB 18) (ISIN code INEDS2TOB527)

25 (March 31, 2023: 25) units of ¥ 10,00,000 cach held in 8.67% IDFC Bank Limited 253.20 256.23
(Series OBB 14) (ISIN code INEQF2TOBBS4)

20 (March 31, 2023: 20) units of T 10,00,000 each held in 8.70% |IDFC Bank Limited 20513 20746
(Series QBB 06) (ISIN code INEZTOBBUD )

25 (March 31, 2023: 25) units of ¥ 10,00,000 each held in 7.05% LIC Housing Finance 25002 250.04
Limited (Series LOA 21DC 30) (I5IN code INE115A08369 )

200,000 (March 31, 2023: 200,000) units of ¥ 1,000 each held in 8.20% India Gnd 207410 2,080.79
Trust (5eries V CAT [I&IV) {I5IN code INE219X07264 )

500 (March 31, 2023: Nil) units of ¥.1,00,000 each held in 8.75% Shriram Finance 498 57 -
Limited (ISIN Code INE721A07RMNT)

1,000 (March 31, 2023: Nil) units of T 1,00,000 each held in 9.25% Shriram Finance 1,004.15 -
Limited {I5IN Code INE721A07RUZ)

40 (March 31, 2023: Nil) units of ¥ 10,00,000 each hald in 8.80% Bharti Telecom 39995 -
Limited (15N code INE4A03D0B132)

Total 2189203 | 20,069.67

5{a)(i)(B) Details of Investments in alternative Investments fund
A= at

March 31, 2024

A77645.565 units (March 31, 2022: 99,995) ICIC] Prudential Corporate Credit 49008 | 327.01
Opportunities Fund AIF - |

49998 | 327.01

5(a)(ii){A) Details of Investments in mutual funds

B= at
March 31, 2024
77,02 814.998 (March 31, 2023: 1,52,19,986.225) units in Aditya Birla Sun Life CRISIL - 1.571.62
[BX 60:40 SDL + AAA PSU - Apr 2027 Index Fund Direct Growth
6,84,100.109 (March 31, 2023 Nil) units in Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund 233135 -
- Direct - Growth |
2,331.35 1,571.62
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Radic's Digital Renaissance

5 (b) Trade receivables

Accounting Policy

Trade receivables are amounts due from cusfomers for services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflect the
company's unconditional right o consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are
recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not confain significant financing components. The Company holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amorfised
cost using the effective inferest method, less loss allowance.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime

losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the recevables.

A=z at
March 31, 2024

Trade receivables 10,093.57 9370.72
Trade receivables from relatad parties (refer note 24 (h)) 54.73 10.29
Less: Loss allowance 2,798.16 2,793.59
Total trade receivables 7,350.14 6,587.42
Current portion 735014 6,587.42
Non-current portion - -
Break-up of security details

Trade receivables considered good - Secured = -
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 10,052.05 Q29174
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired 89.25 8925
Total | 10,148.30 2.381.01
Loss allowance (2, 798.16) {2,793.59)
Total trade receivables | 7,350.14 6,587.42

Trade receivables ageing schedule

Particulars

Undisputed trade receivables
considered good

which have significant
increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Disputed frade receivables
considered good
which have significant
increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Total

Unbilled | Notdue |poccthan

| Outstanding as on March 31, 2024 from the dne date

6months-

1-2

2-3 iMurethan |

| 6 momths |

4561598 | 1923.40

1 year |

212.68 |

years

210.60

210.60 |

years |

25534

255.34

3 years |

89.25
2,929.30 |

89.25
10,148.30

Trade receivables ageing schedule

el e T

Particulars

Undisputed trade receivables
considered good
which have significant
increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Disputed tfrade receivables
considered good
which have significant
increase in credit risk
credit impaired

Total

3,903.91

-| 3,903.91

1,293.80

23647

404.87

404.87

34348

3,109.23

89.25
3,198.48

9.291.76

89.25
9.381.01
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5 (c¢) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts
Cheques in hand

Cash on hand |
Total cash and cash equivalents [ 940.06 642.78

5 (d) Other bank balances

Az at
March 31, 2024
- in ficed deposits (with criginal maturity of more than three months and 2,501.00 -
remaining maturity of less than fwelve months)
- in fixed depaosits with criginal maturity of less than twelve months held as margin - 25.85
money{refer note below)
- interest accrued on fixed deposits 3047 2348
Total other bank balances 2,531.47 49.33

MNote : These deposits are under lien against the guarantees issued and overdraft facilities availed from the banks.

5 (e) Other financial assets

As at March 31, 2024

Fortentar: Current Non-current
Sacunty deposits
-Secured, considered good = = = -
-Unsecured, considered good 193.55 1,058.53 186.65 101543
-Doubtful 280.42 83.97 28042 83.97
47397 1,142.50 4567.07 1,099.40
Less : Loss allowance 280.42 83.97 28042 8397
193.55 105853 186,65 1,015.43
Bank balances:
- in fixed deposits with onginal maturty of more than 1,638.37 3,041.37 1,098.00
twelve months
- infived deposits with original maturity of more than - 220790 - 217498
twelve months held as margin money (refer note below)
1,638.37 2,207.90 | 3,041.27 3,272.98
Others:
- interest accrued on investment in bonds 627.54 - 548.17 -
Total other financial assets 2,459.45 3.266.43 | 3.776.19 4.288.41

MNote : These deposits are under lien against the guarantees issued and overdraft facilities availed from the banks.

Note 6: Other non-current assets

A= af
March 31, 2024
Capital advances ‘
Prepaymants 252.58 290.05
Total other non-current assets | 258.44 290.05
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Note 7 : Current tax assets

(a) Current tax assets (net)
Opening balanca
Less: Current tax payable for the year (net of MAT credit utilised)

Add: Taxes paid (net of refund received ¢ 261.72 (March 31, 2023: 204.16))

Less: Provision for earlier years
Total current tax assets

H=at
March 31, 2024

I

458.82
(228.44)
225.80
9.02
885.20

704.51
(126.17)
80.48

£58.82

(b} For the analysis of Company's income tax expense, refer Note 20.

Note 8: Other current assets

K= at
March 31, 2024

Prepayments 981.83 864.04
Balances with statutory/government authaorifies 25489 197.32
Advances to others
- Considered good 3690 40.95
- Considered doubtful 2667 26.67
Less: Loss allowance 26.67 2667
Amounits paid under protest
- Considered good (refer note 25 (a)) 200.00 200.00
- Considered doubtful 290,70 290.70
Less: Loss allowance 290,70 290.70
Other receivables [including related party balances, refer note 24 (h)] 931.29 208.64
Total other current assets | 2.404.71 2,210.95
Note 9: Equity share capital and other equity
9(a) Equity share capital
BRuthorised equity share capital
AsatApnl 1, 2022 | 40,00,00,000 8,000.00
Increase dunng the year - -
Es at March 31, 2023 ! 40,00,00,000 | £2,000.00
Increase dunng the year | = -
A= at March 31, 2024 | 40,00,00,000 | 8,000.00

Buthorised convertible redeemable preference share capital

Particulars

As at April 1, 2022
Increase duning the year
As at March 31, 2023
Increase dunng the year
As at March 31, 2024

Authorised non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference share capital

Particulars

As at April 1, 2022
Increase during the year
As at March 31, 2023
Increase duning the year
As at March 31, 2024

89,469,600
89.69,600

89,59,600 |

896.96
894.94

894.95
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Note 9: Equity share capital and other equity (Contd.)
(i) Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital

Particulars

As at Apnl 1, 2022 [ 34.56,85 625 6,913.71
Increase during the year = =
Asat March 31, 2023 | 24,56,85,625 6.913.71
Increase during the year -| -
A= at March 31, 2024 | 34,56,85,625 | 6,913.71

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 2 per share (March 31, 2023: ¥ 2 per share). Each

shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company

after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

{ii) Shares of the Company held by holding company/ ultimate holding company

H=sat
Particulars March 31, 2024
Number of shares
Jagran Prakashan Limited, the holding company 25,59 89 5649 25,59 89 649

(iii) Details of shareholding of promoters

A= at March 31, 2024

Name of promoter ! % of change during
Number of shares | % of total shares the year

Jagran Prakashan Limited (face value ¥ 2 per share) 25,59 89 649 T4.05% 0.00%

Total | 25.59.89.649 74.05%

Name of promoter

Jagran Prakashan Limited {face value % 2 per share ) 25,59,89,649 74.05% L15%

RSMA Advisors Private Limited (face value ¥ 2 per share | - 0.00% -100.00%

Total | 25,59,89.649 | 74.05%

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

A= at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Jagran Prakashan Limited, the holding company (face 25 5989 649 74.05% 25,590,890 649 | 74.05%
value ¥ 2 per share)

Frankiin India Smaller Companies Fund (face value T 2 per - - 1,75,02 803 5.06%
shara)

Total 25,59.89.549 | 7405% | 27,34,92452 79.11%
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Note 9: Equity share capital and other equity (Contd.)

(v) Issue of bonus shares
The Board of Directors at its meefing held on January 27, 2020 recommended issue of one bonus share for every four
equity shares held by the equity shareholders. The shareholders approved such issue of bonus shares on March 03, 2020.
Accordingly on March 16, 2020, 6,91,37.125 equity shares of ¥ 2 each fully paid-up were allotted to the shareholders.
Further, the Company utilised a sum equal fo the nominal value of the shares so issued, i.e., T 1,382.74, from the securities
premium and capital redempticn reserve amounting to § 1,208.23 and 7 174.51 respectively for the purposa.

(vi) Preference share capital

The Company has two classes of preference shares comprising of 50,000 converfible redeemable preference shares having par
value of T 10 per share, which have not been issued and 89,62 600 non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference
shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share, which have been issued (refer note 10 (a)L.

Note 8 (b) : Reserves and surplus

Particul K= at
March 31, 2024

Capital reserve 148273 148273
Capital redemption reserve g95.94 8%6.96
Securities premium 3262622 3262622
(Zeneral reserve 3,893.88 3.893.88
Retained ecarnings (79.44) {772.97)
Total reserves and surplus iB,820.33 18,1256.82

(i) Capital reserve
Opening balance 148273 1482.73
Closing balance | 1.482.72 1482713

(ii) Capital redemption reserve

Opening balance B96.96 =
Add : fransfer from general reserve (refer note 10 {(a)) | - 896,96

Closing balance 896.96 B94.96

(iii) Securities premium

Opening balance 3262622 34.002.35
Less : utilised for issue of bonus preference shares {refer note 10 (al) - (1,37613)
Closing balance 32,626.22 | 32,626.12

{iv) General reserve

Opening balance 3,893.88 4 908.50
Lass : utilised for issue of bonus preference shares (refer note 10 (a) = (117.66)
Less : transfer to capital redemption reserve (refer note 10 (a) - (B26.96)
Closing balance | 31,893.88 3,892.88

(v) Retained earnings

Opening balance (772.97) (1,145.14)
Met profit for the year 684.42 34399
- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation, net of fax .09 28.18
Closing balance | (79.46) (772.97)
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Note 9 (b) : Reserves and surplus (Contd.)
Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital reserve

The profits eamed by the Company through a special transaction, which is not available for distribufion as dividend to shareholders.
The reserve is ufilisad in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Capital redemption reserve

Pursuant to section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013, a sum equal fo the nominal amount of the shares to be redeemed has been
transferred to capital redemption reserve from general reserve.

Securities premium

Securities premium is used fo record the premium received on issue of shares, The same is utihsed in accordance with the provisions
of the Act.

General reserve
(Zeneral reserve was created out of the profits of the Company and is available for distribution as dividend to shareholders.

Note 9 (c): Other reserves

FRrGCHos March 31, gﬁ;:

Opening balance 743437 | 14197.34
Less ; Utilised for issue of bonus preference shares (refer note 10 (a)) -1 (6,76297)
Total other reserves 7.434.37 | 7.434.37

Nature and purpose of reserves
Reserve created on cessation of a loan in an earlier year available for distribution.

Note 10: Financial liabilities

Note 10 (a): Non-current Borrowings

B March 31, 53;:

Unsecured |

0.1% Non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 9159.71 | 8,372.17
Total Borrowings 9.159.71 | 8.372.17
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt 5 =
MNon-current borrowings (as per balance sheet) | 9,159.71 | 8.372.17

(i) Terms of issue of non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 22, 2020, approved a Scheme of Arrangement (“the 5cheme") under
Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, for issuance of Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares to

the non-promaoter shareholders of the Company by way of bonus (™ Bonus NCRPS™) out of its reserves.

The 5cheme was approved by the Mational Company Law Tribunal {"NCLT") vide its order dated December 23, 2022 and
bacame effective from the date of filing of the order with the Registrar of Companies, i.e., December 29, 2022. The Bonus
Committee of the Board of Directors at its meeting held on January 19, 2023, approved the allotment of 8269 597 Bonus
MCRPS, ie., 1 (One) Bonus NCRPS having a face value of ¥ 10 at a premium of # 20 for every 10 (ten) fully paid-up equity
shares of face value of T Z each held, in accordance with the Scheme, fo the members holding equity shares as on January
13, 2023 ("Record Date"). The Bonus MCRP5 shall be redeemed after a period of 36 months from the date of allotment at a
premium of ¢ 20 per share on issue price of § 100 per share. These have been listed on the BSE and N5E on Apnl 20, 2023,

The Bonus NCRP5 have been accounted for in the books of the Company in accordance with the accounfing freatment
prescribed in the Scheme and, accordingly, the present value of the redemption amount of Bonus NCRPS has been recognised
as a financial liability in the Balance Sheet on the date of Scheme becoming effective with a corresponding adjustment to
equity, net of fransaction costs, as per Ind A5 32. Subsequently, the Bonus NCRPS have been measured at amortised cost as
per Ind A5 109 using the effecfive interast rate method and the interest expense on the financial hiability has been charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Note 10: Financial liabilities (Contd.)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

184

0.1% non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares, confer on the holders thereof
the following rights and privileges:

The right to a preferential dividend of 0.1% on the nominal value of the NCRPS avery year, subject to the availability of the
distributable profits, free of Company's Income-tax, but subject to deduction of taxes at source af the rate or rates prescribed
from fime to fime. The dividend will be calculated on a day count of 365 days a year basis and are non-cumulafive in natura.
The dividend shall be paid to such preference shareholders whose names appear on the register of preferance sharsholders
on the record date, as may be declared by the Company.

Shareholders holding more than 5% non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares
in the Company

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Hn_msm | a o

Franklin India Smaller Companies Fund 18,92, 146 21.10% 18,92 144 | 21.10%
Rajasthan Global Securifies Private Limited - - 13,28,300 14.81%
Bharati Bharat Dattani 4 54 997 5.07% - -
Total , 23,47,138 | 26.17% | 32,20,446 35.91%
The following is the reconciliation of the accounting treatment under Ind AS to the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013:-

Amount

Particulars (0 % lakhs)
Fair value of the financial liability on initial recognition (present value of the redemption amount of the Bonus 8.178.76
MNCRPS issued) *

Add: Finance cost (impact of unwinding of discount) 2.584.76
Redemption amount of Bonus NCRPS, which consfitutes the following and represents the disclosure and 10,763.52
accountfing requirements under the Companies Act, 20013

Share Capital - Preference Share Capital — Face value of Bonus NCRPS 896.96
Reserves and Surplus - Securities premium on issue of Bonus NCRPS 8,072.64
Sub-tofal | 8.969.60
Premium payable on redemption of Bonus NCRPS | 1,793.92
Total | 10,763.52
* Corresponding adjustment to equity is as follows:-

Amount

o (in ¥ lakhs)
Genearal reserva 117.66
Other reserves [ 6, 716297
Securities premium [ 1,37613
Total 8,256.76
Less: Transaction costs adjusted against fair value

of the financial liability (78.00)
MNet fair value of the financial liability 8,178.76
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Note 10: Financial liabilities (Contd.)
Note 10 (b): Trade payables

EHECIr March 31, g;za:
Current '
Total outstanding dues of micro enferprises and small enterprises (refer note 28) 0049 6418
Total outstanding dues of credifors other than micro enferprises and small 2112.54 1,668.64
enferprises
Total frade payables | 2,203.03 | 1,732.82
Ageing of trade payables

Outstanding as on March 31, 2024 from the doe date
Particulars Unbilled | Not due [ r—

Undisputed frade payables

Micro enterprises and small = 23.18 6731 - - - 90.4%
enterprises

Others 1,620.50 138.92 348.21 491 -
Disputed trade payables

2,112.54

Micre enterprises and small - - = N = £ X
enterprises

Total 162050 | 1210 415.52 | 491 - - | 2,203.03

Note 10 (b): Trade payables(Contd.)

Particulars

Undisputed frade payables
Micre enterprises and small - 29.70 34.48 - N
enterprises
Others 1,298.82 27748 9234 - -

Disputed trade payables

Micro entarprises and small - - - - = = -
enterprises
Othars - - | - - = -
Total 1,298.82 107.18 126.82 | - - - L732.82

64.18

1,668.64

Note 10 (c): Lease liabilities

A= at March 31, 2024

B Current Non-current :

Lease labilities 469.53 | 1,013.14 L57.24 903.53
Total 459.53 | 1.013.14 | 557.24 | 903.53
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Note 10: Financial liabilities (Contd.)

The following is the movement in lease hiabilifies during the year :

Particulars

Opening balance

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

Finance cost {interest) accrued during the year
Payment of lease liabilities (including inferest)

(Al amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Bz at
March 31, 2024

1,460.77
682.71
(56.83)
151.60

(755.58)

1.482.47

1,944.96
168.86
(59.93)
148.26

{741.38)

1460.77

Note 10 (d): Other financial liabilities
Particulars

Current

Capital creditors [refer nofe 28]
Employea benefits payable

Total other current financial liabilities

B=at

March 31, 2024

509.97
122.76

632.73 |

107.99
166.53
274.52

Note 10 (e): Net debt reconciliation

Net surplus/(debt) as at April 1, 2022

Mew loases

Cash flows

Issue of NCRPS {refer note 10 (a))
Fair value adjustments

Lease disposals

Inferest expanse

interest paid

Met surplus/(debt) as at March 21,
2023

Mew laasas

Cash flows

Fair value adjustments
Lease disposals
Interest expensa
Interest paid

Net surplus/{debt) as at March 31, 2024 |

2.676.20

(1,156.65)

52.07

Lsrm|

728.26
3147

2,331.35|

763.94

(121.14)

642.78

-|
297.28 |
-1
=]
940.06 |

(1.944.95) - 149518
(168.86) -1 (168.88)
£93.12 (684.69)

-l (8178.76) (8,178.76)

- - 52.07

59.93 - 59.93
(148.26) (19341) (34167
148.26 - 148.26
(1,460.77)|  (8.372.17) (7.518.54)
(682.71) - (68271
603.98 413052

- - 3147

56.83 - 56.83
(151.60) (787.54)  (939.14)
151.60 - 151.60
(1482.67)|  (9.159.71) (4.849.97)
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Note 11: Employee benefit obligations
A= at March 31, 2024

Non-
current

260.28 49.41 | 205.66
92,61 182.55 78.74 29.46 108.20
352.89 | 502.32 | 128.15 | 235.12 | 363.27

Particulars

Cuarrent Total

Leave obligations (i)
Gratuity (i)
Total employee bemﬁiul:ignﬁmu

(i) Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for eamed leave which are dlassified as other long term benefifs.

(ii}) Post-employment obligations
Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, except that there is no benefit
ceiling. Employees who are in confinuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity
payable on refirement/termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proporfionately for 15
days' salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company has taken a

group gratuity policy for the purpose. The Company generally does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of
funding over a period of fime based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

Provident fund

The Company also has a defined confribution plan. Contributions are made fo provident fund for employees at the rate of 12%
of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government.
The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or any constructive
obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is ¥ 282.67 (March 31, 2023: 7250.38).

B R March 31, gﬁ;:

Employer’s contribution fo provident fund 233.85 202.27
Employer's contribution to Employees’ Pension Scheme, 1995 48.82 4811
Total 282.67 | 250.38

Balance sheet amounts - Gratuity
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as

follows:
Particulars P;ﬁi’]‘fg‘;f:: | nfpﬁ’;i“; Net amount
April 1, 2023 596.45 (488.25) 108.20
Current service cost 82.68 - g2.68
Interest expensa/(income) 4103 {35.94) 5.09
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 12371 (35.94) B1.7T
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest (0.37) (0.37)
expense/{income)
{Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumpfions - 3 =
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumpiions ga4 - .44
Experience {gains)/losses (2089 - (20.89)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (12.45) (0.37) (12.82)
Employer contributions - = -
Benefit payments (36.39) 3579 (0.60)
March 31, 2024 &71.32 (488.77) 182.55
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Note 11: Employee benefit obligations (Contd.)

— R

April 1, 2022 | 613.78 (546.24) 81.54
Current service cost 78.48 - 78.48
Interest expense/(income) 39.23 (37.29) 194
Total amount recognised in profit or loss u7n (31.29) 80.42
Remeasurements
Retum on plan assets, excluding amounts included in inferest 3.15 3.15
expense/income)
(Gain}/loss from change in demographic assumptions - i -
{Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (21.30) - (21.30)
Experience (gains)/losses {21.61) - (21.61)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive (42.91) 3.15 (39.78)
income |
Employer contributions - -1 -
Benefit payments #2.13) 9213 -
March 31, 2023 59545 (488.25) 108.20

The net (asset)/Tiability disclosed above relating to funded plan is as follows:

ERTHEn March 31, zﬁgza:

Present value of funded obligation

Fair value of plan assets AB8.77 {488.25)
(Surplus)/ Deficit of funded plan (gratuity) ] 182.55 | 108.20

(iv) Significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars A=z at March 31, 2024

Discount rate 7.20%: 7.40%
Salary growth rate 71.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate 25 years & below 25 pa 25 years & below 28 pa

25 1o 35 years 20% p.a 25 to 35 years 20% p.a

35 to 45 years 15% p.a 35 to 45 years 15% p.a

45 to 55 years 10% p.a 45 to 55 years 1% p.a

55 years and above 2% p.a | 55 years and above 2% p.a

Estimates of future salary increases are considered in actuanal valuation taking info account inflation, senionty, promofion and
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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Note 11: Employee benefit obligations (Contd.)

(v) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

| Change in azssumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
e Increase in assumption Decrease in azssumption
= —
2024
Discount rate 050% |  0.50%|Decreaseby| (3.09%) |  (3.06%] | Increase by 3.27% 3.24%
Salary growth 0.50% 0.50% | Increase by 3.26% 3.23% | Decrease by | (3.11%) (3.08%)
rate
Withdrawal rate 10% | 10% | Decrease by |  (0.27%) (0.13%) | Increase by 0.28% 0.13%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumpfions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuanal assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporfing penod) has been applied as when
calcufating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and fypes of assumptions used in prepanng the sensitivity analysis did not change compared fo the prior penod.

(vi) The major categories of plan as=sets are as follows:

A= at
Particulars
March 31, 2024

Group gratuity policy | 100% | 1000
Total | 100% | 100%

(vii) Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plan, the Company is exposed to a number of nisks, the most significant of which are detailed
below:

As=zet volatility:

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield,
this will create a deficit. These are subject fo inferest rate risk.

Changes in bond yields:
A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

(viii) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis.

Expected contribution to post-employment benefit plan for the year ending March 31, 2025 is ¥ 89.94.
The weighted average durafion of the defined benefit obligation is 6.77 years (March 31, 2023: 6.81 years).
The expected maturty analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

i et IR S owamen W

As at March 31, 2024 74.30 | £9.60 | 231298 | 768.72 | 1,145.60
As at March 31, 2022 | 81.82 £1.52 193.35| 895.92 | 1,036.61
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Note 12: Deferred tax assets (net)

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable fo:

HA=at
Partenars
Deferred tax assets (DTA)
Unused tax credits (MAT credif) 3,28881 3,650.96
Loss allowance on financial assets 88373 88240
Employee benefit obligations 137.09 26.60
Lease liabilities 37316 367.65
Tax losses N 35796
Others 237.07 205.65
Total 4,919.86 5.561.22
Deferred tax liabilities (DTL)
Property, plant and equipment 21047 13892
Infangible assats 286584 3,195.65
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7273 88.16
Right-of-use assats 33642 31414
Total | 3,485.45 3,736.87
Net deferred tax assets | 1,434.40 1,824.35

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

..
At April 1, 2022 [DTA/(DTL)] (65.24)  (3.453.21) | 850.20 855.95 3,559.05 | 205.27| 1.972.02
{Charged)/credited -
- to profit or loss (73.68) 251.56 2220 (507 99} 0191 7391| (135.09)
- to other comprehensive income - = - - (11.58) (11.58)
At March 31, 2023 {138.92)| (3.195.65) 882.40 157.96 3,650.95| 267.60| 1,824.35
{Charged)/credited '
- to profit or loss (71.55) 329.81 133 (357.946) (362.15) 7431| (385.21)
- to other comprehensive income 5 = 5 = (3.73) (3.73)
At March 31, 2024 (210.47) | (2.865.84) 88373 | 0.00 |  3,288.81 | 2338.18 | 143441

The Finance Act, 2019 reduced the Company's applicable tax rate from 30% to 25% plus applicable surcharge and cess, and further,
the Taxation Laws (Amendment] Act, 2012 provided an option to pay faxes at a concessional rate of 22% plus applicable surcharge
and cess, subject to complying with certain conditions.

Based on its assessment of future taxable profits, the Company has decided to confinue applying the rate of 25% plus applicable
surcharge and cess unfil the Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit balance is utilised and opt for the concessional rate of 22% plus
applicable surcharge and cess thereafter. The Company has, accordingly, measured its deferred fax balance as on March 31, 2024.

Note 13: Other current liabilities

Particulars

K= at

March 31, 2024

Statutory dues payable 254.46 32932
Refund liabilities [refer note below] 74.75 59.17
Other hiabilities [including related party balances, refer note 24 (h)] | 58348 55198
Total other current liabilities | 912.59 940.47

Maote: Refund liabilities are recognised for volume discounts payable to customers
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Note 14: Revenue from operations

Revenue is recognised when the advertisements are aired based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts and goods and services fax billed to the customers. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for such
variable consideration, and the revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
revenue will not occur. A refund liability (included in other curment liabilifies) is recognised for the varable consideration payable to

the customers in relation fo sales made unfil the end of the reporting penod. The validity of assumptions used to estimate variable
considerafion is reassessed annually.

Mo significant element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30-150 days, which is consistent
with market practice. A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered and billing is done as this is the point in time that
the consideration is uncondifional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Pasthailars Year ended

March 31, 2024

Bevenue from contract with customers

Sale of services

Advertisement income 22,853.85 19,8856.14
Total revenue from operations | 22,853.85 | 19,886.14

(il The Company derives its revenue from contracts with customers for rendering of services at a point in time. The Company is
engaged in the business of radio broadcasting and other related activities under the "Radio City’ brand in India.

Particul Year ended

March 31, 2024

Performance obligation satisfied at a point in time
Advertisement income 22 8531.85 19.8856.14
Total revenue from operations 22,853.85 | 19.886.14

i) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the confract price:

Partical Year ended

March 31, 2024

Advertisement income

Revenue as per confract price 23.74097 20,404.04
Less: Rebates and discounts (887.12) (517.91)
Total revenue from operations 22,853.85 | 19.8856.14

Note 15 (a): Other income

Accounting Policy

Interest income: Interest income on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is disclosed as inferest income within other
income. Inferest income on financial assets atamortised cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of ather income.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interast rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied
to the net cammying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Particulars Notes Mm::;’f;‘;g‘:

Interest on fixed deposits and bonds 5 (a), (d}, (e) 1,664.56
Interest on income tax refund 15.31
Unwinding of discount on security deposits S5(e) | 5&6.73
Total other income | 2.056.47 1,726.60
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Note 15 (b): Other gains/(losses)

Particulars

Met fair value gains on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Met gain on sale of investments

Met gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Liabilities no longer required writien-back

Miscellaneous income

Total ather gains/(losses)

(Al amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
‘ bl March 31, 2024

Sial

3 (a)

3047

142.37
27.81
19.41
30.24
| 251.30

52.07

133.00
20.44
15.07
13.15

233.73

Note 16: Employee benefit expense
Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

Confribution fo provident and other funds
Gratuity

Leave compensation

Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

Year ended
‘ bl March 31, 2024

11

6,390.57
28267

87.77

89.52

91.88

| 6.942.41

5,615.76
250.38
80.42
49.01
62.90
6,058.47

Note 17: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2024

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3ia) 68519 634.42
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 3 (b} 59276 589.37
Amortisation of infangible assets | Ha) 2)065.18 2,055.78
Total depreciation and amorfisation expense | ] 3,243.12 | 3,279.57

Note 18: Other expenses
Particulars

Repairs and mainfenance:
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Office maintenance charges
Power and fuel expensas
Rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Telephone and communication charges
Markating and advertisement expenses
Insurance
Corporate social responsibility expenditure [refer note (b) below]
Payments to auditors [refer note (a) belowl]
Royalty
Programming costs
Common transmission infrastructure usage charges

Year ended
March 31, 2024

48.84
22197
509.15
866.62
3317
18697
92.83
3,256.31
4211
1.00
63.58
394.22
1,488.49

1,091.54

47.78
209.10
49273
826.06
37.12
13173
88.85
2,758.54
39.56
0.06
6017
47588
1,500.42

1,043.43
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Note 18: Other expenses (Contd.)

Particulars

Annual software license fee
Legal and professional fees
Commission on salas
Procurement of air firme
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

| 11— _Financial Statements )

Year ended
March 31, 2024

43093
286.27
53097
194.61
312.23 |

10,251.81 |

42409
254 35
45164
174.98
203.97

9.,260.45

(a) Details of payments to anditors (excluding tax)
Payments to auditors

As auditor:

Statutory audit fees (including quarterly limited reviews)
In other capacities

Certification fees

Reimbursement of expenses
Total payments to auditors

Year ended
March 31, 2024

57.00

3.00
3.58
8358 |

53.00

3.00
417
40.17

(b) Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars

Promaotion of education and livelihood skills to visually impaired and orphan
students with better infrastructure facilities along with support to cancer
patients and neglected senior citizens.

Tetal
(il Amountrequired to be spent as per Saction 135 of the Act
i) Amountapproved by the Board to be spent during the year
{il) Amount spent during the year on

(a) Construction/acquisition of an asset

(b) On purposes other than (a) abowve
(iv) Related party fransactions
(v) Shortfall at the end of year

(vi) Tofal of previous years' shortfall

Year ended
March 31, 2024

1.00

1.00
1.00

1.00

0.06

Note 19: Finance costs

Particulars

Interest and finance charges on financial kabilifies not at fair value through profit or
loss

Interest expense on lease liabilifies
Other borrowing costs

Interim dividend on NCRPS

Total finance costs

Year ended
March 31, 2024

187.73 |

151.60
49.58
0.90

989.81 |

193.52

14826
4948

391.26
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Note 20: Income tax expense

Particulars

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

(2) Income tax expense

Current fax

Current tax on profits for the year 22844 12617

Adjustments for current fax of prior periods (2.02) -
Total current tax expense 219.42 126.17
Deferred tax expense
Decreasa/{increasa) in deferred tax assets 108093 359.62
(Decreasa)/increase in deferred tax habilities (332.57) {257.79)
Adjusiments for deferred tax of prior periods (362.15) 34.26
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) | 386.21 135.09
Income tax expense | £05.63 262.26

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Profit before income tax expense 1,290.05 606,25
Tax rate 2017% 29.12%
Tax at the rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2023 - 29.12%) | 375.56 176.54
Tax effect of amounts which are not deduchble {taxable) in calculating taxable

income:

Interest on redeemable preference shares {refer note 10 (a)) 22933 56.32
Corporate social responsibilify expenditure 029 0.02
Adjustments for deferred tax of prior peniods - 34.26
Other items 035 (4.88)
Income fax expense &05.53 262.26

Note 21: Fair value measurements

The financial instruments are classified in the following categories and are summarisad in the table below:

a) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

b} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYQCI)

c) Amortised cost

Financial instruments by category
Particulars

Financial as=sets
Investments

- Mutual funds, bonds, corporate depaosits
and alternative investment fund

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Security and other deposits
Total financial assets

154

A= at March 31, 2024

Bmortized
EVIPL FYVOCI et
283133 -| 2189203 1,898.63 - 20,069.67
- = 735014 - - 6,587.42
- - 240,06 - - 642.78
- - 2531047 - - 4933
- = 572589 — — 8,064.60
2,831.33 -| 3843959 1.898.63 - 35413.80
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Note 21: Fair value measurements (Contd.)

Particulars

A= at March 31, 2024

FVIPL | Fvocy |fmortsed
Financial liabilities
Bomrowings - - 215971 - - 837217
Trade payables - - 2,203.03 - - 1,732.82
Capital creditors - - 50997 - - 107.99
Employee benefits payable . = - 12276 - - 166.53
Total financial liabilifies - -| 11.995.47 - -| 10379.51

i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy: The following fable summanses the financial instruments at fair value by valuation methods. The different
levels have been defined as follows:-

Lewel 1: Includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds and bonds that have
quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing MAV and bonds, although quoted, are carmied at amortised cost.

Lewvel 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are obsaervable, the instrument is included in level 2. There are no financial
instruments measurad using level 2 valuation techniques.

Lewel 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable markat data, the instrument is included in leval 3.
This includes investment in alternate investment fund, the fair values for which have been determined basad on the net asset
valua.

Financial assets and liabilities measzured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

A= at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Levell Level2 Level3d | Total
Financial assets

Financial Investments at FVPL: |

Mutual funds and alternative 5(a) | 2,331.35 -| 49998 2,83133| 1,571.62| -| 327.01| 1,898.63
investment fund ! '
Total financial assets | 2,331.35| -| 499.98| 2.831.33| L.570L.62 -| 327.01 1,898.63

Bs==zets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

| As at March 31, 2024
Particulars [ Motes Level Lewvel
2 3

Lewel 1

Total

Financial assets

Investments
Bonds 5() | 21,892.03 - -| 21,892.03| 20,069.67 = -| 20,069.67
Total financial assets | 21.892.03 | o -| 21,892.0 | 20,069.87 -1 - 20,069.67

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

- fthe use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

(i) Valuation process

The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO).
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO and the valuafion team at least once every three
months, in line with the Company’s quarterly reporting periods.
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Note 21: Fair value measurements (Contd.)

(iv) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Particulars

Financial assets
Investments
Investments in bonds

Other financial assets

Security depaosits

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Total financial liabilities

t:arrging

amount

|

March F1, 2024
21,892.03 22,592.01
1,252.08 124546
2314411 23,837.47 |
9.159.71 9,185.71
9,159.71 ?.135.71[

|  Fair value

20,069.67 20,059.94
1,202.08 1,186.47
2127075 21,246.41
8,372.17 8372.17
8,372.17 8.372.17

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
other deposits and employee benefits payable are considered to be the same as their fair values, due fo their short-term

natura,

The fair values for security deposits and investments in bonds were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current
lending rate. Secunty deposits are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobsarvable
inputs including counterparty credit risk. Investment in bonds are classified as level 1 fair values in the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of non-current borrowings is based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified
as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the camying amounts are equal fo the fair values.

Note 22: Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it fo a vanety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange nisk), credit nsk and liquidity
risk. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks fo minimise
potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the board of directors which provide principles for overall risk

management.

This note axplains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the enfity manages the risk.

Rizk
Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk — foreign
exchange risk

Cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, financial
assets measured at amortised
cost and fair value through
profit or loss

Borrowings and other
liabilitias

Future commercial
transactions, recognised
financial assets and liabilities
not denominated in Indian
rupee (T)

' Ageing analysis Credit ratings

Cash flow forecasts

Cash flow forecasting
Sensitivity analysis

Diversification of bank
deposits, credit limits and
periodic monitoring of
market/fair value

of mutual fund investmants
and bonds.

Availability of committed
credit lines and borrowing
facilifies

By minimising the exposure
to foreign currency
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Note 22: Financial risk management (Contd.)
(A) Creditrisk
The credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of mutual fund investments camed at fair value

through profit or loss, bonds, fived deposits and secunty deposits carned at amorfised cost and deposits with banks, as well
as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables.

(1)

(ii)

Rizsk Management

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the insfitution, market reputation and service standards
to select the banks with which balances are maintained. The Company does not maintain significant cash and deposit
balances other than those required for its day to day operations.

The Company extends credit to customers in the normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as
credit track record in the market and past dealings with the Company for extension of credit to customers. The Company
monitors the payment frack record of the customers.

The Company’s investments im mufual funds and bonds are considered to be low risk investments. The credit ratings of
the investments are monitored for credit deterioration.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurming on the asset as at the repaorting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonably available current and forwarding-
looking information.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails fo make confractual payments when they fall due or when
the extended credit period expires. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment
in which the Company operates and other macro-economic factors.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales before the reporfing date and the cormesponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

Trade receivables are wrntten off or impaired where there is no reasonable expectafion of recovery, such as a debtor
declaring bankrupfcy or failing fo engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where receivables have been written
off or impaired, the Company continues fo engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.
Where recovenes are made, thesa are recognised against the same line ifem.

All of the enfity’s debt investments at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months” expected losses, which is Mil (March 31, 2023: Nil).
Management considers instruments fo be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong
capacity o meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

(2) BReconciliation of loss allowance — Trade receivables
Loss allowance as af 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 was determined as follows for trade receivables under the simplified

approach:

Outstending az on March 31, 2024 from the involce date |
Asat March 31, 2024 Lessthan | 1-2 | [ Morethan |

1 year Years

(Gross carrying amount — trade 6,612.82 289.02 21179 3,034.67 10,148.30
receivables
Expected credit loss rate 3.15% 42 .06% 713.565% 16.21%
Expectad credit losses — trade 208.14 121.56 155.78 2,312.68 2,798.16
receivables
Carrying amount of frade receivables &.404.58 1567.46 55.01 721.99 7,350.14
(net of impairment)
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Note 22: Financial risk management (Contd.)

(b)

(c)

(B)

198

Az at March 31, 2023

Gross carrying amount — trade 533703 35497 316.75 337226 238101
receivables

Expacted credit loss rate 192% 33,65 48 68% 68.53%

Expected credit losses — frade 20898 119456 154.18 231097 2793.59
recaivables

Carrying ameunt of trade receivables 5,128.05 235.51 182,57 105129 6,587.42
(net of impairment) -

Reconciliafion of loss allowance provision of trade receivables:

Loss allowance on April 1, 2022 2,717.49
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 317.16
Recenvables written off during the year as uncollectible {241.07)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 2,793.58
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 32519
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible {320.61)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 2,798.156

The Company does nat expect to receive future cash flows or recoveries from the receivables written-off.

Debt investments
The Company's exposure to investments in bonds, fived deposits and secunty deposits are considered to be low nsk.

Reconciliation of loss allowance - Deposits

| Amount
Loss allowance on April 1, 2022 344.29
Changes in loss allowance -
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 1564.39
Changes in loss allowance
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 354.29

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
The Company is also exposed to credit risk in relation fo mutual fund investrments that are measured at fair value through profit

or loss. The maximum exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of these investments € 2,331.35
lakhs (March 31, 2023: 2 1,571.62 lakhs).

Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of financial assets

Accounting Policy

The loss allowance for financial assefs disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Company uses judgament in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs fo the impairment calculation, based
on the Company's past history, existing market condifions as well as forward looking estimates af the end of each reparting
period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed above.

Liquidity risk

The Company relies on operating cash inflows, investments in marketable securities, borrowings and capifal infusion to meet
its needs for funds. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium term funding needs. The
Company monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity posifion, cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows

to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities at all times.
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Note 22: Financial risk management (Contd.)

(¥

(if)

Financing arrangements
Tha Company had access to the following undrawn bomrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

A= at
R March 31, 2024
Floating rate |
Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other faciliias)
- Fund based 1,100.00 1,100.00
- Non fund based 26795 334.00
| 1,367.95 | 1,434.00

The cash credit / overdraft facilities and bank guarantee may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank
without notice.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company's financial habilities into relevant maturty groupings based on their contractual
miaturities for all non-denvative financial iabilities. The company does not have any derivative financial instruments.

The amounts disclosed in the fable are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of

financial liabillties

March 31, 2024

Non-derivatives

Bomowings - 10,763.52 - - 10,763.52
Trade payables 2,203.03 - - - 2,203.03
Other financial habilities 63273 = - - 632.73
Leasa liabilities 581.53 380.70 52044 32918 1.811.87
Total non-derivative liabilities 3,417.29 11,144.22 | 520.46 319.18 15.411.15
st S e Ko
financial liabilities

March 31, 2023

MNon-derivatives

Bormowings 10,763.52 10,763.52
Trade payables 1,732.82 - - - 1,732.82
Other financial liabilihies 27452 - - - 274.52
Lease liabilihies 66020 455,55 431.40 17771 172485
Total non-derivative liabilities | 2,667.54 455.55 11,194.92 171.711 14,495.72

(C) Market risk

by

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed fo foreign exchange nsk arising from foreign currency fransactions, primarily with respect
to the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commeraal fransactions and recognised assets and hiabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the Company's funchional currency (¥). The risk is measured through a forecast of
highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure:
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting penod expressed in 7 is as follows:
B= at

Particulars March 31, 2024

UsD |

Financial assets:

Trade receivables 383 3.51

Net exposure to foreign currency risk | 3,83 | 351
The aggregate net foreign exchange gain/{loss) recognised in statement of profit and loss (included in "Miscellaneous
expenses ) is T 0.06 (March 31, 2023: 7 (0.08)).
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(b) Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates anses mainly from foreign currency denominated
financial instruments:

Impact on profit after tax
March 31, 2024
$/USD Increase by 20 (March 31, 2023 - 2%)* 0.08 .07
$/USD Decrease by 2% (March 31, 2023 - 204)* | (0.08) (0.07)

*Holding all other variables constant

(ii) Price Risk
The Company does not have equity investments that are publicly traded. Further, the Company does not have non-listed
equity securifies that are susceptible to market price nisk ansing from uncertainties about future values of the investment
sacurities.

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Company in mutual funds and altermnative
investment fund classified in the balance sheet as fair value through profit or loss (see note 5(a)). To manage its price
nisk arising from aforementioned investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the limits set by the Company. The majority of the Company’s investments are publicly traded.

Note 23: Capital management

Risk management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability fo confinue as a going concern so that it
can confinue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capifal. In order to mainfain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid fo shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with the industry standards, the Company monitors capital on the basis of net debt fo equity ratio where net debt
compnses fotal bormowings and lease liabilities, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity comprises equity share capital, reserves
and surplus and other reserves.

The net debt to equity position at the reporting date is as follows:

A= at
Latcutars March 31, 2024
Debt including lease liabilities (a) 10,642,238 983294
Met debt including lease liabilities (b) 970232 219016
Total equity (c) 5316841 52474590
Debt to equity ratio (a)/(c) 20% 19%
Met debt to equity rafio (b)/ic) 18% 18%

The debt to equity ratio for the current year has increased as a result of accrual of interest on bonus redeemable prefarence shares
(refer note 10{a))

Note 24: Related party transactions

(a) Parent entities
The Company is controlled by the following entifies:

Name Type Place of Owmnership interest
LRSS March 31, 2024

Jagran Media Network Investment Ultimate parent entity India 0.00% 0.00%

Private Limited

Jagran Prakashan Limited | Immediate parent entity India | 74.05% 74.055%

a00
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Note 24: Related party transactions (Contd.)

(b) Fellow subsidiary
Name
Midday Infomedia Limited

(All amounts in 7 lakhs, unless ofherwise stated)

Type Place of incorporation
Fellow subsidiary [ India

(c) Entity over which parent entity exercises significant influence

Name Place of incorporation
MM Online Limited India
(d) Entities over which KIMP/ relatives of KMP exercise significant influence
Name | Type | Place of Incorporation
WVRSM Enferprises LLP Other related party India
(e} Other related parties
Type Name Relationship
Key management personnel (KMP) | Rahul Gupta MNon-executive director
Shailesh Gupta MNon-executive director
Anuj Pun Mon-executive director
Vijay Tandon Chairman, Non-executive director
Madhukar Kamath Mon-executive director
Anita Mayyar MNon-executive director
Rawi Sardana Mon-executive director
Ashit Kukian Chief Execufive Officer
Prashant Domadia Chief Financial Officer
Arpita Kapoor Company Secretary
Employee gratuity trust Music Broadcast Limited Employee Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Scheme Trust

(f) Key management personnel compensation

(i) ERemuneration paid to Eey management personnel

Particulars

Year ended

March 41, 2024

Short term employee benefits 323.76 262.24
Post employment benefits 1103 6.50
Long ferm employee benefits 3163 2.91
Total compensation | 33842 | 271.65
(ify Tran=actions with non executive directors

Year emded

ERatiowlars March 31, 2024
Sitting fees 23.80 11.80
Total | 23.80 | 11.80
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Note 24: Related party transactions (Contd.)
{(g) Transactions with related parties
The following fransacfions occured with related parties
Year ended
S
Sale and purchase of services:
Purchase of advertisement space / material :

- Jagran Prakashan Limited 1672 137.65
- Midday Infomedia Limited 816 4444
Advertisement income

- Jagran Prakashan Limited 160.62 186.05
- Midday Infomedia Limited 102 1.26

Other transactions:
Rental Income

- Jagran Prakashan Limited 587 5.B7

Rent charged by related parties for use of common facilities /

utilities:

- Jagran Prakashan Limited 62.89 &60.16

- VRSM Enterprises LLP 50.52 4811

Expense reimbursements paid

- Jagran Prakashan Limited 43.67 41.36

- Midday Infomedia Limited 29.60 20.91

Expense reimbursements received

- Jagran Prakashan Limited N 3.50

- Midday Infomedia Limited 4464 51.60

Contribution made

- Music Broadcast Limited Employee Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation - -
Scheme Trust

(h) Outstanding balances arising from sale/purchase of services and other transactions
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to fransactions with related parties:

A= at
SECE A March 31, 2024

Trade receivables:

- Jagran Prakashan Limited 2999 7.03
- Midday Infomedia Limited 2474 3.26
Total receivables from related parties [note 5(b]] 54.73 10.29
Other receivables:

- Jagran Prakashan Limited 14.83 1157
- Midday Infomedia Limited 125 735
Other receivables from relafed parties [note 8] ! 15.08 18.92
Security deposit given

- VRSM Enferprises LLP 3500 35.00
- Jagran Prakashan Limited 50.00 50.00
Security depesits to related parties [note 5 (e)] ! 85.00 | 85.00

Thera is no loss allowance for receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no loss allowance has been recognised
during the year in respect of receivables due from related parfies.

(ij Terms=and conditions

The sales, purchases and other transachions with related parties were made on normal commercial ferms and condifions and
at market rates. All Outstanding balances are unsecured and the setilement occurs in cash or through exchange of services.
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Note 25: Contingent liabilities
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

b)

() The Additonal Commissioner, Mumbai, vide his order dated January 17, 2023 directed the Disirict Collector, Mumbai to
recover certain dues amounting to ¥ 6,523 relating to the building owned by the Jagran Group entities (comprising the
Company, Midday Infomedia Limited and VR5M Enterprises LLP) in Mumbai from the banks, who had sold the building
to the Jagran Group entities under the SARFAES] Act, 2002, on account of breach of terms and conditions of land lease
agreement by its erstwhile owner. The Jagran Group entities have filed a revision application before the Revenue
Minister, Government of Maharashira which has been heard and kept for orders. The carrying amount of such building
in the books as on March 31, 2024 s ¥ 3 189 (March 31, 2023 : ¥ 3,267) . Based on the opinion of external legal counsel
and internal assessment, the Company does not expect outflow of any economic resources in this matter.”

(i) During the year, in the matter of the Company vs Phonographic Performance Limited ('PPL") and other music providers,
the Hon'ble Madras High Court partly allowed the appeal of PPL and other appellants by providing a 'minimum floor rate”
of ¥ 860 per needle hour payable to PPL and other appellants for use of sound recordings by the Company over its radio
stations w.r.t. the past decade 2010-2020. The Company has filed a specal leave pefition before the Hon'ble Supreme
Court of India challenging the High Court judgement. Further, a notice of confempt was issued by PPL demanding
payment of ¥ § 933 and a petition has been filed by PPL in this regard before Madras High Court which is pending for
disposal. Based on the opinion of external legal counsel and ifs internal assessment, the Company has a good case on
merits and, therefore, the Company does not expect outflow of any economic resources in this matter.

(n) The Company has received cerfain other claims towards royalty for use of sound recordings over its radio stations
amounting to ¥ 1, 368.17 (March 31, 2023: ¥ 1 368.17). Out of the above, the Company has paid ¥ 200 (March 31, 2023:
% 200) under protest (refer note 8) and issued bank guarantee for ¥ 229. Based on the opinion of external legal counsel
and its infernal assessment, the Company believes that more likely than not, no outflow of economic resources will be
required in this matter.

v} Inrespect of defamation cases, these are either not quantifiable or cannot be reliably estimated. Hence, the same have
not been disclosed.

The amount of provident fund payable, if any, in relation fo cerfain allowances cannot be reliably estimated, though not likaly
to be significant. Hence, this amount has not been disclosed.

Note 26: Capital and other commitments

(1)

(i)

Capital expenditure confracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as habilifies is as follows:

Year ended
R E— March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment | 5211 4973
Total 5211 49.73

As per the Grant of Permission Agreements ("GOPA") with the Ministry of Information and Broadcasfing, Government of India,
the Company is required to pay license fee at the rate of 4% of Gross Revenue of its FM radio channel for the financial year or
2.5% of the Non-refundable One Time Enfry Fees ("NOTEF™) for the city, whichever is higher, for each of its 39 radio stations.

The minimum commitment in the form of 2.5% of NOTEF payable over the remaining license period is as follows:

Fardcakars March 31, ;zza:

Within 1 year 1,760.72 1,760.72
Later than one year but not later than five years 704288 704288
Later than five years 204673 3,807.45

10.,850.33 12,611.05
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Radiio's Digital Renaissance ®

Note 27: Earnings per share

s
a Basic earnings ¥ per share
Basic earnings ¢ per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 0.20 0.10
b Diluted earning= ¥ per share
Diluted eamings ¥ per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 0.20 0.10

c Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings ? per
share

Basic earnings ¥ per shara:

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating &84.42 343.99
basic earnings ¥ per share
Diluted earnings ¢ per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculafing &84.42 343.99
diluted eamings ¥ per share

d Weighted average number of equity shares nsed as the
denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominatorin 34 56,85,625 34 5685625
calculating basic earnings ¥ per share
Adjustments for calculation of diluted sarnings per share:

Woeighted average number of potenhal equity share on account of = -
Compulsorily convertible debenfuras

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 34,56,85,625 34,56,85,625
diluted earnings per share

Note 28: Dues to micro and small enterprises
The defails of dues to micro and small enferprises (MSME) as defined under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 ('the MSMED Act’) are as follows (refer notes 10{b) and 10(d}):

Sl Year ended
T b bt March 31, 2024
1 | Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 12112 7221

remaining unpaid as at March 31, 2024 (includes amount payable to capital
creditors £ 30,63 (March 2023: T 8.03)

2 | Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining = -
unpaid as at year end.

3 Principal amounts paid fo suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond = =
the appointed day dunng the year.
4 |Interest paid, under 5ectionlé of MSMED Act, fo suppliers registered under the 5 =
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.

g Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to suppliers - -
reqgistered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.

& | Amount of inferest due and payable for the penod of delay in making payment
twhich have been paid but beyond the appointed day duning the year) buf
without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act.

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. - -

Amount of further inferest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 5 =
years, until such date when the inferest dues abowve are actually paid to the
micro or small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deduchble
expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.
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Note 29: Assessment of impairment of assets

The market capitalisation of the Company fluctuated duning the year and was lower than the carrying amount of net assets for a
part of the year, although as at March 31, 2024, the market capitalisation exceeded the carrying amount of net assets. Based on
the information available and applying its judgement, the Company used a discounted cash flow model, including performing
sensifivity analysis on the assumpfions used, o assess value in use of its assets, and concluded that the recoverable amount of the
assets thus determined is higher than their carrying amount and, accordingly, no impairment loss needs to be recognised. The
Company will confinue to closely monitor any material change in future penods.

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule ITI of Companies Act, 2013

Note 30: Analytical ratios

(All amounts in 7 lakhs, unless ofherwise stated)

Fortheyearended % Reason for
Rata TmcEsior. DERCIEA T Maxgh:il, 2024 Variance varlance
Current ratio {fimes) | Current assefs Current labilities 413 4.08 1% Mot
applicable
Debt equity ratic | Total debt Total equity 0.20 0.19| 7% Refer note
({times) | {including lease 2a)
liabilities)
Debt service Eamnings available | Debt service 045 040 1&% Refer note
coverage ratio for debt service {refer note 1(b) | Hb)
(times) (refer note 1(a) below)
below)
Retum on equity Profit for the year Average 1.30% 061% 113% Refer note
(%) shareholders’ 2c)
equity
Inventory turnover | Cost of good sold | Average inventory Mot applicable Mot applicable | Mot Not
ratio (fimes) : applicable | applicable
Trade receivables Revenue from Average 328 281 1% Mot
turmower ratio operations trade receivables applicable
(times)
Trade payables | Other expenses Average 5.21 548  (5%) Mot
turnover ratio trade payables applicable
{times)
Met capital turnover | Revenue from Working capital 167 LI7|  [5%) Not
ratio (times) operations (current assets - applicable
cumment liabilities)
Met profit ratio (%) | Profit for the year Revenue from 2.99% 1.73% 73% Refer note
operaticns 2{d)
Return on capital | Eamings before Capital employed 4.52% 2.12% 113% Refer note
employed interest and fax (refer nota 1ic) 2(e)
(tangible net worth) | (refer note 1) below)
() below)
Returmn on capital Eamings before Capital employed 3.57% 1.60% | 123% Refar note
employed inferast and tax (refer note 1(d) 2(e)
{including | {refer note 1) below)
infangible assets) below)
{%e)
Retum on Eamnings befare Closing fotal 3.35% 152% | 120% Refer note
investments (%) | interest and tax assots 2(e)
{refer note 1(e)
| below)
Mote 1

(a) Earmings available for debt service = Profit for the year + Non-cash operating expenses {depreciafion and amortfisation) +
Finance cost (interest expense) - Met gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(b) Debt service = Borrowings including lease liabilifies

(c) Capital employed = Tangible net worth + Bommowings including lease liabilities
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(d) Capital employed (including infangible assets) = Met worth + Borrowings including lease liabilities

(e) Earnmings before inferest and tax = Profif for the year + Finance costs + Income fax expense

MNote 2

(a) Debtequity ratio: Due to interest accrued on non-convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares.

(b) Debtservice coverage ratio: Due to interest accrued on non-converfible non-cumulative redeemable preference shares and

increase in eamings available for debt service in current year as compared to previous year.

i) Return on equity: Mainly due to increase in profifs in current year as compared to previous year.

(d) Met profit ratio: Increase in revenue and profits for the current year as compared fo previous year.

(e) Return on capital employed/ Return on capifal employed (including intangible assets)/ Retum on investments: Mainly due to

increase in profit in the current year as compared to previous year.

Note 31: Relationship with struck off companies

Name of struck off company

Balaji Shiksha Services Private Limited

Comwen Information Technologies Private
Limited

Cosmicdaots Electrical And Technologies
Private Limited

Digital Lync Technologies P Lid

Naim Studios Private Limited

Paradigm 5tar Survey Marketing & 5ales
Private Limited

Gluck Cabs Services Pyt Lid.

Shamsheer Communications Private
Limited

Talwalkars Better Value Fitness Lid
Tesmay Events And Media Private Limited
Vs Seeds Pnvate Limited

Maa Antair Foods Private Limited
Worthwhile Gases Private Limited

Annapurna Telecast & Teleport Private
Limnited

Backlift Technologies Private Lirmited
Driving Mind Innovations Private Limited
Focus Education Private Limited

Maven Enterfainment Private Limited

206

Nature of Balance
tranzactions with Eoiieisidillictl
struckoffcompany v Ghes sl B s
Receivables 5.04
Receivables 0.64
Receivables 0.12
Receivables 043
Receivables 240
Receivables 0.24
Receivables 1.15
Receivables 0.01
Receivables 0.04
Recervables 0.01
Recervables 037
Recervables 0.05
Receivables 4.80
Recervables 015
Receivables 116
Recervables 2.35
Recervables -
Receivables 0.09

outstandingason
March 31, 2023

L4
0.64

012

0.43
2.40
0.24

115
0.01

0.04
0.01
0.37
079
480
015

11&
235
037
0.09

Relationship with
struckoffcompany

Mot applicable
Mot applicable

Mot applicable

Mot applicable
Mot applicable

Mot applicable

Mot applicable
Mot applicable

Mot applicable
Mot applicable
Mot applicable
Mot applicable
Mot applicable
Mot applicable

Mot applicable
Mot applicable
Mot applicable
Mot applicable
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Note 31: Relationship with struck off companies (Contd.)

HNature of Balance with

Name of struck off company transactions with Lo citinlict 8 ontstandingason strackolt v

struckoffcompany B Fioe i 08 March 31, 2023 E
Meghani Commercial Services Pvi. Lt Receivables 0.21 0.21 Mot applicable
Mms Shoppy India Private Limited Receivables - 294 Mot applicable
Online Outdoor Media Services Pt Receivables 133 133 Mot applicable
Plus Nine One Music Private Limited Receivables 0.23 0.23 Mot applicable
Pytwo Foods & Hospitality Private Limited Receivables 0.02 0.0z Mot applicable
Reliable Landbase Private Limited Receivables 0.09 0.09 Not applicable
Rithika Realtors Pwt. Lid. Receivables 0.02 0.0z Mot applicable
Rsons Infra Land Develooers Pvt. Lt Receivables 0.40 040 Not applicable
Rhythm Markefing Private Limited Receivables 0.56 0.56 Not applicable
Tanjara Trading Pvi Lid Receivables 12.57 12.57 Not applicable
Tea & Coffee Private Limited Receivables 0.47 047 Not applicable
Triaza Entertainment Private Limited Receivables 0.04 0.04 Mot applicable
foozoo Media Private Limited Receivables 0.23 0.23 Mot applicable
Samphire Food And Pharma (Pvi) Ltd Raceivables - 031 Mot applicable
Sanford Healthcare Private Limited Raceivables - 048 Mot applicable
Aligarh Locks Private Limited Raceivables 104 3.80 Mot applicable
Olive Healthcare Private Limited Receivables 011 011 Mot applicable
Martolia Builders and Developers Private Receivables 0.30 0.30 Mot applicable
Limited
Cadd Global Technologies Private Limited Receivables - 020 Mot applicable
Celebrityprime Foods (India) Private Receivables 0.30 0.30 Not applicable
Limited
Purosoft Water Solutions Private Limited Receivables 0.33 033 Mot applicable
[Nenium Adwvertising and Marketing Private Receivables - 01z Mot applicable
Limited
Centaur Datacorp Private Limited Receivables l.46 146 Not applicable
Mirvana Motion Pictures Limited Receivables 412 412 Not applicable
Challenge Advertising Private Limited Receivables 21.22 21.22 Not applicable
Zenith Insurance Services Private Limited Shares held by 0.01 0.01 Mot applicable

struck off Company
Vitalink Wealth Advisory Services Private Shares held by 0.01 0.01 Not applicable
Limited struck off Company
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Note 32:

(1)

(ii)

(i)

(i)

(v}

fwi}

208

Details of Benami property:

Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending against
the Company for holding any benami property under the
Banami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
the rules made thereunder.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and =share

preminm:

(A} The Company has not advanced or loaned or
invested funds (either borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) fo
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (intermediaries) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or enfities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(ultimate beneficianes) or

b} provide any guarantee, security or the like fo or

on behalf of the ultimate beneficianes.
B)

The Company has not received any fund from any
person(s)/ enfity(ies), including foreign entfifies
(funding party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in wrifing or otherwisa) that the Company

shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or enfities identified in any manner
whatsoaver by or on behalf of the funding party
(ultimate beneficianes) or

b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or

on behalf of the ultimate beneficianes.

Compliance with approved schemels) of arrangements: The
Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement
which has an accounting impact on current year.

Undisclosed income: There are no transactions that have
been sumendered or disclosed as income dunng the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
have not been recorded in the books of account.

Defails of crypto curmency or virtual currency: The Company
has not fraded or invested in crypto currency or virtual
currency during the current or previous year.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment, right of use
assetfs, infangible assets and investment property: As the
Company has chosen cost model for its property, plantand
equipment (including nght-of-use assets) and intangible
assets (including under development), the question of
revaluation does not arise.

(Al amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{vii) Loans or advances to specified persons: The Company has

not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
to promaoters, directors, KMPs or the related parties (as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally
or jointty with any other person.

{viii} Borrowings secured against current assets: The Company

(i)

{x}

(i)

has sanctioned borrowings of 2,029 (March 31, 2023:
¥ 1,434) during the year fully secured against fixed
deposits.

Wilful defaulter: The Company has not been declared a
Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with the Registrar of
Companies: There are no charges or satisfachion yet to be
registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory penod.

Compliance with number of layers of companies: The
Company does not have any subsidiary, hence, this is not
applicable.

(xn) Utiliszation of borrowings availed from banks and financial
institutions: The Company does not have any borrowings
from banks or financial institutions at the balance sheet
date, hence, this is not applicable.

Note 33: Summary of other accounting

policies

This note provides a list of the other accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied fo all the years presenfed, unlass
otherwise stated.

(@

(b)

(c)

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes
have been rounded off to the nearest Rupees lakhs and
two decimals thereof, as per the requirement of Schedule
IIl, unless otherwise stated.

License fees

License fees is charged fo the staterment of profit and loss
at the rate of 4% of gross revenue for the year or 2.5%
of Non-Refundable One Time Enfry Fee (NOTEF) for the
concerned FM radio station, whichewver is higher. Gross
revenue is the revenue on the basis of billing rates inclusive
of any taxes and without deduction of any commission paid
to adwverfising agencies, net of discounts fo advertisers.

Provizions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.
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Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in setilement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to setile the present obligation at the end of the reparting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific fo the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of fime is recognised as interest expense.

(d) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

(e} Foreign Currency Translation

i} Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the
Company are measured using the currency of the
primary aconomic environment in which the entity
operates ('the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%),
which is the Company's functional and presentation
currancy.

ify Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are franslated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the fransactfions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the tfranslation
of monefary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.
Foreign exchange differences regarded as an
adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss, within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit and loss on a
net basis within other gains/ (losses).

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefiis
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying

(9)

(M)
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amount of any component accounted for as a separate
assef is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of eachreporfing period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are defermined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within 'Other gains/
(losses) — net in the statement of profit and loss.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date
are classified as capital advances under non-current assets.

Transition to IND AS

On transition to IND AS, the company has elected to
confinue with the carrying value of all its property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and intangible
assats measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as deemed cost of the property, plant and
aquipment.

Leases

A=z alessee:

The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
confract involves:

. The use of an identified asset,

. The right to obtain substantally all the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset, and

. The right to direct the use of the identified assaet.

The right of use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date of the lease less any lease incenfives received, any
inifial direct costs and restoration costs.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisafion and impairment lossas, Historical
cost includes any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intfended usa.

Transition to Ind AS

On fransition to Ind AS, the Company elected to continue
with the carmying value of all its infangible assets measured
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of the infangible assets.
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(i) Investment and other financial assets

alod

i

il

i

Classification

The Company classifies its fimancial assets in the
following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and

. those measured at amorfised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s businass
madel for managing the financial assets and the
confractual terms of cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend onwhether the Company
has made an irrevocable election at the time of inifial
recognition fo account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income.
The Company reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Company commifs fo purchase or sell the financial
asset.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a
financial asset (excluding frade receivables which do
not contain significant financing component) at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, fransaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisifion of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit
or loss.

For debt instruments, subsequent measurement
depends on the Company's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement
categories info which the Company classifies its debt
instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assefs that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and inferest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt invesiment that is
subsequently measured at amortised costand is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised
or impaired. Interest income from these

v

(Al amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

financial assets is included in finance income
using the effechive inferest rate method.

. Fair wvalue through ofher comprehensive
income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and inferest, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movemenis in the carmying amount are
taken through OCl, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue
and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest rate
method.

. Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that
do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FWVOCl are measured at fair value through profit
of loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
15 subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net in the statement of profit and loss
within other gainsflosses)in the period inwhich
it arises. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income.

For equity instfruments, the Company measures
all equity investments at fair value. Where the
Company's management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from
such investments are recognised in profit or
loss as other income when the Company's
right to receive payments is established.
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in other gains/ (losses) in the statement of
profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVMOCl are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with
its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI
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debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Mote 22 details
how the Company determines whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.
For trade receivables only, the Company applies the
simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetfime losses
to be recognised from inifial recognition of the
receivables.

¥. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

. the Company has transferred the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset or

. retains the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation fo pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients.
Whera the entity has transferred an asset, the
Company evaluates whether it has fransferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognised. Where the
entity has not transferred substantially all nsks
and rewards of ownership of the financial
assef, the financial asset is not derecognised.
Where the entity has neither transferred a
financial asset nor refains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is derecognised if
the Company has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the Company retains
control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised fo the extent of
continuing invalvement in the financial asset.

Cffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intenfion to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and setile the hiability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents and other bank

balances

For the purpose of presenfation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
depaosits held at call with banks, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with criginal maturities of three months

(k)

M
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or less that are readily convertible fo known amounts
of cash and which are subject o an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Other Bank Balances consist of term deposits with banks,
which have original maturities of more than three months.
Such assefs are recognised and measured at amorfised
cost (including directly atiributable transaction costs) using
effective inferest rate method, less impairment losses, if

any.

Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or opfions
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceads.

Borrowings

Borrowings are inthally recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Bormowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceads [net of fransaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognisad in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective inferest rate method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan faciliies are
recognised as fransachion costs of the loan fo the exient
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs, To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for iquidity
services and amorfised over the penod of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when
the obligation specified in the coniract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the camrying
amount of a financial iability that has been extinguished
or fransferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or habilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/
(losses).

Where the terms of a financial hiability are renegohated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor
to extinguish all or part of the liability, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Company has an unconditional right to defer setilement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Where there is a breach of a matenal provision of
a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting penod with the effect that the liability becomes
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does
not classify the lability as current, if the lender agreed,

all
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after the reporfing period and before the approval of the
financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as
a consequence of the breach.

(m) Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent iabilities for goods and services
provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within due dates. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilifies unless payment is not
duawithin 12 months after the reporfing period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interast
method.

(m)

ala

Employee benefit obligations

@

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the penod in
which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up fo
the end of the reporting penod and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the habilihes
are seftled. The habilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligafions in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be
sattied wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related
service and they are calculated annually by the
actuaries. They are therefore measuraed as the presant
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method. The benefits are discounted using the
appropriate market yvields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating fo the terms
of the related obligation. Bemeasurements as a result
of experience adjustments and changes in actuanal
assumpfions are recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Post-employment cbligations

The Company operates the following post-
employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plan such as gratuity

(b) Defined confribution plans such as provident
fund.

Gratuity obligaticns

The hability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present
value of the defined benafit obligation at the end of

(1)

(Al amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

the reporting peried less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
The net interest cost is caloulated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. This cost is included in employee benefits
expense in the statement of profit and loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumpfions are recognised in the pericd in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
Theyareincluded inretained eamingsin the statement
of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resuliing from plan amendmentis or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or
loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company’'s confributions to employee
provident fund, employee state insurance fund and
employees’ pension scheme, are accounted for as
defined contribution plans and the confributions
are recognised as employee benefits expense
when they are due. The Company deposits these
amounts with the fund administered and managed
by the provident fund/employee state insurance
authorities. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Company recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when
the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the enfity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of
Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
maore than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted fo present value.
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(o)

(p)

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period's taxable income based
an the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused fax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Management periodically evaluates
positions faken in tax refurns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to inferpratation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertfain tax treatment. The
Company measures its fax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending
an which method provides a better prediction of the
resclution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income fax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a fransaction that affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporfing period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income fax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused fax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right fo offset current tax assets and
liakilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same fanation authority. Current fax assets and fax fiabilities
are offset where the enfity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either fo seftle on a net basis, or fo
realise the asset and setile the liability simultaneously.

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current
and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to ifems recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Revenue from operations
Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes

(q)

(x)

(=)

(®

(All amounts in 7 lakhs, unless ofherwise stated)

amount collected on behalf of third parties. The Company
recognises revenue in the accounting peried in which the
services are rendered.

Other Income

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company esfimates the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment and extension)
but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Dividends: Dividends are recognised in profit or loss
anly when the nght to receive payment is established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are direcily
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarilty take a substantial period of fime to get ready
for their inftended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the penod in which they are incurred.

Impairment of financial asset

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's camrying
amount exceads its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Mon-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Earning per share

(iy Basicearnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares
oufstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares, if any, issued during
the year.

ala
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(ii} Diluted earnings per share

Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the after income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average
number of additional equity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(u) Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistant
with the infternal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker viz. the Board of Directars, who are
responsible for making strategic decisions and assessing
the financial performance and position of the Company.

Note 34 Segment information

The Company 5 engaged prmanly in the business of
operating private FM radio stafions in India, which consfitutes
single reportable segment.

For Price Waterhouse Charfered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754M/N5000146
Chartered Accountants

(Al amounts in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

There is no single external customer from whom the Company
derives 10% or more revenue.

Note 35 Legal Matter

A pefition under sections 241, 242 and 244 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed with the Mational Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT"), Allahabad on July 10, 2023, by Mr. Mahendra
Mohan Gupta (Mon-Executive Chairman and Promoter
of Jagran Prakashan Limited, the Holding Company) and
Mr. Shailesh Gupta (Whole-Time Director and member of the
Promoter Group of the Holding Company and Mon-Executive
Director of the Company) in their individual capacifies, against
the other Promoters and members of the Promoter Group of
the Holding Company. The litigation is currently pending at
NCLT and several submissions have been made by all parties
to the NCLT. As of this date, the Company does not expect any
impact of this matter on its financial position as at March 31,
2024 and its future operations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Peswani Vijay Tandon Ravi Sardana
Partner Chairman Director
Membership Number: 501213 DIN 00156305 DIN: 06938773
Place: Mumbai Place: New Delhi Place: Mew Delhi

Date: May 22, 2024

Date: May 22, 2024

Date: May 22, 2024

Aszhit Kukian Prashant Domadia Arpita Kapoor
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 22, 2024
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